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POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
As of 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Negative goodwill

Intangible assets

Financial assets

Investments accounted for using equity method
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Income tax receivables
Short-term investments
Deferred costs

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Shareholders’ equity

Common stock

Capital reserve

Revaluation reserve

Foreign exchange difference on subsidiaries
Retained earnings

Total shareholders’ equity
Minority interests
Non-current liabilities
Interest bearing borrowings
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and accrued expenses
Income tax liabilities

Interest bearing borrowings
Deferred income

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

31 December 31 December
2003 2002
(unaudited)

(in PLN million)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated condensed financial statements
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POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INCOME STATEMENTS
For the 12 and 3 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Profit from operations

Financial income

Financial expenses

Income from investments accounted for using
equity method

Profit before income tax and minority
interests

Corporate income tax

Profit after tax

Minority interests

Net profit

Basic earnings per share for the period
(in zloty per share)

For 12 months

For 3 months  For 12 months

For 3 months

ended ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2003 2003 2002 2002
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
(in PLN million)
24,412 6,908 16,902 4,777
(19,986) (5,775) {13,455) (3,892)
4,426 1,133 3,447 885
422 112 256 80
(2,259) (664) (1,787) (580)
(934) (243) (891) (216)
(327) (125) (294) (108)
1,328 213 731 61
289 53 211 96
(378) (56) (220) 37
49 7 13 |
1,288 217 735 195
210) 66 (285) (128)
1,078 283 450 67
(37) (10) (29} 3
1,041 273 421 64
2.47 0.65 1.00 0.15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated condensed financial statements
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POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
For the 12 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit for the period

Adjustments for:

Minority interests

Net income from investments accounted for under equity method
Depreciation and amortisation

Interest and dividend charges, net

Income tax on current period profit

Loss / (Gain) on investing activities

Decrease / (Increase) in receivables

(Increase) in inventories

(Decrease) / Increase in accrued expenses and payables
(Decrease) / Increase in provisions

Other adjustments

Net income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of available for sale investments

Acquisition of investments available for sale and entities accounted for under equity method
Acquisition of business in Germany, net of cash acquired

Acquisition of short-term securities

Proceeds from sales of short-term securities

Dividends and interest received

Loans granted/repaid

Other

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term and short-term loans and other borrowings
Repayment of long-term and short-term loans and other borrowings
Interest paid

Dividend paid

Other

Net cash flows gained (used) in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

For 12 months For 12 months
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2003 2002

(unaudited)

(PLN million)

1,041

(1,337
40

17

(56)
(269)
(62)

55

85

83

63
(1,381)

4,502
(4,257)
(116)
(59
(12)

421

1,686
(1,879)
(156)
(50)
(10)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated condensed financial statements
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POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A.
CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the 12 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002
(PLN million)

Common Capital Revaluation Foreign currency Retained Total
. . shareholders’
stock reserve reserve translation earnings .
equity
1 January 2002 525 1,174 859 - 5,400 7,958
Valuation of available for sale
: . - - 42 - - 42
investments at fair value
Sales of assets available for
sale valued at fair value ) ) ¢42) - - (42)
Dividend (PLN 0.12 per
share) - - - - (50) (50)
Net Profit ) ) ) ) 421 421
31 December 2002 525 1,174 859 - 5,771 8,329
. . . . Total
Common Capital Revaluation Foreign currency Retained .
. A shareholders
stock reserve reserve translation earnings .
equity
1 January 2003 525 1,174 859 - 5,771 8,329
Shares issue 9 - - - - 9
Share premium - 185 - - - 185
Foreign exchange gain/loss A ) ) 62 ) 62
on consolidation
Dividend - - - (59) (59)
Net profit - - - - 1,041 1,041
ir;;};izsiment of tangible fixed ) ) 6) ) A 6)
Hedge accounting-cash flow
- - 3 - - 3
hedges
31 December 2003 534 1,359 856 62 6,753 9,564

(unaudited)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated condensed financial statements
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POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 12 and 3 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002
(PLN miillion)

1. Principal activities

The principal company of the capital group of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN (further referred to as the
“Group”) is Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. (further referred to as the “Company” or “PKN QRLEN")
located in Plock, Poland at Chemikow St. 7. PKN ORLEN was established in 1993 as a State Treasury owned
joint stock company Mazowieckie Zaklady Rafineryjne i Petrochemiczne “Petrochemia Plock™ S.A. Effective
from 20 May 1999 the Company changed its name to Polski Koncern Naftowy S.A. Effective from 12 April
2000 the Company changed its name to Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

The Company is engaged in processing of crude oil into a broad range of petroleum products and
petrochemicals as well as in transportation, wholesale and retail distribution of such products. The other
companies of the Group operate primarily in related downstream activities including production and
distribution of oil and chemical products.

2, Basis of presentation

The Company applied for these consolidated condensed financial statements International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) effective for respective accounting periods except for accounting for hyperinflation under
International Accounting Standard No 29 "Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” (IAS 29) and
revaluation of fixed assets under International Accounting Standard No 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”

(IAS 16). The measurement and the reporting currency of these consolidated condensed financial statements is
Polish Zloty ("PLN").

Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS have been condensed or omitted pursuant to International Accounting Standard No 34,
“Interim Financial Reporting” (IAS 34). The accompanying consolidated condensed financial statements
reflect all adjustments, except for adjustments required by IAS 29 and by IAS 16, of a recurring nature which
are necessary for a fair statement of the Company’s consolidated results of operations and cash flow for the
periods ended on 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002 and the Company’s consolidated financial
position as of 31 December 2003 and as of 31 December 2002. The accompanying consolidated condensed
financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and the
notes thereto for the year 2002. The presented financial results are not necessarily indicative of the results of
the full year.

The condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated results of operation, balance sheets and cash
flows for each period presented.

3. Selected explanatory notes

3.1 Accounting policies

The Company followed the same accounting policies and methods of computation in these consolidated

condensed financial statements as compared with the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance
with IFRS for the year 2002.




POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 12 and 3 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002
(PLN million)

3.2, Unusual items affecting the amounts presented in these financial statements

a) Joint Venture PKN ORLEN - BASELL

On 28 February 2003 PKN ORLEN in exchange for its organized part of business contributed in kind (assets
and liabilities related to production and sales of polyolefin) acquired 50% shares in BASELL ORLEN
POLYOLEFINS Sp. z 0.0. (formerly Poliolefiny Polska Sp. z 0.0.) located in Plock (“BOP”™). The remaining
50% was acquired by Basell Europe Holding B.V. (“BEH”) in exchange for contributed cash. After the
increase the share capital of BOP amounts to PLN 907m.

As a result of the contribution in kind of the organized part of business to BOP, the Group recognized a gain
amounting to PLN 82m, net of deferred tax. The gain presented in these financial statements results from 50%
share in net assets of BOP which is proportionate to BEH’s share in the net assets of this company. The gain
amounting to PLN 112m is presented within other operating income. As at the transaction date, the investment
in BOP was recorded at cost of PLN 342m.

Since 1 March 2003 the joint-venture BOP is accounted for under the equity method in consolidated financial
statements. 50% of the company’s net profit is adjusted by profits related to 50% of net assets of the company
arisen on the transaction of contribution in kind and current mutual transactions.

b) Long term investments in Germany

On 28 February 2003 the Company acquired a chain of 494 retail stations in Germany (323 stations under the
name BP - Aral and 171 stations under the name Eggert together with shareholdings in Eggert — a company
previously acquired by ARAL). The business activity in Germany is realized through 6 subsidiaries directly or

indirectly 100% controlled by PKN ORLEN.

The transaction has been accounted for under the purchase accounting method as presented below:

Purchase price according to the initial agreement 589
Adjusted purchase price (as a result of change in working capital caused 300
mainly by an increase of payables)

Net value of acquired assets and liabilities, adjusted for liabilities to BP paid by PKN 371
(including PLN 21m of acquired cash)

Negative goodwill an

Beginning from 1 March 2003 PKN ORLEN consolidates its activities in Germany using full method of
consolidation.

¢) Disposal of stake in NOM Sp. z o. o.

On 20 May 2003, the Management Board of the Company submitted a put option execution declaration for all
Niezalezny Operator Miedzystrefowy Sp. z 0.0. (“NOM”) shares owned by PKN ORLEN to Polskie Sieci
Elektroenergetyczne S.A. (“PSE”). The “put” price equals to PLN 111.5m and is calculated as a sum of a par
value of the shares sold and a cumulative investment premium calculated according to the agreement dated
8 June 2000 regulating the cooperation between the NOM shareholders.

On 20 October 2003, PSE filed a suit to the Court of Arbitration of the Polish Chamber of Commerce in
Warsaw, regarding the determination of the validity of the shares sales agreement. Up to the date of
preparation of these financial statements the legal proceedings in the Court of Arbitration were not
commenced.




POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 12 and 3 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002
(PLN million)

According to the opinion of the Management Board of the Company, based additionally on an independent
legal analyses, the Company has executed its put option and sold NOM shares to PSE. Consequently, the
Company recognised profit on the transaction amounting to PLN 27.5m (difference between purchase price of
the shares and the sales price resulting from the put option). According to the Management Board the
receivable of PLN 111.5m will be realised in full amount.

3.3. Dividends

In 2003 the Company paid out dividends for 2002 amounting to PLN 59m, i.e. 0.14 zloty per share.

34, Interest bearing borrowings

31 December 31 December

2003 2002
(unaudited)

Bank loans 2,918 2,152
Other loans and credits 36 71
Short-terms bonds 77 340
Total, including: 3,031 2,563
Less short-term portion 1,195 2,161
Long-term portion 1,836 402

The total interest bearing borrowings utilized by the Company increased by net PLN 468m within 12 month
period ended 31 December 2003.

The change of debt is result of:

s decrease of short-term securities by the amount of PLN 263m,
e increase of borrowings due to consolidation of activities in Germany amounting to PLN 429m,
¢ incurred loans in PLN:

- 1lmin BHS.A. in Warsaw

- 6min BPH PBK SA
s incurred loans of EUR 115m and USD 218m within Syndicated Agreement*
e repayment of foreign currency loans:

- USD 200m (syndicated loan)

- EUR 25m in BPH PBK S.A.

- EUR25minBH S.A.
e repayment of loans in PLN:

- 53m in Bank Millenium S.A.

- 47min BPH PBK S.A.

- 30m in CITI Bank International

- 27minBHS.A.

- 4min PKOBP S.A.

* The Syndicated Agreement on dual currency loan in the amount of EUR 500m was signed on 29 July 2003.
The loan will be repaid in 2008. The loan can be utilized in EUR as well as in USD.
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POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 12 and 3 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002
(PLN million)

3.6. Basic and diluted earnings per share
for the 12 month period for the 12 month period
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2003 2002
Weighted average common stock outstanding 420,804,797 420,177,137
Net profit for the period per share (PLN) 247 1.00

There is no difference between the basic and diluted earnings per share,

3.7.

Convertible bonds within Incentive Program

From 1 to 10 October 2003, employees who accepted in September 2003 the offer to acquire convertible
bonds within the Incentive Program, expressed requests to exercise their rights to the conversion of
7,531,924 bonds for PKN ORLEN S.A. shares. As a result on 20 November 2003 the share capital of PKN
ORLEN was increased.

3.8.

1.

Changes in contingent liabilities and risks after 31 December 2002

On 15 November 2002, based on the act on restructuring of certain budget receivables from enterprises,
Rafineria Trzebinia, the Company’s subsidiary, applied for the restructuring of budget receivables
concerning excise duty and VAT for the period from June to December 1998. On 30 December 2002
fiscal authorities issued a decision on restructuring conditions of payables concerning VAT and excise
duty of total value of PLN 35m, stating the restructuring charge in the amount of PLN Sm. The charge
was paid in full in January 2003.

As a result of the audit performed by the Tax Audit Office in Krakow, tax allowance for the months
1-X11.1999, 1-X11.2000 and 1-XI1.2001lon VAT concerning production of diesel fuel with component
extracted from reprocessed used oil, was questioned. On 22 December 2003 the company received
decisions of the Director of Tax Audit Office in Krakow, which stated the additional VAT liability
together with penalties in the total amount of PLN 80m.

As a result of the above decisions, the Management Board of Rafineria Trzebinia, taking into account a
significant interest of the taxpayer and ambiguous regulations regarding the tax allowance on
reprocessing of used oil, applied to the Tax Office in Chrzanow for partial remission of the liability.
The application received a favourable opinion of the Tax Office Jury in Krakow. On 29 December 2003
Rafineria Trzebinia S.A. paid PLN 12m of overdue tax liability covered by the decisions of Tax Audit
Office Director. On 31 December 2003 the Head of Tax Office in Chrzanow, after obtaining a positive
opinion from Tax Office Jury in Krakow, issued a decision, in which the remaining liability of PLN
68m was remitted.

In accordance with the Agreement signed on 20 December 2002, Tankpol Sp z 0.0 transferred to PKN
ORLEN due to cession, 40% of shares held in ORLEN PetroTank Sp z o.0. in exchange for receivables
from Tankpol Sp. z o.0. Final settlement of this transaction should be made after valuation of shares in
ORLEN PetroTank Sp. z 0.0. On 30 October 2003 a legal case was filed against PKN ORLEN as
compensation for PLN 70m or return of the ceded shares. On 26 January 2003 Tankpol Sp. z o.0.
modified its claim for repayment of PLN 36m or return of the ceded shares. Together with the claim,
Tankpol Sp. z o.0. presented a new valuation of ORLEN Petro Tank Sp. z 0.0. amounting to PLN
232m. On 22 January 2003 Tankpol Sp. z 0.0. approached Company with a compromise offer, stating,
that the claim will be revoked if PKN ORLEN pays PLN 33m. On 18 February during the first hearing
the court suspended the legal proceeding for the period of three months, in order to allow parties to
reach a compromise.
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POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 12 and 3 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002
(PLN million)

In the Company’s Management view, based on the independent legal opinion obtained, the final
outcome of the above claim should not have a material impact on the presented financial results.

3. Due to the public information in relation to the Company’s purchase transactions, the Supervisory
Board has taken actions including requests to audit firms to perform specific test procedures, which
were aimed at verifying the above information, including an analysis of the specified procurement
transactions. The reports on these procedures has been presented to the Supervisory Board for further
analyses. Simultaneously the Management Board filed notifications to the Public Prosecutor’s Office
regarding a suspicion of a commitment of crimes connected with:

— disclosure of confidential information, included in auditors’ reports,
- violation of the Company’s purchase procedures

The final outcome of the above notifications is not known as at the date of the preparation of these
financial statements. However, in the Management’s opinion, there are no circumstances indicating that
the above mentioned matters may materially impact the true and fair presentation of the accompanying
unconsolidated and consolidated condensed financial statements for 12 month period ended 31
December 2003.

3.9. Subsequent events

There were no subsequent events after the balance sheet date having a material influence on the
consolidated condensed financial statements as at 31 December 2003.

3.10. Operating costs

12 months ended 3 months ended 12 months ended 3 months ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2003 2003 2002 2002
(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
Row materials and energy 11,005 2,883 10,331 2,876
Cost of goods for resale* 7,537 2,432 1,836 636
External services 1,789 526 1,539 515
Payroll and benefits (staff costs) 1,055 259 1,016 247
Depreciation and amortisation 1,236 326 1,160 301
Taxes and charges 263 61 239 24
Other 534 149 513 162
23,419 6,636 16,634 4,761
Adjusted by:
Change in inventories, deferred and 188 205 (143) 51
accrued costs
Cost of products and services for own use (101) (34) (64) (16)
Operating costs 23,506 6,807 16,427 4,796

* The increase in cost of goods for resale in 12 and 3 month periods ended 31 December 2003 results from
the acquisition of business in Germany, which sells goods for resale.
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for the 12 and 3 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002

(PLN million)

3.11.  Transformation for International Financial Reporting Standards purposes

The adjustments to the consolidated condensed financial statements prepared under Polish Accounting

Standards (PAS) are presented below:

Net profit for Net profit for Net profit for Net profit for
12 months 3 months 12 months 3 months
ended ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2003 2003 2002 2002

(unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
PAS basis consolidated 1,069 264 479 103
Payments from profit for social activity @) - - -
Borrowing costs capitalisation, net of
depreciation (68) (29) (23) (16)
Amortisation of CPN goodwill (10) ) an 3
IFRS treatment of negative goodwill 17 4 8 2
Deferred tax on above 53 44 17 21
Other (16) ®) (13) 0]
IFRS consolidated 1,041 273 421 64

Net assets as of
31 December 2003 31 December 2002
(unaudited)
PAS basis consolidated 9,185 7,927
Payments from profit for social activity - -
Borrowing costs capitalisation, net of depreciation 458 526
CPN goodwill, net of depreciation 62 72
IFRS treatment of negative goodwill (54) 7D
Deferred tax on above &7 140)
Other - 15
IFRS consolidated 9,564 8,329
13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the 12 and 3 month periods ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002
(PLN million)

3.12. Other

The consolidated financial statements have been authorised by Company’s Management Board at premises of
the Company, on 24 February 2004,

Signatures of the Members of the Management Board

........

..............................................................................................................................................

Vice President — Jacek Strzelecki Vice President - Stawomir Golonka
Vice President — Janusz Wisniewski Vice President - Andrzej Macenowicz
14
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Financial Results of PKN ORLEN Group for Q4 2003, according to IFRS
- Financial Highlights SRR
7 12 months 3 months 12 months 3 months I
ORLEN Group ended ended ended ended % change % change
Dec 31 2003 Dec 31 2003 Dec 31 2002 Dec 31 2002 12 months 3 months
(unaudited data) (unaudited data) (unaudited data)
Results according to IFRS PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLN m USD m
Sales revenue 24,412 6,276 6,908 1,777 16,902 4,142 4,777 1,194 44.4% 51.5% 44.6% 48.8%
EBITDA’ 2,564 659 539 139 1,891 463 362 90 35.6% 42.3% 48.9% 54.4%
Operating profit/(loss) 1,328 341 213 55 731 179 61 15 81.7% 90.5% 249.2%  266.7%
Financial expenses 378 97 56 14 220 54 -37 -9 71.8% 79.6% -251.4% -255.6%
Net profit (loss) 1,041 268 273 70 421 103 64 16 1473% 160.2% 326.6%  337.5%
Net profit (loss) according - 1,013 260 271 70 215 53 119 30 3712%  390.6% 127.7%  133.3%
to LIFO method
Operating cash flow 1,864 479 423 109 1,292 317 445 111 443%  51.1% 49%  -1.8%

(1) The following average exchange rates were used for the conversion of the amounts denominated in USD: 12 months of 2002: PLN 4.0811, 12 months of 2003:
PLN 3.8898, 3 months of 2002: PLN 4.0017, 3 months of 2003: PLN 3.8864.
(2) EBITDA = OPERATING PROFIT + AMORTISATION/DEPRECIATION

- Refining (Production + Wholesale): Q4 2003 saw an increase in the segment’s financial result, which
grew by 82.7% in comparison with Q4 2002; the increase was attributable principally to high crack margins,
and the implementation of efficiency-oriented initiatives.

- Refining (Retail): Reduction of the loss by PLN 40m in Q4 2003 as compared with Q4 2002, resulting
mainly from an increase in the unit fuel margins and the non-fuel margin, as well as the growth in sales
volume (operations in Germany).

- Petrochemicals: Improved result in 4Q 2003 relative to the analogous quarter of the previous year (up by
26.3%), driven by growth in demand for petrochemical products (fertilizers and polyvinyl chloride — Anwil
SA).

- Other Activities: A 3.7% drop in revenue and concurrent increase in the segment’s costs by 1.5% had an
adverse impact on its financial result; Q4 2003 brought a loss of PLN 20m, versus a PLN 4m profit in
Q4 2002.

- Inland Premium: Q4 2003 saw a PLN 52m (or 32.5%) decrease in the inland premium in relation to
Q4 2002, following from a change in the pricing of fuel.

- Profit on Sales: a 27% increase in Q4 2003 in relation to Q4 2002, attributable mainly to the higher crack
margins on fuel products, and a reduction of operating expenses accompanied by growth in sales of fuel.

- Net Profit: The Q4 2003 net profit stood at PLN 273m, having grown by 209m (or 326.6%) relative to the
profit for Q4 2002; the growth was driven mainly by a high profit on sales and a reduction of corporate
income tax charges (revaluation of provisions for deferred tax).

- Net Operating Cash Flow: A PLN 179m decrease in the funds generated in Q4 2003 compared with Q4
2002.

- CAPEX: Growth of CAPEX by PLN 102m in Q4 2003 over Q4 2002, the main contributing factor being
intensified execution of investment projects in the refining and petrochemicals segments.

- Operating Expenses Reduction Programme: Reduction of the expenses provided for in the programme by
PLN 46m in Q4 2003, relative to Q4 2002.

- Value Based Management and Risk Management: Both programmes are running as scheduled; since the
beginning of 2004, the Company has been implementing a risk hedging policy.
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Zbigniew Wrébel, President of the Management Board: “For ORLEN, 2003 was a period of hard

work and implementation of ambitious projects and investments, which brought about the expected resulls.
Thanks to the favourable market conditions and the efforts and commitment of our management personnel we
were able to earn a record-high after-tax profit in excess of PLN 1bn. The publication of this record data pushed
our stock price up to an all-time high. We are very proud that investors have such high regard for what we do.

The scope of the investment projects we executed last year, and the implementation of a range of
programmes designed to tangibly enhance our operating efficiency, make us optimistic about the future.

1t was yet another time we recorded a growth of the retail margin. It increased by 13% for fuels and by
as much as 22% for non-fuel products. We completed the performance of the rebranding of our service stations
planned for 2003. Currently, all outlets in our distribution network bear the ORLEN logo. Approximately 400 of
them underwent comprehensive change of colours (brand). It is at those stations that the strongest growth in
sales has been reported.

One of the most significant projects executed in 2003 was the upgrade of our Hydrocracker’s capacity
(from 2.6 to 3.4 m tonnes of crude oil a year), which made it one of the largest units of this type worldwide. Work
is underway on a state-of-the-art batching unit for the ethanol additive to gasoline. Thanks to the on-going effort
to ensure technological development of the production plant in Plock, and the stringent procedures we apply,
ORLEN fuels already meet the quality standards which will not be effective in the EU states until 2005.

The progress of our leading project, that is the upgrade of the Ethylene Cracker II by ABB Lumus, is
70%. Its completion will contribute directly to an increase in the production of basic monomers (ethylene,
propylene). The financial result as at the end of 2003 posted by Basell Orlen Polyolefins, a joint-venture
company formed last year, was approx. 2.5 times higher than expected, which confirms that the decision to form
the JV was a correct one, and bodes well for the future performance of this undertaking.

In 2003, we commenced modernisation of our storage depots in Mosciska and Ostrow Wielkopolski.
Modification and extension of these facilities will involve their adaptation to new environmental regulations. In
addition, we used for the first time the unique underground fuel and crude oil tank farms in the caverns of the
IKS Solino salt mine. The storage capacity of these facilities is 1,740,000 m’ for crude oil and 815,000 m’ for
diesel oil.

With a view to achieving the goal of doubling the Company’s value by 2006 through increased
efficiency of the Company and the ORLEN Group, in 2003 we consistently implemented individual elements of
the programme. The implementation of the Cost Cutting Programme, which began in July, brought measurable
financial benefits to the Company in 2003. At the same time, we developed acomplete implementation
infrastructure and launched supporting programmes. The cost cutting in key areas resulted in efficiencies of
PLN 144m, which is in line with the projections we published for this year. In addition, one of the supporting
programmes, namely the Voluntary Retirement Scheme, is also producing material results (almost 400
declarations received), while pre-implementation work is underway on another one, Reorganisation of the
Regional Structures. The initiatives pursued in the area of sales, procurement and logistics confirmed that there

is further scope for efficiencies.
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Financial Results of PKIN ORLEN Group for Q4 2003, according to IFRS

ORLEN Capital Group companies considerably improved their performance, with the net profit
doubling. The total turnover of all consolidated companies exceeded PLN 39bn. Exclusive of intra-group
transactions, the consolidated financial statements presented revenue in excess of PLN 33bn (according to the
Polish Accounting Standards).

One of the most important events of 2003 was the launch of the industry consolidation process in
Central and Eastern Europe in response to our initiatives. We signed a Memorandum of Understanding with
MOL, an oil concern of Hungary, which opens the way to close cooperation, and further to the equity
consolidation of the two companies. We have also placed bids in the privatisation processes of Unipetrol of the
Czech Republic and Petrom of Romania. These initiatives are a part of our consistent efforts towards the
strategic goal which is to ensure a stable position of PKN ORLEN at the core of a Central European refining
and petrochemicals concern.

The Management Board will apply to the General Shareholders Meeting to pay out the dividend in the
amount of PLN 200m, which means an almost four-fold increase as compared to the dividend paid out for
2002.”
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Financials by Area of Activity

Market Overview

In the fourth quarter of 2003, average price of Brent oil stood at USD 29.46/bbl, having gone up by
USD 2.63/bb! (9.8%) in relation to the analogous period of the previous year. During the last three months of
2003, average market price of gasoline amounted to USD 290.42/t (a 9.0% increase over Q4 2002). In the same
period, a rise was also recorded in the market prices of diesel oil and Ekoterm, to the level of USD 282.22/bbl
and USD 268.36/bbl, respectively (or by 13.5% and 12.0%). The crack margins increased for gasoline, diesel oil
and light fuel oil (increase of 5.5%, 28.2% and 22.3%, respectively, relative to Q4 2002). There was an increase
in the level of refining margins as calculated based on Brent prices quoted in Western Europe (PVM report),
from USD 1.84/bbl in Q4 2002 to USD 2.94/bbl in Q4 2003. The U.S. dollar weakened further against the Polish
currency by 2.8% (from PLN 4.00/USD I in Q42002 to PLN 3.89/USD | in Q4 2003), while the euro
strengthened by 15.5% (rise in the average exchange rate from PLN 4.00/EUR 1 in Q4 2002 to PLN 4.62/EUR 1
in Q4 2003).

According to the GUS (National Statistics Office) data, average annualised increase in consumer prices in 2003
was down on 2002 (0.8% against 1.9%), and lower than assumed in the Polish Budget Act (by 1.5 pt). On the
other hand, 2003 saw a growth in average annualised dynamics of transport prices (4.5% growth, compared with
1.1%) and the prices of fuel for private vehicles (7.9% growth compared with a drop by 0.8%).

In 2003, the Producer Price Index went up by 8.7% relative to 2002 (compared with a 1.5% growth in 2002).
The increase in industrial output in the fourth quarter of 2003 (12.1%) was much stronger than in the preceding
periods.

Based on the data provided by Samar, as a result of the rebound on the automotive market in 2003, 358,414 new
vehicles were sold in Poland (37,637 in December alone), which is 16.3% more than in 2002.
Fuel consumption in Poland over the four quarters of 2003 is estimated to have grown by 5.9% relative to the
analogous period of 2002. The growth in Q4 2003 as compared with Q4 2002 was 9.6%.

The dynamics of fuel sales on the domestic market throughout 2003 was lower than the dynamics of
consumption, which was a consequence of the aggressive pricing war waged by the competition in the first
quarter of 2003 and the resultant significant drop in sales.

Refining Segment (Production + Wholesale)

12 months 3 months 12 months 3 months
Refining Segment ended ended ended ended % change % change
© (Production + Wholesale)  Dyoc 312003  Dec 312003  Dec312002  Dec 312002 12 months 3 months
(unaudited data) (unaudited data) (unaudited data)

USDm

* Results accordingto IFRS PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm
Revenue, including: 15,798 4,062 4,372 1,125 14,570 3,570 4,188 1,047 8.4% 13.8% 4.4% 7.4%
Revenue on sales to third 10,066 2,588 2,890 744 9,517 2,332 2,788 697 5.8% 11.0% 3.7% 6.7%
parties
Intra-company revenue * 5,732 1,474 1,482 381 5,053 1,238 1,400 350 13.4% 19.1% 5.9% 8.9%
Cost and expenses 14,571 3,746 4,118 1,060 13,778 3,376 4,049 1,012 5.8% 11.0% 1.7% 4.7%
Result ** L2227 316 254 65 792 194 139 35 549% 629% 827%  85.7%
Sales to third parties . 8419 2,473 9,763 2,753 -13.8% -10.2%
{thousand tonnes)***
Sales of products to third . 8,416 2,473 8,619 2,310 -2.4% 7.1%

" parties (thousand tonnes)

*) Revenue includes transfers to the retail segment in the amount of: 12 months of 2002: PLN 2,432m, 12 months of 2003: PLN 2,414m, 3 months of 2002:

PLN 619m, 3 months of 2003: PLN 216m.
**) The segment’s operating result, net of the costs not attributed to any of the segments, incurred at the Group's level.

**%) Products including crude oil.
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The Q4 2003 result in refining was PLN 254m, up from PLN 139m in the analogous period of 2002. The
increase was driven by higher revenue in the segment (up by 4.4%). In Q4 2003, the volume of diesel oil sold to
third parties grew by 16.6%, which was accompanied by a 5.5% drop in sales of gasoline in comparison with Q4
2002. Sales volume of light products was up by 4.5% in aggregate. As in the preceding periods, the drop in sales
of gasoline was a result of lower sales to Western European concerns as compared with the preceding year. The
material growth in the sales volume of diesel oil is due in a large part to increased consumption of this type of
fuel in Poland relative to 2002 (up by approx. 20.0%). Other drivers of the growth in sales of diesel oil produced
in Poland were a temporary shut-down of the MOZYR refinery, the largest producer of diesel oil imported to the
Polish market, and an increase in the number of vehicles using this type of fuel.

The lower volume of total sales to third parties in Q4 2003 (down by 10.2% relative to Q4 2002) followed
chiefly from discontinued sales of crude oil. If this factor is eliminated, the quarterly sales volume of the
segment is up by 7.1% on Q4 2002. The growth in volumes of products sold was coupled with increased revenue
on sales to third parties, which was possible thanks to higher market prices of fuel in Q4 2003 (as compared with
the analogous period of 2002) in the following product groups: gasoline — up by 9.0%, diesel oil — up by 13.5%,
and Ekoterm - up by 12.0%. The increase in prices was accompanied by growth of crack margins on these
products (5.5% for gasoline, 28.2% for diesel oil and 22.3% for Ekoterm).

The Q4 2003 result of the segment computed in accordance with the LIFO method would be lower by PLN 3m
(PLN 251m), while in the corresponding period of 2002 it would be higher by PLN 76m (PLN 215m).

After four quarters of 2003, the result of the segment stood at PLN 1,227m, which translates into an increase of
PLN 435m (54.9%) over 2002. The main factor contributing to such a strong growth was the result for the first
quarter of 2003: PLN 501m.

Refining (Retail)
777 " 12menths  3months  12months  3months
[ 0
Refining (Retail) ended ended ended ended %o change % change
Dec 31 2003 Dec 31 2003 Dec 31 2002 Dec 31 2002 12 months 3 months
(unaudited data) (unaudited data) (unaudited data) .
Results accordingto IFRS PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm
Revenue, including: 11,092 2,852 3,174 817 4,124 1,010 1,064 266 169.0% 182.4% [98.3% 207.1%
Revenue on sales to third 10,651 2,738 3,043 783 4,118 1,009 1,062 266 1586% 171.4% 186.5% 194.4%
parties :
Intra-company revenue 441 114 131 34 6 1 2 0 7250.0% 6450.0%
Cost and expenses © 11,025 2,835 3,184 820 4,123 1,010 1,114 278  167.4% 180.7% 1858% 195.0%
! Result* ‘ 67 17 -10 -3 1 0 -50 -12
. Sales to third parties - 3,864 1,049 2,189 539 76.5% 94.6%

(thousand tonnes)

*) The segment’s operating result, net of the costs not attributed to any of the segments, incurred at the Group's level.

The segment’s revenue in Q4 2003 rose by PLN 2,110m (198.3%) in comparison with Q4 2002, while the cost
and expenses increased by PLN 2,070m (185.8%). The higher revenue is attributable to the growth in sales
volume (94.6%), mainly due to the first-time consolidation of our German operations. The Q4 2003 sales

revenue of the German companies was PLN 1,918m.
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Based on restated figures (elimination of the effect of the German operations: 450 thousand tonnes), the fourth
quarter of 2003 saw a growth in retail sales by 59.4 thousand tonnes, or 11.0%, on the corresponding quarter of
2002.

Owing to the Group’s companies acting as Authorised Fuel Oil Resellers and the operations of our companies in
Germany, the sales volume of Ekoterm in this segment went up by 89.8%.

In Q4 2003, PKN ORLEN’s unit retail margins on individual types of fuel and LPG increased on average by
6.3%, as compared with Q4 2002. At the same time, the non-fuel margin at PKN ORLEN rose by 7.5%. The
Group’s sales revenue on non-fuel goods stood at PLN 208m in Q4 2003, which means an 11.2% growth on the
analogous period of 2002.

A further rise (by 38.5% on Q4 2002) was seen in retail sales of fuel under the FLOTA loyalty programme,
which was due to a range of promotional activities organised by PKN ORLEN. At the same time, the share of
retail sales of fuel under the VITAY programme in the total sales shrank slightly, by 4.8%.

The factors described above brought the segment’s loss down to PLN 10m in Q4 2003, which is an improvement
of PLN 40m relative to Q4 2002, when it amounted to PLN 50m. The operations in Germany, commenced in
March 2003, generated an operating loss of PLN 16m in Q4 2003.

After four quarters of 2003, the segment’s result amounted to PLN 67m, while in 2002 it was PLN Im.

Petrochemicals .
N 7 12months 3 months  12months 3 months
Petrochemicals ended ended ended ended % change % change
Dec 31 2003 Dec 31 2003 Dec 31 2002 Dec 31 2002 12 months 3 months
(unaudited data) (unaudited data) (unaudited data)
Results according to IFRS PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm
Revenue, including: 4,545 1,168 1,164 299 4,166 1,021 1,171 293 9.1% 14.4% -0.6% 2.0%
Revenue on sales to third 3,145 809 795 204 2,870 703 795 199 9.6% 15.1% 0.0% 2.5%
parties
Intra-company revenue 1,400 359 369 95 1,296 318 376 94 8.0% 12.9% -1.9% 1.1%
Cost and expenses 4,127 1,061 1,092 281 3,966 972 1,114 278 4.1% 9.2% -2.0% 1.1%
Resuit* 418 107 72 18 200 49 57 14 109.0% 1184%  26.3%  28.6%
Sales to third parties C 2,204 563 2,028 550 8.7% 24%
(thousand tonnes)

*) The segment s operating result, net of the costs not attributed to any of the segments, incurred at the Group's level.

The segment’s result for Q4 2003 was PLN 72m, while in the corresponding quarter of 2002 it stood at
PLN 57m. The revenue on petrochemicals was lower by PLN 7m (0.6%). The fact that the value of sales of
petrochemicals was lower in Q4 2003 in comparison with Q4 2002 followed from a change in the sales structure,
related to the establishment of Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0., which took over the production and trading in
polyethylene and polypropylene. The shares in Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements with the equity method.

In the period under review, a significant rise was seen in the value of sales of ammonium nitrate (34.8%) and
CANWIL (50.0%), which was attributable to the low stocks of fertilisers in Poland, uncertainty as to a change
concerning value-added tax on agricultural products, and the limitation of imports from Ukraine and Russia. The
continued favourable conditions in the construction industry, fuelled by the plans to introduce value-added tax

on construction materials as of 2004, pushed up the value of sales of polyviny! chloride (12.4%).
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After four quarters of 2003, the segment’s result was PLN 418m, up by 109.0% on the result generated in the
analogous period of 2002. A major part of the amount is attributable to the recognition of the difference on the
valuation of the contribution to Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. Following the contribution of an organised
part of enterprise to Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0., a profit of PLN 112m was disclosed in the financial
accounts of the ORLEN Group in 2003. The figure represents 50% of the difference between the book value of

the contributed assets and liabilities and the fair value of the acquired shares.

Other Activities
" "12months 3 months 12 months 3 months S
Other activities ended ended ended ended % change % change
Dec 31 2003 Dec 312003 Dec 31 2002 Dec 31 2002 12 months 3 months
(unaudited data) (unaudited data) (unaudited data)
Results according to IFRS PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm PLNm USDm
Revenue, including: 1,653 425 444 114 1,639 402 461 115 0.9% 5.7% -3.7% -0.9%
Revenue on sales to third 550 141 180 46 397 97 132 33 38.5% 45.4% 36.4% 39.4%
parties ;
Intra-company revenue ' 1,103 284 264 68 1,242 305 329 82 -11.2% -6.9% -198% -17.1%
Cost and expenses ) 1,628 419 464 119 1,594 391 457 114 2.1% 7.2% 1.5% 4.4%
Result* 25 6 -20 -5 45 11 4 1 -444% -455%
Sales to third parties 93 29 115 37 -19.1% -21.6%

(thousand tonnes)

*) The segment’s operating result, net of the costs not attributed to any of the segments, incurred at the Group's level.

In addition to the companies involved in the production of energy and the provision of services to PKN ORLEN,
the “other activities” segment includes a number of undertakings which were established as part of the
restructuring process, and the IKS Solino salt mine. In January 2003, the segment was expanded to include
ORLEN Laboratorium Sp. z o0.0., spun-off from PKN ORLEN. Before the spin-off, the costs related to the
laboratory’s operations had been spread across various segments

In the fourth quarter of 2003, the segment generated a loss of PLN 20m. To compare, the result for the
corresponding period of 2002 was a profit of PLN 4m. The deterioration followed from a drop in the segment’s
revenue (3.7%) and higher costs (1.5%).

After four quarters of 2003, the segment reported a profit of PLN 25m, down by 44.4% on the profit for 2002,
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_Financial Review

Profit and Loss Account

The profit on sales for Q4 2003 was PLN 1,133m, and was higher by PLN 248m, or 28.0%, than the result
reported for the analogous period of the previous year. It is attributable to the growth of sales revenue (an
increase of PLN 2,131m) being higher than that of cost of sales (an increase of PLN 1,883m). The decidedly
largest improvement was seen in the refining (retail) segment, where the sales to third parties grew by
PLN 1,981m (186.5%). The amount of revenue generated by this segment was essentially affected by the
consolidation of sales of our companies operating in Germany. The value of sales in the refining (retail) segment
rose by PLN 102m (3.7%) in the fourth quarter of 2003, compared with the analogous period of 2002. The sales
to third parties in the petrochemicals segment stayed flat.

In the fourth quarter of 2003, the cost of sales grew by PLN 84m (14.5%) relative to Q4 2002, and stood at
PLN 664m. This is attributable chiefly to the inclusion into the Group in 2003 of the German operations, whose
cost of sales in Q4 2003 was PLN 146m. The cost of sales of PKN ORLEN in Q4 2003 decreased by
approximately 32.0% in comparison with the corresponding quarter of 2002, thanks to the Cost Cutting
Programme. At the same time, in Q4 2003 the general administrative expenses grew by PLN 27m (12.5%) on Q4
2002, and reached PLN 243m.

We recorded a loss on other operating activities in Q4 2003, at PLN 13m (in Q4 2002: PLN 28m).

Financial income in the fourth quarter of 2003 stood at PLN 53m, and was lower by PLN 43m in comparison
with Q4 2002, the reason being the recognition in financial income for the fourth quarter of the previous year of
the PLN 58m gain on disposal of LG Perto Bank SA shares. At the same time, the Group recorded a PLN 93m
rise in financial expenses.

The share of undertakings consolidated with the equity method in the financial result was PLN 7m in Q4 2003,
relative to PLN 1m in 2002.

In Q4 2003, the income tax’s effect on the financial result was positive at PLN 66m, following chiefly from the
revaluation of provisions for deferred income tax to 19.0%.

The above factors produced a net profit for Q4 2003 at PLN 273m, up by PLN 209m (326.6%) on Q4 2002.

The net profit for the four quarters of 2003 amounted to PLN 1,041m, and was higher by PLN 620m (147.3%)
than the profit for the analogous period of 2002,

Balance Sheet

As at the end of the fourth quarter of 2003, the total assets amounted to PLN 17,186m, up by 14.0% relative to
December 31st 2002. The fixed assets increased by PLN 937m (9.5%) in comparison with December 31st 2002,
and reached PLN 10,751m, chiefly on the increase in tangible fixed assets and in shares and equity interests in
the undertakings consolidated with the equity method, by PLN 745m and PLN 296m, respectively, in relation to
their value as at December 31st 2002. This strong rise in the value of shares and equity interests in companies

consolidated with the equity method results mainly from the contribution in kind and acquisition of the financial
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assets of Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. (PLN 342m). As at the end of the fourth quarter of 2003, the value
of current assets grew from PLN 5,259m as at December 31st 2002 to PLN 6,435. This was chiefly a result of
the increase in trade debtors and other accounts receivable by PLN 522m (25.1%) and in cash by PLN 384m
(215.7%).

Shareholders’ equity stood at PLN 9,564m as at the end of Q4 2003, up by PLN 1,235m, or 14.8%, in relation to
the end of 2002. The main contributing item was a higher retained profit (PLN 982m). Long-term liabilities
amounted to PLN 2,726m, and rose by PLN 1,317m in comparison with the end of 2002, notably due to an
increase in liabilities on loans (by PLN 1,434m). On the other hand, short-term liabilities fell from PLN 4,923m
as at the end of 2002 to PLN 4,467m as at December 31st 2003, the main contributing factor being lower debt
under loans (by PLN 966m), accompanied by growth in liabilities, accruals and deferred income (by
PLN 511m). The Group’s total debt (loans, borrowings, and securities) reached PLN 3,031m as at December
31st 2003, which means a PLN 468m rise as compared with the end of 2002.

Cash Flow
The Q4 2003 net operating cash flow stood at PLN 266m, which means a PLN 179m reduction relative to the
analogous quarter of 2002, attributable mainly to lower liabilities and overpaid income tax.
The overall decrease in operating cash in Q4 2003 was PLN 471m. In 2002, we reported a PLN 64m rise in
operating cash in the analogous period.
Investment cash outflow amounted to PLN 230m in Q4 2003, down by PLN 51m on the corresponding quarter
of the previous year. The fall follows chiefly from the balance of loans advanced and repaid. In Q4 2003, it stood
at PLN 83m (including repayment of a PLN 98m loan by Polkomtel SA).
In Q4 2003, the Group recorded a negative net financing cash flow of PLN 123m; in the corresponding quarter
of 2002 it was also negative — at PLN 183m. Such amount of the outflow was attributable to the change in the
amount of debt on loans and borrowings contracted by the Group. In the fourth quarter of 2003, the net outflow
on contracted and repaid loans and borrowings stood at PLN 103m, while in Q4 2002 it was PLN 146m.
The total cash at the end of the fourth quarter of 2003 was PLN 562m, up by PLN 384m on the analogous period
of 2002.
After four quarters of 2003, operating cash flow amounted to PLN 1,707m, or 32.1% more than in the
corresponding period of 2002. The increase was driven by such factors as:

- higher net profit,

- trend reversal in the liabilities,

- smaller increase in stocks compared with 2002.
Net investing cash outflow after four quarters of 2003 was PLN 1,381m. The most significant items which
produced this figure were the outflow on the acquisition of tangible fixed assets and the funds expended on the
acquisition of the companies operating in Germany.
The net inflow on loans grew by PLN 2,816m over the four quarters of 2003 as compared with 2002, mainly as
a result of the Syndicated Dual Currency Loan Agreement signed in July 2003, whereby we contracted a loan of
EUR 115m and USD 218m.
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APPENDIX I

PKN ORLEN
CONSOLIDATED ABBREVIATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS
for the periods of 12 and 3 months
ending on December 31st 2003 and December 31st 2002

(PLNm)
"~ "12months 3 months 12 months 3 months )
ITEM ended ended ended ended % change % change
" Dec 312003 Dec 312003 Dec312002 Dec312002 12 months 3 months
. (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)

Sales revenue 24,412 6,908 16,902 4,777 44.4% 44.6%
 Cost of sales 19,986 5,775 13,455 3,892 48.5% 48.4%
Profit (loss) on sales 4,426 1,133 3,447 885 28.4% 28.0%

Other operating income 422 112 256 80 64.8% 40.0%

Selling costs 2,259 664 1,787 580 26.4% 14.5%
' General and administrative expenses 934 243 891 216 4.8% 12.5%
' Other net operating expenses 327 125 294 108 11.2% 15.7%
i Operating profit (loss) 1,328 213 731 61 81.7% 249.2%

Financial income 289 53 211 9 37.0% -44.8%

Financial expenses 378 56 220 -37 71.8% -251.4%
 Share in profit (loss) of undertakings o

consolidated with equity method 49 7 13 ! 276.9% 600.0%
| Pre-tax profit (loss) | 1,288 217 735 195 75.2% 11.3%
- Corporate income tax 210 -66 285 128 -26.3% -151.6%

Net profit (loss) 1,078 283 450 67 139.6% 322.4%

Profit (loss) attributable to minority 37 10 29 3 27.6% 233.3%

interests
' Net profit (loss) 1,041 273 421 64 147.3% 326.6%
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APPENDIX 11

PKN ORLEN
CONSOLIDATED ABBREVIATED BALANCE SHEETS
as at December 31st 2003 and December 31st 2002

(PLNm)
ITEM ; I()He:ai ldizt(:()ii  Dec 312002 % change
ASSETS
Fixed assets
, Tangible fixed assets 9,834 9,089 8.2%
' (Negative) goodwill =274 -222 23.4%
i Intangible fixed assets 121 107 13.1%
! Financial assets 542 601 -9.8%
Shares and equity interests in undertakings o
- consolidated with equity method 495 199 148.7%
Deferred tax assets 15 25 -40.0%
- Other fixed assets 18 15 20.0%
. Total fixed assets 10,751 9,814 9.5%
' Current assets
i Stocks 3,059 2,868 6.7%
" Trade debtors and other accounts receivable 2,602 2,080 25.1%
' Taxes receivable 65 32 103.1%
Short-term securities 67 44 52.3%
; Prepayments 80 57 40.4%
Cash and cash equivalents 562 178 215.7%
Total current assets 6,435 5,259 22.4%
: Total assets 17,186 15,073 14.0%
 SHAREHOLDERS’  EQUITY  AND
- LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ equity ‘
" Share capital ‘ 534 525 1.7%
! Reserve funds 1,359 1,174 15.8%
Revaluation capital reserve ! 856 859 -0.3%
: Currency-translation differences on subsidiary -
. 62 0
, undertakings
- (Accumulated loss)/retained profit brought 6.753 5771 17.0%
. forward
' Total shareholders’ equity 9,564 8,329 14.8%
| Minority interests 429 412 4.1%
" Long-term liabilities T
. Loans and borrowings 1,836 402 356.7%
Provisions 587 576 1.9%
Deferred income tax provisions 303 431 -29.7%
Total long-term liabilities 2,726 1,409 93.5%
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Liabilities and accrued expenses 3,258 2,747 18.6%
~Corporate income tax payable 0 0

, Loans and borrowings 1,195 2,161 -44,7%
i Deferred income | 14 15 -6.7%
| Total short-term liabilities ! 4,467 4,923 -9.3%
- Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities 17,186 15,073 14.0%
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APPENDIX III

PKN ORLEN
CONSOLIDATED ABBREVIATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
for the periods of 12 and 3 months
ending on December 31st 2003 and December 31st 2002

(PLNm)
i ) o ~ ' 12months 3 months 12 months 3 months
ITEM . ended ended ended ended % change % change
' Dec 312003 Dec312003 Dec 312002 Dec312002 12 months 3 months
- __![{unaudited) (unaudited)  (unaudited)

Net operating cash flow

Net profit (loss) 1,041 273 421 64 620 209

Total adjustments:

Profit (loss) attributable to minority interests 37 10 29 3 8 7

Share in proﬁt (loss) of undertakings consolidated .48 6 13 -1 235 .5

with equity method

Depreciation and amortisation 1,207 317 1,130 293 77 24

Net dividends and interest i 29 0 128 19 -99 -19
. Corporate income tax as disclosed in profit and loss j 210 66 285 128 75 194

account I

(Profit) loss on investment activities ! 24 26 -80 -61 104 87
! Decrease / (increase) in accounts receivable -114 114 -171 300 57 -186
" Decrease / (increase) in stocks -158 -45 -668 -250 510 205

(Decrease) / increase in liabilities and accrued ‘ 111 237 182 31 493 268

expenses ;

(Decrease) / increase in provisions ‘ -8 22 29 16 -37 6

Other adjustments “ 11 26 49 -2 -38 28

Corporate income tax paid w -413 -168 -229 -95 -184 -73
" Net operating cash : 1,707 266 1,292 445 415 -179
~Investing cash flow

Acquisition of intangible and tangible fixed assets j -1337 -408 -967 -317 -370 -91

Disposal of tangible fixed assets 1 40 17 38 5 2 12
| Disposal of assets available for sale | 17 11 106 91 -89 -80
" Acquisition of assets available for sale -56 -16 -65 -21 9 5

Acqglsmon of businesses in Germany less total i 269 23 0 0 2269 23
- acquired cash and cash equivalents |

Purchase of short-term securities “ -62 -20 -267 -58 205 38

Disposal of short-term securities 55 31 235 38 -180 -7

Dividends and interest received 85 14 34 9 51 5
' Loans/borrowings advanced/repaid 83 83 0 83 83
' Other 63 35 -22 -28 85 63

Net investing cash outflow -1,381 -230 -908 -281 -473 51

13
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Increase in long- and short-term loans and

b h 4,502 926 1,686 354 2,816 572

orrowings

: Decrea_se in long- and short-term loans and 4257 11,029 -1.879 -500 2378 2529
borrowings

. Interest paid -116 -14 -156 -31 40 17

' Other -59 0 -50 0
Dividend paid to shareholders -12 -6 -10 -6 -2 0
Net financing cash inflow/(outflow) 58 -123 -409 -183 467 60
Change in net cash 384 -87 -25 -19 409 -68
Cash at beginning of period 178 649 203 197 -25 452
Cash at end of period 562 562 178 178 384 384

14
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APPENDIX IV
PKN ORLEN
KEY FINANCIAL DATA BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS
for the periods of 12 and 3 months
ending on December 31st 2003 and December 31st 2002
(PLNm)

|' 12months || 3months | 12months ' 3 months 3
ITEM . ended ended ended . ended = %change % change

j‘ Dec 31 2003 . Dec 312003 | Dec 31 2002  Dec 312002 12 months , 3 months

. (unaudited) ' (unaudited) ' (unaudited)
REVENUE ON SALES TO THIRD
PARTIES'
Refining (production + wholesale) ; 10,066 2,890 9,517 2,788 5.8% 3.7%
Refining (retail) 10,651 3,043 4,118 1,062 158.6% 186.5%
Petrochemicals ? 3,145 795 2,870 795 9.6% 0.0%
Qther activities ‘ 550 180 397 132 38.5% 36.4%
TOTAL j 24,412 6,908 16,902 4,777 44.4% 44.6%
FINANCIAL RESULT*
Refining (production + wholesale) ‘ 1,227 254 792 139 54.9% 82.7%
Refining (retail) 67 -10 1 -50 6600.0% -80.0%
Petrochemicals ‘ 418 72 200 57 109.0% 26.3%
Other activities 25 -20 45 4 -44.4% -600.0%
Exclusions -1 -1 0 1 - -
Total of non-attributed items | -408 -82 -307 -90 32.9% -8.9%
TOTAL | 1,328 213 731 61 81.7% 249.2%
EXPENDITURE ON FIXED ASSETS
Refining (production + wholesale) i 486 90 421 96 15.4% -6.3%
Refining (retail) 270 116 133 59 103.0% 96.6%
Petrochemicals ,’ 534 176 183 93 191.8% 89.2%
Other activities ‘ 128 39 183 77 -30.1% -49.4%
Total of non-attributed items 35 8 28 2 25.0% 300.0%
TOTAL ’. 1,453 429 948 327 53.3% 31.2%
DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION
Refining (production + wholesale) ; 658 177 639 166 3.0% 6.6%
Refining (retail) ‘ 176 51 115 29 53.0% 75.9%
Petrochemicals 198 48 208 59 -4.8% -18.6%
Other activities ; 168 41 165 39 1.8% 5.1%
Total of non-attributed items " 36 9 33 8 9.1% 12.5%
TOTAL ‘ 1,236 326 1,160 301 6.6% 8.3%

1. Revenue on sales to third parties represents exclusively sales to undertakings outside of the ORLEN Group.
2. Financial result comprises revenue on sales to third parties and transfer to other segments.
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APPENDIX V
PKN ORLEN
KEY OPERATING DATA
for the periods of 12 and 3 months
ending on December 31st 2003 and December 31st 2002
(tonnes)
' 12 months i;\ 3months | 12 months ' 3 months | % change . % change
ITEM ¢ ended ;' ended 1  ended . ended | 1; mont%ls ‘ 30m0ntl%s
| Dec 312003 ;| Dec 312003 | Dec 312002 | Dec 312002
CRUDE OIL THROUGHPUT 12,272 3,153 13,040 3438 59%  -8.3%
(‘000 tonnes)
REFINERY OUTPUT
Gasoline 2,768,804 747,843 2,978,906 746,078 -7.1% 0.2%
Diesel oil 3,101,491 815,914 3,076,435 713,046 0.8% 14.4%
Fuel oil (IIT) 710,973 189,293 959,561 209,229 -25.9% -9.5%
Ekoterm 1,531,261 430,115 1,704,637 578,488 -10.2% -25.6%
Jet A-1 \ 299,288 108,756 262,938 68,987 13.8% 57.6%
LPG | 211,476 53,624 207,395 59,874 2.0% -10.4%
Other refining products ‘ 1,446,569 365,527 1,248,212 332,226 15.9% 10.0%
TOTAL . 10,069,862 2,711,072 10,438,084 2,707,928 -3.5% 0.1%
SALES OF REFINING PRODUCTS
Gasoline 3,672,628 999,796 3,121,691 773,583 17.6% 29.2%
Diesel oil 3,818,591 1,088,748 3,128,075 806,539 22.1% 35.0%
Fuel oil (IIT) 546,426 159,904 1,043,778 182,041 -47.6% -12.2%
Ekoterm : 1,785,824 527,314 1,585,094 489,312 12.7% 7.8%
Jet A-1 : 308,430 105,285 267,944 70,226 15.1% 49.9%
LPG | 319,384 77,992 301,850 80,652 5.8% -3.3%
Other refining products 3 1,829,333 562,873 1,359,237 446,522 34.6% 26.1%
TOTAL C 12,280,616 3,521,912 10,807,669 2,848,875 13.6% 23.6%
PETROCHEMICAL OUTPUT
Polyethylene 26,868 0 156,774 40,725 -82.9% -100.0%
Polypropylene 25,104 0 142,817 39,090 -82.4% -100.0%
Ethylene ‘ 139,974 41,993 11,859 2,677 1080.3% 1468.7%
Glycol 7 96,666 21,372 115,870 27,916 -16.6% -23.4%
Propylene 201,000 56,943 81,551 18,758 146.5% 203.6%
Ammonium nitrate , 435,561 119,906 416,481 79,499 4.6% 50.8%
CANWIL 332,715 98,920 292,632 71,672 13.7% 38.0%
Polyvinyl chloride (PVC) 216,940 53,589 209,359 51,987 3.6% 3.1%
Other petrochemical products 646,944 167,598 645,616 183,635 0.2% -8.7%
TOTAL ‘ 2,121,772 560,321 2,072,959 515,959 2.4% 8.6%
SALES OF PETROCHEMICAL
PRODUCTS
Polyethylene . 48,128 5,980 159,372 41,055 -69.8% -85.4%
Polypropylene 45,909 4,125 141,440 37,805 -67.5% -89.1%
Ethylene ' 135,307 38,618 9,560 1,406 1315.3% 2646.7%
Glycol ‘ 95,045 19,585 115,296 25,948 -17.6% -24.5%
Propylene ‘ 192,513 53,247 81,758 20,414 135.5% 160.8%
Ammonium nitrate | 473,819 129915 389,133 104,877 21.8% 23.9%
CANWIL ; 338,888 104,721 282,998 84,621 19.7% 23.8%
16
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Polyvinyl chloride (PVC) i 210,701 46,334 204,654 45,597 3.0% 1.6%
Other petrochemical products 663,390 160,658 643,721 187,982 3.1% -14.5%
TOTAL 2,203,700 563,183 2,027,932 549,705 8.7% 2.5%
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APPENDIX VI
PKN ORLEN
SALES OF MAIN PRODUCTS
for the periods of 12 and 3 months
ending on December 31st 2003 and December 31st 2002
(tonnes)
Sales of light products in ‘12 months 3 months 12 months 3 months o .
the ORLEN Group " ended ended ended ended %o change % change
(by volume) ' Dec312003 Dec312003 Dec312002 Dec312002 12months 3 months
Vholesale of main light products, 5,823,059 1,699,565 5989205 1,626,027 -2.8% 4.5%
including:
Gasoline ! 1,595,821 440,689 1,863,090 466,401 -14.3% -5.5%
Diesel oil 2,373,872 703,894 2,285,469 603,730 3.9% 16.6%
Jet A-1 : 308,430 105,285 267,944 70,226 15.1% 49.9%
Ekoterm 1,544,936 449,697 1,572,702 485,670 -1.8% -7.4%
Retail sales of engine fuels, 3,623,038 970,872 2,176,369 534,965 665%  81.5%
including:
Gasoline ; 2,076,807 559,107 1,258,601 307,182 65.0% 82.0%
Diesel oil ‘ 1,444,719 384,854 842,606 202,809 71.5% 89.8%
LPG : 101,512 26,911 75,162 24,974 35.1% 7.8%
Total sales of fuels, including: ; 9,904,857 2,799,135 8,404,654 2,220,312 17.8% 26.1%
Engine fuels ﬂ 8,119,033 2,271,821 6,819,560 1,731,000 19.1% 31.2%
18
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o F ]
According to § 57 section 2 and § 58 section 1 of the The Council of Ministers Decree of 16 October 2001/

(quarter/year)

'PKN ORLEN SA

SEC File

- Journal of Law, No 139, item 1569 and 2002, No 31, item 280§~

Management Board of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spolka Akcyjna
publishes consolidated quarterly report for IVQ 2003

-5036

i)

b
f

in PLN thousand

26 February 2004
{date of submission)

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

in PLN thousand

in EUR thousand

1V quarters

1V quarters

1V quarters

1V quarters

from 1.1.2003

from 1.1.2002

from 1.1.2003

from 1.1.2002

{current year)

0 31.12.2003 to 31.12.2002 to 33.12.2003 to 31.52.2002
1. Net sales of finished products, goods for resale and materials 33 720937 26328379 7582 169 5919 949
1. Operating profit 1365 684 758 613 307 075 170 574
M1, Profit before taxation 1313025 772432 295234 173 682
1V. Net profit 1068 529 479 335 240 259 107 779
V. Cash flow from operating activities 1610 890 1362128 362 209 306 275
VI. Cash flow used in investing activities (1245 628) (935 707) (280 080) (210 394)
VII. Cash flow used in / from financing activities 15 404 (449 002) 3464 (100 958)
VIII. Net cash flow 380 666 (22 581) 85 593 (5 078)
IX. Total assets 17 020 115 14 783 526 3 608 250 3134 095
X. Liabilities and provisions for liabilities 7106184 6 186 620 1506 505 1311 558
X1. Long term liabilities 1873 313 424 009 397141 89 890
XII, Short term liabilities 4292 824 4 807 099 910 075 1019101
X111. Equity 9184775 7927014 1947 165 1680 520
X1V. Share capital 534 636 525221 113 342 111 346
XV. Number of shares 427 709 061 420177137 427 709 061 420 177137
XVI. Earnings per ordinary share (in PLN/EUR) 2,50 1.14 0.56 0.26
XVII. Net book value per share (in PLN/EUR} 2147 18.87 4.55 4,00
XVIII Declared or paid dividends per share (in PLN/EUR) - - - -
as at as at as at asat
31.12.2003 30.09.2003 31.12.2002 30.09.2002
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET end of quarter end of previous end of quarter end of previous
(current year) quarter (previous vear) quarter

{previous year)

Assets
1. Fixed assets 10 659 635 10 500 156 9 624 062 9 620 946
1. Intangible fixed assets, including: 93208 96 571 90 794 90 298
- goodwill 10 211 11 001 435 154
2. Goodwill on consolidation of subordinated entities 20 653 22 011 26 070 12 741
3. Tangible fixed assets 9321123 9083 422 8521021 8495 433
4. Long term receivables 18 084 10 337 14 873 17 428
4.1. From subordinated entities 1402 561 586 -
4.2. From other entities 16 682 9776 14 287 17 428
5. Long term investments 1034 142 1099 164 790 892 812 218
5.1. Real estate - - - -
5.2. Intangible fixed assets - - - .
5.3. Long term financial assets 1034 142 1099 164 790 892 812215
a) in subordinated entities, including: 492 540 480 362 189 415 178 294
- shares in subordinated entities accounted for on an equity basis 455 774 444 628 70 018 68 338
- shares in unconsolidated subsidiaries and joint venture entities 36 765 35 734 34 300 25952
b) in other entities 541 602 618 802 601 477 633 921
5.4, Other long term investments - - - -
6. Long term prepayments, deferred costs and deferred tax asset 172 425 188 651 180 412 192 831
6.1. Deferred tax assets 15142 19618 24 570 30124
6.2. Prepayments and deferred costs 157 283 169 033 155 842 162 707
11. Current assets 6 360 480 6474 670 5159 464 5215280
1. Inventories 31041 747 2989216 2 851 225 2597 931
2. Short term receivables 2230 397 2313 836 1610 546 1908 750
2.1. From subordinated entities 118 283 130 626 18 281 113 784
2.2. From other entities 2112114 2183 210 1592 265 1794 966
3. Short term investments 718 310 724 609 246 859 238371
3.1. Short term financial assets 717 809 724 108 246 357 238371
a) in subordinated entities - 227 - 300
b) in other entities 156 049 74 762 68 167 41 326
¢) cash and cash equivalents 561 760 649 119 178 190 196 745
3.2. Other short term investments 501 501 502 .
4. Short term prepayments and deferred costs 370 026 447 009 450 834 470 228
Total assets 17020 115 16 974 826 14 783 526 14 836 226
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in PLN thousand

as at 10 as ;‘00 as at 0;;"
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 31.12.2003 endofprevius 31.12.2002 end of pretous
end of quarter end of quarter
(current year) quarter (previous year) quarter
{current year) (previous year)
Liabilities :
I. Equity 9184 775 8712 643 7927014 7 867 066
1. Share capital 534 636 525221 525 221 525 221
2. Unpaid share capital (negative value) - - - -
3. Own shares (negative value) - - - -
4. Capital reserve 6 468 026 6 280 049 5757 678 5747 931
5. Revaluation reserve 674 685 670 534 722 745 767 021
6. Other capital reserves 53476 53 476 53476 53 476
7. Foreign exchange gain on inclusion of subordinated entities 62 366 54 040 9 12
8. Undistributed profit from previous years 323 057 324 260 388 550 397118
9. Net profit 1068 529 805 063 479 335 376 287
10, Distribution from profit during financial year (negative value) - - - -
11. Minority interests 427 820 421297 410 890 418 820
1I1. Negative goodwill on subordinated entities 301336 241270 259 002 269 145
1V, Liabilities and provisions for liabilitics 7106 184 7599 616 6186 620 6281 195
1. Provisions for liabilities 803 331 821 402 866 566 808 738
1.1. Provision for deferred tax 216 620 255 637 290 463 249 320
1.2. Retirement benefits and similar provisions 158 588 148 308 150 396 138 538
a) long term 137 359 130111 128 123 118 027
b) short term 21229 18 197 22273 20 511
1.3. Other provisions 428123 417 457 425707 420 880
a) long term 344 598 325162 328192 344 246
b) short term 83 525 92 295 97 515 76 634
2. Long term liabilities 1873313 1398 354 424 009 1339383
2.1. To subordinated entities 8751 263 - s
2.2. To other entities 1864 562 1398 091 424 009 1339 383
3. Short term liabilities 4292824 5277948 4 807 099 4 041 799
3.1. To subordinated entities 44 509 66 457 81 662 35 564
3.2. To other entities 4201415 5160350 4 679 509 3 954 752
3.3. Special funds 46 900 51141 45928 51 483
4. Accruals and deferred income 136 716 101 912 88 946 91275
4.1. Negative goodwill 365 454 534 1258
4.2. Other accruals and deferred income 136 351 101 458 88 412 90 017
a) long term 9 046 10267 10947 1597
b) short term 127305 91191 77 465 88 420
Total liabilities 17020115 16 974 826 14 783 526 14 836 226
Net book value 9184775 8712 643 7927014 7 867 066
Number of shares 427 709 061 420177 137 420177 137 420177 137
Net book value per share (in PLN) 21.47 20.73 18.87 18.72
as at 3 asat as at 30 ;5 o
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 31.12.2003 endoé?if:mus 31122002 end f;ri‘ff&f,u,
end of quarter end of quarter
(current year) quarter (previous year) quarter
(current year) (previous year)
1. Contingent receivables - - - -
1.1. From subordinated entities - - - -
- received puarantees and sureties - - - -
1.2. From other entities - - - -
- received guarantees and sureties - - - -
2. Contingent liabilities 148 685 63 992 16 016 11442
2.1. To subordinated entities 100 047 47528 681 1951
- granted guarantees and sureties 100 047 47 528 681 1931
2.2. To other entities 48 638 16 464 15 335 9 491
_- granted puarantees and sureties - 700 15335 9 491
3. Other 11771 13 586 55 086 46 487
Total off-balance sheet items 160 456 77578 71102 57929
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in PLN thousand

IV quarters 1V quarters
(c::‘;rqe::;'t::r) cu:lllulnﬂve (pll-:lv:]o‘::asr;:r) cur?mlatlve
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT from 1.10.2003 {current year) from 1.10.2002 (previous year)

ta 31.12.2003 from 1.1.2003 to 31.12.2002 from 1.1.2002

to 31,12.2003 to 31,12.2002
I. Net sales, including: 9 364 269 33 720937 7113554 26 328 379
- to subordinated entities 205 489 753 134 159 947 591 989
1. Net sales of finished products 6692 113 25447 371 6 438 588 24 178 485
2. Net sales of goods for resale and materials 2672 156 8273 566 674 966 2149 894
1L. Cost of goods sold, including: (5 759 107), (19923 179) (3 878 200) (13 401 962)
- t0 subordinated entities (213 470), (752 716) (144 467) (530 047)
1. Cost of sales of finished products (3 327 737); (12 386 487) (3 242 328) (11 565 893)
2. Cost of goods for resale and materials sold (2 431 370) (7 536 692) (635 872) (1 836 069)
111. Gross profit on sales (1-1I) 3605162 13 797 758 3235354 12926417
1V. Selling and distribution costs (3 120 380) (11 567 417) (2 916 395) (11 213 482)
V. General and administration expenses (242 760), (929 648) (216 339) (891 543)
VI. Profit on sales (1I1-1V-V) 242 022 1300 693 102 620 * 821392
VII. Other operating income 97 544 376 529 67 995 208 539
1. Profit on disposal of non-financial fixed assets 4617 14314 6751 31 148
2. Grants 88 103 (54) 21
3. Other 92 839 362112 61 298 177 370
VIII. Other operating expenses (120 749)| (311 538) (101 084) (271 318)
1. Loss from disposal of non-financial fixed assets (4 525)/ (10 622) (2 686) (14 769)
2. Impairment of non-financial assets (9 587); (49 033) 10 871 (8 974)
3. Other (106 637), (251 883) (109 269) (247 575)
IX. Operating profit (VI+VII-VI1I) 218 817 1365 684 69 531 758 613
X. Financial income 51904 287 857 103 546 235879
1. Dividends and shares in profits, including: 180 48 728 44 116
- from subordinated entities 179 2219 41 113
2. Interest, including: 28 132 61 987 15 795 70 997
- from subordinated entities 478 2209 65 976
3. Profit from sale of investments 12 589 41 512 58 298 62 852
4. Revaluation of investments 2 668 3720 73 804
5. Other 8 335 131 910 29 336 101 110
XI. Financial expenses (41 714), (373 411) 29 737 {260 687)
1. Interest, including: (31 393), (154 963) (38 244) (193 529)
- for subordinated entities (589), (1024) (63) (1195)
2. Loss from sale of investments - - - -
3. Revaluation of investments (299)] (3 493) (1333) (2 152)
4. Other (10 022)] (214 955) 69 314 (65 006)
XII. Profit (loss) on sale of shares in subordinated entities (184) 243 - (1.455)
XIII. Gross profit (1X+X-XI+/-XII) 228 823 1280373 202 814 732 350
XIV. Extraordinary items (XIV.1. - XIV.2.) 353 436 667 : (565)
1. Extraordinary gains 79 973 1609 6247
2. Extraordinary losses 274 (537) (942) (6 812)
XV. Amortisation of goodwill from subordinated entities (1 358)) (5 433) (709) (1 496)
X VI, Negative goodwill from subordinated entities write-off 12 332 37649 9 832 42 143
XVII, Profit before taxation (X1I1+/-X1V-XV+XVI]) 240 150 1313025 212 604 772432
XVIIL Income tax 21 322 {263 433) (108 265) (275 978)
a) current part (60 424) {379 148) (45 862) {226 610)
b) deferred part 81 746 115715 (62 403) (49 368)
XIX. Other obligatory charges on profit - - - -
XX. Share in profit of subordinated entities accounted for under equity method 11571 56 257 1339 10 499
XXLI. Minority interests {9 577)] (37 320) (2 630) (27 618)
XXII. Net profit (XVII-XVIII-XIX+/-XX+/-XX) 263 466 1068 529 103 048 479 335
Net profit for 12 months (annualised) 1068 529 479 335
‘Weighted average number of ordinary shares 420 804 797 420 177 137
Earnings per ordinary share (in PLN) 2.54 1.14
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in PLN thousand

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

IV guarter
(current year)
from 1.10.2003

to 31.12.2003

IV quarters
cumulative
(current year)
from 1.1.2003

IV quarter
{previous year)
from 1.10.2002

to 31.12.2002

IV quarters
cumulative
(previous year)
from 1.1.2002

t0 31.12.2003 10 31.12.2002
1. Equity at beginning of period 8 712 643 7927014 7 867 066 7419130
a) changes in accounting policies - - - 82 009
b) corrections of fundamental errors - - - -
1. a. Equity at beginning of period restated for comparative data 8712 643 7927014 7 867 066 7501139
1. Share capital at beginning of period 525 221 525221 525 221 525221
1.1.Movements in share capital 9 415 9415 - -
a) increases 9 415 9415 - -
- issue of shares 9415 9415 - -
b) decreases - - - -
1.2. Share capital at end of period 534 636 534 636 525 221 525221
2. Unpaid share capital at beginning of period - - - -
2.1. Movements in unpaid share capital - - - -
a) increases - - - -
b) decreases - - - -
2.2. Unpaid share capital at end of period - - . .
3. Own shares at beginning of period - - - -
3.1. Movement in own shares - - - -
a) increases - - - -
b) decreases - - - -
3.2 Own shares at end of period - - N .
4. Capital reserve at beginning of period 6 280 049 5757 678 5747931 5501578
4.1. Movements in capital reserve 187 977 710 348 9747 256 100
a) increases 187 977 710 986 9 747 . 256 100
- share premium 184 910 184 910 - ! -
- distribution of profits {by articles) - - - -
- apportionment of profits (over the minimum provided for by the articles) 1203 482 394 8528 249 395
- transfer from capital reserves due to revaluation of fixed assets disposed 1 864 43 682 1219 6 705
- other - - - -
b) decreases - (638) - -
- absorption of losses - (638) - -
- other - - - -
4.2, Capital reserve at end of period 6468 026 6 468 026 5757 678 5757678
5. Revaluation reserve at beginning of period 670 534 722 748 767 021 734 796
- changes in accounting policies, restatement of opening balance - - - {2 600)
S.1. Revaluation reserve at beginning of period restated for comparative data 670 534 722 745 767 021 732 196
5.2. Movements in revaluation reserve 4151 (48 060) (44 276) (9 451)
a) increases (672) 3796 (146) 41917
- increase of value of long term investments - - - 58218
- deferred tax assets related to entries made to revaluation reserve (2 266) 939 (146) (16 301)
- other 1594 2 857 4 4
b) decreases 4 823 (51 856) (44 130) (51 368)
- fixed assets disposals (1 864)] (43 682) (1219) (6 705)
- impairment of tangible fixed assets 5057 (6 815) (994) (2 746)
- deferred tax assets related to entries made to revaluation reserve - - 16 301 16 301
- other 1630 (1359) (58 218) (58 218)
5.3. Revaluation reserve at end of period 674 685 674 685 722745 722745
6. Other capital reserves at beginning of period 53476 53476 53476 53 542
6.1. Movements in other capital reserves - - - (66)
a) increases - - - -
b) decreases - - - (66)
6.2. Other capital reserves at end of period 53476 53 476 53476 53476
7. Foreign exchange differences from recalculation of subordinated entities 62 366 62 366 9 9
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8. Undistributed profit (loss) from previous years at beginning of period 1129323 867 885 773 40§ 603 990
8.1. Undistributed profit from previous years at beginning of period 1129323 867 885 773 405 603 990
a) changes in accounting policies - - - 84 609
b) corrections of fundamental errors - - - -
8.2. Undistributed profit from previous years at beginning of period restated for 1129323 867 885 773 405 688 599
comparative data *
a) increases - 638 - -
- other capital from consolidation - 638 - -
b) decreases (1 203) (545 466) (8 568) (300 049)
- dividends paid - (58 825) - (50 421)
- transfer to capital reserve (1 203) (482 394) (8 528) (249 395)
- other capital from consolidation - (4247) (40) (233)
8.3. Undistributed profit from previous years at end of period * 1128 120 323 057 764 837 388 550
8.4. Undistributed loss from previous years at beginning of period - - - -
8.5. Undistributed loss from previous years at beginning of period restated for comparative - - - -
data
a) increases - - - -
b) decreases - - - -
8.6. Undistributed loss from previous years at end of period - - - -
8.7. Undistributed profit (loss) from previous years at end of period * 1128 120 323057 764 837 388 550
9. Net result for the financial year 263 466 1068 529 103 048 479 3135
a) net profit 263 466 1 068 529 103 048 479 335
b) net loss - - - -
c) distribution from current year profit - - - .
I1. Equity at end of period 9 184 775 9184 775 7927014 7927014

* including net profit for I11Q 2003 and I11Q 2002 respectively
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IV quarter 1V quarters [V quarter 1V quarters
(current year) cumulative (previous year) cumulative
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT from 1.10.2003 (current year} from 1.10.2002 (previous year)
t031.12.2003 from 1.1.2003 10.31.12.2002 from 1,1.2002
to 31.12.2003 to 31.12.2002
A. Cash flow from operating activities
. Net profit for the year 263 466 1068 529 103 048 479 335
1. Total adjustments 64 542 361 327107 882 793
1. Profit from minority interests 9577 37320 2630 27618
2. Net (profit) from subordinated entities accounted for under equity method (11 571) (56 257) (1339) (10 499)
3. Depreciation 270 695 1076 388 261 681 1022521
- including amortisation of goodwill from subordinated entities and negative goodwill in subordinated (10 974) (32216) 9123) (40 647)
entitics write-off
4. Foreign exchange gains/losses (24 047) 71077 (55 550) (15 036)
S. Interest and dividends 18 964 73 491 30293 168 961
6. (Profit) loss from investing activities 25436 23577 (66 848) (73 443)
7. Movements in provisions {60 776); (122 899) 88 955 54 133
8. Movements in stock (50 989)] (162 827) (254 641) (662 683)
9. Movements in receivables 18 771 (277 658) 272 678 (43373)
10. Movements in creditors falling due within one year (with the exception of loans) (329 214) (162 157) 10 910 365 076
11. Movements in prepayments and accruals 128 291 138 799 27 965 45 959
12. Other adjustments 4927 (96 493) 10373 3 559
I11. Cash flow from operating activities (I+/-1I) 263 530 1 610 890 430155 1362128
B. Cash flow from investing activities

1. Inflows 358 674 553292 168 747 425 559
1. Disposal of intangible fixed assets and tangible fixed assets 16928 39532 4512 37803
2. Disposal of real estate investments and intangible fixed assets investments - - - -
3. From financial assets, including: 148 242 256 141 139925 375 620
a) in subordinated entities 22 403 38473 406 12 840
- sales of financial assets (except for short term securities) 10 832 14 087 - 120
- sales of short term securities 10 499 10 499 - -
- dividends and profits 951 13 673 11 12 277
- long-term loans repaid - - - -
- interest received 121 214 395 443
- other inflows from financial assets - - - -
b) in other entities 125 839 217 668 139 519 362 780
- sales of financial assets (except for short term securities) 646 3155 91379 105 766
- sales of short term securities 20915 44 575 38 943 235 483
- dividends and profits - 46 509 2 2
- long-term loans repaid 91 598 99 271 - .
- interest received 12 680 24158 9195 21 529
- other inflows from financial assets - - - -
4. Other inflows from investing activities 193 504 257 619 24 310 12134
11. Outflows (569 523), (1 798 920} (421 319) (1361 266)
1. Purchases of intangible fixed assets and tangible fixed assets (389 408), (1223 765) (300 391) (918 564)
2. Investments in real estate and intangible fixed assets - - - -
3. For financial assets, including: (14 658) (403 779) (120 928) (353 072)
a) in subordinated entities 16 405 (314 127) (1123) (24 887)
- purchases of financial assets (except for short term securities) 16 405 (314 127) (1123) . (24 887)
- purchases of short term securities - - - -
- loans granted - - - -
b) in other entities (31 063)) (89 652) (119 805) (328 185)
- purchases of financial assets (except for short term securities) (9 906) (10 946) (61 400) (61 400)
- purchases of short term securities (19 927) (61 986) (58 405) (266 78S)
- loans granted (1 230} (16 720) - -
4. Dividend paid to minority shareholders (1 280) (4 744) B (1204)
5. Other payments (164 177) (166 632) - (88 426)
I11. Net cash flow used in investing activities (210 849), (1245 628) (252 572) (935 707
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C. Cash flow from financing activities

1. Inflows 926 127 4502 302 354 557 1688 261
1. Issuance of shares and other capital instruments, additional payments to capital - - - -
2. Loans 800 067 3138012 23 415 499 082
3, Issuance of short term securities 125 449 1363679 330 609 1186 558
4. Other inflows 611 611 533 2621
11. Outflows {1 066 801)| {4 486 898) (548 578) (2137 263)
1. Redemption of shares - . . ) N
2. Dividends and other distributions to shareholders - (58 825) - (50 421)
3. Other than distribution of profit to shareholders payments from profit - - - -
4. Repayment of loans (747 547) (2 631 087) (185 556) (682 793)
5. Repurchase of short term securities (281 428)) (1 626 086) (314 936) (1196 357)
6. Other financial liabilities - - - -
7. Finance lease payments (4 401)] (10 106) (2 039) (7112)
8. Interest paid (32 203), (159 572) (42 001) (195 880)
9. Other payments (1 222)] (1222) (4 046) (4 700)
111, Net cash flow used in / from financing activities (I-1I) (140 674), 15 404 (194 021) (449 002)
D. Net cash flow (A.III+/-B.111+/-C.111) (87 993) 380 666 (16 438) (22 581)
E. Balance sheet change in cash and cash equivalents (87 359), 383 570 (18 555) (25 195)
- including changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from foreign exchange gains/losses 634 2904 (2117) (2 614)
F. Total cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 649 119 178 190 196 745 203 385
G. Total cash and cash equivalents at end of period (F+/- D) * 561 126 558 856 180 307 180 804
- including those of limited availability 12 761 12 761 6 266 6 266

* excluding foreign exchange gains/losses - according to National Accounting Standard No 1
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Condensed quarterly financial statements PKN ORLEN S.A. for IVQ 2003

in PLN thousand

as at as at as at as at
31.12.2003 30.09.2003 31.12.2002 30.09.2002
BALANCE SHEET end of quarter end of previous end of quarter end of previous
(current year) qusarter (previous year) quarter
(current year) (previous year)
Assets
I. Fixed assets 8 862 327 8922 408 8306427 8303117
1. Intangible fixed assets, including: 45773 50 783 66 917 70 868
- goodwill - - - -
2. Tangible fixed assets 6411 409 6 355 768 6455138 6451 036
3. Long term receivables 30 047 31333 267 868 269 428
3.1, From subordinated entities 25363 25536 258 402 258 560,
3.2. From other entities 4684 5797 9 466 10 868
4. Long term investments 2226 446 2324 796 1371482 1356 369
4.1. Real estate - - - -
4.2. Intangible fixed assets - - - -
4.3. Long term financial assets 2226 446 2324796 1371482 1356 369
a) in subordinated entities 1727477 1727610 772 220 724 929
b) in other entities 498 969 597 186 599 262 631 440
4.4. Other long term investments - - - -
5. Long term prepayments, deferred costs and deferred tax asset 148 652 159 728 145022 155416
5.1, Deferred tax assets * - - - -
5.2. Prepayments and deferred costs 148 652 159 728 145 022 155416
II. Current assets 4 862 637 4 842 307 4284 110 4334 177]
1. Inventories 2 568 594 2 560 841 2 477 665 2 246 347
2. Short term receivables 1798475 1787 056 1 288 220 1565711
2.1, From subordinated entities 700 010 759153 353 560 462 442
2.2. From other entities 1098 465 1027 903 934 660 1103 269
3. Short term investments 148 598 72 618 82 853 73524
3.1. Short term financial assets 148 598 72618 82 853 73524
a) in subordinated entities - - - A
b) in other entities 85 829 7422 21214 9710
¢) cash and cash equivalents 62 769 65 196 61 639 63 814
3.2. Other short term investments - - - -
4. Short term prepayments and deferred costs 346 970 421 792 435372 448 595
Total assets 13 724 964 13764 715 12 590 537 12 637 294

* the Company compensates provision for deferred tax and deferred tax assets
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as at as at as at as at
31.12.2003 30.09.2003 31.12.2002 30.09.2002
BALANCE SHEET end of quarter end of previous end of quarter end of previous
(current year) quarter (previous year) quarter
(current year) {previous year)
Liabilities
L. Equity 8418 866 7960 274 7263 591 7208 791
1. Share capital 534 636 525221 525 221 525 221
2. Unpaid share capital {negative value) - - - -
3. Own shares (nepative value) - - - -
4. Capital reserve 6122438 5936 840 5501180 5 500 664
5. Revaluation reserve 730120 716 950 725 551 767 990
6. Other capital reserves 53476 53476 53476 53476
7. Undistributed profit from previous years - - 75 893 75 893
8. Net profit 978 196 727 787 382270 285 547
9. Distribution from profit during financial year (negative value) - - - -
11. Liabilities and provisions for liabilities 5306 098 5804 441 5326 946 5428 503
1. Provisions for liabilities 632 058 699 378 728 080 677 843
1.1. Provision for deferred tax * 152 403 239 666 248415 199 369
1.2. Retirement benefits and similar provisions 87742 83 794 83 290 74 266
a) long term 76 394 73295 71 627 62 660
b} short term 11 348 10 499 11 663 11 606
1.3, Other provisions 391913 375918 396 375 404 208
a) long term 334 165 314 857 324 789 341 240
b) short term 57 748 61 061 71 586 62 968
2. Long term liabilities 1381612 9251775 233 648 1081 776
2.1. To subordinated entities - - 230299 236G 299
2.2. To other entities 1381612 925775 3349 851477
3. Short term liabilities 3 198 659 4108 297 4 300 823 3 605 739
3.1. To subordinated entities 321 394 360 284 191 655 141 678
3.2. To other entities 2847234 3715027 4077753 3430183
3.3. Special funds 30031 32 986 31415 33 878
4. Accruals and deferred income 93 769 70 991 64 395 63 145
4.]1. Negative goodwill - - - -
4.2, Other accruals and deferred income 93 769 70 991 64 395 63 145
a) long term - - - -
b) short term 93 769 70 991 64 395 63 145
Total liabilities 13 724 964 13764 715 12 590 537 12 637 294
* the Company compensates provision for deferred tax and deferred tax assets
Net book value 8 418 866 7960274 7263 591 7208 791
Number of shares 427 709 061 420 177 137 420 177 137 420 177 137
Net book value per share (in PLN) 19.68 18.95 17.29 17.16
as at as at as at as ot
31.12.2003 30.09.2003 31.12.2002 30.09.2002
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS end of quarter end of previous end of quarter end of previous
(current year) quarter (previous year) quarter
(current year) (previous year)
1. Contingent receivables - - - -
1.1, From subordinated entities - - - -
- received guarantees and sureties - - - -
1.2, From other entities - - - -
- received guarantees and sureties - - - -
2. Contingent liabilities 961 156 681 947 94 548 96 789
2.1. To subordinated entities 961 156 681 947 94 548 94 548
- pranted guarantees and sureties 961 156 681947 94 548 94 548
2.2. To other entities - - - 2241
- granted guarantees and sureties - - - 2241
3. Other 900 900 46 689 46 487
Total off - balance sheet items 962 056 682 847 141 237 143276
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1V quarter 1V quarters 1V quarter IV quarters

(current year) cumulative (previous year) cumulative

from 1.10.2003 (current year, from 1.10.2002 revious year’

INCOME STATEMENT to 31.12.2003 from 1‘].);003) to 31.12.2002 (rrom l.l.;’(l(ll)

to 31.12.2003 te 31,12.2002
1. Net sales, including: 6723121 24 629 963 6 441 568 23891 830
- to subordinated entities 1302021 4 656 790 915 940 3305753
1. Net sales of finished products 6 081 044 22 930 855 5924 009 22 066 872
2. Net sales of goods for resale and materials 642 077 1699 108 517 559 1824 958
11. Cost of goods sold, including: (3 490 585)] (12 132 355), (3 365 203), (11 793 081
- 1o subordinated entities (570 680) (1967 094) (458 661)] (1575 187
1. Cost of sales of finished products (2 931 392) (10 731 206) (2 898 409) (10 219 769
2. Cost of goods for resale and materials sold (559 193) (1 401 149), (466 794)! (1573312
111. Gross profit on sales (I-1T) 3232536 12 497 608 3076 365 12 098 749
1V. Selling and distribution costs (2 846 086) (10 821 292) (2 867 528) (10 926 201
V. General and administration expenses (176 173) (604 456)) (134 722), (567 619
VI. Profit on sales (I1I-IV-V) 210277 1071 860 74115 604 929
VII. Other operating income 31697 342194 46 613 162 121
1. Profit on disposal of non-financial fixed assets 1221 4923 1423 24 544
2. Grants - - - -
3, Other 30476 337271 45190 137577
VI111. Other operating expenses (50 361) (187 058)| (52 877) (181 789
1. Loss from disposal of non-financial fixed assets (4 117), (6 794 (2 507)] (13 387
2. Impairment of non-financial assets (4 277), (39 215) 6225 (11537
3. Other (41 967)| (141 049) (56 595) (156 865
1X. Operating profit (VI+VII-VIII) 191 613 1226 996 67 851 585 261
X. Financial income 32685 261 514 85 571 199 021
1. Dividends and shares in profits, including: - 67 000 - 13 660
- from subordinated entities - 20 491 - 13 658
2. Interest, including: 14 091 38 252 8218 49 101
- from subordinated entities §92 4 583 3721 5 597
3. Proceeds from sale of investments 11 761 50 749 58139 61542
4. Revaluation of investments - 45 29 405
5. Other 6 833 105 468 19185 74 313
Xl. Financial expenses (22 661)] (298 921), 50 958 (167 860,
{. Interest, including: (22 652), (108 149) (25 151); (137479
- for subordinated entities (682) (3 755) (1 670)| (4 662
2. Loss from sale of investments - - - -
3. Revaluation of investments (167 (7 038) (142) (914)
4, Other 158 (183 734) 76 251 (29 467
XIL Gross profit IX+X-XI) 201 637 1189 589 204 380 616 422
XII1. Extraordinary items (XII1.1 - X111.2) 1 1 - (121)
1. Extraordinary gains 1 1 - 17
2. Extraordinary losses - - - (138)
XIV. Profit before taxation (XII+/-XIII) 201 638 1189 590 204 380 616301
XV. Income tax 48 771 (211 394), (107 657)| (234 031
a) current part (40 759) (306 467)) (41 989) (177234
b) deferred part 8% 530 95073 (65 668)] (56 797
XVI. Other obligatory charges on profit - - - -
XVIIL Net profit (XIV-XV-XVI) 250 409 978 196 96 723 382270
Net profit for 12 months (annualised) 978 196 382270
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 420 804 797 420177137

Earnings per ordinary share (in PLN) 2.32 0.91
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1

1V quarter 1V quarters 1V quarter IV quarters *
(current year) cumulative (previous year) cumulative

from 1.10.2003 current year] from 1.10.2002 revious year,

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY to 31.12.2003 (from 1.|.y2003) t0 31.12.2002 (from l.l.'zooz)

to 31.12,2003 t0 31.12.2002
1. Equity at beginning of period 7960 274 7263 591 7208 791 6 859 092
a) changes in accounting policies - - - 73293
b) corrections of fundamental errors - - - B
I.a. Equity at beginning of period restated for comparative data 7960 274 7263 591 7208 791 6932 385
1. Share capital at beginning of period 525221 525 221 525221 525221
1.1.Movements in share capital 9415 9415 - -
a) increases 9415 9415 - -
- issue of shares 9415 9415 - -
b) decreases - - - -
1.2. Share capital at end of period 534 636 534 636 525 221 525221
2. Unpaid share capital at beginning of period - - - -
2.1. Movements in unpaid share capital - - - .
___a) increases - - - N
b) decreases - - - -
2.2, Unpaid share capital at end of period - - - -
3. Own shares at beginning of period - - - -
3.1. Movement in own shares - - - .
_a) increases . R R R
___b) decreases - - - -
3.2 Own shares at end of period - - - -
4. Capital reserve at beginning of period 5936 840 5501 180 5 500 664 5297573
4.1. Movements in capital reserve 185 598 621258 516 203 607
a) increases 185 598 621 258 516 203 607
- share premium 184 909 184 909 - .-
- apportionment of profits (over the minimum provided for by the articles) - 395338 - 197 605
- transfer from capiltal reserves due to revaluation of fixed assets disposed 689 41011 516 6 002
b) decreases - - - -
4.2. Capital reserve at end of period 6122438 6122438 5501 180 5501 180
5. Revaluation reserve at beginning of period 716 930 725 551 767 990 734 796
a) changes in accounting policies N - . (2 600
S.a. Revaluation reserve at beginning of period restated for comparative data 716 950 725 551 767 990 732 196
5.1. Movements in revaluation capital 13170 4 569 (42 439), (6 645,
a) increases 8 802 52 395 320 42 383
- increase in valuation of long term investments 11 069 51 456 - 58 218
- deferred tax assets related to entries made to revaluation reserve (2 267), 939 320 (15 835
- other - - - -
b) decreases 4368 (47 826)] (42 759) (49 028
- fixed assets disposals (689) (41 011)] (516) (6 002
- impairment of tangible fixed assets 5057 (6 815)| (326) (1109
- decrease in valuation of long term investments - - - -
- defered tax on bookings related to revaluation reserve - - 16 301 16 301
- sale of financial assets - - (58 218) (58 218
5.2. Revaluation reserve at end of period 730 120 730 120 725 551 725 551
6. Other capital reserves at beginning of period 53 476 53476 53476 53476
6.1. Movements in other capital reserves - - - -
a) increases - - - -
b) decreases - - - -
6.2, Other capital reserves at end of period 53476 53476 53476 53 476
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in PLN thousand

7. Profit (loss) from previous years at beginning of period 727 787 458 163 361 440 248 026
7.1. Undistributed profit from previous years at beginning of period 727 787 458 163 361 440 248 026
_a) changes in accounting policies - - - 75 893
__b) corrections of fundamental errors - - - R
7.2. Undistributed profit from previous years at beginning of period restated for 727787 458 163 361 440 323919
comparative data *
a) increases - - - -
__b) decreases - (458 163) - (248 026
- dividends paid - (58 825) - (50 421
- transfer to capital reserve - (395 338)) - (197 605,
- others - {4 600) - -
7.3. Undistributed profit from previous years at end of period * 727787 - 361 440 75 893
7.4, Undistributed loss from previous years at beginning of period - - - -
| a) changes in accounting policies - - - -
__b) corrections of fundamental errors - - - -
7.5. Undistributed loss from previous years at beginning of period restated for - - - -
comparative data
a) increases - - - -
b) decreases - - - -
7.6. Undistributed loss from previous years at end of period - - - -
7.7. Undistributed profit (loss) from previous years at end of period * 727 787 - 361 440 75 893
8. Net result for the financial vear 250 409 978 196 96 723 382 270
a) net profit 250 409 978 196 96723 382270
b) net loss - - - -
_¢) distribution of profit - - - -
IT. Equity at end of period 8 418 866 8 418 866 7263 591 7 263 591

* including net profit for I11Q 2003 and I11Q 2002 respectively
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in PLN thousand

IV quarter 1V quarters IV quarter 1V quarters
(current year) cumulative (previous year) cumulative
CASH FLOW STATEMENT from 1.10.2003 (current year) from 1.10.2002 (previous year)
t0 31.12.2003 from 1.1.2003 10 31.12.2002 from 1.1.2002
to 31.12.2003 to 31.12.2002
A. Cash flow from operating activities
1. Net profit for the year 250 409 978 196 96 723 382 270
11. Total adjustments 181 582 256 669 262 628 673 593
1. Depreciation and amortisation 196176 793 162 211019 819 884
2. Foreign exchange (gains)/losses (28 062) 34 700 (58 165) (27952
3. Interest and dividends 18 668 24 474 21223 105 538
4. (Profit) loss from investing activities 24 931 21 409 (61 787), (64 939
5. Movements in provisions (69 587)| (90 969)| 66 859 37 300
6. Movements in stock (7753 (124 981) (231 318) (638 599,
7. Movements in receivables (6 408) (234 883)| 238 642 (34 565
8. Movements in creditors falling due within one year (with the exception of loans) (53 324) (80 181) 37 807 412 240
$. Movements in prepayments and accruals 108 131 124 500 25312 51 650
10. Other adjustments (1190, (210 562)] 13 036 13 036
111. Net cash flow from operating activities (I+/-1I) 431 991 1234 865 359 351 1055 863
B. Cash flow from investing activities
1. Cash inflows from investing activities 147 159 322711 135613 178 708
1. Sales of intangible fixed assets and tangible fixed assets 5016 46 449 2 401 28 385
2. Disposal of real estate investments and intangible fixed assets investments - - - -
3. From financial assets, including: 119 463 213 151 101 668 134 670
a) in subordinated entities 13 209 51350 119 14 066
- sales of financial assets (except for short term securities) 12 998 30 714 - 6
- sales of short term securities - - - -
- dividends and shares in profits 155 20 491 - 13 658
- long-term loans repaid - - - -
- interest received 56 145 119 402
- other inflows from financial assets - - - -
b) in other entities 105 854 161 801 101 549 120 604
- sales of financial assets (except {or short term securities) - 2159 93 465 101 751
- sales of short term securities - - - -
- dividends and shares in profits - 46 509 - 2
- long-term loans repaid 98 050 98 050 - -
- interest received 7804 15 083 8084 18 851
- other inflows from financial assets - - - -
4. Other inflows from investing activities 23 080 63111 31 544 15 653
11, Cash outflows from investing activities (345 976)| (1 612 487) {285 356)) {847 313
1. Purchases of intangible fixed assets and tangible fixed assets (258 459) (930 429) (223 883), (676 633
2. Investments in real estate and intangible fixed assets - - - -
3. For financial assets, including: (37 (593 190)| (61 673) (91237
a) in subordinated entities (37) (593 190), (273) (29 837
__- purchases of financial assets (except for short term securities) 37 (593 190)) (273) (29 837
b) in other entities - - (61 400)| (61 400
- purchases of financial assets (except for short term securities) - - (61 400) (61 400
4. Other payments (87 480) (88 868), - (79 443
I1L. Net cash flow used in investing activities (I-1I) (198 817) (1 289 776) (149 943)) (668 605
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C. Cash flow from financing activities
1. Inflows 859 716 4528 708 398 038 1689 300
1. Issuance of shares and other capital instruments, additional payments to capital - - - -
2. Loans 494 070 2744 463 - 285 239
3, Issuance of short term securities 365 646 1784 245 398 038 1404 061
4, Other inflows - - - -
I1. Qutflows (1 095 863) (4 475 479); {607 526) (2094 103
1. Redemption of shares - - - -
2. Dividends and other distributions to shareholders - {58 825)| - {50 421
3. Other than distribution of profit to shareholders payments from profit - - - -
4. Repayment of loans (679 806), {2 354 606), {210 290), (511 700
5. Repurchase of short term securities (393 219) {1 943 425) (367 086); (1 383 885
6. Other financial liabilities - - - -
7. Finance lease payments {775) (2 557) (859) (2 365
8. Interest paid (22 063)) (116 066) {29 251)) (145 732
9. Other payments - - - -
I1I. Net cash flow used in / from financing activities (I-1I) (236 147), 53229 {209 488)| (404 803
D. Net cash flow/(outflow) (Ai+/-B.II1+/-C.III) (2973) (1682 (80) (17 545
E. Balance sheet change in cash and cash equivalents (2 427) 1130 (2175) (20 133
- including changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from foreign exchange 546 2812 {2 095), (2588
F. Total cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 65 196 61 639 63 814 81772
G. Total cash and cash equivalents at end of period (F+/-D) * 62223 59 957 63 734 64 227
- including those of Timited availability 5136 5136 5121 5121

* excluding foreign exchange gains/losses - according to National Accounting Standard No 1
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L INFORMATION ON PRINCIPLES OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
REPORT FOR 4 Q 2003

1. Format and general rules of preparation of the consolidated and unconsolidated balance sheet,
consolidated and unconsolidated income statement, statement of changes in consolidated and
unconsolidated shareholders equity and consolidated and unconsolidated cash flow statement

The consolidated and unconsolidated condensed financial statements presented in this consolidated quarterly
report were prepared in compliance with the Polish Accounting Standards defined by the amended Accounting
Act of 29 September 1994 (Journal of Law No 76, pos. 694, 2002) and the Decree of the Council of Ministers
of 16 October 2001 on type, form and scope of current and periodic information and dates of its publication by
issuers of securities allowed to be traded publicly (Journal of Law No 139, pos. 1569 with further changes, the
“Decree”) and cover the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 and comparable period from
1 January 2002 to 31 December 2002.

The accounting rules applied by PKN ORLEN S.A. (“the Company”, “Dominant Company”) and the Capital
Group of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. (“the Capital Group”) in year 2003 were presented in published
financial statements: unconsolidated and consolidated for the year 2002 and for the 6 month period ended
30 June 2003.

2. Accounting policies in the Capital Group of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN

In 4 Q 2003 the Company and the Capital Group did not adopt any significant changes in applied accounting
policies in comparison to policies applied by the Company and the Capital Group in year 2002.

3. Method of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

For preparation of the consolidated and unconsolidated balance sheet, consolidated and unconsolidated income
statement, statement of changes in consolidated and unconsolidated shareholders equity and consolidated and
unconsolidated cash flow statement, the same rules were applied as for preparation of consolidated and
unconsolidated financial statements in year 2002.

The condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated results of operation, balance sheets and cash
flows for each period presented.

4, Principles of calculation of the selected financial data denominated in EURO

Selected financial data has been recalculated to EURO according to the following principles:

balance sheet items - the average rate published as at 31 December 2003 - i.e. 4.7170 zloty/ EURO,

¢ income statement and cash flow items - exchange rate calculated as a simple average of National Bank of
Poland average rates for the last day of each month of the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003
-1.e.4.4474 zloty/ EURO.
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II. INFORMATION ON CHANGES IN PROVISIONS AND FIXED ASSETS IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

- CONSOLIDATED DATA
1. Impairment of assets

1.1. Impairment of tangible fixed assets

IV Q 2003

Balance as at 1.10.2003 70,130
Increases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 -
Decreases during the period 1.10.2003 — 31.12.2003 (7,459)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 62,671
IV Q 2003 cumulative

Balance as at 1.01.2003 37,318
Increases during the period 1.01.2003 — 31.12.2003 37,002
Decreases during the period 1.01.2003 — 31.12.2003 (11,649)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 62,671
1.2. Impairment of construction in progress

IV Q 2003

Balance as at 1.10.2003 39,238
Increases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 -
Decreases during the period 1.10.2003 — 31.12.2003 (1,602)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 37,636
IV Q 2003 cumulative

Balance as at 1.01.2003 29,548
Increases during the period 1.01.2003 —31.12.2003 10,150
Decreases during the period 1.01.2003 — 31.12.2003 (2,062)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 37,636

1.3. Adjustments in the valuation of financial fixed assets and differences in the valuation of contribution

in-kind

1.3.1. Impairment of financial fixed assets

1V Q 2003

Balance as at 1.10.2003 70,779
Increases during the period 1.10.2003 —31.12.2003 977
Decreases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 (367)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 71,389
IV Q 2003 cumulative

Balance as at 1.01.2003 76,410
Increases during the period 1.01.2003 —31.12.2003 3,679
Decreases during the period 1.01.2003 —31.12.2003 (8,700)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 71,389
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1.3.2. Difference in the valuation of contribution in-kind related to financial long-term assets

IV Q 2003

Balance as at 1.10.2003 4,226

Increases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 -

Decreases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 (678)

Balance as at 31.12.2003 3,548

IV Q 2003 cumulative

Balance as at 1.01.2003 4,586

Increases during the period 1.01.2003 - 31.12.2003 11

Decreases during the period 1.01.2003 — 31.12.2003 (1,049)

Balance as at 31.12.2003 3,548

1.4. Doubtful debt provision

IV Q 2003

Balance as at 1.10.2003 316,689

Increases during the period 1.10.2003 — 31.12.2003 33,807

Decreases during the period 1.10.2003 —31.12.2003 (33,633)

Balance as at31.12.2003 316,863

1V Q 2003 cumulative

Balance as at 1.01.2003 291,930

Increases during the period 1.01.2003 —31.12.2003 118,335

Decreases during the period 1.01.2003 — 31.12.2003 (93,402)

Balance as at 31.12.2003 316,863

1.5. Impairment of inventories

The Group made stock valuation adjustments in 4 Q 2003 in the amount of PLN 196 thousand (PLN 1,074

thousand in 4 Q 2003 cumulatively).
2. Provisions

2.1. Provision for deferred tax

1V Q 2003

Balance as at 1.10.2003 255,637
Increases during the period 1.10.2003—- 31.12.2003 98,016
Decreases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 (137,033)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 216,620
1V Q 2003 cumulative

Balance as at 1.01.2003 290,463
Increases during the period 1.01.2003-31.12.2003 214,090
Decreases during the period 1.01.2003 - 31.12.2003 (287,933)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 216,620
2.2. Provision for jubilee and retirement bonuses

IV Q 2003

Balance as at 1.10.2003 148,308
Increases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 22,471
Decreases during the period 1.10.2003 — 31.12.2003 (12,191)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 158,588
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Balance as at 1.01.2003

Increases during the period 1.01.2003 —-31.12.2003
Decreases during the period 1.01.2003 - 31.12.2003

Balance as at 31.12.2003

2.3. Other provisions

150,396

61,111
(52,919)
158,588

Environmental Provision for Other provisions
provision business risk P
IV Q 2003
Balance as at 1.10.2003 365,355 41,680 10,422
Increases during the period
1102003 - 31.12.2003 20,035 - 42,268
Decreases during the period
1.10.2003 — 31.12.2003 (6,278) (19,870) (25,489)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 379,112 21,810 27,201
Environmental Provision for Other provisions
provision business risk P !
IV Q 2003 cumulative
Balance as at 1.01.2003 379,883 29,103 16,721
Increases during the period
1.01.2003 - 31.12.2003 25,286 952 48,320
Decreases during the period
1.01.2003 — 31.12.2003 (26,057) (8,:243) (37,840)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 379,112 21,810 27,201
3. Goodwill from consolidation /Negative goodwill from consolidation
3.1. Goodwill from consolidation
IV Q 2003
Balance as at 1.10.2003 22,011
Increases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 -
Decreases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 (1,358)
Balance as at 31.12,2003 20,653
IV Q 2003 cumulative
Balance as at 1.01.2003 26,070
Increases during the period 1.01.2003 - 31.12.2003 16
Decreases during the period 1.01.2003 - 31.12.2003 (5,433)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 20,653
3.2. Negative goodwill from consolidation
IV Q2003
Balance as at 1.10.2003 241,270
Increases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 72,466
Decreases during the period 1.10.2003 - 31.12.2003 (12,400)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 301,336
IV Q 2003 cumulative
Balance as at 1.01.2003 259,002
Increases during the period 1.01.2003 —31.12.2003 80,051
Decreases during the period 1.01.2003 - 31.12.2003 (37,717)
Balance as at 31.12.2003 301,336
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I11. DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL GROUP OPERATIONS IN 4 Q 2003 AND DETAILS OF FACTORS
AND EVENTS HAVING A MATERIAL INFLUENCE ON THE FINANCIAL RESULT

At the end of 4Q 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. owned directly or indirectly shares in following entities, which either
are (directly or indirectly) controlled (jointly controlled) by PKN ORLEN or PKN ORLEN has (directly or
indirectly) significant influence:

- 93 subsidiaries,

- 2 companies jointly confrolled,

- 27 associates.

In comparison to the end of 4Q 2002 there was a fall in the total number of subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates from 148 to 122. In 4Q 2003 there were 84 entities consolidated under full method or equity method,
whereas in 4Q 2002 - 86.

The most important factors having material influence on operating results in 4Q 2003 in comparison to 4Q 2002

are as follows (change: 4Q 2003 to 4Q 2002, if not marked otherwise):

- increase of refining margin (“crack™) on quotations for gasoline from 64.44 to 68.00 USD/ton (by
5.5%), for Diesel from 46.65 to 59.80 USD/ton (by 28.2%) and for Ekoterm from 37.56 to 45.49
USD/ton (by 21.1%),

- increase in average price of Brent crude oil quotations from 26.83 to 29.46 USD/bbl (by 9.8%),

- increase in discount of Ural crude oil in relation to Brent crude oil quotations from /-1.26/ USD/bbl to
/-1.65/ USD/bbl (by 31.0%),

- increase in sales volume of gasoline by 29.2%

- increase in sales volume of Diesel by 35.0%,

- increase in sales volume of Ekoterm by 7.8%,

- increase in sales volume of petrochemical products by 2.5%,

- increase in volume of LPG retail sales by 7.8%

- decrease in USD average exchange rate from 4.00 to 3.89 PLN/USD (by 2.8%),

- increase of EURO average exchange rate from 4.00 to 4.62 PLN/EURO (by 15.5%).

In 4Q 2003 the Capital Group retail sales and wholesales of motor fuels (gasoline, Diesel, LPG, Jet A-1) and
light heating oil (Ekoterm) amounted to 2,799,135 tons and was higher than sales realised in the corresponding
period of the previous year by 578,823 tons (i.e. by 26.1%). For 4Q 2003 cumulatively the sales of the products
mentioned above increased by 1,500,203 tons (i.e. by 17.8%) in comparison to the corresponding period of the
previous year.

The total sales of all products (refinery, chemical and other) in 4Q 2003 amounted to 4,112,304 tons and was
higher than in 4Q of previous year by 676,817 tons (i.e. by 19.7%). Total sales for 4Q 2003 cumulatively was
higher than in 4Q of previous year by 1,624,013 tons (i.e. by 12.5%).

The retail sales of motor fuels (gasoline, Diesel, LPG) in 4Q 2003 amounted to 970,872 tons and was higher
than sales in the corresponding period of previous year by 435,907 tons (by 81.5%), the total increase for 4Q
2003 cumulatively amounted to 1,446,669 tons (66.5%). Such a significant increase results from consolidation
of the business activity in Germany from March 2003,
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Sales trends of main products are presented in the tables below:

Sales volume of light product Dynamics (%)
- the Capital Gro?li;) of PKN ORLEN 4Q 2002 4Q 2003 j%‘:lzrr‘;rr BYveY
l‘:c‘:z'(;’f:g'e of main light products, 1,626,027 1,699,565 1045
- gasoline (tons) 466,401 440,689 94.5
- Diesel (tons) 603,730 703,894 116.6
- Ekoterm (tons) 485,670 449,697 92.6
Retail sales of motor fuels, including: | 691,313 534,965 (1,243,872 970,872 181.5
- gasoline (thousand litres) / (tons) 406,864 | 307,182 | 740,539 | 559,107 182.0
- Diesel (thousand litres) / (tons) 240,011 202,809 | 455,449 384,854 189.8
- LPG (thousand litres) / (tons) 44,438 24,974 47,884 26,911 107.8
Total sales of fuels (tons) 2,220,312 2,799,135 126.1
- including motor fuels (tons) 1,731,000 2,271,821 131.2
Sales vohfme of light products 4Q 2092 4Q 2093 413]::2‘::: g;/:))?’ ;
- the Capital Group of PKN ORLEN cumulatively cumulatively 4 Quarters 2002
mfl';f:; of main light products, 5,989,205 5,823,059 97.2
- gasoline (tons) 1,863,090 1,595,821 85.7
- Diesel (tons) 2,285,469 2,373,872 103.9
- Ekoterm light heating oil (tons) 1,572,702 1,544,936 98.2
Retail sales of motor fuels, including: (2,797,928 (2,176,369 |4,641,091 |3,623,038 166.5
- gasoline (thousand litres) / (tons) 1,667,021 |1,258,601 12,750,738 |2,076,807 165.0
- Diesel (thousand litres) / (tons) 997,167 | 842,606 |1,709,727 |1,444,719 171.5
- LPG (thousand litres) / (tons) 133,740 75,162 | 180,626 | 101,512 135.1
Total sales of fuels (tons) 8,404,654 9,904,857 117.8
- including motor fuels (tones) 6,819,560 8,119,033 119.1

High level of margins on fuel quotations and increase of sales volumes (as a result of raise in fuel consumption
and standstill of Mozyr refinery — the most important producer of Diesel imported to Poland) caused growth of
profit both of the Dominant Company and of the Capital Group in comparison to the corresponding period of

the previous year,

The results of the Dominant Company compared with the Capital Group were as follows:

in PLN thousand
PKN’s PKN’s

Items 4Q 2002 share in 4Q 2003 share in

the Group the Group

Group PKN (%) Group PKN (%)
Crude oil processing (‘000 tons) 3,438 3,282 95.5 3,153 3,001 95.2
Net sales revenue 7,113,554 | 6,441,568 90.6 | 9,364,269 | 6,723,121 71.8
Profit on sales 102,620 74,115 72.2 242,022 210,277 86.9
Operating profit 69,531 67,851 97.6 218,817 191,613 87.6
Profit before taxation 212,604 204,380 96.1 240,150 201,638 84.0
Net profit 103,048 96,723 93.9 263,466 250,409 95.0
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in PLN thousand

PKN’s PKN’s

Ttems cu‘rthulza(:?\?ely share in cu?n?llza(:?\?ely share in
the Group the Group

Group PKN (%) Group PKN (%)

Crude oil processing (‘000 tons) 13,040 12,474 95.7 12,272 11,724 95.5
Net sales revenue 26,328,379 23,891,830 90.7 133,720,937 | 24,629,963 73.0
Profit on sales 821,392 604,929 73.6 | 1,300,693 | 1,071,860 824
Operating profit 758,613 585,261 77.1 | 1,365,684 | 1,226,996 89.8
Profit before taxation 772,432 616,301 79.8 | 1,313,025 1,189,590 90.6
Net profit 479,335 382,270 79.8 { 1,068,529 978,196 91.5

During 4Q 2003 the companies of the Capital Group processed 3,153 thousand tons of crude oil. The achieved
level of processing was 8.3% lower than in the comparable period of the previous year, whereas the level
achieved in 4Q 2003 cumulatively was lower by 5.9%.

In 4Q 2003 profit on sales of the Capital Group reached the level of PLN 242,022 thousand and was higher by
135.8% than the result for 4Q 2002. In 4Q 2003 cumulatively profit on sales was higher than in 4Q 2002 by
58.4% and amounted to PLN 1,300,693 thousand. While applying LIFO method, estimated profit on sales in 4Q
2003 amounted to PLN 239 million comparing to PLN 179 million in 4Q 2002. In 4Q 2003 cumulatively
estimated profit on sales calculated using this method amounted to PLN 1,263 million compared to PLN 504
million in the corresponding period of the previous year.

In 4Q 2003 net profit of the Capital Group reached the level of PLN 263,466 thousand and was higher by
155.7% than the result for 4Q 2002. In 4Q 2003 cumulatively net profit was higher by 122.9% than in 4Q 2002
and amounted to PLN 1,068,529 thousand. While applying LIFO method, estimated net profit in 4Q 2003
amounted to PLN 261 million comparing to PLN 158 million in 4Q 2002. In 4Q 2003 cumulatively estimated
net profit calculated using this method amounted to PLN 1,041 million compared to PLN 266 million in the
corresponding period of the previous year,

In 4Q 2003 the proportion of the net profit of the Dominant Company in the net profit of the Capital Group
increased from 93.9% to 95.0% in comparison to 4Q 2002. This grow results from negative impact of losses
incurred by some of the subsidiaries of the Group (mainly Orlen Deutschland Real Estate GmbH, Orlen
Laboratorium Sp. z 0.0., SHIP — SERVICE SA). In total, all consolidated subsidiaries achieved in 4Q 2003 net
results higher by PLN 26 million than net results for the corresponding period of the previous year. The positive
influence on the Dominant Company’s share in the net profit of the Capital Group resulted from re-assessment
of the deferred tax provision which was caused by the change of the tax rate to 19% in 2004 (PLN 62m in the
Dominant Company and PLN 67m for the Capital Group)

Significant growth of the Dominant Company’s profit share in the profit of the Capital Group for 4Q 2003 (from
79.8% to 91.5%) cumulatively results from presentation of contribution in kind of the organised part of the
enterprise to Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. In the financial data of the Dominant Company the net profit
resulting from the difference between the book value of the contributed assets and liabilities and fair value of
shares acquired amounted to PLN 164 million. In consolidated results of the Capital Group 50% of this amount
were recognised (in proportion to shares owned by Basell Europe Holdings B.V. in capital of Poliolefiny Polska
Sp. z 0.0.) — i.e. PLN 82 million. In consolidated financial statements investment in Basell Orlen Polyolefins is
presented under equity method.
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Financial data with segment information of the Capital Group is presented below:

in PLN million
4Q 2002 4Q 2003
Items
Refining | Chemicals Othgr Total |Refining |Chemicals Othgr Total
operations operations
Segment result 105 46 6 157 258 62 (19) 301
Unallocated corporate 2 3
income
Unallocated corporate (90) (85)
expense
Profit from operations 69 219
in PLN million
4Q 2002 cumulatively 4Q 2003 cumulatively
Items
Refining | Chemicals Oth‘.:r Total | Refining |Chemicals| Oth?r Total
operations operations
Segment result 857 155 49 1,061 1,359 379 35 1,773
Unallocated corporate 3 19
income
Unallocated corporate (305) (426)
expense
Profit from operations 759 1,366

|-—-—-----—-“-.-

During 4Q 2003 (cumulatively) segments operating profit increased by 67.1% in comparison to 4Q 2002
(cumulatively). This was caused by the increase of profit in refining segment by 58.6% (mainly due to high
margin levels) and the increase of profit in chemical segment by 144.5% (effect of the contribution of organized
part of the enterprise to Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0.).

Under Bonds Issuance Program in 4Q 2003 the Dominant Company completed 5 issuances of total value PLN
321 million. Bonds of total value amounting to PLN 254 million were acquired by companies from the Capital
Group (including PLN 243 million acquired by companies from the Capital Group consolidated under full
method):

issuance 1. PLN 50 m (BH),
issuance 2. PLN 109 m (BH),
issuance 3. PLN 50 m (BRE),
issuance 4. PLN 19 m (BH),
issuance 5. PLN 93 m (BH).
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Translation of a document originally issued in Polish

IV. UNUSUAL ITEMS AND EVENTS HAVING A MATERIAL INFLUENCE ON THE FINANCIAL
RESULT

a) Joint Venture PKN ORLEN - BASELL

On 28 February 2003 PKN ORLEN in exchange for its organized part of business contributed in kind (assets
and liabilities related to production and sales of polyolefin) acquired 50% shares in BASELL ORLEN
POLYOLEFINS Sp. z o0.0. (formerly Poliolefiny Polska Sp. z 0.0.) located in Plock (“BOP”). The remaining
50% was acquired by Basell Europe Holding B.V. (“BEH"”) in exchange for contributed cash. After the increase
the share capital of BOP amounts to PLN 907m.

As a result of the contribution in kind of the organized part of business to BOP, the Group recognized a gain
amounting to PLN 82m, net of deferred tax. The gain presented in these financial statements results from 50%
share in net assets of BOP which is proportionate to BEH’s share in the net assets of this company. The gain
amounting to PLN 112m is presented within other operating income. As at the transaction date the investment in
BOP was recorded at cost of PLN 342m.

Since 1 March 2003 the joint-venture BOP is accounted for under the equity method in consolidated financial
statements. 50% of the company’s net profit is adjusted by profits related to 50% of net assets of the company
arisen on the transaction of contribution in kind and current mutual transactions.

b) Long-term investments in Germany

On 28 February 2003 the Company acquired a chain of 494 retail stations in Germany (323 stations under the
name BP - Aral and 171 stations under the name Eggert together with shareholdings in Eggert — a company
previously acquired by ARAL). The business activity in Germany is realized through 6 subsidiaries directly or
indirectly 100% controlled by PKN ORLEN.

The transaction has been accounted for under the purchase accounting method as presented below:

Purchase price according to the initial agreement 589,162

Adjusted purchase price (as a result of change in working capital caused

mainly by an increase of payables) 299,651
Net value of acquired assets and liabilities, adjusted for liabilities to BP paid by PKN (370,608)
(including PLN 2 1m of acquired cash) ’

Negative goodwill (70,957)

Beginning from 1 March 2003 PKN ORLEN consolidates its activities in Germany using full method of
consolidation.

¢) Disposal of stake in NOM Sp. z 0. o.

On 20 May 2003, the Management Board of the Company submitted a put option execution declaration for all
Niezalezny Operator Miedzystrefowy Sp. z 0.0. (“NOM”) shares owned by PKN ORLEN to Polskie Sieci
Elektroenergetyczne S.A. (“PSE”). The “put” price equals to PLN [11.5m and is calculated as a sum of a par
value of the shares sold and a cumulative investment premium calculated according to the agreement dated
8 June 2000 regulating the cooperation between the NOM shareholders.

On 20 October 2003, PSE filed a suit to the Court of Arbitration of the Polish Chamber of Commerce in
Warsaw, regarding the determination of the validity of the shares sales agreement. Up to the date of preparation
of these financial statements the legal proceedings in the Court of Arbitration were not commenced.

According to the opinion of the Management Board of the Company, based additionally on an independent legal
analyses, the Company has executed its put option and sold NOM shares to PSE. Consequently, the Company
recognised profit on the transaction amounting to PLN 27.5m (difference between purchase price of the shares
and the sales price resulting from the put option). According to the Management Board the receivable of PLN
111.5m will be realised in full amount.
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The Capital Group of PKN ORLEN S A. SA-QSrIV/2003 PLN “000

Translation of a document originally issued in Polish

VI. MOST IMPORTANT EVENTS FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 OCTOBER 2003 TO THE DAY OF

PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT EARLIER REPORTED IN THE CURRENT REPORTS

On 3 October 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN received from Mr Jacek Strzelecki, Vice-
President of the Management Board for Finance and Economics, information about becoming an owner of
254,493 series A bonds convertible to series D shares of the Company as a result of accepting the purchase
offer from ORLEN Powiernik Sp z o0.0. within the confines of Management Option Program. One bond
entitles to receive as a result of the conversion one Company’s share. 10 October 2003 was the last date to
submit a statement of converting bonds. The price of one bond purchased by Mr Jacek Strzelecki amounts
to PLN 20.91 and equals to an average share price at the Warsaw Stock Exchange for 30 (thirty) trading
days before the appointment of each individual Board Member and increased by 10%. However the price
cannot be lower than the bond’s issue price of PLN 20.30 (according to resolution No I1 of the General
Meeting of Shareholders on 15 May 2000 concerning issue of convertibles bonds series A). Mr Jacek
Strzelecki, Vice-President of the Management Board for Finance and Economics is related to the Company
in accordance with § 2 art. 1 point 30d of the Decree of the Council of Ministers dated 16 October 2001
concerning current and periodic information published by issuers of securities.

The Management Board of PKN ORLEN informed that on 22 October 2003 PKN ORLEN applied to
District Court in Warsaw for registration of the capital increase of the Company as a result of conversion of
7,531,924 bonds for PKN ORLEN S.A. shares within the confines of realization of Management Option
Program. The application refers to increase of PKN ORLEN initial capital by the amount of PLN 9,414,905
from PLN 525,221,421.25 to PLN 534,636,326.25. On 20 November 2003 District Court in Warsaw, XXI
Economic Department registered capital increase of PKIN ORLEN S.A. The previous initial capital of PKN
ORLEN S.A. in the amount of PLN 525,221,421.25 has been increased by the amount of PLN 9,414,905
i.e. to the amount of PLN 534,636,326.25

As the result of the capital increase the total number of shares, with a par value of PLN 1.25 each, will
amount to 427,709,061. One share authorizes to one vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders of the
Company.

On 22 October 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN received information about entering into an
agreement on engineering and construction works between Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z o0.0. with
headquarter in Plock, Tecnimont Poland Sp. z 0.0. with headquarter in Warsaw and Tecnimont SpA with
headquarter in Milano, Italy. The subject of the agreement dated 21 October 2003 is to project and build
new installations to produce polypropylene and polyethylene within the joint venture between PKN
ORLEN and Basell Europe Holdings B.V. The total cost of the joint venture’s undertakings amounts to
EUR 500 million. PKN ORLEN and Basell Europe Holdings B.V. hold 50% of shares in the share capital
of Basell ORLEN Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. with headquarter in Plock, representing 50% votes at the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

On 31 October 2002 the Company executed Annex no. 1 (“the Annex”) to the term oil supply contract
entered on 20 December 2002 (“the Agreement”) with J&S Service & Investments Ltd, a Cyprus legal
entity with seat in Larnaca. On the basis of the Agreement changed by the Annex, J&S Service &
Investments Ltd is obliged to supply the Company with crude oil until the year 2009 (inclusive) in the
average quantity of 5,400,000 tons per year what exceeds the primary period stated in the Agreement over
2 years. Moreover on the basis of the Annex the formula referring to the quotations of URAL crude oil
prevailing on the international markets was changed. The changes in the Agreement caused by the Annex
reflect the current international standards applied in contracts regarding supply of crude oil and do not
influence estimated value of the Agreement. The Annex is recognized as the change of “the significant
agreement” in meanings of regulations of the Decree of the Council of Ministers dated 16 October 2001 on
current and periodic information published by issuers of securities, as the amount of the Agreement exceeds
10% of the Company’s shareholders equity.

On 6 November 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN received information that the number of its
shares held by The Bank of New York decreased. According to current report No 74/2003 from 3 October
2003 The Bank of New York possessed 42,380,674 shares constituting 10.09% of votes at the General
Shareholders' Meeting. As at 4 November 2003 The Bank of New York possessed 41,974,304 shares
constituting 9.99% of share capital and votes at the General Shareholders' Meeting.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Translation of a document originally issued in Polish

On [7 November 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced, that it sent to WestLB in
Prague — a privatization adviser to the Czech government - a preliminary expression of interest in
participating in the tender for Unipetrol as. The letter was an answer to the announcement from
6 November 2003 concerning opening by the National Property Fund of the Czech Republic a privatization
process of Unipetrol a.s. On 19 November 2003 PKN signed a co-operation agreement with Agrofert
Holding a.s in Prague (Czech Republic) over the privatization of Unipetrol a.s. This agreement follows the
letter of intent signed on 26 May 2003 (see current report No 40/2003 from 26 May 2003). The agreement
covers initial arrangements regarding co-operation of the parties in the privatization process and defines the
preliminary division of Unipetrol’s assets between the parties should their bid be successful.

On 20 November 2003 the Management Board of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. (ORLEN)
informed, that PKN ORLEN and MOL Hungarian Oil and Gas Plc. (,,MOL”) signed agreement whereby
they agreed intention to initiate the co-operation in the Central and Eastern European oil sector. The parties
believe that this co-operation would allow both MOL and ORLEN to benefit from synergies and could
create the opportunity to compete more effectively with the major global operators in the sector. The
agreement provides for an initial period of exclusive consultation between MOL and ORLEN in respect of
potential co-operation. The parties have also agreed to establish working groups to assess the feasibility of
further potential co-operative initiatives and to consider the structuring and timing of such initiatives.
Despite the fact that the agreement involves non-binding elements, the parties believe it will serve as a
useful measure and look forward to productive discussions between the MOL and PKN ORLEN teams.

The Management Board of PKIN ORLEN announced, that on 21 November 2003 it submitted a preliminary,
non-binding expression of interest to the Romanian Ministry of Economy and Commerce in Bucharest in
respect of the purchase of a 51% stake in SNP Petrom S.A., Romania’s biggest oil company.

On 1 December 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced, that it has requested The
Warsaw Stock Exchange to admit 7,531,924 (seven million five hundred thirty one thousand nine hundred
twenty four) PKN ORLEN’s shares to trading on the Warsaw Stock Exchange as a succession of
assimilation of shares in the National Depository for Securities. On 3 December 2003 the Management
Board of the Warsaw Stock Exchange (“WSE”) in resolution based on § 16 paragraph 1 of WSE
Regulations decided to admit 7,531,924 PKN ORLEN series D ordinary shares for trading at the exchange
since 10 December 2003.

The Company ORLEN Powiernik Sp. z 0.0. on:

e 16 December 2003 purchased from Citibank Handlowy 10,900 bonds issued by PKN ORLEN with a
par value PLN 10,000, at par purchasing price PLN 9,864.11 in order to allocate free cash.

e 23 December 2003 purchased from Citibank Handlowy 1,929 bonds issued by PKN ORLEN with a par
value PLN 10,000, at par purchasing price PLN 9,865.34 in order to allocate free cash.

® 31 December 2003 purchased from Citibank Handlowy 9,240 bonds issued by PKN ORLEN with a par
value PLN 10,000, at par purchasing price PLN 9,867.80 in order to allocate free cash.

e 1 January 2004 purchased from Citibank Handlowy 1,287 bonds issued by PKN ORLEN with a par
value PLN 10,000, at par purchasing price PLN 9,874.97 in order to allocate free cash.

ORLEN Powiemik is 100% owned by PKN ORLEN S.A.

On 17 December 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN received information that on 12 December
2003 Mr Jacek Strzelecki, Vice-President & CFO of PKN ORLEN, based on an agreement signed with CA
IB Securities S.A. on 8 September, 2003, sold 254,493 (two hundred and fifty four thousand four hundred
and ninety three) PKN ORLEN’s shares through the bank. The price of one share sold by Mr Strzelecki was
equal to PLN 21.90.

The Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced, that on 17 December 2003 it signed a Letter of Intent
with Zaklady Azotowe Pulawy S.A. regarding production of caprolactam and natural gas deliveries. The
contract determines the utilization of PKN ORLEN and Zaklady Azotowe Pulawy S.A. potential, in order to
find production alliances, business and investment relations in the area of caprolactam production and
natural gas deliveries.

On 19 December 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced, that it has concluded a number
of legal transactions, particularly it has entered into certain agreements in connection with provision of
financing (the “Financing Transaction”) by the banking consortium led by Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi, KBC,
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14,

15,

16.

17.

18.

19.

Translation of a document originally issued in Polish

Societe Generale and European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (the “Arranging Banks™) to
Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. (the “Joint-Venture Company”), a joint-venture company of PKN
ORLEN and Basell Europe Holdings B.V. (“BEH").

On 22 December 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN received information, that the number of its
shares held by The Bank of New York increased. According to current report No 81/2003 from 6 November
2003 The Bank of New York possessed 41,974,304 shares constituting 9.99% of votes at the General
Shareholders' Meeting. As of 19 December 2003 The Bank of New York possessed 45,061,314 shares of
PKN ORLEN, authorizing to 45,061,314 votes at the General Shareholders Meeting constituting 10.54% of
share capital and votes at the General Shareholders' Meeting.

The Management Board of PKN ORLEN (“Issuer”) announced, that on 31 December 2003 Issuer
repurchased 3,812,860 series ‘A’ convertible bonds, which were not converted into shares in accordance
with the realization of the management incentive program. Resolution No 8 of Ordinary General
Shareholders Meeting dated 15 May 2000 was the legal basis for the repurchase. The bonds were
repurchased at an issuing price equal to PLN 20.3 for one convertible bond.

The Management Board of PKN ORLEN (“Issuer”) announced, that on 31 December 2003 PKN ORLEN

signed yearly contracts:

1. with BP Polska Spolka z 0.0. The subject of the agreement is sales of gasoline and diesel fuel to the
company BP Polska Sp. z 0.0. in 2004. The estimated value of the contract amounts to PLN 3,342,000
thousand (gross).

2. with SHELL Polska Spolka z 0.0. The subject of the agreement is sales of gasoline and diesel fuel to
the company SHELL Polska Sp. z 0.0. in 2004. The estimated value of the contract amounts to PLN
1,920,000 thousand (gross).

The above-mentioned agreements are ,,significant agreements” as defined in the Ordinance of the Council

of Ministers, of October 16, 2002, regarding the current and periodic information to be disclosed by issuers

of securities as the total value of particular agreements exceeds 10% of Issuer’s equity.

The Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced, that on 7 January 2004 PKN ORLEN and
ConocoPhillips Central and Eastern Europe Holdings B.V. with its registered office in Rotterdam, the
Netherlands (“ConocoPhillips™) signed an agreement whereby they agreed the intention to co-operate in the
privatisation process of Unipetrol a.s., a company operating in the Czech oil sector (“Unipetrol”). The
agreement sets out preliminary terms of the cooperation of the parties, outlines the proposed ultimate
shareholding of the parties in some of the companies of Unipetrol Group and the potential terms of the
acquisition by the parties of some assets of Unipetrol Group, in the event of the PKN successful
participation in the Unipetrol privatisation. The agreement represents an early stage in the discussions
between ConocoPhillips and PKIN ORLEN and does not constitute a legally binding obligation of any party
to enter into any future agreement.

On 9 January 2004 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced, that PKN ORLEN (I) was
informed that on 6 January 2004, Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. with its registered office in Plock (“JV
Company”) - a joint-venture company of PKIN ORLEN and Basell Europe Holdings B.V. with its registered
office in Haarlemmermeer, the Netherlands (,BEH”) - executed an advisory services agreement (“Advisory
Services Agreement”) between PKN ORLEN, the JV Company and BEH; and (IT) PKN ORLEN entered
into the agreement on construction and co-financing of infrastructure facilities with the JV Company
(-OSBL Agreement”).

The Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced, that on 12 January, 2004 PKN ORLEN submitted an
indicative offer (the “Offer”) for the acquisition of 62.99% of the share capital of UNIPETROL, as., a
company operating in the Czech oil sector (“UNIPETROL”), and the purchase of the receivables of Ceska
konsolida¢ni agentura (“CKA™) towards certain entities directly or indirectly owned by UNIPETROL, as
well as for the potential purchase of 9.76% of the share capital of SPOLANA, a.s., currently owned by
CKA (collectively the “CKA Assets”). PKN ORLEN proposed the initial price in the Offer based on the
review of the limited information and data received at this stage. PKN ORLEN expects that in the next
phase of the above-mentioned project, it will have the opportunity to carry out legal, financial,
environmental and technical due diligence which would allow it to properly assess the value of
UNIPETROL and other rights and obligations related to privatization process. The price in the final offer
for the acquisition of UNIPETROL shares and CKA Assets may be, therefore, appropriately adjusted. The
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Offer is part of PKN ORLEN’s strategy to be on the forefront of consolidation process in Central European
downstream. The acquisition of UNIPETROL is one of the next significant steps in PKN’s strategy, as it
represents a perfect opportunity for PKN ORLEN to: (I) to expand its geographic presence, (1I) enter the
attractive Czech market and (I1I) strengthen its position in Southern Poland.

On 27 January the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced, that it issued parent company guarantee
to Shell Deutschland Oil GmbH - to secure the liabilities of ORLEN Deutschland GmbH (PKN ORLEN’s
fuel subsidiary in Germany) arising from ORLEN Deutschland’s fuel trading operations amounting to EUR
40,000 thousand. The guarantee is valid till 31 January 2005. PKN ORLEN holds 100% stake in ORLEN
Deutschiand GmbH.

The Management Board of the Company announced, that it provided on 19 February 2004 with a corporate
guarantee following companies: HGM Roland Minerald! Handel GmbH, Holborn European Marketing
Company Ltd., Louis Dreyfus & Cie Mineraldl GmbH, Mabanaft Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG, Deutsche
BP Aktiengesellschaft totaling to EUR 22m and USD 40m and guaranties in form of guarantee letters to the
banks: Bayerische-Hypo und Vereinsbank AG, Dresdner Bank AG, Commerzbank AG totaling to EUR
15m in order to secure the execution of trade payables of its German subsidiary ORLEN Deutschland
GmbH resulting from its activities. The issued warranties and guaranties will replace current securities
provided by PKN ORLEN on 29 July 2003 (see current report No 60/2003 dated 30 July 2003).
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VIL SHAREHOLDERS POSSESSING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY THROUGH DEPENDENT
ENTITIES AT LEAST 5% OF VOTES AT THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT DATE OF ISSUE OF QUARTERLY REPORT

Share in number of

votes at the GM as Number Change durin Share in number of Number
at the day of of shares theg eriod J votes in % at the of shares as at the
Shareholder . yrt | as at the day of 01 182003 GM as at the day of day of issue

prev:us gll'm :r Y previous quarterly 1 6 02‘ 200 4— issue publication of  publication of this

repe &U%Lca 1on, report publication* o this report** report**
Nafta Polska S.A. 17.63% 74,076,299 0.31)% 17.32% 74,076,299
State Treasury 10.38% 43,633,897 (0.18)% 10.20% 43,633,897
The Bank of New
York (GDR 10.01% 42,048,674 0.76% 10.77% 46,063,106
owner)
Others 61.98% 260,418,267 (0.27% 61.71% 263,935,759
Total 100% 420,177,137 - 100% 427,709,061

* Data as at 31 October 2003
** Data as at 16 February 2004

As a result of realisation of the Management options program 7,531,924 bonds were converted into shares of
PKN ORLEN. On 20 November 2003 District Court in Warsaw registered the capital increase of PKN ORLEN.
As a result of the capital increase the total number of shares amount to 427,709,061, what is described in Note
VI point 2.

On 20 June 2002 the Company was informed, that Kulezyk Holding S.A. and its affiliates, possessed
23,911,206 shares of PKN ORLEN, which constitutes 5.59% of total number of votes at the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

On 4 July 2003 the Company was informed by Commercial Union Mutual Pension Fund BPH CU WBK,
located in Warsaw, that Commercial Union Mutual Pension Fund BPH CU WBK possessed on 1 July 2003
21,533,539 shares of PKIN ORLEN, which constitutes 5.04% of the total number of shares at the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

Stake of the above shareholders (in %) in the share capital of the Company is consistent with proportion in the
number of votes at the General Meeting of Shareholders as at the day of issue of this report.

VIII. CHANGES IN THE COMPANY SHARES POSSESSED BY THE MANAGEMENT BOARD
AND BY THE SUPERVISORY BOARD, ACCORDING TO INFORMATION POSSESSED BY
THE COMPANY

The Company shares possessed by the Management Board and by the Supervisory Board in IV Q 2003:

Number of shares as Number of shares as at the
at the day of last . . day of publication of this
quarterly report Acquired Disposed report**

publication*
Management 254,493 . 254,493 -
Board
Supervisory i i i i
Board

* Dataas at 31 October 2003
** Data as at 16 February 2004

In line with incentive program all bonds acquired by the Management Board have been converted into shares
and sold during the 4Q 2003.
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INFORMATION ON MATERIAL LEGAL ACTIONS CONCERNING THE COMPANY’S OR
ITS DEPENDENT ENTITIES’ LIABILITIES

On 15 November 2002, based on the act on restructuring of certain budget receivables from enterprises,
Rafineria Trzebinia, the Company’s subsidiary, applied for the restructuring of budget receivables
concerning excise duty and VAT for the period from June to December 1998. On 30 December 2002 fiscal
authorities issued a decision on restructuring conditions of payables concerning VAT and excise duty of
total value of PLN 35.3m, stating the restructuring charge in the amount of PLN 5.3m. The charge was paid
in full in January 2003.

As a result of the audit performed by the Tax Audit Office in Krakow, tax allowance for the months
[-X11.1999, 1-XI1.2000 and [-XI1.2001on VAT concerning production of diesel fuel with component
extracted from reprocessed used oil, was questioned. On 22 December 2003 the company received decisions
of the Director of Tax Audit Office in Krakow, which stated the additional VAT liability together with
penalties in the total amount of PLN 79.8m.

As a result of the above decisions, the Management Board of Rafineria Trzebinia, taking into account a
significant interest of the taxpayer and ambiguous regulations regarding the tax allowance on reprocessing
of used oil, applied to the Tax Office in Chrzanow for partial remission of the liability. The application
received a favourable opinion of the Tax Office Jury in Krakow. On 29 December 2003 Rafineria Trzebinia
S.A. paid PLN 11.8m of overdue tax liability covered by the decisions of Tax Audit Office Director. On
31 December 2003 the Head of Tax Office in Chrzanow, after obtaining a positive opinion from Tax Office
Jury in Krakow, issued a decision, in which the remaining liability of PLN 68m was remitted.

In accordance with the Agreement signed on 20 December 2002, Tankpol Sp z 0.0 transferred to PKN
ORLEN due to cession, 40% of shares held in QRLEN PetroTank Sp z 0.0. in exchange for receivables
from Tankpol Sp. z o.0. Final settlement of this transaction should be made after valuation of shares in
ORLEN PetroTank Sp. z 0.0. On 30 October 2003 a legal case was filed against PKN ORLEN as
compensation for PLN 69,898 thousand or return of the ceded shares. On 26 January 2003 Tankpol Sp. z
0.0. modified its claim for repayment of PLN 36,383 thousand or return of the ceded shares. Together with
the claim, Tankpol Sp. z o.0. presented a new valuation of ORLEN Petro Tank Sp. z 0.0. amounting to PLN
232,147 thousand. On 22 January 2003 Tankpol Sp. z 0.0. approached Company with a compromise offer,
stating, that the claim will be revoked if PKN ORLEN pays PLN 32,745 thousand. On 18 February during
the first hearing the court suspended the legal proceeding for the period of three months, in order to allow
parties to reach a compromise.

In the Company’s Management view, based on the independent legal opinion obtained, the final outcome of
the above claim should not have a material impact on the presented financial results.

Due to the public information in relation to the Company’s purchase transactions, the Supervisory Board
has taken actions including requests to audit firms to perform specific test procedures, which were aimed at
verifying the above information, including an analysis of the specified procurement transactions. The
reports on these procedures has been presented to the Supervisory Board for further analyses.
Simultaneously the Management Board filed notifications to the Public Prosecutor’s Office regarding a
suspicion of a commitment of crimes connected with:

— disclosure of confidential information, included in auditors’ reports,
- violation of the Company’s purchase procedures

The final outcome of the above notifications is not known as at the date of the preparation of these financial
statements, However, in the Management’s opinion, there are no circumstances indicating that the above
mentioned matters may materially impact the true and fair presentation of the accompanying unconsolidated
and consolidated condensed financial statements for 12 month period ended 31 December 2003,
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X. INFORMATION ON LEGAL ACTIONS CONCERNING THE COMPANY’S OR ITS
DEPENDENT ENTITIES’ LIABILITIES OR RECEIVABLES ACCOUNTING FOR 10% OR
MORE OF THE COMPANY’S EQUITY

In the period from 1 January to 31 December 2003 the Company was not involved in any legal actions
concerning the Company’s or its dependent entities’ liabilities or receivables accounting for 10% or more of the
Company’s equity.

XL INFORMATION ON UNUSUAL TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED ENTITIES

Within the period covered by these financial statements the Dominant Company concluded a transaction with
BEH concerning contribution in-kind to Basell ORLEN Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0., the transaction is described in
more details in point IV a). Except for the above mentioned there were no unusual transactions with related
entities in the Capital Group during the period from 1 January to 31 December 2003, where the value of the
transaction would exceed EUR 500 thousand.

X1I. INFORMATION ON GUARANTEES OF LOANS GRANTED BY COMPANY OR ITS
SUBSIDIARIES TO OTHER ENTITIES, WHERE THE AMOUNT OF GUARANTEE
ACCOUNTS FOR 10% OR MORE OF THE COMPANY’S EQUITY

In the Capital Group of PKN ORLEN S.A during the period from 1 January to 31 December 2003, the

Dominant Company and its subsidiaries did not grant any sureties of loans, guarantees to any other entities or
subsidiaries, where the amount of surety or guarantee would account for 10% or more of the Company’s equity.

MANAGEMENT BOARD MEMBERS SIGNATURES

----------------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------

Vice-President — Janusz Wisniewski Vice-President - Andrzej Macenowicz

Plock, 24 February 2004
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KOMISJA PAPIEROW WARTOSCIOWYCH I GIELD PKN ORLEN SA
(SECURITIES EXCHANGE COMMISSION) SEC File
00- 950 WARSZAWA PLAC POWSTANCOW WARSZAWY 1 82-5036

Annual report SA-R 2003
{according to § 57. 2 and § 58.3 Council of Ministers Decree dated 16 October 2001 - Journal of Law no 139, item 1569 and
Journal of Law from 2002 no 31 item 280)

(manufacturing, contracting, trading and service industry issuers)

For current period from 01.01.2003 to 31.12.2003

and previous year from 01.01.2002 to 31.12.2002 31 March 2004
(date of submission)

POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN SPOLKA AKCYJINA

(abbreviated legal name)

09-411 PLOCK
........... (postalcode) (Iocamn)
CHEMIKOW : 7
....................... (Street) (number)
48 24 365 28 95 48 24 36540 40 media@orlen.pl
(phone) (fax) (e-mail)

774-00-01-454 610188201 www.orlen.pl

ERNST & YOUNG AUDIT SP. Z 0.0. 29 March 2004
(Auditor) (Date of opinion)
o 91
Extended annual report contains: 8 I ch:g
Auditor’s opinion and report on the financial statement. -
.. SO
Letter of the President of the Management Board 5;‘: Y
Annual ﬁngncial statement -~ r
Introductory notes E Movements in shareholders equity ; £y
Balance sheet Cash flow statement "'"‘"
Profit and loss account Explanatory notes ,: ::{
Management’s commentary (report on activities) :'_: g
4 Opinion on the annual audited financial statement (§ 59. 2 of the Decree) l."“ ;__
PLN thousand EUR thousand ™
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 2003 2002 2003 2002 - - -
I. Net sales 24,629,963 23,891,830 5,538,059 5,372,089
I1. Operating profit 1,172,163 585,261 263,561 131,596
111. Gross profit 1,134,757 616,301 255,151 138,576
1V. Net profit 933,781 382,270 209,961 85,954
V. Net cash flow from operating activities 1,237,747 1,053,410 278,308 236,860
VII. Net cash flow used in investing activities (1,289,776) (668,605) (290,007) (150,336)
V1. Net cash flow used in financial activities 53,229 (404,803) 11,969 (91,020)
VIII. Net cash flow 1,200 (19,998) 270 (4,497)
IX. Total assets 13,697,813 12,590,537 2,903,925 2,669,183
X. Liabilities and provisions for liabilities 5,323,362 5,326,946 1,128,548 1,129,308
XI. Long term liabilities 1,381,612 233,648 292,501 49,533
XiI. Short term liabilities 3,198,660 4,300,823 678,113 911,771
XIII. Shareholders equity 8,374,451 7,263,591 1,775,377 1,539,875
XIV. Share capital 534,636 525,221 113,342 111,346
XV. Number of shares 427,709,061 420,177,137 427,709,061 420,177,137
XV1. Earnings per ordinary share (zl/EUR) 222 0.91 0.50 0.20
XVII, Diluted earnings per ordinary share (z/EUR) - - - -
XVIII Net book value per share (w zZVEUR) 19.58 17.29 4.15 3.66
XIX. Diluted net book value per share (w zVEUR) - - - -
. lar T r) or pai vi r) divi r
zi]):reD&c zl/;du(}c{; ent year) or paid (previous year) dividend pe 0.44 0.14 0.10 0.03

Financial data presented above is recalculated into EURO according to the following rules:
assets and liabilities items on the basis of average exchange rate published as at 31 December 2003 i.e. 4.7170 zloty/EUR;

- profit and loss account items and cash flow statement items on the basis of exchange rate calculated as arithmetic mean of average exchange rates determined by
NBP as at the last day of each month of the twelve months period (1 January 2003 - 31 December 2003) i.e. 4.4474 zloty/EUR.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ OPINION

To the General Shareholders’ Meeting of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A,

1.

We have audited the attached financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003 (format SA-R)
of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. (the “Company”) located in Plock at Chemikow St.7,
containing:

» the introduction to the financial statements,

» the balance sheet as at 31 December 2003 with total assets amounting to 13,697,813 thousand zlotys
(in words thirteen billion, six hundred ninety seven million, eight hundred thirteen thousand zlotys),

e the profit and loss account for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 with a net profit
amounting to 933,781 thousand zlotys (in words nine hundred thirty three million, seven hundred
eighty one thousand zlotys),

o the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December
2003 with a net increase in shareholders’ equity amounting to 1,110,860 thousand zlotys (in words
one billion, one hundred and ten million, eight hundred sixty thousand zlotys),

¢ the cash flow statement for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 with a net cash
inflow amounting to 1,200 thousand zlotys (in words one million, two hundred thousand zlotys) and

¢ the additional notes and explanations.

The format of the attached financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003 (“the attached
financial statements™) is prescribed by the Decree of the Council of Ministers of 16 October 2001 on
current and periodic information provided by issuers of securities (Journal of Law No. 139, item 1569
with further amendments) (“Decree on current and periodic information™).

The truth and fairness of the attached financial statements and the proper maintenance of the accounting
records are the responsibility of the Management Board. Our responsibility was to audit the attached
financial statements and to express an opinion whether, based on our audit, these financial statements
are, in all material respects, true and fair and whether the accounting records that form the basis for their
preparation are, in all material respects properly maintained.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the following regulations being in
force in Poland:

¢ chapter 7 of the Accounting Act, dated 29 September 1994 (the “Accounting Act™),
¢ the auditing standards issued by the National Chamber of Auditors,

in order to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. In particular, the audit included examining, to a large extent on a test basis,
documentation supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The audit also
included assessing the accounting principles adopted and used and significant estimates made by the
Management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of financial statement. We believe our audit
has provided a reasonable basis to express our opinion on the financial statements treated as a whole. !
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4. In our opinion, the attached financial statements, in all material respects:

» present truly and fairly all information material for the assessment of the results of the Company’s
operations for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003, as well as its financial position
as at 31 December 2003;

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles specified in the Accounting Act
referred to above and regulations issued based on that Act, and based on properly maintained
accounting records;

» are in accordance with the Accounting Act referred to above and regulations issued based on that
Act and the Company’s articles of association that affect their content.

5. Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following issues:

a) In accordance with the regulations of the Accounting Act, the Company has presented in the
attached financial statements shares in subsidiaries and associates at cost (adjusted for any
permanent diminution in value). In accordance with the Accounting Act, the Capital Group of Polski
Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. (the “Capital Group”), of which the Company is the parent
company, will prepare consolidated financial statements. The financial results and net assets of the
Capital Group's will significantly differ from the Company’s financial results for the year ended
31 December 2003 and its net assets as at that date.

6. We have read the Management Board Commentary on the Company’s operations for the period from
I January 2003 to 31 December 2003 and the Rules for Preparing Annual Financial Statements
(“Directors’ Report™) and conclude that the information derived from the attached financial statements
reconciles with the financial statements. The information included in the Directors’ Report corresponds
with § 64 prescribed by the Decree on current and periodic information.

Certified Auditor on behalf of

No 9542/7118 Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0.
ul. Emilii Plater 53
00-113 Warszawa
Ident. no. 130

Fukasz Zalicki Tomasz Bieske
Certified Auditor No 9291/6975

Warsaw, 29 March 2004
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GENERAL NOTES

Background

Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spétka Akcyjna (hereinafter the Company) was
incorporated by a Notarial Deed dated 29 June 1993. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Plock, Chemikéw St. 7.

The Company was entered into the Commercial Register kept by District Court in Plock,
Economic and Registry Department, Entry No. RHB 28860 on 26 July 2002.

In accordance with the resolution of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders dated on
19 May 1999, registered in the District Court in Plock on 20 May 1999, the Company
changed its name to Polski Koncern Naftowy Spolka Akcyjna (joint stock company).

In accordance with the resolution of the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
dated on 3 April 2000, registered in the District Court in Plock on 12 April 2000, the
Company changed its name to Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spolka Akcyjna (joint
stock company).

The Company uses NIP number 774-00-01-454 granted on 10 September 1993 and the
REGON statistical number 610188201 granted on 8 June 1993.

On 19 May 1999 General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company adopted a resolution on
merger of the Company with Centrala Produktow Naftowych “CPN” S.A. (“CPN”) by
incorporation of CPN to the Company consistently with Art. 463 point 1 of the Commercial
Code.

On 7 September 1999 CPN was deregistered and the merger became effective.

The Company is the dominant entity of the capital group — the list of related parties is
included in the additional notes and explanations to the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2003 in note 4L.

In accordance with the resolution of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the
Company dated 19 May 1999 as the result of incorporation of CPN, the Company changed
its scope of activities. According to the articles of association resolved on Ordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company dated 19 May 1999 and its recent changes dated
17 April 2003, the Company’s activities include production, trade and services, and in
particular:

e processing of crude oil and manufacturing of oil-derivative (refinery and
petrochemical) products and semi-finished products,

¢ domestic and foreign trade on own account, on commission and as consignee,
including in particular: the trade of crude oil, oil-derivative and other fuel, sale of
motor vehicles, parts and accessories for them, sale of consumer and industrial goods,

o research and development activity, project work, construction and production activities
on own account and as the consignee, in the areas of manufacturing, storage, packaging
and trade in solid, liquid and gaseous oil products, secondary chemical products as well
as transportation: by land, by trail, water and by pipeline,

This is a translation of a document originally issued in the Polish language.
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e transportation activity including land transport, trail transport, water and pipeline
transport,

¢ storage of crude oil and liquid gas, creation and management of oil stock according to
the appropriate regulations,

s services connected to the principal activity, especially:

- land and sea reloading,

- refining of gas and oil including ethylisation, dyeing and blending of components,
e purchase, trade and processing of used lubricant oil and other chemical waste,
¢ manufacturing, transportation and trade in electrical and heating energy,

e overhaul of the appliances used in core activities, especially refinery and
petrochemical appliances, oil storage appliances, oil stations and means of
transportation,

¢  metal production and manufacturing of plastic raw materials
e operation of gas stations, bars, restaurants and hotels,

e capital investment activity, in particular: purchasing and trade of shares and stock in
Polish and foreign trade,

e activities in the area of education, professional schooling and internal human capital
services,

e activities in area of accounting and bookkeeping as well as activities related to data
bases and its processing.

As at 31 December 2003, the Company’s issued share capital amounted to PLN 534,636
thousand. Equity at this day amounted to PLN 8,418,866 thousand.

In accordance with the information obtained from the Company as at 31 December 2003 the
ownership structure of the Company’s issued share capital was as follows:

Number Number Par value . )
of shares of votes of shares 7 of equity
Nafta Polska S.A. 74,076,299 74,076,299 92,595,374 17.32%
State Treasury 43,633,897 43,633,397 54,542,371 10.20%
B
ank of New York 44,464,114 44,464,114 55,580,142 10.40%
(owners GDR)
Other 265,534,751 265,534,751 331,918,439 62.08%
Total 427,709,061 427,709,061 534,636,326 100.00%

On 20 June 2002 the Company was informed, that Kulczyk Holding S.A. and its affiliates,
possessed 23,911,206 shares of PKIN ORLEN S.A, constituting 5.69% (5.59% taking into
consideration increase in the share capital on 20 November 2003) of total number of votes
on the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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On 4 July 2003 the Company was informed, that Commercial Union OFE BPH CU WBK,
possessed 21,533,539 shares of PKN ORLEN S.A., constituting 5.13% (5.04% taking into
consideration increase in the share capital on 20 November 2003) of total number of votes
on the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Movements in the issued share capital of the Company in the financial year were as follows:

Number of Par value of

shares shares
Opening balance 420,177,137 525,221,421
Increase of capital 7,531,924 9,414,905
Closing balance 427,709,061 534,636,326

On 20 November 2003 District Court for capital city of Warsaw registered the increase in
PKN ORLEN share capital by 7,531,924 shares of total par value PLN 9,414.9 thousands.
The capital increase resulted from conversion of bonds into shares as an effect of the
execution of Management Incentive, which was presented in details in point A of
introduction to the financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2003.

Members of the Company’s Management Board as at 29 March 2004 were as follows:

Zbigniew Wrobel - President

Jacek Strzelecki - Vice-President
Slawomir Golonka - Vice-President
Janusz Wisniewski - Vice-President
Andrzej Macenowicz - Vice-President

During the period from 1 January 2003 to 29 March 2004 no changes took places in the
composition of the Management Board.

This is a translation of a document originally issued in the Polish language.
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2.1

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Auditor’s opinion and audit of financial statements

Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z o.0. located in Warsaw, 53 Emilii Plater St., is a certified entity
entered on the list of certified auditors under no 130.

Ernst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. was elected by the Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN S.A.
on 14 May 2003 to audit the Company’s financial statements,

Emst & Young Audit Sp. z 0.0. and the auditor managing the audit meet the conditions, as
defined by art. 66 clause 2 and 3 of the Accounting Act dated September 29, 1994 (uniform
text Journal of Laws No 76, dated 17 of June 2002, item 694 with further amendments)
(“the Act”), enabling them to express an impartial and independent opinion on the financial
statements.

Pursuant to the agreement executed on 10 July 2003 with the Company’s Management
Board, we have audited the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003.

Our responsibility was to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit,
The auditing procedures applied to the financial statements were designed to enable us to
express an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Our procedures did not extend to supplementary information that does not have an impact
on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Based on our audit, we issued an auditor’s opinion dated 29 March 2004, which was as
follows:

“To the General Shareholders’ Meeting of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

1. We have audited the attached financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003
(format SA-R) of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. (the “Company”™) located in
Plock at Chemikow St.7, containing:

¢ the introduction to the financial statements,

o the balance sheet as at 31 December 2003 with total assets amounting to 13,697,813
thousand zlotys (in words thirteen billion, six hundred ninety seven million, eight
hundred thirteen thousand zlotys),

¢ the profit and loss account for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003
with a net profit amounting to 933,781 thousand zlotys (in words nine hundred thirty
three million, seven hundred eighty one thousand zlotys),

¢ the statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the period from 1 January 2003
to 31 December 2003 with anet increase in shareholders’ equity amounting to
1,110,860 thousand zlotys (in words one billion, one hundred and ten million, eight
hundred sixty thousand zlotys),

o the cash flow statement for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003
with anet cash inflow amounting to 1,200 thousand zlotys (in words one million,
two hundred thousand zlotys) and

¢ the additional notes and explanations.

This is a translation of a document originally issued in the Polish language.
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The format of the attached financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003
(“the attached financial statements”) is prescribed by the Decree of the Council of
Ministers of 16 October 2001 on current and periodic information provided by issuers
of securities (Journal of Law No. 139, item 1569 with further amendments) (“Decree on
current and periodic information”).

The truth and fairness of the attached financial statements and the proper maintenance
of the accounting records are the responsibility of the Management Board. Our
responsibility was to audit the attached financial statements and to express an opinion
whether, based on our audit, these financial statements are, in all material respects, true
and fair and whether the accounting records that form the basis for their preparation are,
in all material respects properly maintained.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the following
regulations being in force in Poland:

o chapter 7 of the Accounting Act, dated 29 September 1994 (the “Accounting Act”),
¢ the auditing standards issued by the National Chamber of Auditors,

in order to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. In particular, the audit included examining, to a large extent on a
test basis, documentation supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The audit also included assessing the accounting principles adopted and
used and significant estimates made by the Management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of financial statement. We believe our audit has provided a
reasonable basis to express our opinion on the financial statements treated as a whole.

In our opinion, the attached financial statements, in all material respects:

s present truly and fairly all information material for the assessment of the results of
the Company’s operations for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December
2003, as well as its financial position as at 31 December 2003;

+ have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principles specified in the
Accounting Act referred to above and regulations issued based on that Act, and
based on properly maintained accounting records;

s are in accordance with the Accounting Act referred to above and regulations issued
based on that Act and the Company’s articles of association that affect their content.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following issues:

a) In accordance with the regulations of the Accounting Act, the Company has
presented in the attached financial statements shares in subsidiaries and associates
at cost (adjusted for any permanent diminution in value). In accordance with the
Accounting Act, the Capital Group of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A. (the
“Capital Group”), of which the Company is the parent company, will prepare
consolidated financial statements. The financial results and net assets of the Capital
Group's will significantly differ from the Company’s financial results for the 12
month period ended 31 December 2003 and its net assets as at that date.

We have read the Management Board Commentary on the Company’s operations for
the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 and the Rules for Preparing
Annual Financial Statements (“Directors’ Report”) and conclude that the information

This is a translation of a document originally issued in the Polish language.
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2.2

2.3.

derived from the attached financial statements reconciles with the financial
statements. The information included in the Directors’ Report corresponds with § 64
prescribed by the Decree on current and periodic information.”

We carried out the audit of the Company’s financial statements from 26 January 2004 to
29 March 2004 at the Company’s premises.

Representations provided and availability of data

The Management Board confirmed its responsibility for the truth and fairness of the
financial statements. The Management Board provided us with all financial information,
accounting records and other required documents as well as all necessary explanations.

The Management Board has provided a written representation that:

the information disclosed in the books of account were complete,
all contingent liabilities had been included in the financial statements,
¢ all material events from the balance sheet date to the date of the representation were
disclosed in the financial statements,
and confirmed that the information provided to us was true and fair to the best of the
Management Board’s knowledge and belief, and included all events that could have an
effect on the financial statements.

Financial statements for prior financial year

The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2002 were audited by
Lukasz Zalicki under the evidence number 9542/7118 acting on behalf of Emst & Young
under the evidence number 130. The chartered auditor issued an unqualified opinion on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2002, on 25 March 2003.

The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2002 were approved
by the General Meeting of Shareholders on 24 June 2003 at which meeting the stockholders
resolved to distribute the 2002 net profit as follows:

Dividends for shareholders (PLN 0.14 per share) 58,824,799.18
Supplementary capital 319,445,025.93
Social benefits fund 4,000,000.00

This is a translation of a document originally issued in the Polish language.
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The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2002 together with the
auditor’s opinion, the excerpt from the resolution approving the financial statements, the
excerpt from the resolution on the distribution of profit and the Directors’ Report were filed
on 4 July 2003, in the National Court Register.

The introduction to the financial statements, balance sheet as of 31 December 2002, profit
and loss account, statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flow statement for
the year ended 31 December 2002 together with the auditor’s opinion, the excerpt from the
resolution approving the financial statements and the excerpt from the resolution on the
distribution of profit were published on 29 December 2003, in Monitor Polski B no 881.

The closing balances, as at 31 December 2002, were correctly brought forward to accounts
as opening balances at 1 January 2003.

This is a translation of a document originally issued in the Polish language.
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ANALYTICAL REVIEW

Basic data and financial ratios

Presented below are selected financial ratios indicating the economic or financial
performance of the Company for the years 2001 — 2003. The ratios were calculated on the
basis of the financial information included in the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2002 and 31 December 2003.

003 2002 2001
Total assets 13,697,813 12,590,537 11,982,186
Shareholders’ funds 8,374,451 7,263,591 6,932,385
Net profit/ loss 933,781 382,270 260,860
Return on assets 6.8% 3.0% 2.2%
Net profit
Total assets
Return on equity 12.9% 5.5% 3.9%
Net profit
Shareholders’ Funds at the beginning of
period
Profit margin 3.8% 1.6% 1.1%
Net profit
Sales
Liquidity I 1,52 1,00 1,12
Current assets
Short-term creditors
Liquidity III 0,02 0,01 0,03
cash
Short-term creditors
Debtors days 20 18 18
Trade debtors x 365
Net sales
Creditors days 39 41 28

Trade creditors x 365

Costs of sold goods for resale + cost of sold
products
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8



Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A,
Long form auditors’ report supplementing the opinion on the financial statement
for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in thousands PLN)

3.2

3.3

(o
=3
{5
3
=3
>
N
(.3
>
<
ot

Stock turnover 77 77 55

Stock x 365
Cost of sold goods for resale + cost of sold
products

Stability of financing 76.0% 65.3% 72.6%

Equity + provisions + long-term creditors
Total liabilities and equity

Debt ratio 38.9% 42.3% 42.1%

(Total liabilities — shareholders’ funds) x
100

Total assets

Rate of inflation:

yearly average 0.8% 1.9% 5.5%
December to December 1.7% 0.8% 3.6%

Comments on changes in financial ratios
Trends in the financial ratios were as follows:
Profitability ratios

In 2003 all profitability indices have increased in comparison to 2002: ROA from 3.0% to
6.8%, ROE from 5.5% to 12.9% and profit margin from 1.6% to 3.8%.

Liquidity ratios

Liquidity I index has decreased in 2003 by 0.52 in comparison with 2002. Its level in 2001,
2002 and 2003 was equal to 1.12, 1.00 and 1,52 respectively. During year 2003 liguidity III
index increased by 0.01 compared to 2002 and amounted to 0.03, 0.01 and 0.02 in 2001,
2002 and 2003 respectively.

Efficiency ratios

Debtors turnover in the year 2003 increased by 2 days as compared to 2002 and amounted
to 20 days. The creditors turnover ratio in 2003 amounted to 39 days and decreased by
2 days compared to 2002, when it reached the level of 41 days.

Stock turnover ratio in 2003 and 2002 amounted to 77 days.
Stability of financing

Gearing ratio increased from 65.3% in 2002 to 76.0% in 2003.
Debt ratio

Debt ratio in year 2003 decreased to the level of 38.9% in comparison to 2002 when it
reached the level of 42.3%.

Going concern

This is a translation of a document originally issued in the Polish language.
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Nothing came to our attention during the audit that caused us to believe that the Company is
not able to continue as a going concern for at least the twelve months subsequent to
31 December 2003 as a result of an intended or involuntary closure or a substantial
limitation of the current operations.

In Note B in the introduction to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2003, the Management Board indicated that the financial statements were prepared on
a going concern basis, being for a period of at least twelve months subsequent to
31 December 2003 and that there are no circumstances indicating a threat to its continuation
as a going concern.
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I1.

1.1

DETAILED REPORT
ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Management Board is responsible for the completeness and accuracy of the books of
accounts as well as for establishing and maintaining the Company’s internal control system
and preventing and discovering any irregularities.

In fulfilling this responsibility, the Management Board is required to make estimates and
apply judgment to assess the expected benefits and costs relating to the policies and
procedures that make up the Company’s internal control systemni.

Internal control systems must provide management with reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition and
that transactions are executed in accordance with management’s authorisation and recorded
properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the Act.

Limitations inherent in any internal control system may allow certain errors or irregularities
to occur and not be detected.

Material weaknesses are those weaknesses, where the design or operations of one or more
elements of the internal control system do not ensure the reduction of risk to a relatively low
level, such that errors or irregularities, which might prove material in relation to the audited
financial statements, will occur and will not be discovered and corrected on a timely basis,
by employees in the normal course of their duties.

Applied Accounting System

The Company’s accounts are kept using the computer system SAP R/3 in the Company’s
office. The Company has got up-to-date documentation referred to in Article 10 of the Act
including the chart of accounts approved by the Company’s Management Board.

During our audit we have not noticed any material irregularities in the books of accounts
which were not subsequently corrected and could have a material effect on the audited
financial statements. These would include matters related to:

o the reliability of the accounting records, the absence of errors in the accounting
records and trail of entries in the accounting records,

o the fact whether business transactions are supported by documents,

o the correctness of opening balances based on approved prior year figures,

e consistency between the accounting records, source documentation and the
financial statements,

e the requirements on the safeguarding of accounting records and storing the
accounting books and the financial statements.
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1.2

Internal control

The purpose of our audit was to express an opinion on the financial statements. As the audit
procedures are performed on a test basis, irregularities in the accounting records or the
financial statements, or fraud and abuse may occur and be left undetected.

In planning and performing our audit of the Company’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2003, we considered its internal control system in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control system. Our consideration of
the internal control system would not necessarily disclose all deficiencies in the system that
might be considered to be material weaknesses.

During the financial year the Company’s procedures and purchase transactions were subject
to specific analyses requested by the Supervisory Board. As a result of performed analyses
areas for significant improvements were identified and presented to the Management Board
and the Supervisory Board.

In 2003 the Company extended the internal procedure of identification of transactions with
related parties containing among others representation of Management Board and
Supervisory Board Members. As of the date of preparation of this report, one of the
Members of the Supervisory Board has not complied fully with the extended procedure
mentioned above,

During our audit we did not detect any irregularities in the internal control system, as
defined in p. II.1 above, which could have had a material effect on the audited financial
statements, including access control over data and the processing of the data by the
Company’s computer system.

ASSETS

Details of the Company’s assets are presented in the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2003.

Fixed assets were last counted during the year 2003 on a perpetual count system basis. The
Company prepares the counting plan at yearly intervals. According to the plan each fixed
asset is counted at least once every fourth year, with compliance of the Act. Any differences
between the balance of fixed assets based on the accounting records and the figure arrived at
during the count were adjusted in the accounting records in the year 2003.

Stocktaking of raw materials, semi-finished products, finished products and goods for resale
was performed during the year 2003 on a perpetual stocktaking system basis. Stocktaking of
work in progress was performed on 31 December 2003. Any differences between the
balance per stock count and the books were explained and appropriately adjusted.

The balance of the trade debtors was confirmed by the Company as at 31 October 2003.
Confirmations received by the Company account for 85.2 % of the total of trade debtors as
at the date of confirmation. All differences between debtor confirmations received and the
balances in the accounting records were appropriately adjusted.

This is a translation of a document originally issued in the Polish language.
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The ageing of trade debtors is as follows:

Up to 3 months 1,156,531
From 3 to 6 months 56,868
From 6 to 12 months 39
Over 12 months 405
Overdue 289,651
Trade debtors gross 1,503,494
Provision (175,142)
Trade debtors net 1,328,352
LIABILITIES

Details of the Company’s liabilities are presented in the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2003.

Trade creditors balances were confirmed by the Company as at 31 October 2003.
Confirmations received by the Company account for 85.3% of the total of the trade creditors
as at the date of confirmation. Any differences between confirmations received and the
balances in the accounting records were appropriately adjusted.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Details of the profit and loss account are included in the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2003.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The introduction to the financial statements and the additional information and notes to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003, are in all material aspects
consistent with the requirements of the Act, including art. 45 of the Act.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

We have read the Management Board Commentary on the Company’s operations for the
period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 and the Rules for Preparing Annual
Financial Statements (“Directors’ Report”) and concluded that the information derived from
the attached financial statements reconciles with the financial statements. The information
included in the Directors’ Report corresponds with § 64 prescribed by the Decree of the
Council of Ministers of 16 October 2001 on current and periodic information provided by
issuers of securities (Journal of Law No, 139, item 1569 with further amendments) (“Decree
on current and periodic information™).
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CONFORMITY WITH LAW AND REGULATIONS

Due to the public information in relation to the Company’s purchase transactions, the
Supervisory Board has taken actions including requests to audit firms to perform specific
test procedures, which were aimed at verifying the above information, including an analysis
of the specified procurement transactions. The reports on these procedures has been
presented to the Supervisory Board for further analyses. Simultaneously, the Management
Board filed notifications to the Public Prosecutor’s Office regarding a suspicion of
a commitment of crimes connected with:

o disclosure of confidential information, included in auditors’ reports,
e violation of the Company’s purchase procedures.

The final outcome of the above notifications is not known as at the date of the preparation of
this report.

However, in the Management’s opinion, there are no circumstances indicating that the
above mentioned matters may materially impact the true and fair presentation of the
accompanying financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2003.

Apart from the above mentioned issue, we have obtained a written representation letter from
the Management Board that no laws or regulations were violated during the financial year.

WORK OF THE EXPERT

During our audit we have taken into account the results of the work of the following
independent experts:

o Actuary — (Deloitte & Touche) — valuation of prospective liabilities other than salaries
and wages as of 31 December 2003,

o WS Atkins — expert company which performed in March 2004 assessment of
prospective environmental expenses related to land reclamation.

Certified auditor on behalf of

No 9542/7118 Ermnst & Young Sp. z 0.0.
ul. Emilii Plater 53
00-113 Warszawa
Ident. no. 130

Pukasz Zalicki Tomasz Bieske
Certified auditor
No 9291/6975

Warsaw, 29 March 2004
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Below presented PKN ORLEN Annual Report for 2003 consists of:

o President’s Letter
¢ PKN ORLEN financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003

e Management Board Commentary on Business Operations of PKN
ORLEN for 2003

e Auditor’s opinion and report on financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2003




Letter from the President
Dear Ladies and Gentlemen,

In 2003, PKN ORLEN expended considerable effort and performed serious
undertakings and investments, which brought the expected results. The efforts and
commitment of our management staff as well as the leveraging of the favourable
market conditions translated into the best financial performance in our history. Our
non-consolidated net profit was PLN 933.8m. When published, the data boosted the
share price of PKN ORLEN to the record-high level. We take great pride in such a

positive assessment of our performance by the investors.

Last year was favourable for the refining industry although, despite the war in Iraq,
the oil prices rose by a mere 15.3% (to USD/b 28.86). The refining margin reached a
very satisfactory level of USD 3.06/b (twice as high as in 2002). The Ural/Brent oil
price differential, which is another material factor in our profitability, went up by 45.5%
(to USD 1.76/b)

In 2003, Poland was one of the most rapidly developing countries in Europe. It
recorded a 3.7% growth of the GDP, which translated into an almost 6% growth in
fuel consumption and a 16% increase in new car sales. The positive macroeconomic
data for the first quarter of 2004 offers positive outlook.

One of the landmark events in 2003 was the launch of the industry consolidation
process in this part of Europe by PKN ORLEN. The agreement on cooperation with
MOL, a Hungarian oil concern, opens way to closer collaboration and later to equity
amalgamation of the two companies. We also entered the privatisation bid for the
Czech Unipetrol. All these steps were taken in pursuance of our strategic objective —
to establish a strong position of PKN ORLEN as a foundation for a refining and
petrochemical concern of Central Europe.

To create such a strong international player, we must make the most of our potential,
though. That is why we took the effort to prepare and implement the long-term Value
Based Management project, which led to formulating a strategy and transforming it
into specific objectives for each management centre — from the Management Board

to the middle management staff. The VBM has already been implemented in the



budget, reporting, investment assessment, management-by-objectives, and
shareholder communication systems. In this way, the Management Board gained an
effective tool to define management objectives, make correct assessment of
employees’ performance and provide them with appropriate motivation. The senior
and middle management staff may verify which actions will affect the shareholder
value and how, so that the most effective solution may be selected. That is why the
communication with our shareholders can be based on the same assessment criteria,
which have been known and applied on the developed markets for many years now.
Our programme comprises five major elements:

s Employment rightsizing,

o Cost cutting,

» Reorganisation, modernisation and expansion in the retail segment,

* Increased use of processing capacities at our refinery (including development

of the petrochemical part), and

e Reorganisation and sale of assets of our non-core businesses.
With a view to achieving the goal of doubling the Company’s value by 2006 through
increased efficiency of PKN ORLEN and its Group, in 2003 we consistently
implemented individual elements of the programme. The implementation of the
Comprehensive Cost Cutting Programme, which began in July, brought measurable
financial benefits to the Company in 2003. Moreover, last year saw creation of an
entire implementation infrastructure and auxiliary programmes. Our cost-cutting
programme is fairly ambitious — it provides for savings of PLN 800m annually.
However, with such highly motivated and devoted management staff, we are
definitely closer to fulfilling this objective. The programme conveys a message to the
entire team that there is a necessity to take up serious challenges and perform the
assigned tasks in our daily activities. The entire Company recorded reduction of costs
by PLN 144m, which is in line with the projections made at the beginning of 2003.
one of the supporting programmes, namely the Voluntary Retirement Scheme, is also
producing material results (over 400 declarations received), while the Reorganisation
of the Regional Structures Plan is ready for implementation. The initiatives pursued in
the area of sales, procurement and logistics confirmed that there is further scope for
efficiencies. We disposed of PKN ORLEN'’s 25 non-core companies, thus the staffing

levels were reduced by 1,500 employees. The total headcount at the concern went



down by 2,700. In 2004, further 21 companies will be sold and the employment will
decline by 1,600 personnel in the ORLEN Group and by 500 in PKN ORLEN. We
completed the performance of the rebranding of our own service stations and now we
prepare to re-brand the franchised stations.

In line with my declarations made after | took office two years ago and the plan which
| outlined to you at that time, we pursued the strategy of diversification of our
business and expansion in Poland. We established a joint venture with Basell, a
global leader and a major player in the petrochemical sector. The joint venture is one
of the largest investment projects in the Polish economy, with the estimated value of
EUR 500m. Basell Orlen Polyolefins was awarded the 2003 European Petrochemical
Transaction of the Year title by the Project Finance magazine.

Despite the fact that the tender for the privatisation of the Lotos Group was
unsuccessful, we still believe that PKN ORLEN is the best partner for this group and

we will continue our efforts aimed at implementing this concept.

In 2003, the rationale behind our first major transaction on the international market
was confirmed. Almost 500 of our service stations successfully operated on the
German market. Despite investment efforts put into the rebranding of the stations into
ORLEN and STAR, the service stations became profitable already in the first year of
operations, although our conservative plan had assumed less optimistic financial
results. Thanks to the operation of the network of service stations in Germany, in
2004 we sold additional 400,000 tonnes of fuel in Poland as a result of swap
transactions with international concerns, which will bring, in line with the promise
made last year, synergies estimated at approx. EUR 10m. These actions show that
apart from the work aimed at increasing the efficiency of PKN ORLEN, we also know
how to execute and implement international projects. Currently we are working on

next projects.

The year 2003 proved that the ORLEN shares are a good investment. The
restructuring programmes vyielded the anticipated results and ORLEN has a strong
and established position on the market. The execution of the M&A plans in Central
Europe will further boost the market value of our Company. The Warsaw Stock

Exchange enjoys an upward trend in line with the growth of GDP, and Poland's




accession to the European Union should provide another stimulus for further growth
of the economy. As a result of a combination of these factors — the achieved increase
in the efficiency of our operations, growth of the domestic economy and satisfactory
margins — we steadily pursue our aim, which is the doubling of the economic value of
our PKN ORLEN by 2006.

The record-breaking 2003 results allow me to declare that the Management Board
will put a motion to the General Shareholders Meeting to pay out a 20% dividend,
which means a nearly four-fold increase compared with the 2002 dividend. Thus, |
am convinced that thanks to both the high dividend and the over 50% increase in the
ORLEN share price over the last year, the entire ORLEN community will find the year
of 2003 extremely successful.

| would like to thank all the employees whose efforts contributed to the achievement
of our historical success. It is to all of us a source of satisfaction and something to be
proud of. | would also like to thank all the shareholders who trusted the Company’s

management and may now enjoy the results of their investments.

We do not take the favourable macroeconomic conditions for granted; therefore, we
focus our efforts on improving the Company's efficiency and reducing the costs of
operations. | am convinced that in 2004 we will be able to deliver results comparable
to those recorded in 2003, and the investment in the ORLEN shares will again be
profitable.

Zbigniew Wrobel

President of the Management Board
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INTRODUCTORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

A. Name, address, main operating segments of the Company and periods for which the financial
statements are presented

Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spolka Akcyjna (further refereed to as “Company”, “PKN ORLEN”) is
located in Plock, Chemikow Street 7. The Company was formed through transformation of a State-owned
enterprise into a joint stock company, on the basis of the Public Notary Act of 29 June 1993 as Mazowieckie
Zaklady Rafineryjne i Petrochemiczne “Petrochemia Plock” Spolka Akcyjna (joint stock company). It was
registered in the District Court in Plock on 1 July 1993 under the registration number RHB VIII 780. On 26 July
2002 changes in earlier registration under number KRS 28860 in the registration of the District Court for capital
city of Warsaw in Warsaw were introduced.

On 19 May 1999 Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company adopted a resolution on merger of
the Company with Centrala Produktow Naftowych “CPN” S.A. (“CPN”) by incorporation of CPN to the
Company. On 7 September 1999 CPN was deregistered and the merger became effective.

In accordance with the resolution of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders dated 19 May 1999,
registered in the District Court in Plock on 20 May 1999, the Company changed its name to Polski Koncern
Naftowy Spolka Akcyjna (joint stock company).

In accordance with the resolution of the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders dated 3 April 2000,
registered in the District Court in Plock on 12 April 2000, the Company changed its name to Polski Koncern
Naftowy ORLEN Spolka Akcyjna (joint stock company).

Structure of share capital of the Company on 31 December 2003 is as follows:

Issue Number of shares Nominal value (PLN)
Series A 336,000,000 420,000,000.00
Series B 6,971,496 8,714,370.00
Series C 77,205,641 96,507,051.25
Series D 7,531,924 9,414,905.00
Total 427,709,061 534,636,326.25

On 15 May 2000 Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of PKN ORLEN took a resolution concerning
capital increase by issuance of 11,344,784 series D ordinary bearer shares. These shares are to be acquired by
bearers of series A bonds convertible to shares with exclusion of pre-emptive rights of the owners of the existing
shares. The issuance of the shares was conducted within the Motivation Program presented in Note 12.

During the year 2003 7,531,924 bonds were converted into shares as a effect of the execution of the
management options program. On 20 November 2003 District Court for capital city of Warsaw registered the
increase in PKIN ORLEN share capital. As a result of that increase the total number of shares amounts to
427,709,061.
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In accordance with the resolution of the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company dated
19 May 1999 as the result of incorporation of CPN by the Company, the scope of activities of the Company was
changed. According to the articles of association dated 19 May 1999 and its last changes dated 17 April 2003,
the Company’s activities include production, trade and services, in particular:

e processing of crude oil and manufacturing of oil-derivative (refinery and petrochemical) products and semi-
finished products,

o domestic and foreign trade on own account, on commission and as consignee, including in particular: the
trade of crude oil, oil-derivative and other fuel, sale of motor vehicles, parts and accessories for them, sale
of consumer and industrial goods,

e research and development activity, project work, construction and production activities on own account and
as the consignee, in the areas of manufacturing, storage, packaging and trade in solid, liquid and gaseous oil
products, secondary chemical products as well as transportation: by land, by rail, water and by pipeline,

e transportation activity including land transport, rail transport, water and pipeline transport,

o storage of crude oil and liquid gas, creation and management of oil stock according to the appropriate
regulations,

e services connected to the principal activity, especially:
- land and sea reloading,
- refining of gas and oil including ethylisation, dyeing and blending of components,

e purchase, trade and processing of used lubricant oil and other chemical waste,
¢ manufacturing, transportation and trade in electrical and heating energy,

* overhaul of the appliances used in core activities, especially refinery and petrochemical appliances, oil
storage appliances, oil stations and means of transportation,

» metal production and manufacturing of plastic raw materials,
e operation of gas stations, bars, restaurants and hotels,

e capital investment activity, in particular: purchasing and trade of shares and stock in Polish and foreign
trade,

e activities in the area of education, professional schooling and internal human capital services.

e activities in area of accounting and bookkeeping as well as activities related to data bases and its
processing.

The activity is designated by Code PKD 2320 (Polish Activity Classification) — processing of crude oil. The
Company runs a business within segments of production and distribution of crude oil products and in chemical
segment.

The Company is the biggest refinery and producer of petrochemicals in Poland and after the incorporation of
CPN, the leading distributor of motor fuels in Poland.

Within the basic activity of the Company there are two business segments: refining and chemical.
The Refinery Segment consists of crude oil processing and wholesales and retail sales of refinery products
comprising mainly fuels. The Chemical Segment comprises production and sales of petrochemicals.
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The composition of the Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN as of 31 December 2003 was the following:

- Maciej Gierej - President of the Supervisory Board

- Jan Waga - Vice-President of the Supervisory Board

- Orest Nazaruk — Secretary of the Supervisory Board

- Edward Grzywa - Member of the Supervisory Board

- Krzysztof Kluzek - Member of the Supervisory Board

- Andrzej Kratiuk - Member of the Supervisory Board

- Ryszard Lawniczak - Member of the Supervisory Board

- Kirzysztof Szlubowski - Member of the Supervisory Board
- Jacek Bartkiewicz - Member of the Supervisory Board

During the year 2003 and after the balance sheet date i.e. until the day of preparation of these financial
statements the following changes in composition of the Supervisory Board took place:

On 14 February 2003 Jozef Wozniakowski resigned from the position of the member of the Supervisory Board
of the Company. Jozef Wozniakowski was appointed to the position of Under Secretary in the Ministry of State
Treasury.

On 25 March 2003 Jacek Bartkiewicz was appointed to Supervisory Board of the Company by the Ministry of
State Treasury. Simultaneously, Grzegorz Mroczkowski — until then the Secretary of the Supervisory Board of
the Company — was dismissed.

On 17 April 2003 Orest Nazaruk was appointed to Supervisory Board of the Company by Extraordinary
Shareholders Meeting.

On 1 March 2004 Jacek Bartkiewicz was dismissed from the position of Member of the Supervisory Board of
the Company by the Ministry of State Treasury as a result of his resignation. Simultaneously, Grzegorz
Mroczkowski was appointed to the Supervisory Board of the Company.

The composition of the Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN as of the day of preparation of the financial
statements was the following:

- Maciej Gierej - President of the Supervisory Board

- Jan Waga - Vice-President of the Supervisory Board

- Orest Nazaruk — Secretary of the Supervisory Board

- Edward Grzywa - Member of the Supervisory Board

- Kirzysztof Kluzek - Member of the Supervisory Board

- Andrzej Krativk - Member of the Supervisory Board

- Ryszard Lawniczak - Member of the Supervisory Board

- Krzysztof Szlubowski - Member of the Supervisory Board
- Grzegorz Mroczkowski - Member of the Supervisory Board

The composition of the Management Board of PKN ORLEN as of 31 December 2003 and as of the day of
preparation of the financial statements was the following:

- Zbigniew Wrobel - President of the Management Board, General Director,

- Slawomir Golonka - Vice-President of the Management Board, Sales Director,

- Andrzej Macenowicz - Vice-President of the Management Board, Human Resources and Management
Systems Director,

- Jacek Strzelecki - Vice-President of the Management Board, Chief Financial Officer,

- Janusz Wisniewski - Vice-President of the Management Board, Production and Development Director.




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

B. Format and general rules of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements were prepared in compliance with the Polish Accounting Standards (“PAS”) defined by
the amended Accounting Act of 29 September 1994 (Journal of Law No 76, pos. 694, year 2002, “Accounting
Act”) and the Decree of the Council of Ministers of 16 October 2001 on type, form and scope of current and
periodic information and published by issuers of securities (Journal of Law No 139, pos. 1569 with further
changes, the “Decree”) and covers the period from 1 January till 31 December 2003,

The financial statements are prepared for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 while the
comparable data comprises: for the balance sheet and balance sheet explanatory notes data as of 31 December
2002, for profit and loss account, cash flow statement and explanatory notes — data for the period from 1 January
2002 to 31 December 2002.

The accounting rules applied for financial statements for periods beginning in year 2003 and for comparable
referring to 2002 are presented in point C of the introduction to the financial statements.

The financial statements were prepared under assumption that the Company will continue as a going concern for
foreseeable future, being period not shorter than 12 months subsequent to 31 December 2003. As of the date of
authorisation of the financial statements the Management Board states that there are no facts or circumstances,
indicating any threat of Company’s continuation as a going concern.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003 were prepared in compliance with the
regulations of the Accounting Act binding as at 31 December 2003. The regulations of act dated 12 December
2003 on changes in Corporate Code and other regulations (Journal of Law No 299, pos. 2276 — “changes”)
effective from 14 January 2004 are binding for financial statements prepared for periods starting in 2004. The
act includes an option of adopting these regulations to financial statements prepared for the year ended
31 December 2003. The Company has not taken advantage of this possibility and has not applied above changes
in these financial statements.

C. Description of principal accounting policies

The financial statements were prepared on the historical cost basis concept except for the following items:

- fixed assets (Note 2),
- financial instruments (Note 9 and Note 44).

Accounting polices adopted by the Company are presented below:
Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are recognised if it is probable that in the future they will bring economic benefits, which
can be attributed directly to these assets. Initially intangible fixed assets are presented at the purchase price or at
manufacturing cost. Subsequently, the intangible fixed assets are valued at the purchase price or at
manufacturing cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Intangible fixed assets are amortised
using straight-line method over their estimated economic life. Amortisation rates resulting from tax regulations
are used only if they correspond with the economic life of the intangible fixed assets. The correctness of applied
periods and depreciation rates are verified at regular intervals, at least at the end of the financial year, and any
necessary adjustments to amortisation charges are made in subsequent periods. Typical amortisation rates
applied in reference to intangible fixed assets:

Licences, patents and similar assets 7-50%
Computer software 10 - 50%
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Research and development costs

Expenses on research are treated as costs at the moment when they are incurred. Costs of completed
development projects conducted for own needs, incurred before the production is commenced or technology is
applied, are treated as intangible fixed assets, if:
e product or technology of production is clearly set, and related to the costs of development are reliably
determined,
e technical usefulness has been confirmed and properly documented and on this basis the entity decided
to manufacture the products or to apply the technology,
o the costs of completed research will be covered — according to estimations — by sales of the products or
application of the technology
The period of amortisation of development costs does not exceed 5 years.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, excluding land and real estate classified as investments, are stated at purchase price or
manufacturing cost subject to revaluation less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. At the moment
of disposal or liquidation of a fixed asset the purchase price or manufacturing cost and its accumulated
depreciation are removed from books and any profit or loss on its disposal is presented in income statement.
Land is valued at purchase price less impairment losses.

Costs incurred after a fixed asset is put into operation, such as: overhauls and maintenance influence financial
result of the reporting period in which they were incurred. If it is possible to prove that the incurred costs
increased the future economic benefits resulting from ownership of the fixed asset exceed the benefits
previously assumed, the incurred costs increase the initial value of the fixed asset.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful economic lives.
Depreciation rates resulting from tax regulations are used only if they correspond with the economic life of the
fixed assets. The correctness of applied periods and depreciation rates are verified at regular intervals, which
results in proper adjustments of depreciation charges in subsequent periods.

Typical depreciation rates applied to tangible fixed assets are as follows:

Buildings and constructions 1.5% - 10%
Plant and machinery 4% - 30%
Transportation vehicles 6% - 20%
Other tangible fixed assets 8.5% - 25%

Low-value assets of estimated useful life below 1 year and cost less than PLN 3.5 thousand are fully expensed
when brought into usage.

The impairment losses on a fixed asset, which previously was subject to revaluation, are deducted from the
revaluation reserve attributed to given fixed asset. In case the impairment loss exceeds the revaluation reserve
attributed to this fixed asset, the difference is expensed in the reporting period in which the impairment loss was
recognised.

Acquired perpetual leasehold of land and acquired cooperative title to premises are recorded as fixed assets and
depreciated over their economic life.

The Company does not recognise perpetual leasehold of land acquired based on administrative decisions in
previous periods due to the fact that the historical value of such right cannot be reliably determined.

Construction in progress
Construction in progress is recorded at total costs directly attributable to its purchase or manufacture less

impairment charges. Construction in progress includes also materials purchased for construction in progress.
Construction in progress is not depreciated until it is completed and put into operation.
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Financial lease
Assets used under lease, tenancy agreements or other agreements complying with the criteria set by the
Accounting Act are treated as fixed assets and presented at lower of the two: fair value of the leased asset at the

beginning of the lease contract and current value of minimal lease payments.

Assets leased out, tenancy agreements or other agreements complying with the criteria set by the Accounting
Act are treated as long term receivables and presented at the amount of net lease investment.

Real estate investments
Real estate investments may comprise land and real estate, purchased in order to bring benefits such as rent or
increase in real estate value. Real estate used to earn the above mentioned economic benefits but not purchased

for that purpose are treated as fixed assets. Real estate investments are valued according to the fair value.

Investments in subordinates

Shares in subordinates are presented in unconsolidated financial statements at cost of purchase less impairment
losses. In the consolidated financial statements material subordinates are fully consolidated or accounted for
under equity method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the net realisable value being the lower of purchase price or manufacturing cost and net
selling price. Different types of inventories are valued using weighted average method in a following manner:

Raw materials: Purchase cost
Semi-finished products and work in progress::  Cost of manufacture
Finished goods: Cost of manufacture
Goods for resale: Purchase cost

Indirect costs included in manufacturing costs comprise among others: the part of fixed, indirect production
costs, which correspond with level of normal operating capacity utilisation.

The net realisable value is determined as possible to obtain, as of the balance sheet date, selling price less VAT
and excise, less any rebates, discounts and any other similar decreases in value and costs spent on making the
item available for sale and enabling the sale.

Inventories that lost their economic usefulness are accounted for as costs.

Receivables
Receivables are stated at amount due less allowances. Allowances are recognised either based on the analysis of
possibility of collection of receivables from individual debtors or when the contractor goes into bankruptcy or

liquidation,

Allowances for bad debts are treated as other operating or financial costs — depending on the kind of the
receivables, to which the allowance refers.

Written-off, overdue and bad debts diminish the previously made allowances for their value.

Written-off, overdue and bad debts for which no allowances were made or which were not fully allowed for, are
treated as other operating costs or financial costs.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and other cash assets include cash on hand and cash in banks, cash in transit and other cash assets. Cash
includes assets in form of domestic currency and foreign currencies. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at
nominal value.

Prepayments and deferred costs

Deferred costs are expenses relating to a period later than that in which they were incurred. Such deferred costs
mainly include the following: cost of excise duty (concerning inventory of goods), cost of catalysts, costs of
insurarce, cost of advertising concerning patronage agreements and leasing costs.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are presented and valued in accordance with Decree of the Minister for Finance dated
12 December 2001 on detailed rules of recognition, valuation methods, scope of disclosure and way of
presentation of financial instruments (“Decree on financial instruments™).

Financial instruments are classified into the following categories:

a) held-for-trade financial assets and liabilities,
b) loans granted and own receivables,

¢) financial assets held to maturity,

d) financial assets available for sale.

Short term financial assets held-for-trade are treated as assets acquired principally for the purpose of generating
economic benefit from short-term changes in price and fluctuations of other market factors or short maturity of
the acquired instrument, and other financial assets too, irrespective for intentions, which lead to conclusion of
the contract, if they constitute an element of portfolio of similar financial assets, the realisation probability of
intended economic benefits in a short time is considerable.

Current financial assets or financial liabilities held for trade comprise financial derivatives, except when an
entity recognises concluded contracts as hedging instruments.

Financial assets arisen directly due to cash transfer to the other party of the contract, providing that the contract
meets requirements determined in proper paragraphs of decree on financial instruments are treated as loans
granted and own receivables, irrespective of their maturity.

Financial assets not classified as loans granted and own receivables, for which the concluded contracts
determine the maturity of nominal value and right to obtain at set dates economic benefits, for example, interests
of constant or determinable amount, providing that the entity intends and is able to hold the assets until maturity,
are classified as held-to-maturity financial assets.

Other financial assets, not meeting requirements classifying them into categories enumerated in points a) to c)
are treated as financial assets available for sale.

Financial assets are carried at their fair value (without any deduction for transaction costs which the entity
would incur in case of selling the assets) excluding:

a) loans granted and own receivables not available for sale,
b) financial assets held to maturity,

¢) financial assets for which market price set on regulated active market does not exist or for which it is
unworkable to measure their fair value reliably,

d) hedged financial assets.
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Financial assets not valued at their fair value are valued in the following manner:

* Jloans granted and own receivables, excluding those held for trading - at the amortised cost, estimated by
using effective interest rate regardless if the entity is going to held it until maturity or not,

» financial assets, for which the maturity is set - at adjusted purchase price estimated by using effective
interest rate,

= financial assets, for which the maturity is not set - at the purchase price.

Financial liabilities are valued at the amortised cost, excluding financial liabilities held-for-trade and derivatives,
which are stated at fair value.

Derivatives and embedded derivatives

Derivatives possessed by the Company, which are not accounted for as hedging instruments are classified as
short term assets and carried at fair value, with any changes to their fair value charged to income statement.
Derivatives are among others: forward and futures contracts, options and swap contracts.

An embedded derivatives are separated from the host contracts and accounted for as a derivatives if all of the
following conditions are met:

s the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related to the
economic characteristics and risks of the host contract in which the subject derivative is embedded,

e a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative, ‘

e itis possible to determine reliably value of the embedded derivative,

o the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair value and changes in its fair value is not
charged to net profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are accounted for in a manner similar to separate derivatives that are not categorised as
hedging instruments.

Equity
Equity is presented in books by category in accordance with rules determined by law and the company’s statute.

Share capital is stated at nominal value in compliance with the statutory regulations and the relevant entry in the
Company’s Register.

Declared but not paid share capital is accounted for as unpaid share capital. Own shares and unpaid share capital
decrease the value of equity of the Company.

The reserve capital is supplied from net profit distribution, transfer of revaluation reserve and share premium
decreased by the shares issuance costs,

Equity arisen due to conversion of debt securities, liabilities and loans into shares is presented at nominal value
of these securities, liabilities and loans, adjusted by not amortised discount or premium, interests accrued and

not paid to the day of conversion, which will not be paid, unrealised foreign exchange differences and
capitalised issnance costs.

Revaluation reserve was established as result of the fixed assets revaluation as at 1 January 1995. In case of
disposal or liquidation of a fixed asset item, the corresponding part of revaluation reserve is transferred to
reserve capital,

Moreover, reserve capital is increased by the difference between fair value and purchase price, less deferred tax,
of the asset if market price set on regulated active market exists or for which it is workable to measure their fair
value reliably.
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Impairment losses on fixed asset, which previously was subject to revaluation, diminishes the revaluation
reserve attributed to the fixed asset. If impairment loss exceeds the revaluation reserve attributed to given fixed
asset, the difference is expensed in the reporting period in which the impairment loss was recognised.

Formation costs diminish the reserve capital up to the amount of share premium. The remaining part of
formation costs is expensed as financial cost.

Provisions

Provisions are set for:

1)  certain or highly probable future liabilities, amount of which can be reliably estimated, particularly for
losses on economic transactions in progress, including guarantees granted, borrowing transactions,
results of legal actions,

2) future liabilities resulting from restructuring, if basing on separate rules the Company is obliged to
perform it or binding agreements were concluded and the restructuring plans allow to estimate reliably
the value of future liabilities.

The above mentioned provisions are expensed as: other operating costs, financial costs or extraordinary losses,
depending on circumstances to which the future liabilities corresponds. Occurrence of the liability for which the
provision was set diminishes the provision.

Provision for jubilee and retirement bonuses

According to remuneration schemes, employees are entitled to jubilee bonuses upon completion of a certain
number of years in service and to retirement allowances paid on retirement. The amount of bonuses depends on
employee’s average remuneration and length of service. The employees receive also a one—off payments on
retirement. Pensions are paid to employees who prove permanent disability to work. The amount of bonuses
depends on employee’s average remuneration and length of service. The costs of jubilee and retirement/pension
bonuses are accrued in Company on a basis of an independent actuarial valuation. According to the Accounting
Act the provisions for jubilee and retirement bonuses are presented in the balance sheet in caption “Liabilities
and provisions for liabilities” as “Provision for retirement benefits and similar bonuses”.

Equity compensation plan costs

Convertible bonds, issued by the Company as the part of the employee compensation plan, are recognised at the
moment of granting the employee an option to buy convertible bonds. As of balance sheet date, the fair value of
the convertible bonds is recognised as remuneration expense and presented in short term payables. The fair
value is estimated on the basis of historical volatility of listed shares and Black-Scholes’ model.

Environmental costs

Provisions for certain or highly probable costs or losses resulted from environment protection requirements are
recorded in case of existence of law requirements or Company’s policy regarding elimination of pollution of
environment or harmful items, simultaneously the amount of future expenses or losses is possible to be
estimated. The Company periodically updates the level of environmental provision based on independent expert
valuations.

Loans and borrowing expenses

Costs of loans and borrowings are recognised in principle at the moment of occurrence. Costs of loans and
borrowings are capitalised only in case if they directly refer to acquisition, construction or manufacture of
certain element of assets. Costs of loans and borrowings are capitalised until the element of assets is ready for
planned use. Providing that the net book value of an asset is greater than the value possible to recover, the net
book value is decreased by the write-off resulting from impairment.
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Loans are initially recorded at the amount of inflows received, decreased by transaction costs. Subsequently they
are presented at the amortised cost with use of effective interest method. The difference between net inflows and
maturity amount is reflected in net profit or loss in the period of loan.

Foreign currency transactions

At the balance sheet date assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recorded as follows:

o assets (excluding stakes in subordinates accounted for under equity method) — at the call exchange rate
applied by the basic bank which renders services for the company, not higher than average exchange rate
set for the given currency by the National Bank of Poland (“NBP”) for this date,

e liabilities — at the put exchange rate applied by the basic bank which renders services for the company, not
lower than average exchange rate set for the given currency by the NBP for this date.

Positive exchange rate differences concerning long term investments denominated in foreign currencies, arising
at the day of their valuation are credited to revaluation reserve. If the revaluation amount was not settled to the
valuation date, the negative valuation change of the investment previously revaluated, debits the revaluation
reserve to the amount at which the revaluation reserve was credited. In other cases the results of negative
valuation change are recognised as financial costs. Increase in valuation of specified investment, directly
connected with its previous negative valuation, treated as financial costs, is recognised, to the level of these
costs as financial income.

Exchange rate differences concerning other assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, arising at
the date of their valuation and on settlement of receivables and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
classified respectively to financial gains or expenses and in legitimate cases to purchase price or manufacture
costs of fixed assets.

Sales

The sales revenues comprise amounts due or received from sales, including excise, less VAT. Revenues from
sales are recognised in situation when it is probable that the company will receive economic benefits resulting
from transactions and when amount of the revenues can be reliably estimated.

Sales of goods and materials is recognised at the moment of delivery, which results in transfer of risk and
benefits stemming from ownership of these goods and products. Income on services is recognised in proportion
to the completion, providing that it is possible to estimate it reliably. In case it is not possible to estimate reliably
the effect of transaction related to services rendering, income on the services are recognised only to the value of
costs incurred in relation to it.

Costs

Operating costs are accounted for in period they relate to. Costs are accounted for both by type and by function.
Cost of goods sold includes direct costs of goods and justifiable part of indirect costs. General and
administration expenses include costs of the Company’s general operations and its management. Selling and
distribution costs are the costs incurred in relation with sales of products and goods for resale and include
particularly excise tax related to sale of products of the Company.

Dividends

Dividends receivable are accounted for as financial income as of the day when the proper body concludes about
profit division resolution, unless the resolution determines another day of right to the dividend.
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Net profit or loss

Net profit or loss is constituted by:

o operating profit or loss, including this resulting from other operating income and costs,
s financial operations result,

e extraordinary operations result,

e compulsory amounts reducing profit resulting from income tax, the payer of which is the entity, and
payments equal to it, on the basis of separate regulations.

Result on operating activity is calculated as the difference between net income on sales of products, goods and
materials adjusted by grants, discounts, rebates and other increases and decreases, excluding VAT and other
operating income and cost of products, goods and materials sold, valued at initial cost, increased by all incurred
from the beginning of the year general and administration expenses, selling and distribution costs and other
operating costs.

Result on financial operations is the difference between financial income, particularly on dividends (shares in
profits), interests, profits on investment sales, adjustments of investments values, excess of positive above
negative foreign exchange differences, and financial costs, particularly on interests, losses on sales of
investments, adjustments of investments values, excess of negative above positive foreign exchange differences.

Result on extraordinary items is the difference between extraordinary profits and losses.

Taxation

Current liabilities resulting from corporate income tax are calculated in accordance with Polish taxation law.

Due to temporary differences between book values and tax values of assets and liabilities the Company set up
provisions and recognise assets resulting from deferred tax.

Deferred tax asset is set in the amount of future expected tax deduction due to negative temporary differences,
which will lower in the future basis for income tax calculation, set in line with prudent valuation principle.

Deferred tax provision is set in the amount of income tax due in the future, due to positive temporary
differences, which are differences, which will increase basis for income tax calculation in the future.

The amount of deferred tax asset and provision is set basing on income tax rates binding in the predicted year of
occurrence of income tax liability.

Deferred tax asset and provision can be netted off against if there is a title giving right to simultaneous
settlement when calculating current tax liability.

Deferred tax asset and provision resulting from operations settled with equity are also reflected in equity.

Impairment

Impairment takes place when there is a considerable probability, that the item of assets controlled by the
company will not bring in the future in a considerable part or at all the previously estimated economic benefits.
It justifies making a write-off bringing down the net book value of the item of assets to the net sales price, and in
case of inability to determine the price — to differently determined fair value.

Write-offs on current assets made in reference to their impairment and resulting from their valuation at net
realisable value instead of purchase or acquisition prices, or costs of manufacture are accounted for as
respectively: other operating costs, costs of goods sold or costs of sales.

Providing that the reason for which the write-off adjusting the value of assets was made, including impairment,
is no longer present, the value of all or respective part of previously made write-off increases value of the item
of assets and is accounted for as respectively other operating income or financial income.
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Contingent liabilities and receivables

Contingent liability is defined as an obligation, arising of which is dependent on occurrence of certain events.
Contingent liabilities are not presented in balance sheet, however information about contingent liabilities is
disclosed unless the probability of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is insignificant.

Contingent receivables are not presented in balance sheet, but the information about contingent receivables is
disclosed, if the inflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable.

Related party transactions

According to the Accounting Act transactions between related parties, which are: the dominant company or
significant investor, subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are presented in the financial statements.
Associates and subsidiaries in case of the Company are all entities directly or indirectly associated, directly or
indirectly controlled as well as joint ventures.

Investment allowance

In accordance with Decree of Cabinet dated 25 January 1994 on investment allowance and reductions of income
tax ("Investment Expenses Decree”) and with article 18a of the Corporate Income Tax Act, being in force till
31 December 1999 and with article 3.1 of the Act dated 20 November 1999 on Changes of Corporate Income
Tax Act being in force from 1 January 2000, the Company benefited from investment allowance in period 1998-
2003. The fixed assets affected by the investment allowance are depreciated for accounting purposes according
to normal depreciation rates applied for particular types of fixed assets. The effects of the investment allowance
are recorded off-balance sheet and considered only in relation to taxable profits and deferred tax provision
purposes.

Management Board estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires Management Board to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and notes to these financial statements.
Actual results may differ from those estimates. Management estimates concern among the others provision
setting, accruals and depreciation rates.
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D. Main captions of the consolidated financial statements calculated in EURO together with exchange
rates

for the year

ended 2003
NBP average exchange rate at the end of period 4.7170
Arithmetic average of exchange rates for 12 months of 2003 (last day of the month) 4.4474
Maximum exchange rate during the period (last day of the month) — 31,12.2003 4.7170
Minimum exchange rate during the period (last day of the month) - 31.01.2003 4.1286

PLN thousand l EURO thousand PLN thousand EURO thousand 1
cumulatively for cumulatively for
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
01.01.2003 - 31.12.2003 01.01.2002 - 31.12.2002

L Net sales of finished products, goods for 24,629,963 5,538,059 23,891,830 5,372,089
resale and materials
I1. Operating profit 1,172,163 263,561 585,261 131,596
III. Profit before taxation 1,134,757 255,151 616,301 138,576
IV. Net profit 933,781 209,961 382,270 85,954
V. Assets (as at the balance sheet date) 13,697,813 2,903,925 12,590,537 2,669,183
VI. Liabilities and provisions for liabilities 5,323,362 1,128,543 5,326.946 1,129,308
(as at the balance sheet date)
VII. Long term liabilities 1,381,612 292,901 233,648 49,533
(as at the balance sheet date)
VI Short term liabilitics 3,198,660 678,113 4,300,823 911,771
(as at the balance sheet date)
IX. Equity
(as at the balance sheet date) 8,374,451 1,775,377 7,263,591 1,539,875
X. Share capital
(as at the balance sheet date) 534,636 113,342 525,221 111,346
XL Number of shares 427,709,061 427,709,061 420,177,137 420,177,137
(as at the balance sheet date)
XII. Weighted average number of shares 420,804,797 420,804,797 420,177,137 420,177,137
XII1. Net profit for 12 months ended 31
December 2003 per share (PLN/EURO) 222 0.50 091 0.20
XIV. Net book value per share
(PLN/EURO) 19.58 4.15 17.29 3.66
XV. Net cash flow from operating 1,237,747 278,308 1,053,410 236,860
activities
XVI. Net cash flow used in investing (1,289,776) (290,007) (668,605) (150,336)
activities
XYI!..NeI cash flows used in financing §3.229 11,969 (404,803) (91,020)
activities

Selected financial data for the year 2003 and 2002 were calculated into EURO according to the following rules:

e particular captions of assets and liabilities— at the average exchange rate published as at 31 December 2003
—4.7170 PLN/ EURO,

e particular captions of profit and loss account and cash flow statement— at the exchange rate being an
arithmetic mean of average rates published by the National Bank of Poland for the last day of each month in
the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 —4.4474 PLN/ EURO.

E. Financial Statements according to International Financial Reporting Standards
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

The Company prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with Polish Accounting Standards
(“PAS”) and discloses detailed information concerning differences between PAS and International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”). The Company presents reconciliation between main financial data from
consolidated financial statements as well as explanations of these differences.

Due to requirements of the Accounting Act these financial statements were prepared in accordance with Polish
Accounting Standards and accounting practices applied by companies in Poland. These financial statements
differ from financial statements would have been prepared in accordance with IFRS in following significant
areas:

Distribution from profit on social activities

According to Polish business practice shareholders of the Company have the right to distribute the profit for the
employees benefits, i.e. for bonus payment or for the Company’s social fund. Such distributions are presented in
statutory financial statements, similarly to dividend payments, through the change in capital. In the financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS such payments are charged to operating costs of the year, that the
distribution concerns.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

According to PAS, borrowing costs are charged into the profit and loss account when incurred after reduction of
amounts capitalised in investment expenditures, resulting from liabilities specifically referring to an investment
project. Borrowing costs concerning general indebtedness are expensed wholly when incurred. Borrowing costs
related directly to investment projects are capitalised until the fixed assets are brought into usage and are
expensed with depreciation.

In financial statements prepared according to IFRS, the borrowing costs are capitalised pursuant to the
alternative treatment allowed by IAS 23 “Borrowing costs”.

Goodwill on the purchase of CPN employee shares

The shares purchased from employees of CPN in 1999 were presented according to IFRS on the basis of
acquisition method. As a result, goodwill in the amount of PLN 107 million was recognised on purchase of
19.43% of CPN shares held by its employees. For the purposes of the financial statements according to PAS the
merger, including purchase of shares from minority shareholders, was conducted under pooling of interest
method.

Deferred tax

Adjustments related to above mentioned differences between PAS and IFRS are basis for deferred tax
calculation.

Sales revenues in financial statements according to IFRS

According to PAS sales revenues and selling costs include excise tax, charged by the Company on the products
subject to excise tax and included in realised revenues. For the purpose of financial statements under IFRS, the
amount of excise tax calculated was eliminated from sales revenues and selling costs.
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003
{in PLN thousand)

Scope of financial statements

The captions of consolidated financial statements prepared according to PAS and IFRS may differ significantly.
The scope of disclosures to financial statements according to PAS differs from the scope of disclosures under
IFRS.
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
{in PLN thousand)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL DATA

as at as at
BALANCE SHEET Note 31.12.2003 31.12.2002
year end year end
(current year) {previous year)
ASSETS
1, Fixed assets 8835178 8306 427]
1. Intangible assets, including: ) 45773 66 917
- goodwill 4 E
2. Tangible fixed assets 2 6384 257) 6455138
3. Long term receivables 3 30 047 267 86
3.1. From subordinated entities 25 363 258 402
3.2. From other entities 4684 9 464
4. Long term investments 4 2226 444 1371 482
4.1. Real estates 1 L
4.2, Intangible assets E E
4.3. Long term financial assets 2226 446 1371 482
a) in subordinated entities 1727 477 772 2204
b) in other entities 498 969 599 261
4.4, Other long term investments g
$. Long term prepayments, deferred costs and deferred tax asset 148 6524 145 022
5.1, Deferred tax assets H E E
5.2. Prepayments and deferred costs 148 652 145 022
11 Current assets 4 862 638 4284 110)
1. Inventories 6 2 568 594] 2477 665
2, Short term receivables 7 1798 47§ 1288 2208
2.1, From subordinated entities 700 01 353 56
2.2, From other entities 1098 464 934 6608
3. Shert term investments 9 148 598 82 853
3.1. Short term financial assets 148 598 82 853
a) in subordinated entities 4 i
b} in other entities 85 829 21 214
¢) cash and cash equivalents 62 769 61 639
3.2. Other short term investments 4 3
4. Short term prepayments and deferred costs i0 346 971 435 373
Total assets 13 697 813 12 590 537




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003

(in PLN thousand)
as at as at
LIABILITIES 31.12.2003 31.12.2002
year end year end
(current year) {previous year)

1. Shareholders equity 8374 451 7263 591
1. Share capital 12 534 636 525 221
2. Unpaid share capital (negative value) 4 L
3. Own shares (negative value) 4 g
4. Capital reserve 14 6122 438 5501 1804
S. Revaluation reserve 15 730 12 725 551
6. Other capital reserves 16 53 476 33 474
7. Undistributed profit from previous years 4 75 893
8. Net profit 38 933 781 382 2708
9. Distribution from profit during financial year (negative value) 17 < g
IL. Liabilities and provisions for liabilities 5 323 362 5326 944
1. Provisions for liabilities 18 649 321 728 080
1.1. Provision for deferred tax 141 98 248 415
1.2. Retirement benefits and similar provisions 87742 83 2904
a) long term 76 394 71 627
b) shont term 11 348 11 663
1.3. Other provisions 419 594) 39¢ 379
a) long term 361 844 324 789
b) short term 57 748 71 584
2. Long term liabilities 19 1381 612 231 649
2.1. To subordinated entities E 230 299
2.2. To other entities 1381612 3 349
3. Short term liabilities 20 3198 6604 4300 8234

3.1. To subordinated entities 321 394 191 65
3.2. To other entities 2847 23! 4077 753
3.3. Special funds 30 031 31 419
4. Accruals and deferred income 21 91 76 64 395
4.1. Negative goodwill 4 4
4.2. Other accruals and deferred income 93 769 64 399

a) long term 4
b) short term 93 769 64 395
Totalliabilities 13 697 813] 12 590 537
Net book value 8374451 7263 591,
Number of shares 427 709 061 420 177 137
Net book value per share (in PLN) 22 19,58 17,29
as at as at
OFF - BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 31.12.2003 31.12.2002
year end year end
(current year) {previous vear)

1. Contingent receivables 23 1 ]
1.1. From dinated entities 4 h
- received guarantees and sureties 1 1
1.2. From other entities E E
- received guarantees and sureties 4 b
2. Contingent liabilities 23 961 15¢ 94 549

2.1. To subordinated entities 961 156 94 54:
- granted guarantees and sureties 961 154 94 &q

2.2. To other entities L

- granted guarantees and sureties 1 e |
3. Other 900} 46 6%

ITotnloff-balance sheet items 962 054 141 23

17




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
financial statements for the year 2003
{in PLN thousand)

INCOME STATEMENT Note 31.12.2003 31.12.2002
{current year) {previous year)
1. Net sales including: 24 629 963} 23 891 830)
- from subordinated entities 4656 790 3305 753
1. Net sales of finished products 24 22930 855 22 066 873
2. Net sales of goods for resale and materials 25 1699 104 1 824 958
1. Cost of goods sold, including: (12 132 388 {11 793 081
- to subordinated entities {1 967 094 (1 575187
1. Cost of sales of finished products 26 (10 731 206] (10 219 769
2. Cost of goods for resale and materials sold (1401 149 (1573312
111 Gross profit on sales (I-11) 12 497 608 12 098 749
v, Seliing and distribution costs 26 (10 821 292 (10 926 201
V. General and administration expenses 26 (604 456) (567619
V1. Profit on sales (I11-1V-V) 1071 8604 604 929
VII. Other operating income 342 194 162121
1. Profit on disposal of non-financial fixed assets 4923 24 544
2. Grants 4 E
3. Other 27 337271 137577
VIII. Other operating expenses (241 891 (181 789
1. Loss from disposal of non-financial fixed assets (6794 (13 387
2. lmpairment of non-financial assets {66 367, (11 537)
3. Other 28 (168 730 (156 B6S)
1X. Operating profit (VI+VII-VIID) 1172163 585 261
X._Financial income 29 261514 199 021
I . Dividends and shares in profits, including: 67 00 13 6608
- from subordinated entities 20 491 13 65
2. Interest, including: 38 252 49 101
- from subordinated entities 4 583 5597
3. Profit from sale of investments 50 749 61542
4. Revaluation of investments 4% 405
5. Other 105 46: 2431
X1. Financial expenses 30 (298921 {167 860
1. Interest, includi (108 149)} (137479
- to subordinated entities 3 72% (4 662)
2. Loss from sale of investments e
3. Revaluation of investments (7038 (914
4. Other (183 734 (29 467
XI1. Gross profit (IX+X-X1) 1134756 616 422
XII. Extraordinary items (XIILI. - XII1.2.) 1 (121
1. Extraordinary gains 32 ] ]
2. Extraordinary losses 33 4 {138
X1V, Profit before taxation (X11+/-XIII) 1134 757 616 301]
XV, Income tax 34 (200 976 (234 031
a) current part (306 467 (177 234
b) deferred part 105 491 (56 797%
XVI. Other obligatory charges on profit (increases of loss) 35 4
XVII, Net profits (losses) of subordinated i d for on an equity method 36 E
XVIIL Net profit (XIV-XV-XVI+/.XVII) 933 781 382 270§
Net profit ( lised) 933 781 382 2700
‘Weighted average number of ordinary shares 420 804 797] 420177 137
Earnings per ordinary share (in PLN) 38 2,22 0,91
Diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares < e
Diluted earnings per share (in PLN) 38 4 R




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

| STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 31.12.2003 31.12.2002
1. Shareholders equity at beginning of period 7263 591 6 859 09
a) changes in accounting policies 4 73 293
b) corrections of fund | errors 4 ]
I. a. Shareholders equity at beginning of period restated for comparative data 7263 591 6932 3854
1. Share capital at beginning of period 525221 525221
1.].Movements in share capital 9415 P
) increases 941§ 4
- issues of shares 94185
b) decreases L E
1.2. Share capital at end of period 534 639 528 221
2. Unpaid share capital at beginning of period E p
2.1. Movements in unpaid share capital 4 3
a) increases E i
b) decreases 4 E
2.2. Unpaid share capital at end of period 4 ]
3. Own shares at beginning of period 4 E
3.1. Movement in own shares 4 E
a) increases 4 i
b) decreases 4 4
3.2 Own shares at end of period 4 ]
4. Capital reserve at beginning of period 5501 18 5297 573
4.). Movements in capita) reserve 52) 258 203 607
a) increases 621 258 203 607]
- share premium 184 904 g
- distribution of profits (by articles) 4 E
- apportionment of profits (over the minimum provided for by the articles) 395 334 197 60:
- transfer from capital reserves due 1o revaluation of fixed assets disposed 41 011 6 00:
b) decreases E ]
4.2. Capital reserve at end of period 14 6122 438 5501 1804
5. Revaluation reserve at beginning of period 725 551 734 794
- changes in accounting policies, restatement of opening balance E (2 600
5.1. Revaluation reserve at beginning of period restated for comparative data 725 551 732 196
5.2. Movements in revaluation reserve 4569 {6 545
a) increases 52 394 42 383
- increase of value of long term investments 51 454 58 218
- deferred tax assets related to entries made to revaluation reserve 93% (15 833,
- other 4 E
b) decreases (47 826) (49 028
- fixed assets disposals (41011 (6 002%
- impairment of tangible fixed assets (6 815 (1109
- adjustment of long term investment 4 g
- deferred tax assets related to entries made to revaluation reserve 4 16 301
- financial assets disposals L (58 218
5.3. Revaluation reserve at end of period 15 730 1204 725 551
6. Other capital reserves at beginning of period 53 478 53474
6.1. Movements in other capital reserves 4 p
a) increases 4 J
b) decreases 4 i
6.2. Other capital reserves at end of period 16 53474 53474




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY - CONTINUED 31.12,2003 31.12.2002 |
7. Undistributed profit (loss) from previous years at beginning of period 458 163 248 Ozﬂ
7.1. Undistributed profit from previous years at b ing of period 458 163 248 026
a) changes in accounting policies 4 75 893

b) corrections of fund tal errors 4 i
7.2. Undistributed profit from previous years at begi of period restated for comparative data 458 1634 3239194
a) increases 4 L

b) decreases (458 163 {248 026}

- dividends paid {58 825 (50421

- transfer to capital reserve (395 338 (197 605)

- others (including transfers to settlements) (4 000) .

7.3. Undistributed profit from previous years at end of period 4 75 893
7.4. Undistributed loss fram previous vears at beginning of period 4 J
a) changes in accounting policies 4 J

b) corrections of fundamental errors ] ]
7.5. Undistributed loss from previous years at beginning of period restated for comparative data 4 L
a) increases 4 E

b) decreases < E
7.6. Undistributed loss from previous years at end of period 4 J
7.7. Undistributed profit (loss) from previous years at end of period <4 75 893
8. Net profit for the financial year 933 781 382 270
a) net profit 933 781 382 270

b) net loss 4 p

¢) distribution from current year profit J

11, Shareholders equity at end of period 8374 451 7263 591,

1. Equity after proposed distribution of profit (absorption of losses) ] ]




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A,
financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 31.12.2003 31.12.2002
A. Cash flow from operating activities (I+/-II) - indirect method
1. Net profit for the year 933 781! 382 27
11. Total adjustments 303 966 671 14
1. Profit from minority interests 1
2. Net (profit) from subordinated entities accounted for on an equity basis .
3. Depreciation and amortisation 793 162 819 884
4, Foreign exchange (gains)/losses 37 582 (30 405
5. Interest and dividends 24 474 105 539
6. (Profit) loss from investing activities 48 561 (64 93%
7. Movements in provisions (73 706 37 3004
8. Movements in stock (124 981 (638 599
9. Movements in receivables (234 883 (34 565)
10. Movements in creditors falling due within one year (with the exception of loans) {80 181 412 2404
11. Movements in prepayments and accruals 124 5004 51 65
12. Other adj (210562 13034
I11. Cash flow from operating actvitles (1+/-11) 1237 747 1053410
B. Cash flow from investing activities 4
1. Cash Inflows from investing activities 268112 178 708
1. Disposal of i ible fixed assets and tangible fixed assets 46 449 28 385
2. Disposal of real estate investments and intangible fixed assets investments L p
3. From financial assets, including: 213 151 134 670
a) in subordinated entities 51 350, 14 064
- sales of financia) assets (¢xcept from short term securities) 30714 9
- sales of short term securities E
- dividends and profits 20 491 13 65§
- long-term loans repaid 4
- interest received 14 402
- other inflows from financial assets
b) in other entities 161 801 120 604
- sales of financial assets (except from short temm securities) 2 L”,l 101 751
- sales of short term securities 1
- dividends and profits 46 509 p:
- long-term {oans repaid 98 05
- interest received 15 083 18 851
- other inflows from financial assets B B
4. Other inflows from investing activities 8512 15 653
11. Cash outflows from Investing activities (1 557 888’ (847 313
1. Purchases of intangible and tangible assets {875 830 {7154 811
2. Investments in real estate and i ible assets ke ]
3. For financial assets, including: (593 190 (91 237
a) in subordinated entities (593 1905 (29 837
- purchases of financial assets {except from short term securities) (593 190 (29 837
b) in other entities 4 (61 400
- purchases of financial assets (except from short term securities) L {61 400
4. Other payments {88 868 (1 265}
111, Net cash flow used in investing activities (I-1I) (1 289 776’ (668 605
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Polski Koncemn Nazftowy ORLEN S.A.
financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT - CONTINUED 31.12.2003 31.12.2002

C. Cash flow from financing activities

1. Inflows 4479 322 1 689 300
1. Issuance of shares and other capital instruments, additional payments to capital 4
2. Loans 2 744 463 285 239
3. Issuance of short term securities 1734 859, 1404 061]
4. Other inflows L

11. Outflows (4426093 {2094 103
1. Redemption of shares E
2. Dividends and other distributions to shareholders (58 825 (50 421
3. Other than distribution of profit to shareholders payments from profit 4 4
4. Repayment of loans _(2 354 606 (511 700
5. Repurchase of shont term securities _ (1894 039 {1 383 885y
6. Other financial liabilities 4 e
7, Finance lease payments (2 557 (2 365)
8. Interest paid {116 066) (145 732
9. Other payments 4

111, Net cash flows used in financing activitles (1-IT) 53 229 (404 803

D. Net cash flow (A.IT14/-B.111+/-C.1II) 1200 (19 998

E. Balance sheet change in cash and cash equivalents, i ing: 11304 (201339
- changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from foreign exchange gains/losses (70 (135

F. Total cash and cash eq at the beg 1g of the perfod 61 63% 81 773

|G. Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (F+/- D), including * 62 839 61774

l - thase of limited availability 5136 5121

* foreign exchange differences are not included according to National Accounting Standard No. |
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION AND EXPLANATIONS
A. EXPLANATORY NOTES
NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET

Note 1A

[INTANGIBLE ASSETS
a) development costs 51 96
b) company goodwill - E
45722 66 809
19 8y
- 13
45773 66 917

As at 31 December 2003 and 2002 there were no intangible assets being collateral for the Company’s payables
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
{in PLN thousand)

Note 1C
INTANGIBLE ASSETS BY CLASS OF OWNERSHIP
a) own 45773 66 917
b) used on basis of lease, tenancy agreements or other agreement, including leasing: - J
Total intangible assets 45773 66 917]
Note 2A
JTANGIBLE ASSETS
Ia) fixed assets, including: 5 646 161 6 000 309
- land (including perpetual leaschold) 135724 104 7413
- buildings and construction 3589 453 3710 028
- plant and equipment 1864704 2116 419
- vehicles 35017 38 3108
- other fixed asscts 21263 30811
b) construction in progress 700 077 362 211
c) payments on account construction in progress 38019 92 618
{Total tangible assets 6 384 257 6455 138

As at 31 December 2003 and 2002 there were no tangible assets being collateral for Company's payables
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 2C
FIXED ASSETS BY CLASS OF OWNERSHIP
a) own 5646 037 5 997 234
b) used on the basis of lease, tenancy agreements or other agreement, including leasing: 124 3073
Total fixed assets 5646 161 6 000 309
Note 2D
OFF-BALANCE SHEET FIXED ASSETS 1
- used on the basis of lease, tenancy agreements or other agreement, including leasing 523635 481 26
- the amount of the perpetual leasehold (established on the basis of land valuation made by municipalities in
4577117 405 38
order to calculate the charge for perpetual leaschold)
Total off-balance sheet fixed assets 523 635 481 265

The Company does not recognize perpetual leasehold of land acquired based on administrative decisions in previous periods due to the fact that the historical value of such right cannot be reliably

determined.

Note 3A

JLONG TERM RECEIVABLES

Fa due from subordinated companies, including:

25363 258 40

- from subordinated companies

25363 258 402

- from joint-ventures

- from iated companies

- from significant investor

- from dominant company

b) from other companies

4684 9 44

Net long term receivables

30047 267 86!

c) bad and doubtful debt provision (positive value)

2000

Gross long term receivables

32047 267 868

Note 3B

[MOVEMENTS IN LONG TERM RECEIVABLES

la balance at beginning of period

267 868 271 191

b) increases

- 2 000

c) decreases™

(235 821) (5323

Gross long term receivables at the end of the period

32 047 267 86!

* including PLN 230,299 thousand of receivables from ORLEN Powiemnik reclassified to short - term receivables

Note 3C

MOVEMENTS IN BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS PROVISION FOR LONG TERM RECEIVABLES

a) balance at beginning of period

b) increases of:

- initial receivable

- interest

- other

c) release of provision

d) utilization

Bad and doubtful debt provision for long term debtors at the end of the period
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S A,

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 3D

[LONG TERM RECEIVABLES (CURRENCY TYPE)

a) in Polish currenc

32 047

currencies (by currency and recalculated to zlotys)

267 861

Total long term receivables

32 047

267 Sﬁg

Note 4A

[MOVEMENTS IN REAL ESTATE (BY TYPE)

[2) balance at the beginning of the period

b) increases

¢} decreases

[Total real estate at the end of the period

Note 4B

MOVEMENTS IN INTANGIBLE ASSETS (BY TYPE)

a) balance at the beginning of the period

b) increases

c) decreases

Total intangible fixed assets at the end of the period

Note 4C

LONG TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

a) in subordinated companies {not consclidated)

1232 465

647 00

- stakes and shares

1232 465

647 00!

b) in joint-ventures (not consolidated)

453 639

- stakes and shares

453 699

c) in associated companies (not consolidated)

41313

125 2204

- stakes and shares

41 313

125 2204

d) in significant investor

¢) in dominant company

f) in other companies

498 969

599 262

- stakes and shares

498 969

$01 21

- loans granted

98 0%

Total long term financial assets

2226 446

1371 487

b1}




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN §.A.
financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 4D -4J

The Company does not account for subordinates under the equity method. The method of valuation of subordinates is described

in the Introductory Notes to the financial statements.

Note 4K

LONG TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS (BY TYPE)

L. Balance at the beginning of the period 1371482 1268 641

a) in subordinated panies (not consolidated) 647 000 564 924
- stakes and shares 647 000 564 924

b) in joint-ventures (not consolidated) - h
- stakes and shares -

c) in iated companies (not lidated) 125220 125 221
- stakes and shares 125 220 12522
d) in other companies 599 262 578 497

- stakes and shares 501212 480 447
- other securities - 1
- loans granted 98 050 98 0508
I1, Increases in the period 1070 680 203114
2 in subordinated companies (not consolidated) 614 764 83 494
- stakes and shares 614 764 83 499
b) in joint-ventures (not consolidated) 453 699 E
- stakes and shares 453 699 E
c) in associated companies (not consolidated) 97 1
- stakes and shares 97 k
d) in other companies 2120 119 614
- stakes and shares 2120 119 614
- other securities - E
- loans granted - 1
NI. Decreases 215716 100 275
a) in subordinated companies (not consolidated) 29 299 1422
- stakes and shares 29299 1422
b) in joint-ventures (not consolidated) - L
) in associated ies {not consolidated) 84 004 L
- stakes and shares 84 004
d) in other comp 102 413 98 853
- stakes and shares 4363 98 853
- other securities - 4
- loans granted 98 050 1
1V. Balance at the end of the period 2226 446 1371 48%
a) in subordinated companies (not consolidated} 1232465 647 0008
- stakes and shares 1232465 647 00
b) in joint-ventures (not consolidated) 453 699 1
- stakes and shares 453 699 .1
c) in associated anies (not lidated) 41313 125 2208
- stakes and shares 41313 125 22
d) in other companies 498 969 $99 264
- stakes and shares 498 969 501 232
- loans granted - 98 051
I. Balance at the beginning of the period 1371482 1268 641
1L, Increases in the perlod 1070 680 203 114
I11. Decreases in the period 215716 100 275
1V. Balance at the end of the period 2 226 446 1371 482

Increase in long term financial assets results mainly from acquisition of shares in German subsidiaries and in Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0., which was presented in the Notes 60a, 60b.

29




of
LLT 90T | (619 95) (r28 11) 101 612 1 1 1paogns A133241p s w100
SIANPOId [EIIGIODT
- %006 %006 076 € - - 0z6 € 8661°80°LT pogiaw [ny Aretpisqns pue Kuye: ‘seoayo v Fapen moyery 00z ds 1O NITHO| S€
Sjany JO BUIPED I[eSI0uMm
- %8r'05 %8V'05 00€ ¢ - - 00£ S 1007°60°01 poyiaw iy Areipisqas PUB |1E1a1 ‘S3LI0S$II08 Pus sued ASTEPD *0'02°dg vudsoN NITHO] PE
aseds sanouone jo Suipen Ajesaioym
VORIATD .-
- %00 1S %00'15 $0€ (805) (80€) 918 6661°01'10 pomaw {1y Areipisqns Kuauyyseu Suiuuds 20§ s301A35 aredas Foig ‘00 z°dg 1) NI THO] £E
0198
- %00'1S %00'15 oL - - s9L 8661°S0°87 poqaw iey Arorpisqns 100 puw ¥01d “v's mafoig NITHO) T
- %00'1S %00 1S 07z 01 - - ozz ot L661°1020 PO iy Kietpisqns FUIpEx Sy probl EMEZSIEM. 062 ds 1jonad| Tt
- %ER'IS %E3°15 0026 - - 0076 8661°10°61 poyRw 111y Armipisqus Butpes sjany pinby ueuzog *0°0 2 dg PoYITZONad NITHO) OF
- %IV TS %Tvris oIt 8rl (81} 86T 1 6651 YO0F POUIS (1) Kieiprsqns Z 10] S301AI35 BT $00ld 50z 08 EYAIRIOMY NI THO} 67
SpoCH O BULION "
- %08'CS %98°09 00827 - - 008 27 T00Z60°0F poyIaw |17y Kunprsqns o —— é&_wa w1 Auopans digs BMEZSIEM V'S FOIANTS - dIHS] 82
1|ES WINRJEA
- %abs 0L %vs'oL 095 L1 - - 095 L1 9661°60°87 popau [y Ampisqns 0 Buiss3001d UOIINPOIG BULI ELISAPUT MepoInot] 'V'S LONI'TOS. \jo§ upedo) Apsmepamou | LT
5[0 PUE S J0 SIS
- %00's L %00°SL 000 ¥9 - - 000 v9 6661°10°10 poyaut (jny Aseiprsqns pue uowonposd ‘Burssasasd suyered azatppar “v's azipof AyeN euouyvi| 9T
- %LTIL %LT9L 00T 9L1 - - 00T 9Lt S661°60°S0 oI 117 Kieipsqrs SHZIGY PEE ADd Jo Fut FIMEDOIM VS Imuv[ ST
TG pUE SjARFJO - —
- %L0'LL %L0'LL 05 bL - - €05 vL L66101'LT poysaw Ry ores pue M._Ba ?.wmsen unyused LULEET V'S BIUIQIZI L ELIuEY] #T
- %9v'78’ %9v T8 91 € REY £) (3£8 9) 000 05 Poyaw iny spnpoid jie 3pRid Jo 1014 (oo zdg xaylid Apsuuof)-o'0 z dSe)sy NI T40] €7
- 9400°C8 %00°C €S €1 - - SEC €1 PoYIR 1) Areiprsqns Furped SiaTy pIbil FUBIN "0°0 2 48 11j0id0Tag NITIO| T2
- %0888 %088 87 L - - 87 L powIW iy Kiwipisqns S3IAISS GORTIN 120l o0z dgmemagd| 12
- %168 %2t 6! oIz (69 7Y (1] 819 POYIW 11y Aripisqns SRIAIFS UGASIET 2O -URZAZPIY 50 2 05 3Z05-ihzniZpay bodsuei) NITEO0| 02
- %0006 %0006 T 9F - - 967 9¢ PO (i) ampisqrs Furpen $57) pinby P 007 d5 YUe 10734 NI 140] 61
- %8976 %8916 9T v [G36) (zsL © €108 poiaw iy STAIIS 1Hodsuen uhzi10 *0'0 2 dg ukizso wodsueiL NI TAO] 81
- %p6 76 %b6 16 65E9 {rs0 £) (<0 €) €ir6 poyiRw iy SRS A3oresoqe] 1old “0'0 7 dg wnuoeiagey QL L1
Tosmpu "
- HLS'IE %L5'96 £8€ L1 - - €8€ L1 2661°01°L7 poyra 111y Aretpisqns 10) uowdinbo pue s3uyoew jo Suppng o014 s Amperedy Amopng peprez| 91
- %IL'96 %L 96 6309 0.9 € 09 € 65L6 0007 90'60 poyiaw [0y Keipisqns S0IALYS Hodsues 105 EMON “0'0 7 dg jog emoN Hodsui) NITHO[ ST
- Y06 %0°L x4 (6] (rv< €} (8€% 0007'90°€Z pouiau (iny 52014355 Hodsuen ¥sFyS 002 dg ysdnjs viodsusi] NaTHO| ¥
- 465°L6 %65 ¥SL €T 370 7) (8707 8L §: 66171 £T pogiatt jiny S901AI35 Lodstie] 01d 002 0§ 35014 wodsuai] NaTHO| €1
- 41 €36 %1€ 965§ _amo 9) (659 9} §$ZT1 T90°S0 poyiatl 1y SI0IALI podsuny mOyEry "0°0 2 05 moyry 1odsusil NITHO) 21
- 45T 86 %S 999 9.7 6) {97 6) 6§ 000Z 90°60 potpaul |1y SI0IAIETS podstizn uqn] "0°'07 g unqnY HodsuEl | NATAO| 1T
- 495766 59566 1581 (zss 1) (Zss i) 60% £ 790 ST potpaul [iry Kepisqus ] u3z2§ “0°0 2 -dg urazozg nodsues] NATIO| 01
Buiprn 0 pue sjan) pinby ‘siaulgiuod L
- %5866 %5866 16v 67 (soc 1) Nsoe 1t} 96L 0% 0007°Z1€) poyza )y Aueipisqns 1t Sureuew ‘uompads ‘uodsuen old ooz -dg sumi(|o) NITHO| 6
V'S NaTI0 N3
- %00'001 %00°001 v - - v 0002'L0°61 pogiaw 1y Aseipisqrs 10y $901AI2S 3510 PUE UTIPOTSTD word ‘007 dg ywarmog NITHO| B
- %600 001 %00°001 0007 - - 0007 8661 $0°60 poyw [y Kreipisqns Fuipen SIS od 1o ‘o0z dg 3uniog N3THOY ¢
- 200001 %00°001 - - (562 ©) S6L € L661°10'T0 oW |y Aweipisqns suonms 2013s J0 sa1Edas pue Suppng MOy 00z 'dg yevopng NITIO| 9
- 600001 %0000 1 [ (viz ) ez ) [7341] Aande jeorpsis 201 .“:: dg eatpay NATHO] S
- 9200001 00001 000 17 - - 000 12 o1 007 d5 wnauadanag NG THO) ¥
- %00°001 %00°001 vzt (5£ D) (€D VI8 ¥T ] ] ol ooz d5 780 NaTHO| €
sjuuNSIAUL
- 900001 %00'001 o€l S81 - 651 LI L 126 (91 W Z00TTI90 poyau [y Aseiprsqns uonEss |9n] 10} SpunoaS jo sseyaund | AUFILD) wogsg (HQWD ST ey PURIYISINAG NATHO ALUB05) HQWD ualiqouny) puejyosinag NITHO| 7
- %00'001 %00°001 6£1 0Lf - 667 ¥€ . 1£8 SEE “T00T'T1°90 poyious 11y Aseipisqns uaafeun 5558 (Kuwunsn) woysurg HQWD puelyIsinag NITIO| 1
PIBPIOSUOD PABWIPIOGNS APNIAIIP Sd1UEdIHO])
s2ouBIAp
topsupnop s1apoyIseyg pupy ay 2uanu)
30 ssrq (f 30 Jo Bupaapy pauno (spded saeys saEgs Jo pusayudys ujoped dyysvopes 231 40 voy g
(f 10100 uy pavopudw | (803030 o 53305 |  sseys jo 3ejuasiad Jo aujes jooq :Bugpapuy 2nyBA 3045 3ousjEq | I0 12A0M8) JO1UOY UOBRPIIOSUO3 JO PO 1epde aseys Anapow aopeao) o) (WA J0 aonBIIpUY UK N “oN
uEy) L0 18309 up 3sEYs tujef/ joau0a jo 3j8p
uoNEN]Es [8)0)
1 £l T [ y g 3 3 [ > q ©
SALLIINT AALVNIIHIOENS NI SHHVHS 40 SANVLS
TP 3ON

(pursnoy) NId 41

G N R D G N I EE Gl e HE N S OE =N BE = e
Vo -



{pursnoyy N'Id ut)

G NN O G N BN EE I aE Te
i RAR STOYeN wSBT

SjuIUL)

881 97 (r197) (5.0 L) €97 €€ Jou paIsulpIoqns A)>a1p 18307 |
N %000 65 - (2) 9 6661°01°87 1ou s pu swoums jany M_“Mw.:u — NoRZILS ssesse 00 2 dS URIZRG SIMIDGE 91
- ALET yee L - - bE 1 666101 8¢ PRITPROSUG? 10U 3Jesa1 10 SpOd O Funioys NSUEPD 00z dg sowonag | §1
- 00T 0 - (8870 8877 16612061 PIIEPIOSUOD 10U 2pen S8 pinby €UTIZI EMON 1350[pEdn i "0°0 2 0 Bo10za2ig oMON Ze30iad NI TH0
N ALY 6 (332 - - [153 66611 1S1 POIEPIIOSUI03 10U Kieipisqns 31075 BUIUIED) PUR GONEINPS ¥01d "0°0 7 -dg iPEynpT wnAua)
- %11 0 - (11 [IT¥4 6661 60°80 PaIEpI|OSUOD 10U Trepisqns paud syaE) pug 1350|pedn A BMEISIBA, V'S YOMIOIG L H G
- %0688 175 (316 (519) 169 6661°L0°67 pawpifosuos 10u Cmpisqs e suanes oy MMM_EM JUIINY R o0 dg zsmoray simizs) 11
- %5716 RST'L6 Li1 (vLv) (rLy) 16§ 6661'90°S[ PAEPHOSUOT 10U Arezpisqns pue suonms jany _Msﬂmu_za JRm— 2poy ‘o0z 'dg zpory simidg 01
- %EL86 %EL 86 291 - - 291 166111 €0 PIIEPIfosU03 10u Kiesprsqns KAToE GoNEa15al Pl BupISal vonsp) 00z dg zsmorsiN A} 6
- %2666 %L 66 69¢ (z6t) (z6v) 1921 00072011 paIEpHOsTs) Jou Amipisqns pue suoners jany ku_za osupusypew | I S EMON ‘00z dg eypim A mmON simiog] 8
55135 SONSIIO)
- %b6'66 %p6°66 628§ (£0L) {tal (4137 000Z° 1167 PAEPI|OSU0D 10U Amipisqns pue Rwap quaudinba pue sguiping 31040 *0°0 2 “dg yokulkonghnsA(q vazpezin pepyez| £
[eLsnpn jo sajes “podxa ‘podun
- 200001 %00'001 05 - - 05 16617171 PAIEPHO5UCS 10U ALserptsqns 130§ jo ajesajoym pue 21035 “uoyanpord Asuepy Popuadsns AIiange ‘00 z ds ysuepn 3awg autmiy NAD| 9
- %00001 %00°001 0 - - 005 2661°80° PAITPHO5UOT 100 Kwmiprsqris Sa3}Atas KInaos PO -007_dg EuonpO N3O S
- 00001 %0000 000 | - - 000 U 76618 parepi[osuos 100 Aizipisqns TATD Bo03 Yooid v ]
- %600°001 %0000 | ¥90 € (397) %ﬁj U6 € 166160 Pa1EPHOSUO3 10U KIAT3E UORESI53 PUE IS EEa €
- 4600001 %0000 S80 ¥ (c7) | (33 [T 100201 PAIEpI|OSUG) 10U 3014135 |90 PUB FULBITS 3sTnoutmg [
- 2%00°001 %0000 1 () (v6¢) | (T3] STL9 10021120 PIIEPI|05UGD 104 Kiepisqns S30IAI35 {3}0Y PUt BULBIES SUfdEY 2910UT
P3JEPHOSUOD JOI PAjRUIPIOQNS APIIAP sIrueduwo))
[ (r8e91)  [(0ss 61) 957 06€ I Apoaarpuy sat B10],
- %tSL 1 [%pS LI 1€18 (v0$ T) {v0s 7) SE9 01 9661°90°61 poyIw iy Asepisqns SPnpoid 110 3pALD A LOLANPOJ RINIGIZIL (00205 XAULIE APWI0F) 00 2 45 45V NG T50] K |
- %001 %00 1S 807 - - 80F 9661°10°10 PO [ Kmipisqas SO (e "UONES [ar) AP 00z d5 veryoonad| 1T
- %191 %1916 009 1 - - 009 1 L661°L0°ST poyizut iy Kieiprsqns apex sed pinky 2EGIM 007 dg mEoIM 7030054 NF1HO| 92
TI01)5370M
- %E6'sS %E6'SS ot - - ol v661°Z1°Y1 oD {10 Amiprsqns P watas PMEPOIM 00z dg OAIWIAND 41 'SV d] T
R Buisowfua-teatuysa pue Burudisap )
'$931A135 [EIIELE PUIE YOIEISI
- %67'€8 %67 €8 651 5¢ (610 1) (611 1) 8L79¢ $661°80°LT poyRw Iy Asmipisqns SonpaTIen oy ‘00 2°ds 10 NITHO] ¥Z
il pue {1ou1ye) ‘SENLIYD ul Fuipen *
= %0068 %00 68 006 - - 006 100211950 oA fjny Kreipisqns dEIS pUE J15EM JO 2[eS9[0yM. FZoUpa[ ers V'S MSAZPO EDEZIETIQ) - (pAURMOIRIGaZ1] MO0 WAIAI0SU0N| €7
N %b L T6 %bLT6 0 - (5£9) 969 6661110 POt ||y Aizipisqns TUMUTES] JBTMS UOTIESIIN FISem S7OMPSE 00z 4§ VIDO103A-3vd| I2
- %05 76 %05 V6 090 9 - [ 0009 £007°01°0¢ PO 1Ry Kiryprsqns SI5IAIZS BOdS T OSSO 007 d5 emuzSiem WodsuRI] NI THO| 12
- %Z 1" o471 ) ) ‘01" o Jin] Arepisqns SROIAT) B aEd i 79y 0'0 2 "0 -
%T1'96 %I1'96 0¥ [ (67 (z8¢ 3891 6661°01'80 POy 1ing 1pIsqe Suntans ‘onsoufieip ‘soueusuen ‘nedas npef 0z°dg IVWIN-dvu| 07
- %0596 %0796 600 11 - 601 006 01 £00TZT10¢ POuIW I Keipisqns SIS 1odshEn Ez04 007 4§ teuzog wodsues), NFTIO] 61
- %00'66 %00'66 05 - - 05 00027110 poww 17y Amipisqns wonsmaid .EEMHWH pus Ksoresoqe] engazi), ‘ooz -dg yenoxg| 81
- %9066 %50°66 11 {628 0Lz D 186 1 66618020 o el 1] wiiedan pus uonipads odsIen SZNPOL 007 d5 SNVHLAvH| L1
- %07 66 %066 701 - - [ 6661 90'80 5391335 KIGIEIOQE( e "0°6 2 'd5 qF1-01d IMOTn{s(1-oMOp TEANPoL omISIOGaISpoad] 91
N %59'66 %59'66 8L - (18} [ 66611100 Huipen pus Kaia03 2P "a'67 45 VIDNANA-IVH] ST |
- %8666 %8666 000 € - - 000 € L661°T1°ST SIS PUE sateda) PMEIOIM 60 7 d5 w3y smoriiniing-oulKaKisamil] oAsiolgaIspazid| vl
- %00'00¢ %00'001 185 L (868 9) (863 9) gl L661°11°8T poyauw finy Aseipisqns $21a335 *uaredaz “Fursiasdns (earuyac) BuIgazIL (00 z dg waysuss LoyeN Aj3unoy) 00 z “dg muigaz1, yenomg| €1
- %600°00 1 4600°001 0 (v6L) {058 1) osg 000TFo L popaw g Lsepisqas Fuueors u_u_._ﬁwm_nzcﬂ__vu% ‘vodsuen zoNpIf ‘002 °dg SNVULTON-4Vaf T1
Snpaid
- 4600001 %00'001 o - - 05 6661'L0°€T poyauw |1y Areipisgrs 110 9pnID PUT [Z31UY3 13410 pui engazI) wozds vemoyen] L
xem ‘uyened §o sojes pue uonanpad
- %00°001 %0000 688 [T 119 1) 00 T T00TL0°1E poyw {Iny Keiprsgns S35 Mmpaiogey 2npar 00z ds avIdva] 01
00
zdg g wapo sprov| o _ o S3IRLIE 002"
pitog Arosiazadng| %0001 %0000} zL61 8L 68 1 000T°90°€T pourxi (i} Kseiprsqrs P S1onpoud eanaysanad o apen ugqn] e 070 2 °d5 AZOPRZIAS WINUID 2451GT 110-0n2d | 6
w1 uofe
- %0000 00001 0t - - 720 ey IREM 0MONOH 007 dg wnny10g] 8
- %0000 1 %00°001 880C (£68) (c68) 187 2 Auaniaz apeyy 1932928 o0z ds oy aangdis]
- %0000 400001 - - - - el d RormBg) woysn g Hqug 1 24 mappioN OLN| 9
- %0000 2600°001 €998 - - 99 € Kiepisqns 3péd sed pinbi] Adeq_ “o0z ds Ade) redonnd] ¢
- %00'001 4600'001 [x4374 (Ly6 1) (tv6 1) 0Ly 9T PpoyRw 11y Aumpisqns % euqaz1y ‘ooz dgepamoivug| v
- %00°001 %600°001 K43 - - %74 007 Z0'8T PO |7y Bulped sy Rueuna5) woyswy HQuS pron waipieyue L Famar] €
B %00°00 %00°001 1 - - - 007 70°87 POYI [y SISSE (Ruinasy) wnyoog HAWO 221055 JWV| T
- %00°00 %00°001 £6L9¢ - - £6L 5T 007 T0°8Z POYIW 7] Fagpei sy (Rupuiag)) woqstiiy T1qiD 1POIEIAUIN_LHAD0R APy DV iaa)syueL NG T40] 1
4 4 P3TRPIJOSUOI pAjEEIpIOgNS ARALIpUN SAuEdwo)|
sauaragp
uolisupop SIPIOYITYS pupp vy Ruanppuy
jo sgsuq (4 10 Jo duprap umo jmjdes saimys ojIRgHuL: FARYS jo wedIu)s Bujuied diysuongpa
o :.__E- uy “u“o_:.ui, [-13u37) UO $3H0A u..-”“ i uhﬂ.ﬂuv‘.& Jo anjRs Noaq Bapagrug angEa J23ys 22ummq 110 »363-_! _h:“ev uonEpyosues jo poyia _-”_a-u y.“.: Auanae bt 1410] [#324 JO UORTIPU] iy JueN -oN
uRyy Q0 1m0} u] J1BYS bugofs (og)od Jo aep
uopEN|BA [B30] .
] A 1 1 y kil [] 2 P > q .
STLLILNT GHLVNIGHOUNS N1 STAVHS O SIAVILS
1t NN



1S OF ~ - 915 OF {£007°Z 1 I£ I® 58 £1nba u) a1eys a38)uddiad Aq paynpsuod st 53tuediuod 3i) Jo IN[RA H0O0G AY)) PREPIOSUOD SAEIDVSSE JIJIIPUI 610 ] |
N B SPOOT IejIuIs pud [EXUAYD BUIPIEIa)
- %00'02 %0007 68 - - L6t €661 V08T poyiaw Kb w0558 SomAnoe AImpauLIa pus apen funquiz)y HQuo jonadamuay))| €
- %:00°0% 12:00°0% 008 ¥ - - 008 ¥ 0007 10°€0 potaw Kunba 318130558 TorpRpoid 110) #2014 "oazdgjedayf 7
. i Sjeuuna) Suipropel
- %18y %1L'8Y 61€ 5¢ - - 61€ $€ 1661°L0°LT popan Qb ajeloosse spany pinbiy o S ASUEp) ‘o0 zdg podoyen| t
PIEPIOSUOD $ITEII0SSE 1AL
- - |22 (53 | PaIupIjosu0s sajusdimiod a1njuaa Jujof AN39.1p0) (810
- Joeo0'0s | S - I- {0 [ | ISR poypaiis KNDS Smuss ool | Spety [ eruenwry wpadiery 00 2 “dg wpodiey 3a1eg diys avn] 1
| «xPRIEPEOSUOD £21UEd WO 2IN)UIA Jutof ApFaaipu)
669 £SF - - 669 E5¥ (€007 Z1°1£ )& sB A1nba 0y a1vys adejuadsad Aq paympsuod sy saturduiod 3y) Jo IRIBA §00q Y3 PAIEPIOSUS) sajuvduond ainjoaa yujof Aprasp xyo] |
——sugaoRiod
- _.\qoc.om _.\bo.% 669 €5t . - 669 £5¢ 70027161 poyiau Annbo amuan nuof _ o sopes pue _s_;:__ns_,a “uononposd ord 00z dS SNITTOATOd NITHO ._.Em..a_ 1
patepijosuod sayurdwod armyuas yulof bﬁv.._m_
£9L9 (r51) ﬂ...z 1) yiy 8 you I Ap3aa1pu) 53y L
- 260015 %00 15 0 R 97) 57 866140762 PIEPIOS03 10U Kivipisqns GONIH{0D SIIO PISH ursoL TBepEll 00 2 05 1IVANVE] 81
- %600°1S %001 0 - (53] [33 8661 ¥0L0 PajeposUOD J0U “Kiipisqns 109 5110 pIsn 310d0 (Fousajosur paneop Luwdiio)) 007 4§ XAWOULAI-NYY] L]
- %00°1< %00°1S 51 () [CD] 691 86611067 PIIEpIOSUC) ou qns 163 S110 pasit Motz g 002 dg TIO-NV| 91
- %69°09 966909 19 () (vt) sol 8661400 PaIZpij0suoa jou Kreipisqrs 11931103 S110 PasT uIaz3z§ "0'0Z "dS SISAV-NVU| §1
SIONPOIT 15430 pue
R . . ror 10 3pRII [ESIAOYM PUE [1E101 JO evenatfrEprON
%6009 %0029 u ° (521) st 00078001 PRAZPHOSUOD 108 Aetpisqrs SWl0) ‘SAFo[ouYIA MIU JO HONITPONUL (outemn} momy M YNIVEXN-0ULAd '0°0 Z "dS IIULI0] A 0ASIOIGIISPIZL] YS[04-0ysmErnyf) aujodspy vl
P Patejal SMBIANIE [eunausdanus
- %00'9L 9%600°9¢ 0 - [7%4] stz 00071172 Paep1josuos jou Zreiprsgrs spen EIERGYT) OulM 03 S04/pIeA OunL WEunIoEN) FALN] £1
$i3npdad 13410 pue [eon
3 5 3O 3pEn IYTSIAOYM pUB IRAI JO -
- %00'08 %00°08 o - (€€) 34 1007°€0°$0 tou Kserpr sunog .ﬂ_ua_.,_éh_ﬂuu Jo _.a_zuvi_.. {auteny) mon papuadsns Aianoe o0 2 dg pi7 euresynanagf 71
Yim patefas samande fermaussdagus
Spnpoad
- %600'08 %0008 oy - - or 1007 09T POIEPI{OSUOS 10U Arerprsqns Ansuput pus pooj “jeannasmuneyd ol 007 d§ VIALSIDONAEN] T
30 3pen [ pus AjEsIOYm
- %00°S8 2600°S8 et N - SEE 00022091 PRTPHOSUO3 10U S0V FUIF|ING pue 3pil unqY 22N 502 'dg juowonag] 01
- %6188 %6188 [541 N G1) 0] 6661 V060 105U03 10U ALK Bunygly 3y 3234p3f 002 d5 VZOINMOLVY VEZN1S-4vi| 6
- %600°C6, 260076 Sl - - St 1007 20°€1 PRIEpHO5UOI 30U Keerpisqns SEV J0 BONRLISTP PUE Spih) 014 V'S 99303d Propomazidrag hayylzen omsiogaispazig| 8
RIASE LONTaI53]
- %56'L6 %5$6'L6 21y | - - sivt 00T 10°€T PorEprosL02 J0U Ampisqns prae Sugsar Bupns pus Sunuanasd A3y ‘o0 2dg eyulishiy, amoysinatpzn wnuojeues| ¢
- %L6'66 %0666 6LP | (559) (559) ¥E1 T 5661°60°11 PoIEPHOSLOD JoU Kiziprsqns 33155 SUEY S gz &0 7 05 ewiezog 7elis emopeiiez] O
- 9600001 %0000 768 N - 768 €00270'8T PHOSUO3 10U Kieipisqns D SIDIATSS AIOSIADT UEILAT) WISYSWT "HEpL] = HQuIDy Fumnsio)) % Fulpel] paodom| ¢
- 9:00°001 %600°001 1«4} - - 24} £007°708T paiepy 10u Aipipisqns v —— L Hqui 97 apespy yeyosljasadsqarnequayaisyueL)
- 2600001 200001 821 99) (73] 00Z 20028012 PoIRPHOSUOD Jou Kimpisqns SIDIALZS SUISAS UOK azo4paf "002°ds Lg-Avi| €
- [2400°60 1 9400001 98¢ |- B 8¢ €007 2087 PIEpHOSUGS j0U Keipisqns MNeIS Rumiuany woysug HQWO SGILILSAO[RISUIN VIFF] uueuidH| T
- 500001 9600001 105 1- | () 8 9661 V09T PRIEpTOsi03 Yo Aimpisqns GI[EZSOY/ 84T exF] 00 2 d5 Jame(0(x 1] o2V - 623 duioy omisioigarspozidf 1
. i jou i £ppaa.3puy sy D
FESTTEFETTINY
uopBujmop L1apjoyaseyg pupy uy ESTTELTUTE
Jo sysEq (40 Jo Bupaagy saanys sasmys jo Jueaysudis Sujuyed dyysuoppejas 5
(1 yu10d 0y pawopuawn | jriavany uo eaj0n §  aseys o 23emasand | jo anpsa yooq Boppnpy | onpss sasys aauneq | 10 s3a0amey jospues | UORTPHOSIOI IO Posiam jande aseys Apos onesal 0] [383] Jo uopEpU wipw aivN -oN
ury) Y0 15191 uj Eys -+ puofy jonuod jo 3ep -
uopEn|BA [#)0)
] £l |4 § y k4 3 2 [ El ) v

{puesnoy N1 w1}

Gl (B 4 0 R N E e m
VS

)
EN W

SALLELNA QALVNITHOANS NI STHVHS HO SANV.LS
I 0N



Gl S OO ) N N TE =N el Pm

{puesnoys N1 ut)

BIETE
YEN Wi

€T
$007 Axenuef 1 to uondesuen Sutpuadsns SUSHIPUGD JO JUAU[IYIIN ‘00T PGUIIX [ ¢ 10 Plos AURAWIO) YL 4apspe
%00'1€ - ‘0’0 2 *dg JueLonsd NITHO ‘%00 1€ - 00 2 'd§1403don2d NITIO annns
%00'8 - V'S BIUIGIZIL, BUIULEY ‘9400'18 - "V'S 9Z[POf AIJEN CLOULRY 4yys
%009, - 00 2 d§103Jondd NATHO %0067 - 007 d5 10 NATHO «se
22D NATYO “0°0 Z “dg apa NITIYO “V'S [MMuy 00 Z ‘dg Jueonag NITYO “0°0 2 dS IO NTTHO “0°0 Z "dS woidonad NATHO V'S 322Paf AYeN Busuey “y S vluqozL ], euauyey :so1uedwod oy jo wiof pue 1 'SIUBIPISANG 44
%ILL - V'S 9ZUPIL AYEN BLOUEY ‘%8S GL - VS BIUIQIZIY, BLUYEY
puesnoyl 870'0y YNJ JO wdferinbs (,
91ep 199Ys 20ue[Eq I8 UoUENjeA Wolj suted agueyoxa uBlaio)
PuEsnoy; 870°08 YN JO UdfeAInbI
£007 Areruga4 87 18 39e|d 400} YoIym ‘a5e31ous [eItdes 210339 ‘SILIRIPISQRS AUBULIZN U1 $31eYS JO aseydind Jo Jjep
_ _ Ly LTL (€67 65) (668 61) 9LELYLI spasse |spouruly Wi ue) e |
971 b (LEP €) (506 8) 1€0 €F dnoany yende) NITHO NMd 2Y) o 1 pue 1psogns [E10] |
8LE {6) (615) Ler PITEPHOSTC 10U $3)BII0SSE JIpu 810,
N %0007 900°02 [ - £l 6661°10°90 PRAEPIOSUO3 JoU Sjetoasse S35]A235 puE 3pal) 22onpaf 007 35 TVSHAMINTAVE] ¥
- %00'0% %0007 09¢ - - 09¢ 1661601 JEI0sSE SpeN S|y ORI 007 dS sed| €
- %049 %0L'9Y - () [} oL 000701 %0 Paepyosuos jou 318130558 U0H3]]03 510 pIsT orsAzig "oz ds ATVIE-NVE] ¢
paog Kosamdngf o . oo Knsaput oliqnd>y 0TS 7Y It
w Aquoleyy | 0060 %00'6Y s - (6} vs 100777481 paepijosucs jou JmIdassy 10 r Saiazas pue 3pen vonanpoid | yszsy) dosug owg zono-ond| 1
»xDAEPIOSTOI JOU 5IJBIIOSSE JIIPU] [#10] |
L6L - - L6L PIBPJOSUO) 10U S2)RIDOSSE JI3NIP (B0 ]
samtioe) [eaeyaat pue Sunesy
- %56 vT %6677 L6 - L6 £007°90°60 POIEPYOSHOD 10U IRIOSSY 30 Bunjquuosse pue A1aA13p ‘sanawas moxery “0'0 24§ NATIOd| T
pue |
- %00'6€ %400'5€ 00L - - 0L 6661°€0'9Z PotepIosuca J0u AEI0SSR 3321013 [0y pur Buiares RIMRION ‘ooz dg mon] 1
PAAEPIOSOOD JOU SATIOSSH JI3AN(]
89r 11 - - 967 (£0°Z71°1€ 18 58 Aunba uy aueys 28e1uadsad £q paymyisnod 51 satuedurod gy Jo NEA OO (1) PAVPIOSUOCS SIFRIIOSSE 131D [B)0]
Y%hT 07 717 - - [ P661 409 poma Qibe AISST SOOIARS [BUONEIAT TYS() "0z °dg v143d Sma] LT
- Sonposd 0z
%00'7T ST - €€ 000T'$0°5T porpawr Anba 2Ne1055 ST T Ou— I Ayong 0'0 2 "d§ Azepazids wngua) anpgsjodoxjam Ho-anag| 91
%00'7T 1€ - - v6i 1002'v0°60 pogaw Aaba nersosse 82044395 puT opRs} ‘UoNNpesd 7smN0o "0'0 2 "dg Azepazidg wnyuay) auysels NO-omxg) §1
2400'02 g - - 201 0002'01°20 poyotu Anbo FEID0ssR $901A135 pue 3pen ‘vonanpoid Astepry oo z "dg Azepazidg winnuasy apysiowod pO-onad] #1
%0077 L1 - - 431 6661 11°LL popaw Ayrnba e1d0sSY Anisnput 110 vy 5314135 pus apen eai] o0z °dg Azepoadg wnnua) aniseisoutoq po-onad| €1
. o e Spnpoid . ooz de Kropersd
%00V - - 891 000CZ1°LZ pogpaus Kl ampossa prannayaanad jo ope puw vonoNposd wiorozg o02ds wAnua) of ! Z 1o-anagf 71
%00'vT LLT - - 891 000770197 poyisw Annba AT0SSR Ansnpuy 410 U1 $I01AIIS pue apry Ao¥skjetg 00 2 "dg Azepazids wWNnua]) ayselpoy (HO-onad| 1t
y - SnpoId —
%00°0T A - x4 4] 00070105 poyaw Kyaba ELTE JEmaysenad §o apen pue uononposd uonzozg 002 dg Azepazidg wngu3) anysiodojeiy 10-an24| 01
9600'57 - - 16 007211 popaw Kyynba Aw0s5R $901A195 ‘3]es ‘Bononposd 2po] 002 "dg Azepozadg wnnuayy anpzpoy po-on3d| 6
w Astiofepy %00'5T %00'ST - - - 061 6661'80°81 poyiow Ambd Aeosse AZSRpuI 110 U1 $I31A35 pue 3pen CMEZSIEA\ IMOING ‘ooz dg X¥mAES 110-0004] 8
- %9T'sH %IT'SY orl | - - 14 £661'20'97 pogaw Anba posTR AIMEPO| M ‘o0z -dg andgdy NHdd| L
- %98'SY %98'SH € - - L Y661 TI 61 Poyiows Kinba B00SST IMEI0| A, ‘50 2-d5 qIWI0Ud ddS| 9
- %96'9% %96'91 STE L - - BeI £661°80°1€ Poyiaw Aimba Fudosse pus Buunszaw jo .uw..nEE_s.. PMEP0IM ‘o0z ds AVZII-XAAV| §
- %6¢ LY %6 LY 060 € - - [ £661°70'97 pouiaws Qi 0558 sitedar pie podsusi paae! XIMEIOIM "502 45 WIHOSNYAL d I d| ¥
- %S6LY %S6LY 6L - - 4] £66120'97 poyiow Qb e0s5E 127 3 $3(es pus podsuay XPREPOIM “0'0z ds WAHISNVAL-OUNT m'd| €
- %8L'3y %8L '8 769 - - 0f v661°£0°€0 popaw Aunba Je0syR STSR UIDLF pue SPEOS ‘pUE| JO UOHEARINI| AIMeo| M ‘002 dg DOYA-0¥I 4 nz] T
- %1061 %l0'6¥ 781 - 051 PEOLPOEL poigyaw Kiinba 31830558 SaupTts Fuuuds-da 16 S XIE0LM 052 ds WOoUIM LNd] )
++PIIEPHOSUOD SI}EII0SSE 33a11pU]
sRuAIIP
SIapjoyaseys pupy uy auanyup
0 s15Rq (3 20 10 Bupeaty poumo [endes saumys HOINQLITG. saamys o umayudys Buynyed FU— digsuonugas - O B S —— :
([ yujod up pauopuaw | [rrauas uo sazoa | aseys jo 3Ferudsad JO 2n[EA ooq Bupnpuy {04 JIIGS ITUE[RG | 50 J3A0IYNY [OLJUCY (e2ded aseys oN
uEy) Y0 [#303 U} Aseys f lugof; joajuc jo apep)
uonEN|eA [€30)
1 k] T 1 y 3 ] 3 ] 3 q .
SALLLLNA QALVNIQHOHNS NI STIVHS O SANVLS
Iy 310N



43

(2] - B9 Li6 ¥l (981 1TSS [P lIZl | LSBUN rLZezz1 | 1080881 | v6s €8¢ L8EE8ST | S¥6SLI (£08 95) 900 B1¥ [378:1 31 - TE 166 18979817 ! Apdanp oy

- - 080 PEY 790 6v1 700 93 - 200 58 929 5L - 68% ¥8 wre {57} 6079 08 ¥1 - 8sS v st «00z7ds1o NATHO| €
- - 159717 8t ST 0s1 21 - 051 L1 19 - 089 1 o181 - 081 Lsvl - 005 01 [L72A] s 007 dS PUMOW NATHO £E

9ig - 6516 €159 92ET - 9ze T 9fE [ - 8T 2y - Iy 0007 - 009 1 w20V o002 dgnm NATHO| 7€

01t - $9€ 91 PI1891 gIv e - 8ive €081 - vy (0v8) - (0v8) 9911 - 005 1 (4] « VS PRfud NATHO| 1€

0o 1 - 919 g6 76 191 795 1S veLg 969 65 0099 [IAN 992 68 1579 - €79 168 5T - 6£007 19125 +e 7002 d51000m3d) Of
- - 12 iry 26¢ €8 (22314 - rLR8E SIBES 90T €60 19 519 to6t 2} (131 1L£9 - 6rL LY $0£77 «» '0'0 2 dg poyezonad NATHO| 67
818 - 8Tz 1z 6vl ¥l 4784 - 4784 ¥997 - €69 61s - 615 867 v - [1124 Lzt o0 G0 2 dg BYfiEIOMY NTTHO] 8T
- - 175 027 e 90Ty - 90Ty ¥s6 Ty 88 1 1€2 05 206 (59 5) (2L ?) 976 17 - o L60 €T «o VS HOIANSS - dINS| LT
- - SIvS6 veL T 713 - SIS 8 91T 750 LTI 8£Y 991 0006 (656 8) 019 ¥l [:1444 - vl 61 967 9L ve V'S LONITOS. 110§ Jtujedo) angsmejoamoulf 57
- -} ssg 18 6L5 12€ 87L 1S - 82L 1§ b 68 978 06 1£6 061 1507 (z65 87) (195 97) 681 6L - 000 8L 31901 + V'S 3zopar Ayen sueoey| <7
- - $9£ 992 | 1SS 491 ¢ 1oLl $05 € 23] $S6 %07 $780L SED 90F U o9 - ozp ove 960 89¢ - 000 051 915 858 vsumuy| b7
- - 955 9€1 1 81¥ 85t 5€201 | sezon £1E9P1 - 88 551 £5009 - £5009 oFb 661 - oy SES 708 + Vg Egezy muyey] £
- - $96 ISE 005 £L1 6 0% - 6 0 766 98 887 1 5T 06 10 0T (s9¢) 9E€ 0T 7244 - $£909 9vT €8 ve (00 7dg XY LIG Apaunc) 00 2 dS NESY NATHO) 2T
- - 196 St¥ 1y €8 1EZ €€ 18 o ve wLIES 8 18€ €5 €611 685 781 WL 91 - 005 11 0£0 0F « 002 dgWaIdonegd NITUO| 17
- - (7114 147814 3737 - ELy 665§ 6008 $69 §1 1524 - 2427 oor S1 - 007 8 15087 00z dg 10024 07

£t - 8LE61 1856 1244 - rwee [V 44 L nee (sp7 1) - (svz 1) €@gi - 686§ £109 s "0'027dg S[zOY-ukz12i7pay podsuei) NITHO| 61
- - 010 z6¥ | 066 761 S9¥ S6 - S9% $6 140 501 187 82 ces vl 7z - uz S6v 8¢ - osL 11 15908 « 002 dg yrejond NITHO| 81
s - 0ss ¥l 96€ 11 w61 - 61 700 1 - vBE | v - 2] vey | - vors 71001 2a 00205 UKIZS|O WOdsURIL NITHO) 1
- - 199 £ 801 5T ofL b 8L€ 8015 oseL - 0L 81 (515 ©) - (15 €) - - $166 ] s 00 2 °dS WNUOIRIOGET NITHO 91
- - 9£9¥T LSLST ¥6£9 - v6£9 Wt - 619 {rae ©) (€00 2} {292 €} 98L9 - 00081 61061 « 'V'§ Ameiedy Amopnd pepiez) i
L£9 - 665 €1 9L IT e - L1 24 10£T - e e 9T - 134 8IS L - 16001 SL8L1 «e 002 dg j0g emop NodsuBIL NATHO| P1

f£4] - sgp 81 95L ¥i [5x4 - ooz 3334 66 06L 7 L - L sz e - "o g 9611 e ‘002 dg ysdnjg podsuer) NI RO €1
- - SIE8L 180 (¥ WL - we ey 005 8 086 L1 j243 (586 1) (850 1) 6EL€ - (e 474 101 67 e 00z dg Yoo} uodsues) NITHOY 71
- - oLt €€ 81991 2443 - 5 ¢ [7AES 0g5 1 1569 6z (91 7) (8510 |- sov Tl e e 002 dS moryery bodsumiy NITHO] 11
- - 800 €1 2% 2161 - 816 1 iy - 606 1 (s10) - (s11) o9v € - yLI 615 61 +s 002 "dg unge uodsurl, NITHO} 01

113 - 8Ly [43:44 708 - w8 3L - (4 (088) - {(088) 9LE L - yIv e (243 s 002 dg W20z0ZS Modsurl g NITHO) 6

[40] - €1£07 850 LY 657 - 765 ¢ 6% £ - Zry 14z4} 3 9507 - - 65807 11342 w007 dg SUMLOY NATHO| 8
- - ozt 88 0€7 vol - v0l ot - 1] 244 - vy 69€ 0E7 - 3 6L 0£T e 002 °dS YWIAMOg NATRO| £
608 - 789 L6 697 L1 ¥168 - vL68 8E6 14 s 6 €59 1] 199 0 S - 0007 voL L +» 007 dgiuod NATHO! 9
- - L9067 e WO b - 830 ¢ 8€96 - 1Zz 01 (£26) (886 §) {(vEL v) 6897 - S6L € osL »e 007 °dg yEUOPNG NITHO| €
- - £6151 506 51 st - 713} 768 1 - 086 1 621 (r81) {{39] oL - 7244 ST6 £ o 007 dgBIPPW NITHO} ¥
[ - 8L6 LS9 TH0 6L 901 0 - 901 oy 619 ¥¢ i 61€ LE +98 ag) €8 088 61 - 00017 €L 1Y « 007 dg winuajouod NITHO| €
- - S¥6 0¥ zE1 101 1082¢ - 1082¢ 987 Ot 995 1£8 1% 8L61 807 1 981 ¢ 167 1€ - €28 ¥ 00¢ 6§ w00z ds RO NATHO| T
- - £95 6979 €91 8291 6v19€E - 6¥1 95€ 9€s LLL oLY 621 016 186 wuev (Lpe) 98¢ 957 €87 - 070 €87 LE1 1S | » dnoip e pueiysinag NI THOL |

Apsanp ]
J5¥ 3q) 103 anp puw a s - =8 3 3 g 2 g 3 Joussyyosd Anba imndes anasasf  pepdey | Endes aseys
poapaad sigaud of m EY m 23 2 3 parnqusipun |30 W U0 aueys Aypua jo awsy on
318YS pUv SPUIPATP 2 2 predun
s i
S & Qa2 5, Apug d pue s3jqedud s, Ay
[ " s 3 d ° 4 u w “ B [ i
SALVIDOSSY ANV SAMVICISENS NI STHVHS HO SHMVLS
¥ 230N
(puesnoy) NJ ut)

G NS S N0 G B =N S NN mE SN S GE =S S = e




133

iy - 6V L68 8L 7€ T6¥ 791 - 6k 191 £00 091 SI0€ 965 €81 £5£8 (9vS 01} (8%6 1) 9E1 IE - 86€ 671 986 651 P feiog|

59 - 9247 €96 1 66€ - 66€ 124 - s 96 - 96 91§ - 182 £6¢ 1 +0' 007 dg wenjonag) €7
- - $70 1 60V 3 L1144 - 4254 8Ly sor 169 ¢ (012) 01 (801) 173 - 00l € Lt s 002 dg mepaoup ZeB0Ng NITHO} 7T
- - 6E€ L st w091 - 7091 008 oS 898 vy - vy uze - 8 ¥$9T «s 00245 ONIWEHD 1 'STHd| 1T
- - 080 ¥EY 790 6t1 700 98 -} w0098 979 5L -1 68r v vy [3x2] 6079 508 $t - 855 € sy » o0z dspo NaTao) oz
- - 769 61 e o1 - @91 0zs 1 - _1L1 u - ] 986 - 000 1 €007 > V'S MISAZPQ Eloeziedig) - Yok doziy mofatQy in 3 6t

- 8LL8 6v6 1 3191 - S5 1 1667 - 19z (zve) (€9} sty 1) - - 989 (622} 4+ 00245 VIDOI0%T-AVY] 81
- 88 1 SIv6 ogl - 01 €96 - ssv 1 68T i | e8z1 18€ - 1679 196 L ss 002 'dg emezsiem vodsusil NITHO] £t
- - 105 ¢ 8T¢ €901 - €901 £LS 1 - st 14 (oLe) (89¢) 81 - 9se 1t SoL i « 00205 LYWTY-4VY) 91
i3 - w051 6891 [1334 - 3134 ws1 -Juse (e 1) e v 120¢ - vz 4] L6 €t +e 00 2 "dg veuzog nodsuery NITIO] St
- - 989 71 vSEE 7124 - 007 [413] - w8t 9901 (124}] o6 615 - o0g £1S 1 v 00z dgyeNona| vl
- - €96 ¢ ot LEv - i §Ig - 344 (ror) (306) (ze€ 1) - - 0002 879 v @0z dS SNVAUL-AVE] €1
- - 66T S1 S0€ ¥ 8¢ | - 3861 3144 T 699 € ] -l vee -1 ot 669 +x 007 dS qB7-01d Imodnisny Kopposg wquspazid| 71
- - 60 07 3784 89 € - 82 € fore - WOy Ll (518) (z08) - - 005 1 869 +e 00 2°dS VIO¥INT-AVY| 1t
- - vELYS 650 81 [3244] - 657 €1 1098 T 09801 96 - 96 o1V - 000 € 661 L - 007 dS WY ( 1qaspazid| 0
- - 1119 169 1§ ov6 81 - a6 81 [ [ €28 L1 999 1 - w9 i 91 - 095 71 69€ ¥l o» (00 2 °dg wagsuRI | OYEN Apaunio)) 00 2 dS BINGITIL LAVNOWNE] 6
- - €9 ¢ 9LE | 30 - 80v 8t - 18L 4] 81€ 1) (957 1) - - 0531 ¥65 ve 002 °dg SNVULTON-AVY] 8
- - 015 8v5 01 80LS - S0LS 855 L av1 ws w9 - 9 vs9 1 - os [24%4 v 002 °dgxumoyeN] £
- - ShS € 0oy € 007 - 007 2w - €L 8L - 8 86 - 005 Z 991 ooz dsgvT-avi| 9
- - 01 Zr 910 659 - 659Y U6t - {143 08§ - 08g osy - 006 { 534 e 00 2 "dg Azepozidg wnNUI) IYSQN] 110-ou3d] ¢
- - [ €008 133 - 65€ 96 1439 0EL6 [\432] (0£$ €) (796 €} 474 - 1202 {gzL 1) wse 00Z dgumy-rogl p
- - L0 6T 0ff 6 [14:39 - 078 < 59 ¢ - 29 (rv1) M (L0 698 - 18r 7 90T € +e 007 dg 018y 22105 diys)
- - 11001 97 € 9 - w9 6267 821 §90 € (sps 1) (] (68€ £) ER s e 107 «» 00745 Adey 7eBon3g| T
- - Lf 68 TUEpe 006§ - 006§ 1zrs - SitL 67L (228} (8v1) Lol - 8L LT LEr ez «s 00 2°dg wpawodiaugl )
1! D)
I o " 18k ;
g 3z 2 b3 4 28 Jsnowoud woay anges
J— S £ ,,m. F @ £ m £ (soppuosd O iones | Butpapur sanvBom)

155194 30} 2up pus ‘ = s m H m g% g m *o Joumigosd Anabs  Jendesanasaa| endes | pepdes assys

PRI Spgoud ug 3 g W b 2 El pamgusypun [0 su 2wme 2amys Aipua jo swey o
2IRYS PUB SPUIPJAIP 8 B pizdun

2 g
2 - :Buypnpau ‘saquaEa 5, {mug :3upnpu) ‘suoisjroud pus sajqesed s, Opoy “Buipnpou) “Gpnbol
) B p] d ° u w .
SALVIDOSSY ANV SAIYVIAISANS NI STHVHS HO SINV.LS
WP 910N

(puesnoys N1 ur)

GEE BE N N EE S SEE e GEE fm D N N A N e




9€

9 0166 160 € €el - £Lg1 96S 1 or8 244 681 - 681 (34 00r w ess 007 "dg Wwowonag| o1
- €20¢ sss L - e [713 - 30% 9 (61) (€1} - 2]} I ree 007745 VZIINMOLYY VEZNIS4VYH] 6
- weé €102 [244 - 224 6L 1 - 8UT (09¢) (569 1) ($502) - [L7A] (s1€) « 'V'$38309d F dzag if 0 12t 4| 8
- 1241 1992 91 - 91 w - 444 z - 4] z€l S6TT 6tv T eee 002 dg BUAISATY, nwmn L
- 870 L8 s6v - s6v 96¢ - ¥SL 1" (617) (300) 991 ez €607 vos ‘@02 dg 2uIEZOg TRAS EMOPEDEZ] 9
- - 156 16 - 1£6 %4 - ¥ 16 8 €81 - vzL 106 1epivopl 4 Howp Sunpasuo) g Butpeig pojosomp ¢
- 65v £fe € i34 - 0fE € - - oz e 9 () 1 - 14} w +ee HQW 97 3pRIpY yEososalsqainaquapisyue | ¢
- 324 943 Lt - ] 4] - €51 (87) - (82) 4l 007 981 w00ZdS LE-AVE] €
- - 414 v - 414 - - - - (£562) (€56 2) - 9LEE x4 wee HOWD SERUIRAJROJLIRUNN 15833 wuennol] 7
- L9l L 133 - 149 166 444 oz o (z9r) (9££) - €38 10§ sas DIET 002 S YOMTPOM 1] Ki0ZY - cully 2ujoy omimioigaispazid] |

jou aurduin))|

800 1 789 S1I ¥98 8¢ f4184} oov us S8L €1 €9 050 81 st (067 9) (699 £) 076 € - 795 0€ €18 0f sou Apaanp 1m0
- 4754 Lt 1412 - e Lz - v (v¥) - 9 19t 01z €8y s 002 dg UAZOZS SIMIIS] 91
N Lot 08€Z ¥ - ¥ 8T - 9¢ (€v2) (86} (10¢) ¥ 13134 2444 « '0°0 2 'dS sowonda] ¢i

uonepby ut 1so[pedn m 00 Z 0§ Eruzazag emop zeBanad NITHO| b1
- 918 _ 99T _ 265 — _ 765 6L — £66 1 _ otl _amc _GE _ 424 59 €59 «s 00 z°dg (heynpg unnuaj| ¢}
uonepinby uy 1050[pEdn A EmEZSIEM V'S Yowosd "Ll E| Tl

61 £iv9l fle 60L 1 - 60L 1 oz o€ 0744 61 (z8) (£9) 981 8L HE s 007 "dg zsmOTE sI3S| (|
- 686 1 669 1 179 - 1z9 819 - 616 (11D (rze) (SEp) LpS 209 ozL exs 002705 Zp0] SINIS] 01
- ot 687 1 24 - 14 18 v 169 azy (219} (€6} z 691 858 oxa 002 dgazsmoze Al 6

4 159 ¢ 1107 o019 - o9 8¢ - 113 73] - 1 (8 692 1 £I51 40 007 dS WYL SIM BMON SIRIIGY 8
- pIL 9T 15501 vz - ure 96t vEL 1434 519 - s19 88 1559 9608 oa 00 2 dg yokulfonghnsiq wazpazin pepyez] L

papuadsns An1anaeg papuadsns A3tAndB '0°0 Z "dSg YSUBPD 331G UL NdD| 9

896 121 ¥E 18638 69 - 6L9Y SOES 08t 888 096 1 - 051 6£0 1 005 660 € o 0027 °dS CUOIPO NITO|  §
- [§1%14 €lve €3 o0 (114 TS 1 - 61T 206 (897 1} (st6) 609 0001 (7241 e V'S BMOLOUS YOO BISIM] ¥
- veQT £967 8§ - 8§ £07 - Jx44 [ (o£z 1) (961 1) - 756 € 9L T w00z dgazsmorEN 'MZ| €
- 81£ 7 ¥Lze L9 - L9 ozt - oLl (L) (re6) (900 1} - oy 01 € «o 002 "dg taslnoutns (vLmvZ| T
- 08 Z 661§ 34 - €% 31 - ofl (61£) [(Z34)] {959 1) - sy 6906 s '0°0 2 °dS 2010YRIN SHVTIUNVYS] |

ou Andanp D
5 g iz | is THIET enopsad way omns
1581 2y 10j anp pue 5 ¢ 2 Z5 Z 3 ] T3 Jousyard ‘Anabs jondes aanasaa| jendes | eydeo arsys
papasas siyasd g z H g g8 g3 3 E pasmquastpun 10 S 3410 aamys Aipua o wey o
auwys puR spUSPIAD 2 by predun
E g
B - ‘Auppnjauy ‘sajqealdas s, A1meq :Buypnau] ‘suspsjacad pus sajquied s Onvy Buipnpu *Ajabo)
- ] s 3 d o u w .
SALVIDOSSY ANV SAIYVIUISENS N1 STHVHS HO SANVLS,

{pumsnog) N1d 81)

Y 20N

ker oS Gl OGBS NS OGN N N Em am




3

$89 0L - ££5 091 92 vhI 65L 61 - 6SL 61 98L 71 - 91651 100 67 1se vL6 19 i818 - €81 85 (208141 PIIEM050D SATPIOSSE 1P 810
- - €26 82 3337 ¥z - 1% 35 050 1 9 e 85 € - - %4 €8¢ s HQUO jonadonuad| €
Srrz - 16691 959 97 »8¢ €1 - Ry €1 £65 L 1298 ¥109 - v109 - - 000 Z1 viost w00z dgiodxan] ¢
oz g - £199¢ €L TN 126 € - 176 € SELY 979 1260 - 8LE TS 818 - w6 sy £05 901 +s 007 dg podoyen| 1
PIEPIOSUOT SIJEIDOSSE 1IN
- N 197 L1 i 156 - 156 S6L € S6L € {250 1) {99y 1} HEes 1) - - 99 (L9¥ T) Pareprosnod s2usdwod Junjuaa Julof AR3anpuy (KIog,
- - 19741 971 156 - L56 S6L € $6L € {190 1) (95% 1) (€€5 2) - - 99 (Lot 7) wxs 007 dg epadiepy 221ARg diys gVl |
Pasepijosuod s2juEdmod AMUIA Juje] AFatpay
- - 169 STL Scg86£ 1 | 006 951 - 006 951 777 8¢ i6s 9Ly LY 000 b - 000 ¥ - - 86€ LO6 86€ 156 PATposa0d sapusdiiod A yugof AP23P [FI0L
- - 169§TL SLB B6E | 006 951 - 006 951 722 8s¢ 16§ 9y Lvv 000 ¥v - 000 v - - 86€ L06 86€ 156 e 002 @5 SNIJTIOATOd NITHO TTASVE[ 1
pasepiiosuos saueduwsos ainyuaa yujof Ap3aatq
9 ﬂ - \TS €5 _ socar  fosy _ - _ wse  foss  fuson _ O 2 _aem ) _a’mm 9 | _ - fﬁ% u Jesse Yo faugpu oy
uoneprby u Horpmyy 1 002 dF LLVM-NYEY 8)
A3u3a10811 paseyaap Aueduio))| cos 002 °dS XAWOULTINVE| €1
- _ _ prR 1 _ 60r — i _ _ w [— ov 1? —53 %sz _:as _ 133 _ [_ﬁn — 69¢ w00z dgIoNvE| 91
uopspmbl) 1loeprayy w00z -dS SISHV-NVH] St
1o HREPIAIL M VNIVIDIN-OULEE 070 Z S ALI0) m omISIONGRIspIzIg apfsjog-onsuteny aujodsm) o1
uonepinbi uy tbomprayy m (eulfoys exjods - eliomiodsoy so4hpieA ouny autjeuoloey) MALNY €1
popuadsns Ajanoe papusdsns AuAnse ‘o0 z ‘dg pr] mnmynanad| zt
- - [ 43 £ - 3 6 6 (v) - (] - - 14 £f aes "0°0Z°dS VHALSIDOHAIN| LI
5 : ir | zs 2t | 3z nopst o o
ek W .m.. W w W q..-h ,m. w .m. M An»&ww_wn:n assol pasaros ..n,..m_ns.us aanedou)
1551 any 30y INp pus = 2 o -] ] g ) 53 sousyyosd ynba By de) aasasa:]| peagdes 1edes 2anys
ponpazas sijoad ug H H g 73 &3 3 g panquisipun |10 man s9we arsus Ao yo ey e
a1mgs pus SPUIPIAID H m predun
g “ :Bugpnjauy ‘$31qEA12a 5,007 Buypnpru) suojsiaaad put sajgeded s,pug “Ruspnion “Cnba)
" B 1 d o u w [

SALYIDOSSY ANV ST VIAISANS NI SAHVHS HO SAN VLS|

(puesnon N1d w)

I D G D O I N IS e

WP 230N




8¢

Haun w1 P Q NATHO "HAWD PUTlyasInag NITHO OV 1 N DLN HGUID PION U{IAISIUE ], PA] YGUD IAAIIS YWV OV UIIISTUE] NITHO 't ‘Saikrdwio) paEpiosuos pareuipioqns ABddupul putt KNO35IP jo erep eraueny) sapnpur {{
npnz Jump AMUS 2 4 ue

PANPNE 3q 0 paunbos 10U HUIWANS [RINIBUL 40,

00 7 “dg Sunoy 1 IS UEY) 13RO 101PNE AQ PANPAT STURUINES [EIOUEUL ,,

r0'0 2 *dg upny Buno | 7 15175 Aq pampns JUAUIES [EIOUBUY

or - P12 L6 £9€ 91 190 11 - L9011 99T 11 LSS 10 €1 891 (961) 865 orl - 95T 1 LIEE PIITPI|OSUDI JOU £3)E1I05SE 133IPUF 8101

- - 01 861 89 - 89 06 - 06 8 - 3 [4 - 59 801 ses 002 A5 TYSHIAMINN-AVYE]|
or - 19248 vEl St 677 01 - 620 01 {411 23 1ozt 691 - S6L 8Ty 1 - 006 e cess COZ UG IS}
- - 265 951 " - i 18 - 18 () (79} (v} - - 0s1 9 +as 00 2°dS AIVIENVYE] T
- - g8 st8 (234 - 66 98 - 98 £ (re1) acn - - 1l ot v OTSZDIQ-0N4) 1

PIIEPHOSUOD Jou $IIEPOSIE 1IEPuU]

- - ©or9 [724] 687 - 687 {73 - €L 141 (9209) (250 9) $851 - olos 33 PIIEPHOSUOD JOU SANEOSSB 1P |B30]
- - - 9 7 - 4 " - 1t (z2) (6L5 v (109 v} SES 1 - 010 € (9) ers '0:02°dSNATIOA] 7
- - £9r9 124 87 - [£14 173 - 1L o (Lov 1) {15y - - 0007 675 ves GOZdS fRIOW] 1

PAIBPIOTI0D 100 s318y08SH 1201

€07 - vz9 61y 1oyl 951 09 - 95109 86 08 L8 80178 61 [T 4)] 802 11 oL - o9y 11 8LETE POJEPHOSUOD §2)BI055E 13311pu [st0 L

v - IS € 9T 101 - 101 ] 06 stt 8¢ - 091 89 - 607 1501 +ae 00Z°dS VIEAd SMT| L1
- - wies ¥91 07 10911 - 09 1t €181 Stl 9£ 81 we € 9r9 v - gl 8Ll s "0°0 7 "dg Azepazadg mnnua)) apysjodoydim Ho-onad| 91
- - (41314 9586 €6e L - WL oS 6 - 6 00l (065} (06t) - - 008 113 +x 00 2 d§ Azepazidg wnnuady aptselS 110-0n2d| SI
- - 11424 819 661 ¢ - 611 € 819¢ - ¥69 ¢ 951 @51 (9} 34 - ose 88 2 0°0 2 "dS Azepozadg umyuag appsiowiod 110-0ad] v
- - Q0L ¥T Sivs £LL T - L s8Iy - y9T Y 414 - e 691 - 0ss ISTY +a 00 2 dg AZepozids wnnuasy apyseisouloq 1O-onvd) €1
- - 8o <L 80V W0ELT - wee (2431 - 308 € 6 (605} (005) - - 00L 00z o 002dg wRnuI) 31 " no-omadl 71
- - 7AW 986 ¥ 60LT - 60LT $96 € - (7234 Log - I3 v0p - oor et w002 °d5 A7eponids wnAua) pysEIpod NO-0nad) 11
- - TLl68 [¥/374 i - e I1s¥ L1 - 986 L1 Y0z {o1) 881 151 - 0009 6€£9 e 00 2 "dg Azepasidg winua)) anysiodoe 110-052d) 01
- - 968 11 ¥$9 7 $65 1 - $6S 1 134X - [ %4 (s01) - (s01) - - 00T 6 »e 0’02 dg Azepanadg tinyua) 34Zpe 1O-0H34) 6
- - $9€ 8T 856§ 2444 - 3444 S69§ - 991 € (809) - (809) oy - L 61 «+ 002°d5 XymIIS N0-083d] 3
- - 3241 9Tt v8L 1 - ¥8L 1 189 |14 0L 8 - oorz v - ot 81S2 e '00Z°dSANAAY TH | L
- - 98¢ 0i8 96t - 96v 562 67 243 L - [ 96¢ - 91 98¢ ses 0'02°d5 QINIOUd AdS| 9
- - $568 €10 u9z - 9t $L01 ol Wil 1z €61 89 vrg L - (34 8z v 002 dSYVZIAXIAV] S
- - 8L0Ll 15001 66117 - 6617 3123 6L zIs € §5T - 9809 w0 - [4x4 0759 s 002 0§ WIHOSNVUL dYHd| ¢
- - $1TSH 9€e € JAl4 - uzz €91 33 89 1 81 - vép 1 31| - T 1591 +s 00745 WHHOSNYHL-ONNT "Md| €
- - 186 € €291 079 - [i743 e - e v - 61 9601 - 79 962 1 - 002°d5 D0¥A-ONI dNZ| T
81 - rI1891 €659 89E ¥ - 89E Y 6LL T 98 18 881 - 881 1444 - o€ e o 002 S NODYIM LVE] 1

PIIEPIOSLOD TIEPIOSSE 1321y

SIBIA
< 3= P =
3 3 2F 23 -4 - fsnopaasd moay (onpes
103 B E &3 g4 i3 3% ssopmond L o | ot anysdan)
se1 241 103 90p pus - - Py £ 55 Z=x gw e Joursioud “hqnba fendes assasas e 3avys
1581 341 101 20D P e 2 5 z3 53 73 g3 o sy 3930 &2 Jo owey
paagasas syoud oy 5 3 g 2 painguystpun |10 SW3H 33y 1 o
asoys pus spuapLIp 4 g
2 3
s “ Bmpngauy sa1q¥a1302 5,X0pu7 Buppnpay susisirosd pue saqeded s, inug “Supagauy b
1 s ) d o u w [
SALVIOOSSY ANV SHIMVIAISINS NI STHVHS 30 SANVLS
P 310N

(puesnoyy N g ur)

N T N EE N N B Ml E o TR MR SN S TR BB S e

VS NI A0



6¢

Sp4 atou ay w pajuasard uondo ind sumo Auedwoy) L,

-10§ papiaoxd jou sem uoistaosd YoIym 10§ “SITHIUD IO U SIIRYS ISOYY A[UO 218 PIIUISI
*€007 12quada(] ¢ e s Ajnbs s A11ua uo eiep [BIOURUL JUEAD[a3 9ARY Jou s0p Aurdiio)) Ay .

- L6 18€ T S8ITLO6 € 696 86¥ TVLOL
- - - - 4 »SPRUYO| L
- - %8070 %8070 971 19T €€8 6¥1 18 uononpoid yuswdinba Awre pue suodeom B[OM BMO[EIS eemoukzardg p-Z- emorers e[| 9
- - %10 %Z10 9L1 paediys eudpn + V'S Bukpy eluzooig| ¢
o e o e $301AT0S BAIUB1SAp pue uononpold e doyan-x
- - %TS0 %TS°0 §81 vZ £29 11 85 Surpjing ‘s[eatsata Jo 3PN MSIUICP puE UF12I0) EMEZSIEM V'S doya)-xaunjod| ¢
- - %LS'¢ %LS'E £99 Ot 99T €21 Ive S3O1AI3S JOJEM PUE WANSAs oFemas|  ysfodoyjaip monsO V'S NVIAOM] €
V'S eysjodoy[aip epensomny jo Auedwo))
Jueunwoc] 132(Gns 181y 03 Pare[al ANANOR IS0
- - %TL6 %L 6 00t 19 e pue sanued pary) Jo sanIqer| Jof [BI3IR[[0D weposury o » A€ 11 PURIICH VSMYV]| T
Supuead se [[om se ‘Auedwod Ly[iqely parnwi|
me| yang Jo Juduwadeuew pue sareqs Jo Suueaq
S901AIS .
- - %19°61 %19°61 000050 T 96¥ 616 € S6b 9tv UOUEDIUNWLIOII]I} TB[N[{A0 BMBZSIEM V'S [woyjed| 1
ended aueys
o s st Bunso suno
2”.._.”.‘_ 4 .”._ uba._m [endes aaeys predun| SIIPIOYIIRYS [BLIUIT) o aa”o\_s__u 0% SAUIBYS JO IN[BA YoOq Ananoe uoyEI0} ultoj [€33] JO UONEBIIPUI YIIM JWEY “ON
puE SpUapIAID 213 0O $310A 1y 21845 :Bupnam “Gynba s, Apua
t [} ) ) E] q e

SALLLLINT ¥AHH.LO N1 STYVHS ¥0 SAMV.LS

Np 210N

07 E?d m___ _m_ ﬁ:on_m_m _‘_mma:c
lm N7 EN PI1S10d

(puesnoy: N'1d 1)




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 40
ILONG TERM SHARES, SECURITIES AND OTHER PROPERTY RIGHTS (CURRENCY TYPE)
Ia in Polish currency 1671186 127321
b) in foreign currencies (by currency and recalculated to zloty) 555 260 22
bl. unit/currency 1/USD - p
zlotys -
b2, unit/currency I/EUR 120 056 59
zlotys 555 260 222
b3. other currencies in zlotys - 4
Total long term shares, securities and other property rights 2 226 446 1273 43

Note 4P

LONG TERM SHARES, SECURITIES AND OTHER PROPERTY RIGHTS {(BY TRANSFERABILITY)
A. With unlimited transferability, listed on the Stock Exchange (balance sheet value - 1984
a) shares (balance shect valuc) - 1984
- adjustments (for the period) - 74
- value at the beginning of the period - 191
- value at purchase price - 8 830
b) bonds (balance sheet value) -
¢) other (balance sheet value) - g
B. With unlimited transferability, quoted on OTC markets (balance sheet value) 341 601
a) shares (balance sheet value) 341 6008
- adjustments {for the period) (259) (B9%’
- value at the beginning of the period 600 1499
- value at purchase price 3111 3111
b) bonds (balance sheet value) - g
¢) other (balance sheet value) - E
C. With unlimited transferability, not guoted on regulated market (balance sheet value) - E
a) shares (balance sheet value) . ]
b) bonds (balance sheet value) - i
c) other (balance sheet value) - J
D. With limited transferability (balance sheet value) 2226 105 1270 84:
a) shares (balance sheet value) 2226 105 1270 84
- adjustments (for the period) __(2252)) {6 388
- value at the beginning of the period 2248 626 1277 234
- value at purchase price 2331624 1342 959
b) bonds (balance sheet value) . ]
- adjustments (for the period) -
| - value at the beginning of the period -
- value at purchase price 26 000 26 0004

c) other (balance sheet value) -
Total value at purchase price 2360 735 1 380 896
Total adjustments of the value at the beginning of the period (111 509) {100 251
Total value at the beginning of the period 2249226 1 280 649
Total adjustments for the period (22 780) (7213
Total balance sheet value 2226 446 1273 432
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

finaneial statements for the year 2003
{in PLN thousand)

Note 4Q
JLONG TERM LOANS GRANTED (CURRENCY TYPE)
a) in Polish currency - 98 050)
currencies (by currency and recalculated to zloty) - E
- 98 0508
Note 4R
{OTHER LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (BY TYPE) ]
ITmaI other long term investments - -]
Note 48
IMOVEMENTS IN OTHER LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
la! balance at the beginning of the period - L
b) increases - E
c) decreases - E
d) balance at the end of the period - ]
Total other long term investments - L
Note 4T
|OTHER LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (CURRENCY TYPE)
Note SA
MOVEMENTS IN DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - 4
1.Balance at the beginning of the period - J
2. Increases - L
3. Decreases -
4. Balance at the end of the period ~ ]
Total deferred tax assets at the end of the period - E
The Company compensates deferred tax provision and deferred tax assets
Note 5B
OTHER PREPAYMENTS AND PEFERRED COSTS ]
a) deferred costs, includi 137 580 145 022]
- write down due to the catalisators' wearing off 61 205 45 259
- cost of acquisition of customer (patronage stations) 58 423 75 501
- costs of company's entargement 638 1283
- leases 15493 16 187
- other 1821 6793
b) other prepayments 11072
Total prepayments and deferred costs 148 652 145 02
Note 6
[INVENTORIES
a) raw materials and other materials 1416 964 1241 96,
b) work in progress 232247 277 84
c) finished goods 808 020 876 564
d) goods for resale 109 482 79 559
e) prepaid inventory 1881 17408
Total inventories 2 568 594 2 477 665
As at 31 December 2003 and 2002 there were no inventories being collaterals for the Company's liabilities
Note 7A
SHORT TERM RECEIVABLES
a) from subordinated companies 700 010 353 56
- trade receivables due: 455457 345 350¢
- within 12 months 455 457 345 257
- over 12 months - 93
- other® 244 553 82108
b} from other cormpanies 1098465 934 660
- trade receivables due: 872 895 848 02§
- within 12 months 872837 847 891
- over 12 months 58 137
- budget receivables 83 451 49 368
- receivables taken to the court - 1
- other 142119 37264
Total net short term receivables 1798 475 1288 221
c) bad and doubtful receivables provision {positive value) 216 987 194 714
Total gross trade receivables 2015 462 1 482 934
Value of receivables being collateral for liabilities - 12 450

*including PLN 230,299 thousand receivables concerning ORLEN Powiernik

4]




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 7B

rS-HORT TERM RECEIVABLES FROM SUBGRDINATED COMPANIES

Fa! trade receivables, from: 455 457 345 35
- subordinated companies 354473 326 731
- joint-ventures 63 355 b
- associated companies 37629 18 619
- significant investor - J
- dominant company - 4
b) other, including: 244 553 821
- subordinated companics 244 270 82104
- joint-ventures 283
- associated companies - E
- significant jnvestor - E
] - dominant company - 4
Total net short term receivables from subordinated companies 700010 353 56
¢) bad and doubtful receivables provision from subordinated companies (positive value) 4504 6031
Total gross short term receivables from subordinated companies 704 514 359 591
Note 7C
[MOVEMENTS IN SHORT TERM BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBT PROVISION
a) balance at beginning of period 194 716 157 294
b) increases of: 84 576 119 164
- initial receivable 58 426 89 747
- interest 24 150 29 422
- other 2000 L
<) release of (62 305) (81 742
- initial receivable (39 859 (49 700
- interest (22 242) (27 047)
- other (204) (4 995
d) utilization -
Bad and doubtful debt proviston for short term debtors at end of period 216 987 194 714§
Note 7D
SHORT TERM RECEIVABLES (CURRENCY TYPE)
a) in Polish currency 1991 108 1456 101]
b) in foreign currencies (by currency and recalculated to zlotys) 24 354 26 835
bl. unit/currency 1/USD 3223 2 05§
zlotys 11833 7743
b2. unit/currency  1/EUR 2 605 4 709
zlotys 12 040 18 584
b3. other currencies in zlotys 481 507,
Total short term receivables 2015462 1 482 934§
Note 7TE
TRADE RECEIVABLES (GROSS) DUE: - ]
a} up to one month old 1092 268 957 491
b) between one month to three months old 64 263 46 333
c) between three months to six months old 56 868 33
d) between six months and one year old 39 87
¢) over one year 408 883
f) overdue receivables 289 651 339 417
Total gross trade receivables 1503 494 1344 239
provision for bad and doubtful trade receivables (negative value) _(175142) (150 861}
Total net trade receivables 1328352 1193378
Normal repayment period of receivables related to sales is 14 to 30 days.
Concentration of credit risk relating to trade receivables are limited due to the large number of customers and their dispersion across many different sectors in Poland.
Note 7F
TRADE DEBTORS (GROSS) - OVERDUE
a) up to ong month old 144 401 177 957
b} between one month to three months old 13 848 46 232
) between three months to six months old 12 636 18214
d) between six months and one year old 35659 30 09§
) over one year 83 107 66 914
Total overdue gross trade debtors 289 651 339 417
f) bad and doubtful trade debts provision for overdue debtors (negative value) (163 178) (109 978)
Total net overdue trade debtors 136 473 229 439




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note B

RECEIVABLES (GROSS) - DISPUTABLE

Disputable trade receivables

Disputable budget receivables

Disputable dividends and other profit distribution receivables

Other disputable receivables

Receivables taken to the court, including

- trade receivables

- budget receivables

- dividends and other profit distribution receivables

- other

2574

3029

Total disputable recejvables (gross)

18 445

23 313

Provisions set (negative value)

(18 445)

(23313

Total disputable recelvables (net)

RECEIVABLES (GROSS) - OVERDUE

Trade receivables

289 651

339 417

Budget receivables

Dividends and other profit distribution receivables

Other receivables

Receivables taken to the court

18445

23313

Total overdue receivables (gross)

308 096

362 730

Provisions set (negative value)

(181 623)

(133 291

Total overdue receivables (net)

126 473

229 439

Note 94

FINANCIAL SHORT TERM ASSETS

a) in subordinated companies

b) in joint-ventures

c) in associated companies
d) in significant investor

¢) in dominant company

85829

in other companies
- other financial fixed assets

85 829

62 765

cash and other cash assets
] - cash on hand and in bank

38883

- other cash

23 886

- other cash assets

Total financial short term assets

148 598

As at 31 December 2003 and 2002 there were no cash and cash assets being collateral for the Company's liabilities

Note 9B

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS IN SHARES, SECURITIES AND OTHER PROPERTY RIGHTS
(CURRENCY TYPE)

a) in Polish currenc:

85829

21 214

currencies (by currency and recalculated to zlotys)

Total short term fnvestments in shares, securities and other property rights

85 829

21 214

Note 9C

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS IN SHARES, SECURITIES AND OTHER PROPERTY RIGHTS (BY
TRANSFERABILITY}

A. With unlimited transferability, listed on the Stock Exchange (balance sheet value

B. With unlimited transferability, guoted on OTC markets (balance sheet value)

C. With unlimited transferability, not quoted on regulated market (balance sheet value)

D. With limited transferability (balance sheet value

a) shares (balance sheet value

b) bonds (balance sheet value

c) other (balance sheet value)

- fair value

- adjustments (closing balance)

- value at the purchase price

Total value at the purchase price

Total value at the beginning of the period

Total adjustments of the purchase price

Total balance sheet value

21 214




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 9D

FHORT TERM LOANS GRANTED (CURRENCY TYPE)

a) in Polish currency
b) in foreign currencies (by currency and recalculated to zlotys)

|Totnl short term loans granted

Note 9E

ICASH AND OTHER CASH EQUIVALENTS (CU‘iITENCY TYPE) 1
|a) in Polish currency 57 008 52 194
b) in foreign cumencies (by currency and recalculated to zlotys) 5761 9 444
bl. unitcurrency 1/USD 142 1771

Zlotys 521 5 799
b2, unit/currency 1/EUR 1133 658
Zlotys 5240 2 647
b3. other currencies in zlotys N
Total cash and cash assets 62 769 61 639
Concentrations of credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents are limited because the Company places its cash with several well-established Polish and international banks.
Note 9F
{OTHER SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS (BY TYPE) ]

|Totnl other short term investments

Note 9G

OTHER SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS (CURRENCY TYﬁE)

a) in Polish currency

b) in foreign currencies (by currency and recalculated to zlotys)

Total short term investments

Note 10

[SFIGRT TERM PREPAYMENTS AND DEFERRED COSTS

a) deferred costs, including: 328 760 429 693
- excise duty to settle up 273 800 383 304
- write down due to the i s' wearing off 25185 16 157
- cost of acquisition of (p ge stations) 12 563 11 879
- insurance 15 807 16 936
- other 1405 1415
b) other prepayments and deferred costs 18211 5679
Total short term prepayments and deferred costs 346 971 435 372

Note 11
IMPAIRMENT WRITE-OFFS

write-ofls included d in the 12 month period ended 31 December 2003 concerned:

a) receivables - value of receivables impairment write-offs created or reversed was presented in notes 3.C and 7.C. Impairment write-offs were mainly due 1o the worse structure of ageing of

receivebles and worse financial situation of debtors. Reversal of impairment write-offs of receivables was mainly due to payment of debt previously written off.

b) fixed assets (including construction in progress) — impairment write-offs of fixed assets increased in the year 2003 by PLN 63.816 thousand, from which 6.815 thousand were transfered to

revaluation reserve. Reversed impairment of fixed assets (resulting from the change of estimations concerning economic value of fixed assets) in 12 month period ended 31 December, 2003 did not

amount to significant value. Decrease in provisions presented in Note 2B resulted mainly from sales of assets previously provided for;

¢} intangible fixed assets - impairment charges of intangible fixed assets increased in 2003 by PLN |2 thousand.
d) inventories - impairment charges of inventories decreased in 2003 by PLN 3.53C thousand

AA
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 13A Own shares

In years 2003 and 2002 the Company did not possess awn shares,

Note 13B Emitent's shares owned by subordinated

In years 2003 and 2002 subordinated entitles did not possess shares of the Company.

Note 14
[CAPITAL RESERVE
a) share premium 1058 450 873 541
b) capital provided for by the articles 175074 175 074
c) capital provided for by the deed, over the amount required by articles 4 736 023 4338 544
d) capital arising from additional shareholders’ payments - E
¢) other 152 891 114 021
Tota!l capital reserve 6122 438 5 501 180§
Note 1§
REVALUATION RESERVE
a) from revaluation of fixed assets 676 526 724 35X
b) from gains/losses on financial instruments valuation - £
c) from deferred tax 2138 1199
d) foreign exchange differences from recalculation of overseas branches 51456 4
e} other -~ 1
Total revaluation reserve 730 120 725 551
Note 16
OTHER CAPITAL RESERVES (BY PURPOSE)
Privatization fund 53 476 53474
[ Total other capital reserves 53476 53 474
Note 17
[WRITE-OFFS FROM NET PROFIT WITHIN THE YEAR (BY TYPE) ]
|Tolnl write-offs from net profit within the year - .l
Note 18A
MOVEMENTS IN PROVISION FOR DEFERRED TAX
1. Provision for deferred tax at the beginning of period 248 415 192 0844
a) reflected in financial result 24% 614 192 817
b) reflected in equity (1199) {733
¢) reflected in goodwill or negative goodwill - E
2. Increases 170 907 93 18§
a) reflected in financial result of the period due to pesitive temporary differences 170 552 93 181
b) reflected in equity due to temporary positive differences 358 5
¢) reflected in goodwill or badwill due to temporary positive differences -
3. Decreases (277337 (36 850
a) reflected in financial result of the period due to positive temporary differences (276 043) (36 384
b) reflected in equity due to_temporary positive differences (1.294) (466
<) reflected in goodwill or badwill due to temporary positive differences -
4. Balance at the end of period 141985 248 415
a) reflected in ial result 144123 249 614
b) reflected in equity (2138) (1199,
¢) reflected in goodwill or negative goodwill - J
Total influence of change of CIT rates on change in deferred tax is presented in Note 34 B.
Note 18B
MOVEMENTS IN LONG TERM RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND SIMILAR PROVISIONS ]
a) balance at the beginning of period 71627 62 66
b) increases 18 156 9 557
c) utilization (5 061) {5%0)
d) release® (8 328) 4
Balance at the end of period 76 394 71 627

*) contributed in kind

a4k



Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
{in PLN thousand)

Note 18C
MOVEMENTS IN SHORT TERM RETIREMENT BENEFITS AND SIMILAR PROVISIONS .
a) balance at the beginning of period 11 663 11 606
b) increases 12 642 11 663
¢) utilization (11 663) (11 606
d) release® (1 294) E
Balance at the end of period 11 348 11 6634
*) contributed in kind
Note 18D
|[MOVEMENTS IN OTHER LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Ia‘! balance at the beginning of period 324 789 359 833
- environmental provision 317382 349 851
- provision for business risk 3 800 4700
- other. 3607 S 282
b) increases of: 48 804 1 95
- environmental provision 47 681 E
- provision for business risk B ]
- other 1123 1953
c) utilization of (300) (1530
- environmental provision .
- provision for business risk - J
- other (300) (1530
d) refezse of: (11447 (35 467)
- environmental Erovision"‘ {10 802) __(32 469%
- provision for business risk - (900
- other (645) (2 098’
¢) Total other long term provisions at the end of period 361 846 324 789
- envi | provision* 354 261 317 382
- provision for business risk 3 800 3 8008
- other 31785 3 607
Total other long term provisions at the end of period 361 846 324 78%

* the amount of provision is calculated based on an estimate made by an independent expert in years 2000 - 2003. The Management Board of the Company determined the amount of environmental *

provision on the basis of the reports prepared by independent experts. Amount of the provision reflects the best estimate of the M;

of the parameters determining estimated costs.

Board regarding future

based on the average level

** including: in 2002 PLN 20,497 concerns reclassification of part of the environmental provision from Jong term to short term, the other part concerns sold sites together with cession on the purchaser

of all future, potential liabilities.




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A,
financial statements for the year 2003
{in PLN thousand)

Note 18E

MOVEMENTS IN OTHER SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

2.) balance at the beginning of period 71 586 65 063
- environmental provision 46 602 50 00
- provision for business risk 24 860 14 659
- other 124 40:

b) increases of: - 38 634
- environmental provision** - 20 497
- provision for business risk - 15 078
- other - 3 063

) utilization of: (6 729) (15 743
- environmental provision - (6 729 (7 804
- provision for business risk - (4 876
- other - (3 063

d) release of: (2 109) (16 372
- environmental provision - (16 091)
- provision for business risk (7 000) E
- other (109) {281)

Totai other short term provisions at the end of period 57 748 71 584
- environmental provision* 39873 46 60X
- provision for business risk 17 860 24 860)
- other 15 124

Total other short term provisions at the end of period 57 748 71 586

* The smount of provision is calculated based on an estimate made by an independent expert in years 2000 - 2003. The Management Board of the Company d ined the amount of envi I

provision on the basis of the reports prepared by independent experts. Amount of the provision reflects the best estimate of the Management Board regarding future expenses based on the average level
of the parameters determining estimated costs.

**In 2002 the amount in full concerns reclassification of part of the environmental provision from long term to short term.

Note 19A

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

a) from subordinated companies - 230 299
- other financial liabilities relating to bonds - 230 299

b) from joint-venture companies - 4

c) from associated companies - b

d) from significant investor -

¢) from dominant company -

{) from other companies 1381 612 3349
- loans 1381 612 1
- other financial liabilities - 3 349
- finance lease liabilities - 104
- other - 3 241

Total long term liabilities 1381612 233 648

Note 19B

LONG TERM LIABILITIES (AGEING) .

b) between | and 3 years old - 233 648

c) between 3 and 5 years old 1381612 e

d) over 5 years old -

1381612 233 648
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
{in PLN thousand)

Note 19C

LONG TERM LIABILITIES (CURRENCY TYPE)

a) in Polish currency - 233 648

b) in foreign currencies (by currency and recalculated to zlotys) 1381 612 L

bl. univcurrency thousand/USD 218 063 L
thousand zlotys 830233 1

b2. unit/currency thousand/EUR 115 000 4
thousand zlotys 551 379 g

b3. other currencies in thousand zlotys - J

Total long term liabilities 1381612 233 645

a0
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 19E
As at 31 December 2003 there were no fong term liabilities from debt securities issued

Note 20A
[SHORT TERM LIABILITIES
a) from subordinated companies 297964 171 691,
- resulting from issuance of commercial papers 240 337 66 191}
| - trade liabilities, falling due: 57575 76 279
- within 12 months 57575 76 279
- ather 52 29 221
b) from joint-venture 746 L
- trade liabilities, falling due: 746
- within 12 months 746 9
c) from iated companies 22684 19 964
- resulting from issuance of commercial papers 11 005 8 669
- trade liabilities, falling due: 11679 11 295
- within 12 months 11679 11 295
d) from significant investor - 9
¢) from dominant company. - 4
f) from other companies 2847235 4077753
- loans, including: 555 675 1511 08!
- long term Joans falling due within ) year 2087 803 645
- resulting from issuance of commercial papers 65 597 3301408
- other financial liabilities (financial securities) 27381 724
- trade liabilities, falling due: 1226119 1243 439
- within |2 months 1226017 1241 312
- over 12 months 102 2177
- purchase of fixed assets 174 804 118 531
- wages and salaries 2204 19 504
- budget liabilities 792158 827 465
- other 3297 26 40
g) special funds: 30031 3141
- Company's social fund 23979 25 168
- Premium fund 447 447
- other 5605 5 6008
Total short term liabilities 3 198 660 4300 823
Note 20B
ISHORT TERM LIABILITIES (CURRENCY TYPE)
a} in Polish currency 2 056 241 257062
b) in foreign currencies (by currency and recalculated to zlotys) 1142419 1730 194
bl. unit/currency thousand/USD 241213 436 534
thousand zlotys 904 020 1706 461
b2. unit/currency thousand/EUR 49 089 4744
thousand zlotys 235387 19 472
b3. other currencies in thousand zlotys 3012 4 263
Total short term liabilities 3 198 660 4 300 823
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 21A

MOVEMENTS IN NEGATIVE GOODWILL

a) balance at the beginning of period

b) increases

¢} decreases

Negative goodwill at the end of period

Note 21B

[OTHER ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME

Ia accruals, including:

92 408 58 953
- long term - 1
- short term 92408 58 953
- holiday pay accrual 14 368 10 123
- cost of awards in VITAY program 47945 44 421
| - environmental pollution charge 4 850 4234
- voluntary retirement program costs 28 245 L
- other - 173
b) deferred income 1361 5 442
- long term - 1
- short term 1361 5 447
- subventions received 1361 1 535
- revenues from prepayments - 3 907
- other -
Total other accruals and deferred income at the end of period 93 769 64 39!
MOVEMENTS IN OTHER ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME
a) accruals at the beginning of period 58 953 34 51
b} increases 37865 31242
¢) decreases (4 410) (6812
Fd accruals at the end of period 92 408 58 953
¢) deferred income at the beginning of period 5 442 179.
f) increases 602 §011
g) decreases {4 683) {2363
h) deferred income at the end of period 1361 5 442
Total other accruals and deferred income at the end of period 93 769 64 395
Note 22
Net book value (A) 8374 451 7263 891
Number of shares (B) 427 709 061 420177 137
Net book value per share (in PLN) (A/B) 19,58 17,29
Expected number of shares (C) - i
Diluted net book value per share (in PLN) (A/C) - ]
* Method of calculation of net book value and diluted net book value is described in Note 41 in the description notes
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Note 23A
Off-balance sheet receivables from subordinated companies - i
a) guaranties and sureties received h 1
b) other . E
Total off-balance sheet receivables from subordinated companies - i
Note 23B
Off-balance sheet liabilities from subordinated companies
a) guaranties and sureties granted, including: 961 156 94 544
- for subordinated companies 961 156 94 544
b) other - 4
Total off-balance sheet liabilities from subordinated companies 961 156 04 548

A significant increase in the balance is caused by guarantees granted to the capital group ORLEN Deutschiand in the amount of PLN 815,082 thousands.
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A,

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 24A
|NET SALES OF PRODUCTS (TYPE OF SALES)
I- from subordinated companies 4382374 3221487

) sales of products 22 688 177 21 859 1508

c) sales of services 132 779 151 490§

d) sales of products - other 109 899 56 234

Total net sales products 22 930 855 _ 22 066 872

Note 24B

NET SALES OF PRODUCTS (BY TERRITORY)

2) domestic sales, including: 22 091 203 21129 571

- from subordinated companies 4382374 3221483

b) export sales, including: 839 652 937 304

- from subordinated companies - L

Total net sales of products 22 930 855 22 066 872

Note 25A

NET SALES OF GOODS FOR RESALE AND MATERIALS (TYPE OF SALES)

- from subordinated campanies 274416 84271

a. sales of products 1 665 455 1130 0604

b. sales of services 12218 677 841

c. sales of products - other 21435 17 057

Total net sales of goods for resale and materials 169% 108 1824 95§

Note 25B

[NET SALES OF GOODS FOR RESALE AND MATERIALS (BY TERRITORY)

Fa! domestic sales, including: 1702529 1 529 345

- from subordinated companies 274416 84271

b) export sales. including:* (3021) 295 613

- from subordinated companies - L

Total net sales of poods for resale and materials 1699 108 1824 959

* adjustment of sale related to previous period

Note 26

ICOSTS (BY COSTS TYPE)

a) depreciation 793162 819 884
usage of materials and energy 9551 763 9117 534
external services 1503 371 1608 723
taxes 9 400 802 9625 673
wages and salaries 447 544 408 864
social insurance and other charges 86 765 93 887
other costs 203 211 209 687

Total costs 21 986 618 21 884 257

sition of stocks and accruals 241 479 (147 872

Cost of products and services for own use negative value) (71 143) (22 796

Sales and distribution costs (negative value) (10 821 292) {10926 201

General and administration expenses (negative value) {604 456) (567 619

Cost of sales 10 731 206 10219 769
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN $.A.

financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 27

[OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Iaz releases of provisions

18 556 31 34
- environmental provision 10 802 28 063
- release of provision for business risk 7000 900
- other 754 2379
b) reversal of impairment write-offs of assets 46 143 59 143
- impairment of receivables 39 859 49 7008
- impairment of tangible assets 2754 6 244
- provision for inventories 3530 3197
c) other, including: 272572 47 097
- income from recovery of current assets 727 5 3644
- value of finished goods -
- income from perpetual leasehold 4107 4 346
- fines received 5925 13 058
- stocktaking differences 5839 2149
- difference in contribution in kind* 225 631
- other 30343 22173
Total other operating income 337271 137 577
*concerning mainly Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. presented in the note 60a
Note 28
OTHER OPERATING COSTS
) setting-up provisions for: 48 804 20 094
- environmental provision 47 681
- provision for business risk - 15078
- other 1123 5014
b) impairment write-offs of assets, including: 60 426 89 742
- impairment of receivables 60 426 89 742
c) other, including: 59 500 47 023
- surplus of net value of net assets contributed over the value of shares received - 13037
- write down of overdue accounts receivable 547 7402
- donations 5040 3 50
- stock count differences 4362 2094
- fines paid 777 1479
- court costs 1600 2013
- costs and loses due to administration of goods for resale and materials 6191 6970
- costs and losses due to recovery of damages 10734 7 70;
- input VAT not recoverable 8623
- other 16 697 2 82!
Total other operating costs 168 730 156 Bé




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 29A
[DIVIDENDS RECEIVED AND SHARES IN PROFITS 1
Ia from related entities, including: 20491 13 6ﬁ
- from subsidiary companies 9 680 1 464
- from joint-ventures .
- from asscciated companies 10811 12192
- from significant investor - g
- from parent company -
b) from other entities 46 509 2
Total dividends received and share in profits 67000 13 66
Note 29B
INTEREST INCOME
a) from loans granted 10 614 15 464
from related entities -
from other entities 10614 15 464
!b other interest income 27638 33 637
from related entities 4583 5 597
i - from subsidiary companies 4554 5511
- from joint-ventures 3
- from associated companies 26 84
- from significant investor -
- from parent company. -
from other entities 23 055 28 04
Total interest income 38252 49 101
INTEREST INCOME
a) from loans granted and debt securities purchased 10614 15 464
- received 10614 12 307
- not received - 3157
b) other interest 27638 33 637
- received 3512 4263
- hot received 24126 29 314
Total {nterest income 38252 49 101
Note 29C
|OTHER FINANCIAL INCOME
a) foreign exchange gains 75170 34 301
- realized 75170 5432
f - unrealized - 28 869
|b release of provisions (by categories) 22242 27 047
- for interest on receivables 22242 27 047
c) other 8056 12 965
Total ather financial Income 105 468 7431
Note 30A
INTEREST EXPENSES
a) from credits, loans and securities issued 102 758 136 411
- 1o related entities 3749 4 651
- to subsidiary companies 3609 3939
- to joint-ventures -
- t0 associated companies 140 pA b
- to significant investor -
- 10 parent company - L
- to other entities 99 009 131 7608
b) other interest 5391 1068
- to related entities 6 11
- to subsidiary companies [ 11
- to joint-ventures - 4
- to associated companies - E
- o significant investor - L
- to parent company. -
- to other entities 5385 1057
Total interest expenses 108 149 137 479
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A,

financial statements for the year 2003
{in PLN thousand)

[INTEREST EXPENSES

102 758

136 411

a) from credits, loans and securities issued
- paid

99 992

130 523

| - not paid

2766

5 88

Ib! ather interest

5391

1068

- paid

5267

394

- not paid

124

674

Total [nterest expense

108 149

137 479

Note 30B

OTHER FINANCIAL EXPENSES

a) foreign exchange loses

125875

- realized

- unrealized

125875

b) release of provisions (by categories)

24150

2942

- interest from receivables

24150

¢) other financial expenses

33 709

29 422
4

Total other financial expenses

183 734

29 46°

Note 31

[FROFIT (LOSS) ON INVESTMENTS SOLD

a) profit on sales of stakes/shares

50749

61 542

b) loss on sales of stakes/shares

Total profit (loss) from sale of shares {n subordinated entities

50749

61 5421

Note 32

EXTRAORDINARY GAINS

) accidental

b) other

Total extraordinary gains

Note 33

EXTRAORDINARY LOSES

b) other

Total extraordinary loses




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
financial statements for the year 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 34A

CORPORATE INCOME TAX - CURRENT

1. Gross profit

1134757

616 301

2. Differences between gross profit (loss) and taxable income, includi

306

16 679

|2) permanent differences between gross profit (Joss) and taxable income

(136 516)

51379

b) temporary differences between gross profit and taxable income

129 076

(22701

c) other differences between gross profit and taxable income

7746

(11999

3. Taxable income

1135063

632 98

4. Tax according (o tax rate for the year

306 467

177234

5. Tax allowances and increases

6. Current income tax as declared in the CIT decl

306 467

177 234

- as presented in the profit and loss account

306 467

177234

- relating to decreases or increases of equity

- relating to decreases or increases of goodwill or negative goodwill

Note 34B

DEFERRED CORPORATE INCOME TAX, AS IN PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

- decrease (increase) relating to temporary differences and reversals of temporary differences

(43 767)

7419

- decrease (increase) relating to changes in tax rates

(61724)

49 38:

eriod

- decrease (increase) relating to previously unrecognized tax losses, tax allowances or temporary differences from the previous

- decrease (increase) relating (o write-off of deferved tax asset ov inability fo realize deferred tax fiability

- other

Tota) deferred corporate income tax

(105 491)

$6 79

Note 34C

TOTAL DEFERRED TAX

- within the equity

(939)

{466’

- within goodwill or neEativc goodwi!

Note 34D

‘CORPORATE INCOME TAX PRESENTED IN P&L RELATING TO:

- activity suspended

- Tesult on extraordinary operations

Note 35

{OTHER OBLIGATORY CHARGES ON PROFIT (INCREASES OF LOSS):

lTouI other oblij y charges on profit (increases of loss)

L1

Note 36

TYPE)

NET PROFIT (LOSS) FROM SUBORDINATED ENTITIES ACCOUNTED FOR ON AN EQUITY BASIS (BY

Tatal net profit (loss) from subordinated entities accounted for on an equity basis

Note 37

Distribution of profit for the year 2002 as well as declared distribution of profit for year 2003 and retained profit from previous years are presented in Note 40 in description notes.

Note 38

Calculation of profit per share

Net profit for 12 months

933 781

3822704

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

420 804 797

420177 137

Earnings per ordinary share {in zloty)

2,22

0,91

Diluted weighted average number of shares

Diluted earnings per ordinary share (in zloty)

Calculation of earning and diluted eaming per ordinary share is presented in Note 39 in description notes.



Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 39. Method of calculation of earnings and diluted earnings per ordinary share for years ended

31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002

2003 2002
Net profit for 12 months (in PLN) (A) 933,780,782.19 382,269,825.11
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (B) 420,804,797 420,177,137
Earnings per ordinary share (in PLN) (A/B) 222 0.91
Weighted average expected
number of ordinary shares C ] i
Diluted earnings per ordinary share (in PLN) (A/C) - -

The Company calculated earnings and diluted earnings per ordinary share according to IFRS.

Note 40. Suggested distribution of profit for 2003 and distribution of profit for 2002 (in PLN)

Suggested distribution of profit and undistributed profit from previous

years
Dividend (PLN 0.44 per share)
Reserve capital

Transfer to Company’s Social Fund

Total

188,191,986.84
741,588,795.35
4,000,000.00

In accordance with resolution of General Meeting of Shareholders profit for year 2002 was distributed in the

following way:

Dividend (PLN 0.14 per share)
Reserve capital

Transfer to Company’s Social Fund

Total

58,824,799.18
319,445,025.93

4,000,000.00

382,269,825.11

Note 41. Method of calculation of net book value and diluted net book value per share as at 31 December

2003 and 31 December 2002

2003 2002
Net book value (in PLN) (A) 8,374,451,911.90 | 7,263,590,988.20
Number of shares (B) 427,709,061 420,177,137
Net book value per share (in PLN) (A/B) 19.58 17.29
Expected number of shares C - -
Diluted net book value per share (in PLN) (A/C) - -

The Company calculated net book value and diluted net book value per share according to IFRS.
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

NOTES TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Information about cash and cash equivalents is presented in Note 9.

Note 42. Classification of the Company activities in cash flow statement

The classification of the Company activities into operating, investing and financing activities is as follows:

e Operating activity includes transactions and events connected with the Company’s core activity, not
enumerated in financing and investing activities, for example: repayment of liabilities, cash inflow from
sales of finished products or goods for resale, income tax payments, collection of receivables from sales;

¢ Investing activity includes mainly inflows and outflows connected with purchase or sale of fixed assets and
with purchase or sale of securities;

e Financing activity includes mainly the securing of equity capital and loan capitals, as well as their
repayment and maintenance.

a) The reasons for differences between balance sheet changes of selected balance sheet items and changes
presented in cash flow statement

Receivables: 2003

Balance sheet change in net value of long- and short-term receivables (272,434)
Changes in investment receivables 164,699
Receivables contributed in kind to Basell ORLEN POLYOLEFINS Sp. z 0.0. (“BOP”) (88,067)
Other (39,081)
Change in receivables within cash flow statement (234,883)
Liabilities: 2003

Balance sheet change in short- and long-term liabilities 45,801
Change in short- and long-term loans and borrowings (342,466)
Change in convertible bonds liabilities 230,299
Change in investment liabilities (56,273)
Adjustment of liabilities resulting from managerial options valuation 41,426
Distribution of profit for 2002 to Social Fund (4,000)
Other 5,032
Change in short and long-term liabilities within cash flow statement (80,181)
Accruals and prepayments: 2003

Balance sheet change in accruals and prepayments 114,145
Deferred costs - loan commission 10,066
Other 289
Change in accruals and prepayments within cash flow statement 124,500
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003

(in PLN thousand)

Provisions: 2003

Balance sheet change in provisions (78,759)
Provisions contributed in kind from BOP 4,114
Other 939
Change in provisions within cash flow statement (73,706)
Stock: 2003

Balance sheet change in stock (50,929)
Stock contributed in kind to BOP (35,487)
Other 1,435
Change in balance of stock within cash flow statement (124,981)

b) Other captions in cash flow statement

¢ In a cash flow statement for the year 2003 an item A.I1.12 in operating activities an amount of PLN
(210,562) thousand is presented. This amount includes:

Positive difference on contribution in kind to BOP (225,631)
Other 15,069
Total ‘ (210,562)

¢ In a cash flow statement for the year 2003 an item B.IL.4 in investing activities an amount of PLN (88,868)
thousand is presented. This amount includes:

Premium on Swap transaction (85,000)
Other (3,868)
Total (88,868)

¢) Reconciliation between presentation of income tax (income tax paid) under accrual (in income
statement) and cash basis

A. Income tax presented in income statement (200,976)
- change in deferred tax liabilities (excluding provisions settled with equity) (105,491)
B. Income tax according to tax declaration — charged to income statement (306,467)
- income tax according to tax declaration settled with equity (939)
C. Income tax according to tax declaration (307,406)
- change in income tax receivable (35,289)
D. Income tax paid (342,695)
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003

(in PLN thousand)

d) Changes introduced to the financial statements for the year 2002 according to Polish Accounting

Standard no. 1 — “Cash flow statement”

Financial data
disclosed in

Comparative financial
data for the year 2002

Description of cash flow statement’s captions financial disclosed in financial | Difference
statements for | statements for the year
the year 2002 2003
AIL4. Foreign exchange gains/losses (30,540) (30,405) 135
A.IL6. Result on investment activity (72,699) (64,939) 7,760
A.IL.12. Other adjustments 20,796 13,036 (7,760)
B.IL1 Purch f intangible and tangible fixed
urchase of intangible and tangible fix (676.633) (754.811) (78.178)
assets
B.I1.4 Other investment expenses (79,443) (1,265) 78,178
IT1. Net cash flow from operating activities 1,053,275 1,053,410 135
D. Total net change in cash and cash equivalents (20,133) (19,998) 135
. h equi hy
G. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 61,639 61,774 135

period

According to the requirements imposed by above mentioned Standard, the Company changed among others the
presentation of fixed assets impairment write downs, prepayments for fixed assets, foreign exchange differences

on valuation of cash in foreign currencies.
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Poiski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand}

ADDITIONAL EXPLANATORY NOTES CONCERNING REPORTING BY BUSINESS AND
GEOGRAFHICAL SEGMENTS

Note 43. Selected financial data by the Company’s segments of operations

Business segments

The operations of the Company are divided into two main segments: Refinery Segment and Chemical Segment.

- The Refinery Segment comprises crude oil processing as well as wholesale and retail trade in refinery
products industry, primarily fuels,
- The Chemical Segment encompasses production and sales of petrochemicals.

The other operations include among others support functions, as well as repair-maintenance.
Segment profits and assets were established before eliminations. Internal prices in inter-segment sales are
similar to sales prices used by the Company.
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

ADDITIONAL EXPLANATORY NOTES

Note 44. Financial instruments

a. Derivative transactions

The purpose of risk management in the Company is to reduce the changeability of cash flows and
financial result using derivatives to hedge the main factors influencing their changeability.

According to ,,Market risk management policy of PKN ORLEN S.A” reducing the changeability of cash
flows related to the statutory activities is the Company’s major goal in terms of market risk
management. The Company manages the risk to which it is exposed, reduces the changeability of future
cash flows and limits the potential losses caused by the occurrence of events which might have negative
impact on Company’s results or endanger the continuity of Company’s activities. The policy and
strategy of derivatives usage is defined and supervised by the Management Board of the Company.

The purpose of derivative transaction concluded in year 2003 was to decrease the vulnerability of
revenues from sale of petrochemicals denominated in EURO. Revenues from the execution of contracts
on sale of petrochemicals, although expressed in PLN, are dependant on EURO to PLN exchange rate.
To hedge its revenues exposed to foreign currency risk the Company uses currency-interest swap
transactions.

Thanks to derivative transactions, whose characteristic of market changes is adversely correlated with
changes in revenues from sale of petrochemical products, the Company in the fourth quarter of the year
significantly reduced fluctuations of revenues from sale of above mentioned products expressed in PLN.

According to ,,Market risk management policy of PKN ORLEN S.A” the Company does not conclude

speculative transactions.

During the year 2003 the Company did not use hedge accounting in relation to the above mentioned
derivatives and as a result the change in their fair value was charged to the income statement.
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Sprawozdanie finansowe za rok 2003

(w tysigcach zlotych)

¢. Interest from debt securities, loans granted and own receivables

For year ended
31 December 2002

realised

Unrealised with maturity

to 3
months

3-12
months

above 12
months

total

interest
total

Interest from financial assets held for
trading

Interest from financial assets held to
maturity

Interest from financial assets available
for sale

Interest from loans granted and own
receivables

12,307

3,157

15,464

Total

12,307

3,157

15,464

For year ended
31 December 2003

realised

Unrealised with maturity

to3
months

3-12
months

above 12
months

total

interest
total

Interest from financial assets held for
trading

Interest from financial assets held to
maturity

Interest from financial assets available
for sale

Interest from loans granted and own
receivables

10,614

10,614

Total

10,614

10,614
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial Statement for the year ended 31 December 2003

(in PLN thousand)

d. Interests from financial liabilities

Unrealised with maturity .
For year ended realised 12 b 12 1 interest
31 December 2002 to3 ) above tota total
months months months

Interest from financial liabilities held
for trading
I.nte'rets't from other short term financial 92,496 4,062 i ) 4,062 96,558
liabilities
Interest from long term financial
o 38,026 1,827 - - 1,827 39,853
liabilities
Total 130,522 5,889 - - 5,889 | 136,411

For year ended — . Unrzailzsed with l;natur;;y 1ntt0etr:t

31 December 2003 to - above total
months months months

Interest from financial liabilities held
for trading
Interest fi ther short t fi ial
.ne.re.s. rom other short term financia 83784 630 ) ) 630 84,464
liabilities
Interest from long t fi ial
miches® from fong tetm financia 16208 | 2,086 ; - 2,086 18,204
liabilities
Total 99,992 2,766 - - 2,766 | 102,758

e.  Put/call option of shares/stakes

The Company owns the following put option for shares/stakes, which is not presented in the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2003:

e Put option of AW S.A. Holland I1 BV (“AWSA”) shares

The Company has a put option of AWSA shares to Kulczyk Holding S.A. at purchase price not lower
than carrying value as at 31 December 2003 (according to the agreement selling price of shares will be
the purchase price plus interest). Management of the Company believes that the put option is fully
realisable. The option can be exercised not later than in year 2038.

Shares in AWSA are not traded on an active market and their fair value being base for the option
valuation cannot be reliably measured in the view of Management Board. Therefore the option has not
been valued and is recognised in the balance sheet of the Company at purchase cost.

f. Information on interest rate risk

- The Company’s liabilities are held until the date of maturity.

- Effective interest rate for financial liabilities is similar to nominal interest rate (the Company is not
charged with bank commissions for most of loans and loan margins are at relatively low level).
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial Statement for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

g. Information on credit rate risk

- According to the Management of the Company there is no potential risk of not collecting the granted
borrowings (refers to loans granted).

- Though 18% of the Company loans are incurred with one bank, according to the Management Board,
there is no risk of loans concentration in one bank.

- Banks secure their interests with corresponding records in the loan agreements. In case of significant
deterioration of financial situation of the debtor, banks are entitied to demand earlier repayment of
the loans.

Note 45. Contingent liabilities and risks
a) Guarantees and other contingent liabilities

Type of liability as at 31 December 2003

Guarantees granted, including: 961,156
- to subsidiaries (i) 889,237
- joint controlled units 71,919
Other contingent liabilities, including: 900
- claim of individuals (ii) v 900
Total 962,056
0] including guarantee for Orlen Deutschland totalling PLN 815,082 thousand
(ii) contingent liabilities concern a claim of an individual against three parties sued for

PLN 900 thousand due to an accident of a family member.

b) Tax allowance

According to the Decree of Ministry of Finance on Investment Expenditures and article 18a of the
Corporate Income Tax Act (binding until 31 December 1999) and article 3.1 of Changes to Corporate
Income Tax Act from 20 November 1999 (binding since 1 January 2000), according to which the
taxpayer is entitled to decrease the taxable income by investment expenditures and in the subsequent
year to decrease it by half of the amount of investment expenditures reducing the tax basis in the
previous year (called “tax bonus”). For the 1998-2003 financial years the Company benefited from the
investment incentives in the following amounts (deductions from taxable income):

Company Tax allowance Tax bonus

Year 1998 294,689 168,397
Year 1999 258,662 129,331
Year 2000 167,444 107,538
Year 2001 98,444 40,485
Year 2002 13,845 49,222
Year 2003 - 6,923
Total 833,084 501,896
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial Statement for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

These allowances and bonuses are conditional. The Corporate Income Tax regulations provide for the
loss of entitlement to investment allowances within 3 years from the end of the fiscal year in which the
allowance was exercised, if any of the following circumstances arise:

1) the taxpayer has outstanding tax liabilities exceeding 3% of particular taxes due for specific tax
years, in relation to taxes constituting the state budget’s income and insurance pension premiums;
in case of VAT, any outstanding payments may not exceed 3% of VAT due;

2) the taxpayers transfer, in any form, the ownership of items that were subject to income
deductions or lowering of tax; this does not concern the transfer of ownership resulting from the
change of an entity’s legal form or the merger or division of companies, performed on the basis
of the Commercial Code’s regulations;

3) the legal basis for the treatment of fixed assets used under lease, tenancy agreements or other
similar agreements as a component of the taxpayer’s property ceases 1o exist;

4) the taxpayer is put into liquidation or is declared bankrupt;

5) the taxpayer is reimbursed for investment expenses in any form.

Tax authorities may also deny a claim to tax allowances if the taxpayer had been charged with
outstanding tax liabilities at the moment in which the tax incentives deductions were recognised.

According to the Act on the amendment of the Corporate Income Tax Act dated 20 November 1998
(Journal of Law no 144, position 931), when evaluating loss of rights to tax allowances made on the
basis of article 18a of the Act on Corporate Income Tax (being in force till 31 December 1999) and
article 3.1 of the Act on the amendment of the Corporate Income Tax from 20 November 1999, (being in
force since 1 January 2000), which was mentioned in point 1 above, it is stipulated that taxpayers do not
lose such right to investment allowance if they adjust their tax returns and settle the outstanding
payments with penalty interest due within 14 days since receiving the decision of suitable authority.

¢) Excise tax — contingent liability of Rafineria Trzebinia S.A.

On 15 November 2002, based on the act on restructuring of certain budget receivables from enterprises,
Rafineria Trzebinia, the Company’s subsidiary, applied for the restructuring of budget receivables
concerning excise duty and VAT for the period from June to December 1998. On 30 December 2002
fiscal authorities issued a decision on restructuring conditions of payables concerning VAT and excise
duty of total value of PLN 35.3m, stating the restructuring charge in the amount of PLN 5.3m. The
charge was paid in full in January 2003.

As a result of the audit performed by the Tax Audit Office in Krakow, tax allowance for the months
1-X11.1999, I-X11.2000 and 1-X11.2001 on VAT conceming production of diesel fuel with component
extracted from reprocessed used oil, was questioned. On 22 December 2003 the company received
decisions of the Director of Tax Audit Office in Krakow, which stated the additional VAT liability
together with penalties in the total amount of PLN 79.8m.

As a result of the above decisions, the Management Board of Rafineria Trzebinia, taking into account a
significant interest of the taxpayer and ambiguous regulations regarding the tax allowance on
reprocessing of used oil, applied to the Tax Office in Chrzanow for partial remission of the liability. The
application received a favourable opinion of the Tax Office Jury in Krakow. On 29 December 2003
Rafineria Trzebinia S.A. paid PLN 11.8m of overdue tax liability covered by the decisions of Tax Audit
Office Director. On 31 December 2003 the Head of Tax Office in Chrzanow, after obtaining a positive
opinion from Tax Office Jury in Krakow, issued a decision, in which the remaining liability of PLN 68m
was remitted.
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial Statement for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

d) VAT litigation

On 30 June 2003 General Tax Control Council issued to PKN ORLEN four tax decisions related to
December 1997 and August - October 1998 VAT, setting tax liability higher by PLN 15,451 thousand
tax liability and interest of PLN 19,613 thousand. The decisions were questioned in accordance with
Article 26 paragraph 2 of Act on Tax Control dated 28 September 1991.

General Tax Control Council, after reassessment of four issued decisions, cancelled former decisions
and on 19 September 2003 ceased the proceeding.

e)  Power transfer fee — settlements with Zaklad Energetyczny Plock S.A.

According to the paragraph 36 of the Decree of Ministry of Economy dated 14 December 2000 relating
to detailed methods of determination and computation of tariffs and electricity settlement regulations
(Journal of Law No. 1 dated 15 January 2001), the power transfer fee calculation method has been
changed. According to the paragraph 37 of the Decree a different method of power transfer fee
settlement has been allowed. Following the decision of Chairman of Electricity Regulation Office the
electricity sale agreement between Zaklad Energetyczny Plock S.A. and PKN ORLEN was signed. The
agreement did not determine contentious issues concerning transfer fee for the period from 5 July 2001
to 30 June 2002, as it was regarded as civil case to be settled by an appropriate court.

Zaklad Energetyczny Plock S.A. called on PKN ORLEN to compromise agreement, as well as District
Court in Warsaw called PKIN ORLEN as co-defendant in court case Polskie Sieci Energetyczne against
Zaklad Energetyczny Plock S.A.

The Company’s Management made estimate of the claim and provided for it accordingly.

f)  Anti-trust proceedings
In 2003 the Company was subject to two anti-trust proceedings.

In proceeding Office for Protection of Competition and Consumer (“OPCC”) issued a decision setting
cash penalty. These proceedings concern:

Methods of setting prices for antifreeze liquid to radiators ,Petrygo” and prices for monoethylene
glycols — the Company appealed to Anti-Trust Court against the negative decision of OPCC setting
penalty of PLN 40 million. On 13 August 2001 the Anti-Trust Court annulled fully the decision of
OPCC, which blame PKN ORLEN of applying monopolistic practice, annulling at the same time cash
penalty, in 2001 due to this fact the provision was fully released. OPCC applied on 4 October 2001 to
the Supreme Court to annul the verdict. On 10 July 2003 the Supreme Court annulled the verdict of the
Anti-Trust Court dated 13 August 2003 due to administrative deficiencies. In these circumstances the
case will be conducted again by District Court in Warsaw and Anti-Trust Court.

These financial statements do not include provisions relating to the above proceeding as in the opinion
of the Company’s Management charging the Company with that penalty is not probable.

In 2003 final decision was made concerning mentioned below proceeding. The proceeding concerned:

- Prices of fuels — the Company appealed to Anti-Trust Court against the negative decision of OPCC
setting a penalty of PLN 5 million, Anti-Trust Court repealed the decision of OPCC concerning
monopolistic practice of PKN ORLEN and therefore the cash penalty was repealed. In 2000 provision of
PLN 5 million, set in year 1999, was released. On 21 February 2001 OPCC applied to the Supreme
Court to annul the positive verdict for the Company. On 16 May 2003 Supreme Court overruled
cessation of OPCC. Decision of Supreme Court is final and cannot be appealed against.
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g) Employees compensation plan

On 23 December 2002 an agreement between the Company and trade unions operating within the

Company was signed. The goal of this agreement was regulating the situation of employees in case of

introducing restructuring actions in PKN ORLEN. The Company guarantees employment for employees

until the final stage of restructuring process (the period was not clearly defined). If the obligation is not

settled by the Company, dismissed employees will be paid compensation according to the following

rules:

»> equivalent of 7 month employee’s salary if employment contract is terminated until 31 December
2003,

» equivalent of 4 months employee’s salary if employment contract is terminated in the period
between 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2005;

» equivalent of 3 months employee’s salary if employment contract is terminated after 31 December
2005.

These amounts do not comprise compensation regulated by article 8 of act dated 28 December 1989 on
detailed principles of dissolving employment contracts for reasons concerning the employer.

h) Polish regulations on taxation

Poland currently has a number of regulations related to value added tax, excise tax, corporate income tax
and payroll (social) taxes. Regulations regarding these taxes are often changed and it causes their
ambiguity and inconsistency. Often, different opinions regarding legal interpretations exist both among
governmental organizations, as well between tax authorities and taxpayers, creating uncertainties and
conflicts. Tax settlements, together with other legal compliance areas (for example: customs or currency
control matters) are subject to review and investigation by a number of authorities, which are reinforced
by law to impose severe fines, penalties and interest charges. These facts cause that tax risk in Poland is
substantially higher than typical, for countries with better developed tax systems.

There are no formal procedures in Poland to establish the ultimate level of tax charge. Tax settlements
may be subject to tax control during the subsequent 5 years, from the end of the tax year where tax
payments took place. There is a risk that the tax authorities may have a different opinion from presented
by the Company as to the interpretation of the law, what might have a significant impact on the
Company’s tax liabilities.

i) Fixed assets located on the land with unsettled legal status

Net book value of fixed assets on land with unsettled legal status as at 31 December 2003 amounts to
PLN 24,200 thousand. Those assets are located mainly on fuel stations of former CPN. The necessity to
abandon or return the property might have a negative impact on the Company’s activity or financial
situation.

i} Other risk

On 31 December 2003, as it was presented in Note 18d and 18e of additional information and
explanations, the Company disclosed in the balance sheet the environmental provision. The provision
assessment was based on independent experts’ analyses taking into account present legal rules and
practices relating to contaminated land reclamation. Potential future changes to the legal regulations and
practices concerning environmental protection may influence the level of the provision in future periods.
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Note 46. Amounts due to the State or local government budgets as a result of obtaining the right
of ownership to buildings

As at 31 December 2003 there were no significant amounts due to the State or local government budgets
as a result of obtaining the right of ownership to buildings.

Note 47. Discontinued operations

During the year 2003 the Company did not discontinue any core activity and do not plan to discontinue
any significant activities in the following 12 months.

Note 48. Information on cost of construction in progress, fixed assets and development for own

needs

Cost of construction in progress and fixed assets constructed by the Company itself during the year 2003
amounted to PLN 3,459 thousand.

Note 49. Capital expenditures planned and incurred after 31 December 2003

Capital expenditures planned by the Company for the year 2004 amount to PLN 1,734,312 thousand
including capital expenditures related to protection of environment amounting to
PLN 126,356 thousand. Capital expenditures incurred until the end of February 2004 amounted to
PLN 109,070 thousand, including expenditures on protection of environment amounting to
PLN 1,450 thousand.

Note 50. Information concerning significant transactions with related parties

a) Transactions with members of the Management and Supervisory Board of the Company,
their spouses, siblings, descendants and other relatives

During the year 2003 no significant transactions with members of the Management and Supervisory
Board of the Company, their spouses, siblings, descendants and other relatives took place.

Additional information are described in Note 55.
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Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial Statement for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 51. Unconsolidated joint ventures

During year 2003 the Company did not participate in join ventures, except for a joint venture - Basell
Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. (Note 60a).

Note 52. Information on significant shares and stakes

a) Polkomtel S.A.

As at 31 December 2003 the Company owned 4,019,780 shares of Polkomtel S.A. what accounts for
19.61% share in Polkomtel share capital. Total purchase price amounted to PLN 436,495 thousand.

Polkomtel S.A. activities include:

- designing, installation, exploitation and managing of GSM system on Polish territory in accordance
with conditions of license given to the company,

- services connected with GSM cellular telecommunication on Polish territory,

- sales of products and services related to GSM system.

Shares are presented in the balance sheet at purchase price, as they are not quoted on active market and
their fair value cannot be reliably measured.

In 2003 the Company recognized revenues from dividends from Polkomtel received in the amount of
PLN 47 million.

Additionally, in 2001 PKN ORLEN granted the loan to Polkomtel for financing UMTS expenses
amounting to PLN 98,050 thousand. On 17 December 2003 Polkomtel S.A. made earlier repayment of
the loan to PKN ORLEN, The value of returned loan amounted to PLN 98,050 thousand and PLN 2,133
thousand of interest.

b) AWSA Holland II B.V.

As at 31 December 2003 the Company had 9.22% stake in AWSA Holland II B.V. share capital at total
purchase price of PLN 61,400 thousand.

The company’s activities include: bearing of shares and managing limited liability company
incorporated under Dutch law, granting collaterals for liabilities of third parties and all other activity
related to that subject. The company is the dominant company of Autostrada Wielkopolska S.A.

Shares are not listed on active market, and their fair value cannot be reliably measured. Consequently,
shares are presented in balance sheet at purchase price. The Company possesses a put option of AWSA
shares, presented in Note 44e.
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Note 53. Average employment information

Average employment for the specific categories in the Company during the years ended 31 December
2003 and 31 December 2002 was as following:

Number of employees Year 2003 Year 2002
Blue collar workers 2,585 3,201
White collar workers 3,871 4,048

6,456 7,249

Note 54. Remuneration of the Company’s Management and Supervisory Boards, including
distribution of profits paid out in the period between 1 January 2003 and 31 December
2003

Remuneration of the Company’s Management includes contract remuneration, bonuses, annual bonus
and cash equivalents for the unused vacations set by the Supervisory Board in management contracts.
Additionally, the Company pays life insurance for the members of the Management Board.

Remuneration Year 2003 Year 2002
Management Board 12,625 11,052
Supervisory Board 856 859
13,481 11,911
Remuneration in subsidiaries Year 2003 Year 2002
Management Board 378 338
Supervisory Board - -
378 338
Remuneration in associates Year 2003 Year 2002
Management Board 40 49
Supervisory Board - -
40 49
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Note S5. Information about advances, loans, borrowings and guarantees granted to the
Management and Supervisory Board members and other information concerning
Management and Supervisory Board members.

As at 31 December 2003 the Company did not grant any advances, loans, borrowings, guarantees and

any other agreements which result in any operation in favour of the Company to the Management and
Supervisory Board members and their relatives.

During year 2003 members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board, their spouses, siblings,
descendants and other relatives did not made any other significant transactions with the Company.

The Company shares possessed by the Management Board and by the Supervisory Board in 2003:

Number of shares, options . ) Number of shares, options as at
Acquired Disposed
as at 1 January 2003 31 December 2003
Management
Board* - 254,493 254,493 -
Supervisory _ . . -
Board

* transactions referred to the purchases of convertible bonds within the motivation programme.

Note 56. Significant events from previous years included in the financial statements for the year
2003

No significant events concerning previous years were included in the financial statements for the year
2003.

Note 57. Events occurring after the balance sheet date

1. On 12 January 2004 PKN ORLEN submitted an indicative offer (the “Offer”) for the acquisition of
62.99% of the share capital of UNIPETROL, a.s., a company operating in the Czech oil sector
(“UNIPETROL”), and the purchase of the receivables of Ceska konsolida&ni agentura (“CKA”)
towards certain entities directly or indirectly owned by UNIPETROL, as well as for the potential
purchase of 9.76% of the share capital of SPOLANA, a.s., currently owned by CKA (collectively
the “CKA Assets”). The Offer represents an early stage in the discussions and is a non-binding
document confirming PKIN ORLEN’s interest in the privatization process of UNIPETROL.

2. On 1 March 2004 Jacek Bartkiewicz was dismissed from the position of Member of the Supervisory
Board of the Company by the Minister for State Treasury as a result of his resignation.
Simultaneously, Grzegorz Mroczkowski was appointed to the Supervisory Board of the Company.

Note 58. Information about relationship between legal predecessor and the Company as well as
about the method of overtaking of assets and liabilities

On 29 June 1993 the Minister for Privatisation representing the State Treasury transformed the State-
owned enterprise Mazowieckie Zaklady Rafineryjne i Petrochemiczne “Petrochemia” located in Plock
into State-owned joint stock company. The Company’s share capital was covered by the enterprise fund
and initial fund of state-owned enterprise. Share capital of the Company at the transformation date
amounted to PLN 420 million, The remaining part of the funds was reflected as the Company’s reserve
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capital. All shares of the Company were taken by State Treasury. The special funds of the State-owned
enterprise were transformed to the specific funds of the Company, though their initial purpose was
retained.

Note 59. Hyperinflationary accounting and reporting

The cumulative yearly average inflation rate for the last 3 years for every period covered by the financial
statements did not exceed 100%, therefore financial statements adjusted for inflation are not required.

Note 60. Unusual events influencing items in financial statements

a) Joint Venture PKN ORLEN - BASELL

On 28 February 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. in exchange for organized part of business contributed in kind
(assets and liabilities related to production and sales of polyolefin acquired 50% of shares in BASELL
ORLEN POLYOLEFINS Sp. z 0.0. (formerly Poliolefiny Polska Sp. z 0.0.) located in Plock (“BOP”).
The remaining 50% acquired Basell Europe Holding B.V. (“BEH”) in exchange for contributed cash.
After increase share capital of BOP amounts to PLN 907 million.

As a result of the contribution of organised part of business to BOP, the Company recognised profit of
PLN 164 million, net of deferred tax. Profit of PLN 225 million was included in other operating income.
At the date of transaction the cost of investment in BOP amounts to PLN 453 million.

b) Long-term investments in Germany

On 28 February Company acquired a chain of 494 retail stations in Germany (323 stations under the
name BP - Aral and 171 stations under the name Eggert together with shareholdings in Eggert —
a company previously acquired by ARAL). The business activity in Germany is realized through
6 subsidiaries directly or indirectly controlled in 100% by PKIN ORLEN.

PKN ORLEN consolidates its activities in Germany, since the purchase date, i.e. since 1 March 2003,
under a full method consolidation.

¢) Sales of stake in NOM Sp. z o. o.

On 20 May 2003, the Management Board of the Company submitted a declaration on the acceptance of
the offering resulting from the option to sell all PKN’s shares of Niezalezny Operator Miedzystrefowy
(“NOM?”) to Polskie Sieci Energetyczne S.A. (“PSE”). The “put” price equals to PLN 111,5 million and
is calculated as a sum of a par value of the shares sold and a cumulated investment premium calculated
according to the Agreement dated 8 June 2000 regulating the cooperation between the NOM
shareholders.

On 20 October 2003, PSE filed a suit to the Court of Arbitration of the Polish Chamber of Commerce in
Warsaw, regarding the determination of the validity of the shares sales agreement.

Up to the date of preparation of these financial statements the legal proceedings in the Court of
Arbitration were not commenced.

According to the opinion of the Management Board of the Company, based additionally on an
independent legal analyses, the Company executed its put option and sold NOM shares to PSE.
Consequently, the Company recognised on the transaction profit amounting to PLN 27,5 million
(difference between purchase price of the stakes and the sales price resulting from the put option).
According to the Management Board the receivable of PLN 111,5 million will be realised in full
amount.
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Note 61. Differences between data disclosed in the financial statements and previously prepared
and published financial statements

Existing differences relates to cash flow statement presentation for the year 2002 according to Polish
Accounting Standard No. land were presented in explanatory notes to the cash flow statement - Note
42d.

Changes introduced to the financial statements in comparison to quarterly financial statements
for 4Q 2003

Net profit Equity
Financial data disclosed in 4 Q 2003 financial 978,196 8,418,866
statements
1. Update of environmental provision (27,681) (27,681)
2. Fixed assets impairment (27,152) (27,152)
3. Dgferred income tax resulting from the above 10,418 10,418

adjustments

Financial data disclosed in the financial statements 933781 8,374 451
for 2003

The above adjustments did not impact the cash flow from operating activities.

Naote 62. Liabilities secured on the Company’s assets

As at 31 December 2003 the Company did not possess any liabilities secured on the assets
Note 63. Other additional information

Due to the public information in relation to the Company’s purchase transactions, the Supervisory Board
has taken actions including requests to audit firms to perform specific test procedures, which were aimed
at verifying the above information, including an analysis of the specified procurement transactions. The
reports on these procedures has been presented to the Supervisory Board for further analyses.
Simultaneously, the Management Board filed notifications to the Public Prosecutor’s Office regarding a
suspicion of a commitment of crimes connected with:

— disclosure of confidential information, included in auditors’ reports,
— violation of the Company’s purchase procedures.

The final outcome of the above notifications is not known as at the date of the preparation of these
financial statements. However, in the Management’s opinion, there are no circumstances indicating that
the above mentioned matters may materially impact the true and fair presentation of the accompanying
financial statements for 12 month period ended 31 December 2003.

84




Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A.
Financial Statement for the year ended 31 December 2003
(in PLN thousand)

Note 64. Mandatory reserves of liquid fuels

Pursuant to the Act on State Reserves and Mandatory Fuel Reserves of 30 May 1996 (Journal of Law no
90. position 404 with further amendments) in 1998 the Company was subject to an obligation to create
and maintain mandatory reserves of liquid fuels, which accounted for 2% of the previous year
production or import.

Starting from year 2002 the level of mandatory reserves is created on the basis of schedule defined by
the Decree of Ministry of Economy dated 14 June 2002 (Journal of Law no 84. position 756) as to reach
the level of 76 days of production or imports less export of the entity as at the end of 2008 (moreover the
Ministry of Economy is responsible for setting of economic fuel reserves: for liquid fuel in quantity
equal to 14 fuel consumption days in current year).

SIGNATURES OF THE MEMBERS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

...........

President - Zbigniew Wrébel
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Vice President — Jacek Strzelecki Vice President — Stawomir Golonka

------------------------

Vice President — Andrzej Macenowicz Vice President — Janusz Wisniewski
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INTRODUCTION

Organisational and personnel changes on the highest management level, implemented in PKN ORLEN S.A. in
2002, enabled creation of unified rules of functioning, as well as increased efficiency of the Company’s
management.

Organisational and legal acts within Frame Organisational Rules and Regulations of PKN ORLEN S.A., which
are currently in force, were approved by the Management Board on 18 June 2002 and have been applied since 1 July
2002. According to Regulations, organisational structure of PKN ORLEN consists of Head Office in Plock and
Warsaw, Production Department in Plock and 12 Regional Organisational Units in Bialystok, Gdansk, Katowice,
Krakow, Lublin, Nowa Wies Wielka, Plock, Poznan, Rzeszow, Szczecin, Warsaw and Wroclaw having the status of
an employer within the meaning of Art. 3 of the Labour Code. Regional Organizational Units are composed of
Regional Wholesale and Logistics Offices, Regional Retail Trade Offices, Regional Investment and Maintenance
Offices, Regional Financial Offices as well as Financial Offices.

In relation to the continuous development of the Company and increase of efficiency of individual
organisational units activities, analytical works concerning possible modification of currently applied management
rules have been initiated.

According to the Rules and Regulations the Company is managed by 5-member Management Board: President
of Management Board and four Vice-Presidents. President of Management Board is the General Director. President
of the Management Board — General Director leads the particular activities with an assistance of Vice-Presidents,
Reporting Directors and other managers of the organisational units and supervisory functions assigned to them.
Reporting Directors possess the following responsibilities: they report directly to the Members of the Management
Board, they manage the selected areas as well as realise objectives according to authorised operating plans and
strategy approved by the Management Board.

In order to improve the efficiency of selected areas, complex material concerning the suggested changes in the
range of responsibilities of Reporting Directors was prepared, based on the justified proposals.

On 1 January 2003 within department of Vice-President of the Management Board for Human Resources
Systems’ Management, the position of Deputy Director responsible for Ownership Supervision reporting directly to
Restructuring and Management Systems Director was created. The main goal of that position is to realise strategy of
development and increase of value of the Capital Group companies through the optimisation of its assets. Deputy
Director for Ownership Supervision prepares proposal concerning the strategy of ownership supervision and assure
their current realisation in the Capital Group. Other duties within that position: analysis of current activity of the
companies and co-operation concerning changes in the structure of the Capital Group.

During the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 intensive activities relating to realisation of Value
Based Management (VBM) and Comprehensive Operational Cost Cutting Programme (COCCP) projects. They
cévered all areas of activities of the Company. Position of Plenipotentiary for Cost Reduction was created to

emphasise the importance of the issue. New organisational unit has following responsibilities: initiation and
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implementation of programmes orientated on operating cost reduction and co-ordination of activities within the
frames of savings initiatives.

Works concerning new pro-sales regional structure were continued during 2003. According to arrangements
made by Vice-President of the Management Board for Human Resources and Systems’ Management with trade
unions in December 2003 further works connected with the preparation and implementation of changes will be
conducted with the participation of social representatives.

During the second half of year 2003 analytical works concerning unification of the currently applied
management systems with the global standards and strategic goals were intensified. Their scope covered both
organisational and legal model of the Company’s management issues as well as conducting new business activities.
Apart from the above changes implemented during 2003 in organisational and legal area of the Company, both
external factors as well as internal activities, taken to ensure high economic efficiency, have significant impact on

functioning of the Company.
The most important external factors influencing PKN ORLEN S.A results are the following:

e Economic growth

Estimations presented by Central Statistics Office, indicate the improvement of unfavourable trend observed
since II half of 2000. In 2003 GDP increased by 3.7%. Increase in GDP will be mainly influenced by increase in
export and domestic demand. Forecast for the year 2004 are more optimistic, as the project of the state budget for the
year forecasts increase in GDP to 5%. Rapid pace of the economic growth in Poland may have positive influence on

growth of the consumption of liquid fuels.
o  Unemployment rate

At the end of year ended 31 December 2003 the unemployment rate was higher comparing to the previous
year (20.0% unemployment rate at the end of 2003 comparing to 18.0% in 2002). High unemployment rate in Poland
is one of the factors, which limits internal demand and adversely influences the level of sales of the Company’s

products.

e Inflation

According to data published by Central Statistics Office, the average annual increase in prices of consumer
goods and services in the year 2003 was lower than in 2002 (0.8% as comparing to 1.9% in 2002) and also lower
than that assumed by the Polish Budgetary Act (by 1.5%).

On the contrary, in 2003 the average annual change of prices in transport (4.5% in 2003 compared to 1.1% in
2002) and changes of prices of fuel for private means of transportation (7.9% increase in 2003 comparing to 0,8%

decrease in 2002) was higher than in year 2002.
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e  Prices of crude oil, refinery products and margins

Changes in crude oil prices as well as significant fluctuations in finished goods prices on world markets, caus}e
significant variations in margins received by the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2003 there were
large fluctuations in crude oil prices.

The average price of Brent barrel increased in comparison to 2002 by 15.3% to the level of 28.86 USD/bbl.
Additionally, during 2003 there were strong increases in product margins (crack), which positively influenced the
results of the Company. Margins on fuel increased by 32.6% to the level of 80.63 USD/tonne, on diesel by 70.9% to
the level of 57.96 USD/tonne and on Ekoterm by 82.5% to the level of 42.09 USD/tonne. As the refinery margins are
concerned there was a significant increase from the level of 1.04 USD/bb! to 3.06 USD/bbl (according to PVM).

¢  Fluctuation of foreign exchange rates

The exchange rate fluctuations have significant impact on sales revenue and results of the Company (by means
of adjusting the fuel prices on the basis of import parity), costs of crude oil and other raw materials as well as
financial costs related to debt denominated in foreign currencies. Purchases of crude oil and other raw materials
realised by the Company are denominated in USD and EUR, although the majority of revenues are realized in PLN.
As a result of the above trend, changes in the exchange rate of PLN to foreign currencies have a significant impact
on the results achieved by the Company. The average annual year exchange rate of USD decreased in 2003 by 4.7%
to the level of PLN 3.89 (calculated as arithmetical average of daily NBP exchange rates within period from

1 January to 31 December 2003). Simultaneously, the EUR exchange rate increased by 14.8% to the level of 4.40
PLN

e Changes in fiscal policy and current law regulations

Corporate Income Tax rate for 2003 equalled to 27%. However, in 2004 Corporate Income Tax rate will
decrease to 19%. Lower level of tax rate will positively influence net results of the Company. Changes in excise tax
and VAT regulations resulting from Poland’s accession into the European Union will also have a significant impact

on economic situation of the Company.

e Mandatory reserves

Owing to obligations, resulting from prospective membership in United Europe, Poland is compelled to reach
the level of 90-days mandatory reserves of liquid fuels, constituting the assurance of the energetic safety for the
country. Thus, the producers and importers of fuels have been necessitated to create the mandatory reserves. The
current schedule of creation the reserves of liquid fuels is specified in the Decree dated on 14 June 2002,
implemented on 1 July 2002. The reserves are created on basis of production and import quantities, realised by the
specific company in the previous year, less export. In 1999 and each of the following years the level of mandatory
reserves required increases by further 2 per cent as to reach the level of 76 days of production or imports of the entity

as at the end of 2008 (moreover the Ministry of Economy is responsible for setting of economic fuel reserves: for
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liquid fuel in quantity equal to 14 fuel consumption days in current year, this responsibility can be transferred PKIN
ORLEN S.A)

The Company builds and maintains mandatory reserves of fuels (gasoline, diesel, Ekoterm) and crude oil.
Mandatory reserves are stored both in own warehouses and belonging to the other companies, among others
Naftobazy Sp. z 0.0. and PERN “Przyjazn” S.A. and Underground Warehouses for Crude Oil and Fuels of IKS
“Solino” S.A. The cost of storing underground warehouses for crude oil and fuels are at the level definitely lower

than the cost of warehousing until now.

¢ Increase in car sales

During the year ended 31 December 2003 higher demand on domestic car market compared to previous years
was observed. According to companies analysing motor market, car sales in 2003 increased by about 16.3% to the
level of over 358 thousand of cars. Increase in sales of new cars influences favourably rise in fuel consumption in

Poland.

* Interest rates

Very low inflation pressure as well as necessity to recover the economy were favourable for further reduction of
base interest rates. At the end of 2003 Lombard Rate reached the level of 6.75% whereas Discount Rate ~ 5.75%. (At
the end of 2002 respectively 8.75% and 7.50%) The level of interest rates influences cost of the Company’s debt.

The following internal factors influenced the results achieved by PKN ORLEN S.A. in 2003:

¢ Loyalty programs development

VITAY programme is a loyalty scheme designed for the individual clients visiting ORLEN filling stations on
the regular basis. VITAY was implemented on 14 February 2001. Until 31 December 2003 VITAY has gained over
4.4 million of participants and was introduced in 1,539 filling stations, including 1,298 own stations and 211
patronage stations and 30 franchise outlets. The clients, while purchasing under the programme conditions are
granted VITAY points, which can be traded later in petrol or VITAY gifts. In December 2002 the next stage of
creating relationships with customers and strengthening their loyalty was implemented. Program VITAY was
enriched by quality prizes and partner offers of the companies cooperating with the PKN ORLEN S.A. In a new
edition of VITAY catalogue a new formula of granting points was applied in order to promote services offered by
filling stations (e.g. car wash and hoover).

The Company’s offer for enterprises possessing their own means of transportation is called FLOTA POLSKA.
At the end of 2003 the program embraced almost 4,000 fleets. Fuel Fleet cards are designed for clients that wish to

take part in user friendly and financially beneficial system of fuelling and basic car service.
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e Rebranding

During the year 2003 PKN ORLEN continued already initiated process of changing the external visualisation
(“rebranding”) on retail stations. Rebranding is considered to be one of the most long — term significant projects in
the Company’s strategy. Large number of fuel stations required involvement of significant financial resources. At the
end of 2003 389 filling stations (including 20 franchise outlets) were fully rebranded, whereas 872 locations were

under partial rebranding. In 2003 the process of visualisation was completed.

¢ Investment programs
The increase of the Company effectiveness during the year 2003 was to a great extent influenced by investment

processes in production and marketing.
The most important projects already finished or being still in progress are listed below:

— upgrade of Hydrocracking Installation in order to improve the production capacity by 30%, the project was
completed in the 3™ quarter 2003,

— building of new petrol and diesel fuel tanks, increasing storage capacity in order to properly composite and store
fuels —project was completed in the 2™ and 3 quarter 2003,

— implementation of bio-components dosing program and the possibility of production of petrol including ethanol
— project completed in 3" quarter 2003,

— modernization of 00-320 No. 2 boiler in order to secure production of steam for the purposes of Production Plant
- project completed in 4" quarter 2003

— modernization of phenol sewage treatment — recovery of acetone and phenol from sewage — project completed in
1 quarter 2003,

— modernization and development of storage bases,

— investments in own and patronage petrol stations,

In 2004 the following projects are expected to be completed:

- Investments related to polyolefins within Joint Venture Company with Basell,

—  Adaptation of technological furnace F201 on installation HON IT and HON III in order to transfer them under
supervision,

—  Modernisation of Hydrogen Recycling Installation,

- Construction of Desulphurisation of Craking Fuel Installation,

— Modernisation of railway crossings in PKN ORLEN located in Production Plant in Plock,

—  Further stages of investment in IT systems of the Company,

— Modernization of storage bases,

—~ Investments in petrol stations chain,

—  Construction of new fuel tanks on the Production Plant premises
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s  Optimisation projects

Implemented in cooperation with KBC company Profit Increase Program (PIP), brings measurable effects in
reduction of cost crude processing per barrel. The program bases on technological procedures modification and
optimisation of production capacity of individual installations what results in decrease of production costs of the
Company. The program brings measurable cost reductions in the area of variable production costs. The contract
ended in October 2001. Currently the process implementation effects are monitored. As a result of PIP about 41
rationalizations were implemented. Some of them (not introduced yet) were listed as initiatives of Cost Reduction
Program (for example on HOG installation)
The contract realised with Aspen Technology Limited Sheraton House will ensure the improvement of performance
of PIMS programme used for production process optimisation.
Cooperation with Shell Global Solutions company will result in installations’ production time optimisation and in
maintenance decrease of maintenance costs. The program will ensure the unification of risk management
methodology within the whole Production Plant and will contribute to the improvement of production installations

work.

¢ Risk Management System

In 2002 the Company initiated the implementation of Risk Management System. Measurement and Risk
Analysis System application equipped with Monte Carlo simulation of market changes based on Cash Flow at Risk
and Earnings at Risk methodology is the fundamental element of the system.

During the implementation the exposition map was worked out and risk factors managed by the PKN ORLEN
S.A were defined. They include commodities price risk, foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk. Since the
second half of the year 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. monitors the risk to which is exposed and since the 4™ quarter
applies hedging transactions. In 2004 Measurement and Risk Analysis System will include main companies of the
ORLEN Capital Group.

Due to dependence of its revenues on dollar and EURO exchange rates the Company optimise its portfolio of

foreign currencies loans by among others adding to its liabilities denominated in dollar bank loans valued in EURO.

e Acquisition of petrol stations in Germany

On 10 December 2002 after a few months of negotiations, the Company reached the initial agreement with
British Petroleum (BP) regarding acquisition of petrol stations chain located in northern Germany (Jewel package).
The offer included 494 fuel stations operating under three brands: BP, Aral and EM Eggert. Management claims that
this transaction is the significant step towards implementation of regional expansion strategy.

As a result of the acquisition of 494 petrol stations in the Northern Germany the Company gained about 2.4%
éhare in German fuels retail market in terms of sales of fuels and 3% share as number of petrol stations is concerned.

PKN ORLEN S.A. targets at increase in Northern German market share. In 2003 the German companies, engaged in
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sale of fuels, started their activities within PKIN ORLEN Capital Group.

; Establishment of Joint Venture with Basell

Realisation of an agreement dated on 30 September 2002 between PKN ORLEN and Basell Europe Holdings
B.V. was conditioned by 3 suspending factors: signing of trade contracts, gaining an approval from OPCC and
gaining sufficient funds for realisation of planned investments. On 24 February 2003 the last condition was fulfilled
and on 1 March 2003 Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. commenced its operation in area of production and sales of

polyolefins.

e Consolidation of asphalt production and distribution

PKN ORLEN S.A. and Rafineria Trzebinia S.A. are taking part in the project of consolidation of asphalt
production and distribution within the Capital Group. On 31 May 2003 the Company signed an agreement to dispose
the assets of Asphalt Plant (including: property, fixed assets and equipment) to BITREX Sp. z o.0. located in
Trzebinia for PLN 81,754.9 thousand. Additionally, on 23 May 2003, in exchange for cash, PKN ORLEN acquired
100,000 shares with a par value of PLN 500 each. As a result PKN ORLEN owns shares representing 82.46% of the
initial capital of ORLEN Asfalt Sp. z o.0. (previously BITREX). The remaining 17.54% stake is owned by Rafineria
Trzebinia S.A.

¢ Implementation of efficiency plans

At the end of 2002, the Company’s Management Board decided to implement two significant efficiency plans
during the period 2003-2005 — value based management system and a comprehensive plan to reduce operating
expenses. The first plan will allow the Company to introduce modern management methods, make optimal decisions
and improve managers’ qualifications, which will help to increase Company’s value and improve the shareholders’
perception of the Company. The second plan will ensure a decrease in a significant part of operating expenses in all

areas of the Company’s activities.
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1. CURRENT AND PROJECTED FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
1.1 Production

During 2003 the volume of crude oil processed amounted to 11,724 thousand tonnes and was by 6.0% lower
compared to the previous year. Thanks to the improvement in crude oil processing and its desulphurisation, share of
low sulphur crude oil in total crude being processed decreased from 3% in 2002 to 1% at the end of 2003. Proper
work of refinery units and performed modemization of hydro-cracking installation enabled to increase the share of
white products (light products) from 78.40% in 2002 to 79.73% in 2003. Moreover, hydrocracking (“HK”)
installation improvement allowed increasing throughput of HK installation by 30% and improving the flexibility of
change in production profile to increase the output of diesel oil.

During 2003 among the basic motor fuels significant changes in quality structure were observed. In 2003 the
quantity of fuels which included bio component (EETB = min. 5%) accounted for 61% of total fuels produced. The
amount of fuels with the sulphur content below 150 ppm and share of benzene below 1% amounted to 2,767
thousand tonnes in 2003 which account for 100% of total fuels produced (in 2002 the average content of sulphur and
benzene in fuels was 200 ppm and 1.17%, while in 2003 106 ppm and 0.71% respectively). At the half of the year
2003 the production of the new branch of diesel fuel- ONM “Standard 25” was commenced while the production of
“Standard 50” was abandoned. New fuel has twice lower content of sulphur. Moreover, emission of toxic compounds
in fumes was reduced significantly. This diesel was awarded the European Medal by the European Integration
Committee and Business Centre Club.

The total productivity of fuels in 2003 increased by almost 2% points from the level of 65.50% in 2002 to
67.26% at the end of 2003. In 2003 quantity change in production of diesel was observed. Production of diesel
increased by 1.7% while demand for aircraft fuel JET A-1 rose by over 14% as compared to 2002.

In 2003 the output of petrochemicals fell down from the level of 1,082 thousand tonnes in 2002 to 1,061
thousand tonnes at the end of 2003. Heavy decline in sale of plastics results from high production of ethylene and

propylene for sale.
1.2 Sales

In 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. sales of finished products, goods for resale and materials amounted to
PLN 24,629,963 thousand, which accounts for 103.1% of 2002 sales revenues. Revenues from the sales of finished
products amounted to PLN 22,930,855 thousand tonnes and were higher by 3.9% compared to 2002, while the
revenues from the sales of goods for resale and materials reached the level of PLN 1,699,108 thousand, i.e. 6.9% less
than in 2002.

Sales of support activity services and social activity services amounted in 2003 to PLN 132,779 thousand and

were by 12.4% lower as compared to the previous year.
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In 2003 sales of finished products, goods for resale and materials were mainly constituted by:
- Sales of refinery products (83.7%),
- Sales of petrochemical products (8.4%)

In 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. sold in its retail and wholesale chain 10,870.4 thousand tonnes of finished products
and goods for resale — 2.7% less than in 2002. Sale of light products (petrol, diesel, Ekoterm and aircraft fuel JET)
amounted to 7,949 thousand tonnes which 1s 0.6% less than in 2002.

The biggest quantity volume and share in sales (both retail and wholesome) of products and goods for resale
had the following brands:

Petrol — 2,867 thousand tonnes (26.4% share)
—  Eurosuper 95 - 2,322 thousand tonnes (21.4%)
—  Universal 95 — 370 thousand tonnes (3.4%)
—  Super Plus 98 — 175 thousand tonnes (1.6%)

—  Diesel - 3.249 thousand tonnes (29.9%)

~  Light heating oil — 1.539 thousand tonnes (14.2%)

-~ Heating oil IIT — 694 thousand tonnes (6.4%)

— Liquid gas (LPG) — 303 thousand tonnes (2.8%)

— Aircraft fuel JET - 294 thousand tonnes (2.7%).

In 2003 the dynamics of quantity sales (both retail and wholesome) of finished products and goods for resale
have changed. In terms of refinery products as compared to 2002:
— the decrease was observed in sales of among others:
—  petrol (by 8%) as a result of decline in demand (substitution of LPG) compared to 2002 and decrease of
sales within agreements — no sales to STATOIL and reduction of sales to other concerns.
—  heating oil III (by 33.7%) — lower demand resulting with Poland’s adaptation to the European Union
requirements
— Ekoterm (by 2.9%) — we estimate that in 2003 the dynamics of light heating oil consumption
corresponded with dynamics of PKN ORLEN S.A. sales.
~ on the other hand there was a rise in sales of:
— diesel (by 7.2%) — apart from general growing trends in the consumption of diesel and decline in sales
of petrol, rise in demand for high quality diesel is due to inspections of petrol quality conducted by
Office for Consumer and Competition Protection and State Trade Inspection supported by media
campaign, successful actions of Central Bureau of Investigation targeted at companies operating on
black market and decrease in light heating oil traction,
— liquid gas - LPG (by 11%) — heavy market demand,

— aircraft fuel (by 10.5%)- mainly as a result of sales increase since the 2nd half of the year — sales to
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army since August 2003 and systematic rise in export sales since July 2003

As quantity volume of sales of petrochemical products is concerned, insignificant decrease (by 1.9%) was

recorded as compared to 2002. In 2003 the following trends were noted:

'~ increase in sales of ethylene, propylene (as a result of separation of Basell ORLEN Polyolefins), ortoxylene,

paraxylene, benzene, phenol, acetone (increased throughput — according to the plan),

— decrease of sales of plastics (creation of Basell ORLEN Polyolefins), glycols (lower supply of materials and
necessity of ethylene supplies for Basell ORLEN Polyolefins and ANWIL S.A) and butadiene.

In 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. on its own stations sold 2,143.4 thousand tonnes of fuels and LPG, which is 0.9%

more in comparison to 2002,

Retail sale volume of fuels and LPG in 2003 amounted to:
—  Petrol —1,192.6 thousand tonnes,
~ Diesel — 859.1 thousand tonnes,

— LPG-91.7 thousand tonnes.

“The dynamics of 2003 fuel sales by main products in comparison to 2002 is presented below:

Product Dynamics 2003 / 2002
Unleaded petrol, including: 96.0%
Eurosuper 95 101.5%
Universal 95 92.6%
Super Plus 98 78.2%
Diesel 105.4%
LPG 135.9%

—  Average sale per petrol station in 2003 amounted to 2.1 million litres of fuels and LPG, which is 1.7% more than
in 2002.

— In 2003 share of diesel and LPG in the volume of sold fuel rose, which is a consequence of change in the
structure of operated cars (increase in number of cars with diesel engines, while the share of cars without
catalytic converter decreased). Simultaneously, due to lower maintenance costs more and more customers buy
LPG gas, according to GIPA research, the share of cars equipped with LPG installation rose from 7.6% in 2002
to 11.3% in 2003. As a result of trends mentioned above, share of diesel in total sales rose from 38.4% in 2002
to 40.1% in 2003, LPG gas share rose respectively from 3.2% to 4.3%. Higher sales of gas were also influenced

by the increase in gas modules on stations by 17.3% (312 at the end of 2003 as compared to 266 in previous
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year).
—  Petrol share in total retail sales declined from 58.5% in 2002 to 55.6% in 2003, including the following brands:
—  Universal U 95 petrol share decreased from 11.8 % to 9.1%;
—  Eurosuper EU 95 petrol share rose from 41.8% do 42.0 %;
—  Super Plus 98 petrol share decreased from 4.9 % do 4.5 %.

1.3 Sales and supply markets

Entire crude oil bought by PKN ORLEN S.A. is provided to Plock from Russia. Companies operating on
Russian oil markets are the Company’s suppliers. The only supplier whose share in supplies exceeded 10% of sales
revenues in 2003 was J&S Company.

Contracts for long-term supply of crude oil signed in December2002 should contribute to diversification of
suppliers’ structure in total amount of provided raw material in next periods. In 2003 as compared to 2002 the
change in domestic and export sale structure was observed. Export sales share in total sales decreased from 9% to
6%.

PKN ORLEN S.A. is not dependent on one strategic customer whose share would exceed 10% of total net sales
revenues. During the 2002-2003 period there were no significant changes in the structure of the largest customers as
far as sales revenues are concerned — generally that group remains stable. Two changes are worth mentioning -
Statoil is no longer Company’s client, on the other hand Basell Orlen Polyolefins and ORLEN ASFALT became the
Company’s clients.

In group of oil derived products and petrochemicals key accounts are often present, however value of sales to
these customers is insignificant as far as total sales is concerned. The following products are dependent on key
accounts:

e Basic oils ~ ORLEN OIL Krakow — 99.5% share,

e Liquid gas — ORLEN GAZ - 98.6 % share in wholesome sales,
e JET Fuel- Petrolot — 81.1%,

e  Post - pirolitycal oil- WARTER Piaseczno - 76%,

e Butadiene — F.Ch. Dwory — 95%,

e Ortoxylene — Z.A. Kedzierzyn —58.5%,

e Paraxylene — Elana Torun — 100.0%,

e Ethylene oxide— Rokita Brzeg Dolny — 48.6%,

¢ Ethylene — Anwil S.A. - 43%, Basell ORLEN Polyolefins — 34.7%,
o Benzene - Z.A. Pulawy — 63.1%

e  Propylene - Basell ORLEN Polyolefins — 40.1%,

¢  Glycols — Elana Torun — 37.2%.
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1.4 Financial resources management

During the year ended 31 December 2003 net financial indebtedness of the Company increased insignificantly.
Consequently, net financial debt to equity ratio (calculated as credits, loans and debt securities less cash and other
financial assets to equity) rose from 25.5% at the end of 2002 to 26.2% at the end of 2003, what indicates the stable
potential of obtaining financial funds. During 2003 changes in both maturity as well as in the currency structure of
financial liabilities occurred. These changes result from signing of dual currency bank loan agreement denominated
worth of EUR 500 million.

Share of loans and credits in the Company: 31 December 2002 | 31 December 2003
Long-term 0% 71%
Short-term 100% 29%
in USD 52% 43%
in EUR 0% 35%
in PLN 48% 22%

Denomination of debt in EURO is the result of necessity to secure financing for Northern Packet acquisition
(494 petrol stations in Germany).

During 2003 the Company intensively benefited from both operational short-term credit and overdraft from
Polish banks. Additionally it issued short-term bonds as a part of bonds issuance program and benefited from long-
term consortium loan from foreign banks. The Company pays a great attention to efficient cash-flows management
within its accounts. Since February 2001 a system of financial resources concentration for the whole Capital Groﬁp
is in operation. At the end of 2003 there are 15 companies of the Capital Group active in automatic system, whereas
whole Capital Group derives measurable gains from optimisation of the current liquidity.

Detailed information on maturity dates of credits, loans and debt securities issued by PKN ORLEN S.A. are
presented in notes 19D, 20C and 20D of PKN ORLEN S.A. financial statements for year ended 31 December 2003.

1.4.1 Loans, sureties and guarantees granted to employees and companies of the Capital Group

In 2003 58 employees of ORLEN Laboratorium Sp. z 0.0. were granted loans from the PKN ORLEN S.A.
Privatisation Fund for the total amount of PLN 483.5 thousand.

As at 31 December 2003 2,868 employees of companies created as a result of PKIN ORLEN S.A. restructuring
program were granted loans from the PKIN ORLEN S.A. privatisation fund for the amount of PLN 11,948 thousand.

Simultaneously, in case of 21 former employees of companies created as a result of PKN ORLEN S.A.
restructuring program, they had their liabilities converted from cash payment to non-cash liability (employeé:s

transferred to PKN ORLEN S.A. their shares purchased for loans from Privatisation Fund). As a result PKN ORLEN
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acquired without cash payments stakes/shares worth PLN 54.6.

In connection with the implementation of development project related to Technology - Industrial Park in Plock
significant changes were introduced. Companies created as a result of PKN ORLEN S.A. restructuring which will
participate in that project are entitled to benefit from the Fund’s resources and to draw loans from Privatisation Fund
resources for purchase of shares/stakes for management buyout. Such possibility of obtaining funds for these
transactions will facilitate the process of divesture reducing concerns among companies’ staff.

Above changes were incorporated in new Regulation of Privatisation Fund Usage accepted by the Management
Board and Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN S.A.

Closing balance of loans granted from the Company’s Social Fund to employees and pensioners of the
Company as at 31 December 2003 amounted to PLN 16,703.8 thousand, whereas closing balance of loans granted to
the employees of consolidated companies from the Capital Group, which signed an agreement with PKN ORLEN
S.A on having a common social activity, amounted to PLN 2,371.1 thousand.

As at 31 December 2003 the off-balance sheet liabilities of the Company from guarantees and sureties

amounted to PLN 961,156 thousand including:

subordinates on benefit of which guarantee and in PLN in currency of Maturity

sureties were granted (in thousand) guarantee date
(in thousand)

ORLEN PetroTank Sp. z 0.0. Widelka 43,867 43,867 PLN 2008-07-02
Rafineria Nafty Jedlicze S.A. 30,000 30,000 PLN 2006-12-20
ORLEN Transport Kedzierzyn-Kozle Sp. z 0.0. 288 60 EURO  2006-03-31
ORLEN Deutschland GmbH 815,082 170,000 EURO  2004-07-28
TOTAL 889,237 - -
joint ventures which were granted guarantees in PLN in currency of Maturity
and sureties:: (in thousand) guarantee Date

(in thousand)

Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. 71,919 15,000 EURO 2004-01-15

TOTAL 71,919 - -

Sureties in form of letters of comfort granted to banks and insurance companies in order to secure repayment of
liabilities by its own subsidiary — ORLEN Deutschland GmbH, resulting from fuel trading are the key positions of

off-balance sheet liabilities.
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1.4.2 Bond issuance

Bonds issuance is a flexible and effective instrument of gathering financial funds used for payment of current
liabilities and repayment of matured securities. Issue is made in form of public auction, in which Bank Handlowy,
Bank Pekao S.A. and BRE Bank S.A. participate. Bank with most favourable profitability of issued securities
conducts the issuance.

During 2003 the Company was issuing three months bills. On maturity date bills were repurchased or, if cash
was needed, they were rolled (new issue) prolonging the period of financing. Under the Bond Issue Program the
Company is able to issue bonds up to the total indebtedness amount not exceeding PLN 700 million. As at 31
December 2003 the indebtedness of the Company from bond issuance amounted to PLN 317 million, of which PLN

251 million were due to the Capital Group companies, including PLN 240 million to companies consolidated under
full method.

1.4.3  Cash management

Financial situation of the Company remains stable and safe. The Company has high creditability, which enables
it to receive quick and relatively inexpensive external financing. Consequently, the consortium loan agreement in the
amount of EUR 500 million was signed on 29 July 2003. Such transaction proves Company’s possibilities of raising
financial resources from abroad.

This solution enables the Company to stabilize the structure of its liabilities and, on the other hand, to reduce
the demand for financing from the domestic banks. Thanks to that the bank limits are improved and may be used by
the companies of the Capital Group. Simultaneously, the continuation of the bonds issuance program enable the
Company to gather financing which is less expensive than that from banks sources.

Shortage of available cash during 2003, caused lack of short-term financial investments. Financial resources

from current inflows were used for repayments of overdraft or located on automatic “overnights”.

1.5 Changes in financial assets

As at 31 December 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A possessed directly shares in 88 companies, including

e 51 subsidiaries (with above 50% share),

s 1 joint venture (with 50% share),

e S associated companies (with share between 20% and 50%),

e 31 other companies (with below 20% share).

Capital involvement of PKN ORLEN at the end of 2003 increased by PLN 953,014 thousand in comparison to the
end of 2002 and amounted to PLN 2,226,446 thousand.
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Significant changes in organisational and capital relations in the Capital Group during the year ended
31 December 2003 include changes in articles of association of companies as a result of a share capital increase in

the following entities:

- On 28 February 2003, German subsidiary of PKN ORLEN (currently operating under the name of Orlen
Deutschland Immobilien GmbH, located in Elmshorn) conducted a share transfer agreement with Deutsche BP.
According to this agreement the Company bought 15,100 shares of Norddeutsche Tankstellen
Aktiengesellschaft, representing 100% of the share capital of the acquired company. In addition, the subsidiary
purchased from Deutsche BP 107 plots of lands and 156 buildings used for retail sale made previously by BP
and ARAL.

At the same time, another German subsidiary of PKN ORLEN (currently operating under the name of Orlen
Deutchland GmbH) acquired from Deutche BP 1 share of AMF Service GmbH located in Bochum, representing
100% of the share capital of the acquired company. AMF Service GmbH owns shares in ORLEN Tankstellen
AG (formerly EGGERT Mineraloel GmbH) and JEWEL Tankstellen Nord GmbH. In addition, the subsidiary
purchased from Deutsche BP fuels stored at the acquired petrol stations at the date of the share purchase

agreement, settlements with dealers as well as liabilities within the group.

As the result of the above mentioned transactions German subsidiaries acquired from Deutche BP 494 retail

petrol stations in Germany. The Company’s Management perceives these transactions as an important stage in

implementing its regional expansion strategy.

— Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. — on 28 February 2003 the share capital of Poliolefiny Polska Sp. z o.0.
currently operating under the name of Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. was increased (which was registered
on 21 May 2003) from PLN 50 thousand to PLN 907,398 thousand through issuing 1,814,696 new shares with
a par value of PLN 500 each. In the increased share capital PKN ORLEN acquired 907,298 shares of a total
value amounting to PLN 453,649.4 thousand in exchange for its organized part of business contributed in-kind
(premises, installations and working capital related to production and sales of polyolefin). The remaining
907,398 shares of a total value amounting to PLN 453,699.4 thousand were acquired by Basell Europe Holding
B.V. and paid in cash. Taking into consideration shares owned by PKN ORLEN before the share capital
increase, after the registration of the increase, PKN ORLEN and Basell Europe Holdings B.V. own the same
amount of shares of Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. — i.e. 907,398 shares each, representing 50% of share

capital and 907,398 votes at the sharecholders general meeting.

— ORLEN Asfalt Sp. z 0.0. (formerly operating under the name of BITREX Sp. z 0.0.). On 31 May 2003 the initial
share capital of Bitrex Sp. z 0.0. amounting to PLN 10,635 thousand was increased by 100,000 shares with a par
value of PLN 500 each i.e. by PLN 50,000 thousand. All new shares were acquired by PKN ORLEN and paid in
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cash. As a result, the share capital of ORLEN Asfalt sp. z 0.0. amounts to PLN 60,635 thousand and is divided
into 121,270 shares with a par value of PLN 500 each. On 15 July 2003 changes in ownership structure were
registered, i.e. in particularly: the increase of the share capital of Bitrex Sp. z 0.0., change of the company name
into ORLEN Asfalt Sp. z 0.0. and change in the articles of associations. After increase in capital, PKIN ORLEN
owns shares representing 82.46% of ORLEN Asfalt sp. z 0.0, share capital. The remaining 17.54% stake is

owned by Rafineria Trzebinia S.A.

During year ended 31 December 2003 the following stakes owned by the Company were sold:

- Niezalezny Operator Miedzystrefowy Sp. z o0.0. (NOM) - on 20 May 2003 Supervisory Board of
PKN ORLEN S.A. took a resolution approving the execution of the put option for all shares possessed by the
Company in share capital of Niezalezny Operator Miedzystrefowy Sp z 0.0. (,,NOM”) located in Warsaw,
valued at cost PLN 84,000 thousand, by accepting offer made by Polskie Sieci Elektroenergetyczne S.A.
(“PSE”) for purchase of all shares. On 20 May 2003 the Management Board of the Company submitted
a declaration on the acceptance of the offer as a result of which in the opinion of the Management Board
transaction of selling NOM shares to PSE was concluded. The “put” price equalled to PLN 111,511.3 thousand
was calculated as a sum of a par value of the shares sold and a cumulated investment premium calculated
according to the agreement. Shares sold by the Company constitute 35% of NOM share capital and the same

percentage of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting.

— ORLEN Eltech Sp. z 0.0. — on 23 June 2003, following shares sale agreements, PKIN ORLEN S.A. disposed
2,142 shares in ORLEN Eltech Sp. z 0.0. (with a par value of PLN 500 each) representing 51.0% of the share
capital and the same number of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting, for the total value of PLN 3,679,956.

— ORLEN Remont Sp. z 0.0. — on 23 June 2003, following shares sale agreements, PKN ORLEN S.A. disposed
2,459 shares in ORLEN Remont Sp. z o.0. (with a par value of PLN 500 each) representing 51.23% of share
capital and the same number of votes at General Meeting of Shareholders, for the total value of PLN 4,866,361.

- ORLEN Mechanika Sp. z 0.0. — on 23 June 2003, following shares sale agreements, PKN ORLEN S.A. disposed
30,210 shares in ORLEN Mechanika Sp. z 0.0. (with a par value of PLN 100 each) representing 68.16% of share
capital and the same number of votes at General Meeting of Shareholders, for the total value of PLN 5,316,960.

Sale of stakes in ORLEN Eltech Sp. z 0.0., ORLEN Remont Sp. z 0.0., ORLEN Mechanika Sp. z 0.0. is the
next stage in the process of selling its non-core subsidiaries. As the result of the transactions Company has
realised profit before tax of PLN 9,246 thousand. At the transaction date 1,103 employees were employed in the
disposed subsidiaries. The sold subsidiaries provided maintenance and repair services. After the transactions,

which included mainly mutual buy-out and purchase of shares by the companies’ management, the Company
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does not possess any stakes in above-mentioned companies.

ORLEN EnergoRem Sp. z 0.0. — on 27 June 2003, following shares sale agreements, PKN ORLEN S.A.
disposed 1,836 shares in ORLEN EnergoRem Sp. z o0.0. (with a par value of PLN 500 each) representing
51.00% of share capital and the same number of votes at General Shareholders Meeting, for the total value of
PLN 1,906,128. As a result of the transaction PKN ORLEN S.A. realised profit before tax of PLN 1,245
thousand.

At the transaction date, the company employed 226 people. After the transaction, which included sale of shares
for their redemption and sale of the rest of the shares to the employees, PKN ORLEN S.A. does not possess any

stakes in above-mentioned company.

Service companies, on 29 August 2003 on the basis of shares sale agreements PKN ORLEN disposed:

e 935 shares in Serwis Katowice Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 55% of the initial
capital of Serwis Katowice and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders to Zaklad
Urzadzen Dystrybucyjnych Sp. z o.0. for the total value of PLN 100,000.

e 3,215 shares in CPN Serwis Kielce Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 100% of the
initial capital of CPN Serwis Kielce and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders to
Zaklad Urzadzen Dystrybucyjnych Sp. z o0.0. for the total value of PLN 340,000.

e 2,000 shares in Serwis Kedzierzyn Kozle Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 80% of
the initial capital of Serwis Kedzierzyn Kozle and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of
Shareholders to Zaklad Urzadzen Dystrybucyjnych Sp. z o.0. for the total value of PLN 210,000.

e 675 shares in Serwis Rzeszow Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 97.26% of the
initial capital of Serwis Rzeszow and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders to

Zaklad Urzadzen Dystrybucyjnych Sp. z 0.0. for the total value of PLN 360,000.

As a result of the transaction the Company realised gross profit of PLN 57,500. At the transaction date, sold
companies employed 142 people. Activities of the sold companies included the following types of services:
petrol stations emergency service, repairs and maintenance of petrol stations. After the transaction, which
included buy out of shares by Zaklad Urzadzen Dystrybucji Sp. z 0.0. PKN ORLEN S.A. does not possess any
stakes in above mentioned company. Simultaneously, the Company owns 99.94% stake in share capital of

Zaklad Urzadzen Dystrybucji Sp. z 0.0.

ORLEN Transport Warszawa Sp. z 0.0. — on 30 October 2003, following shares sale agreement, PKN ORLEN
S.A. disposed to ORLEN Transport Plock Sp. z 0.0. 59,447 shares in ORLEN Transport Warszawa Sp. z 0.0.
(with a par value of PLN 100 each) representing 94.49% of the share capital and the same number of votes at the
General Shareholders Meeting, for the total value of PLN 6,000,000. The remaining 5.51% stake of ORLEN
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Transport Warszawa Sp. z 0.0. shares is owned by its employees. Simultaneously, PKN ORLEN S.A
owns 97.58% stake in share capital of ORLEN Transport Plock Sp. z 0.0.

— ORLEN WodKan Sp. z 0.0. — on 29 December 2003, following shares sale agreement, the Company disposed
3,620 shares in ORLEN WodKan Sp. z o.0. (with a par value of PLN 500 each) representing 82.27% of the
share capital and the same number of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting, for the total value of
PLN 2,354,159.50. The shares were sold to:

. 1,330 shares to ORLEN WodKan Sp. z o.0. for their redemption, for the total value of PLN
1,016,159.50,
. 2,230 shares to 143 employees of ORLEN WodKan Sp. z o.0. for the total value of PLN 1,338,000

As a result of the transaction the Company realised gross profit of PLN 544,159.50. Activities of the sold
company include repair and maintenance services. At the transaction date, sold company employed 160 people.

After the transaction PKIN ORLEN S.A. does not possess any stake in above-mentioned company.

— ORLEN Transport Poznan Sp. z 0.0. - on 30 December 2003 following shares sale agreement the Company sold
to Transport Plock Sp. z 0.0. 108.659 shares in ORLEN Transport Poznan Sp. z 0.0., with a par value of
PLN 100 each representing 96.39% of the share capital and the same number of votes at the General
Shareholders Meeting, for the total value of PLN 10,900,000. The remaining 3.61% stake of ORLEN Transport
Poznan Sp. z 0.0. shares is owned by its former and current employees. PKN ORLEN S.A owns 97.58% stake in
share capital of ORLEN Transport Plock Sp. z 0.0.

—  Service companies, on 31 December 2003 following shares sale agreements PKIN ORLEN S.A. disposed its
shares in 7 service companies including:

. 7,945 shares in Serwis Slupsk Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 99.76% of
the share capital of Serwis Slupsk and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders
for the total value of PLN 1,324,999.15.
. 360 shares in Serwis Wroclaw Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 88.31% qf
the share capital of Serwis Wroclaw and 83.31% of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders for the
total value of PLN 745,000.
) 431 shares in Serwis Krakow Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 83.20% of
the share capital of Serwis Krakow and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders
for the total value of PLN 230,000.
. 2,387 shares in Serwis Podlasie Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 89.67%
of the share capital of Serwis Podlasie and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of
Shareholders for the total value of 298,375,
. 6,495 shares in Serwis Zachod Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 74.31%
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of the share capital of Serwis Zachod and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of
Shareholders for the total value of 754,978.80.

. 1,581 shares in Serwis Poznan Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 51.00% of
the share capital of Serwis Poznan and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders
for the total value of 190,004.24.

) 206 shares in Serwis Szczecin Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 49.05% of
the share capital of Serwis Szczecin and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders

for the total value of 182,134.90.

As a result of the disposal of shares in above-mentioned 7 service companies PKN ORLEN S.A. does not

possess any stakes in these companies.

During the year ended 31 December 2003 the Company made several capital investments including the

following companies establishment or acquisition of shares:

ORLEN Transport Kedzierzyn - Kozle Sp. z 0.0. — on 10 and 11 June 2003, following the agreements signed
with debtors, 25 shares in ORLEN Transport Kedzierzyn - Kozle Sp. z 0.0. were transferred to PKN ORLEN.
As a result of the transactions, PKN ORLEN owns 89.02% in the share capital of the company.

ORLEN Transport Slupsk Sp. z 0.0. — on 17 June 2003, following the agreements signed with debtors,
30 shares in ORLEN Transport Slupsk Sp. z o0.0. were transferred to PKN ORLEN. As a result of the
transactions, PKN ORLEN owns 97.04% in the share capital of the company.

ORLEN Laboratorium Sp. z 0.0. — on 13 February 2003 ORLEN Laboratorium Sp. z 0.0., located in Plock was
registered. PKIN ORLEN acquired 100% of shares with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 100% votes at
General Shareholders Meeting. In exchange PKN ORLEN paid PLN 3,000 thousand in cash and contributed in
kind another PLN 6,915 thousand. ORLEN Laboratorium specialises in providing laboratory and research
services, as well as expertises and analyses.

Polimex-Energo Sp. z 0.0. — on 9 June 2003 following the shares sale agreement, PKN ORLEN acquired from
POLIMEX-CEKOP S.A. 7,499 shares in POLIMEX-ENERGO Sp. z 0.0. located in Krakow, with a par value of
PLN 100 each, representing 24.99% of the share capital of the company and the same percentage of votes at
General Shareholders Meeting, for the total value of PLN 97.5 thousand. The parties intend to change the
company’s name to POILEN Sp. z 0.0.

ORLEN PetroTank Sp. z 0.0 — on 30 June 2003 the Company took over shares in ORLEN PetroTank Sp. z o.0.
of the total value amounting to PLN 31,210.5 thousand that were subject to a collateral agreement. The amount
of PLN 31,210.5 thousand represents unpaid Tankpol Sp. z o.0. liability to PKN ORLEN with interest as at 30
June 2003. If the market value of ORLEN PetroTank Sp. z 0.0. shares (calculated according to the collateral

agreement) exceeds the unpaid liability, the difference will be returned to Tankpol Sp. z o0.0. within
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30 days from the date when the valuation is performed. Before the transaction PKN ORLEN owned 60% of
shares in ORLEN PetroTank Sp. z 0.0. and after the transaction its stake increased to 100%.

1.6 Profit and loss statement
1.6.1 Sales income

During the year 2003, sales of finished products, goods for resale and materials of PKIN ORLEN amounted to
PLN 24,629,963 thousand, which is 3.1% more than in 2002. Despite the decrease in the quantity of products sold by
2.7% (mainly petrol by 8.0% as a result of 7% decline in demand for petrol and Ekoterm by 2.9%) rise in sales
revenues was realized due to favourable trends in fuels prices on the worldwide markets (increase in petrol prices by

19.7%, diesel by 23.9% and Ekoterm by 22.8% and aircraft fuel JET A-1 by 21.2%).

1.6.2 EBIT

Profit on sales of PKN ORLEN S.A. for the year ended 31 December 2003 amounted to PLN 1,071,860
thousand and was higher by 77.2% in comparison to the profit on sales in 2002. Such high increase in profit on sales
was achieved thanks to proper usage of advantageous market conditions.

Rise in margins on quotations for main products (for petrol by 32.6%, for diesel by 70.9%, for Ekoterm by
82.5% and for aircraft fuel JET A-1 by 59.5%) and increase in quotations of crude oil Ural to Brent discount from
(-1.21) to (-1.76) USD/bbl (by 45.5%) were the factors which supported high profits. Comprehensive Program of
Operating Costs Reduction, especially in areas of production and logistics costs, played an essential role in profit
generation.

In 2003 the Company recorded growth in retail sale of fuels (petrol, diesel and LPG) by 0.9% and rise in retail
margin. During the year 2003 also the efficiency of sale (expressed in quantity sales per petrol station) increased by
1.7%. The Company recorded a rise in sales of non-fuel products by 15.1%.

In 2003 profit on other operational activity amounted to PLN 100,303 thousand in comparison to loss of PLN
19,668 thousand in the previous year. Such considerable disproportions are caused by the fact that difference
between book and fair value valuation of contribution-in-kind transferred to Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z o.0.,
amounting to PLN 226 million is included in other operating income.

V Operating profit (EBIT) for 12 months ended 31 December 2003 amounted to PLN 1,172,163 thousand and
was 100.3% higher than profit achieved in 2002.

1.6.3  Financial activity

During 2003 loss on financial activities amounted to PLN 37,407 thousand, as compared to the gain of
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PLN 31,161 thousand recorded in 2002. The loss on financial activity was influenced by higher than in 2002 (by
PLN 154,267 thousand) level of other financial expenses (resulting mainly from PLN 125,875 thousand rise in
negative unrealised foreign exchange differences on loans valuation and from costs of derivatives’ valuation and

other financial costs amounting to PLN 33,664 thousand).

1.6.4 Extraordinary gains and losses

Extraordinary gains and losses amounted to PLN 1.0 thousand and are insignificant for the Company’s net profit.
1.6.5  Gross profit, income tax and net profit

For the year ended 31 December 2003 PKN ORLEN achieved gross profit of PLN 1,134,757 thousand
(increase in comparison to previous year by 84.0%). Increase in gross profit was accompanied by decrease in income
tax charge by 14.1% (mainly due to re-estimation of deferred tax liability resulting from change in Corporate Income
Tax rate — decrease to 19% in 2004, amounting to PLN 61,724 thousand).

In 2003 the PKN ORLEN S.A. earned a net profit of PLN 933,781 thousand and it was higher by 144.3% in
comparison to year 2002. As a result of rising trend in crude oil prices, the LIFO valuation effect amounted to minus

23 million PLN and decreased net profit calculated using that method to PLN 911 million.
1.7 Balance sheet
1.7.1  Total assets

As at 31 December 2003 total assets of the PKN ORLEN S.A. amounted to PLN 13,697,813 thousand and
increased by PLN 1,107,276 thousand (by 8.8%) in comparison to 31 December 2002. As far as assets are
concerned, fixed assets constitute the main part, the share of fixed assets in total assets amounts to 64.5% (66.0% at
the end of 2002). In equity and liabilities, the major part is shareholders equity constituting 61.1% of total liabilities
as at 31 December 2003 (57.7% as at 31 December 2002). Comparing certain balance sheet captions as at
31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002 the following can be noted:

— nse in fixed assets by 6.4% to the level of PLN 8,835,175 thousand as a result of an increase in long term
investments (purchase of 494 petrol stations in Germany),

— increase in current assets by PLN 578,528 thousand to the level of PLN 4,862,638 thousand (by 13.5%), mainly
as a result of rise in receivables by PLN 510,255 thousand (by 39.6%).. That increase was mainly caused by
transfer of management options receivables from ORLEN Powiernik Sp. z o.0. in the amount of PLN 230,299
thousand to short term receivables, creation of receivables from NOM Sp. z o.0. in the amount of PLN 111,511

thousand, increase in receivables from Fiscal Office (overpaid current Income Tax in the amount of PLN 35,289
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thousand and rise in trade receivables by PLN 134,974 thousand (debt collection ratio increased in 2003 to
20 days). Inventories rose by PLN 90,929 thousand (3.7%) mainly do to increase in crude oil stock (both in
quantity and value terms), cash and cash equivalents increased by 1.8% to the level of PLN 62,769 thousand.

— growth of shareholders equity by PLN 1,110,860 thousand to the amount of PLN 8,374,451 thousand as the

result of net profit generated in 2003. Due to conversion of A series bonds into D series shares as a result of the
execution of “Motivation Programme for Management Board and management”, share capital was increased by
PLN 9,415 thousand. The level of reserve capital rose by 621,258 (due to division of profit and share premium).
In 2003 dividend for the year 2002 was paid in the amount of PLN 58,825 thousand (in 2002 PLN 50,421

thousand).

— decrease in liabilities and provisions for liabilities by PLN 3,584 thousand to the level of

PLN 5,323,362 thousand resulting mainly from decline in deferred tax liability by PLN 106,430 thousand. Trade
liabilities rose insignificantly by PLN 21,329 thousand (1.5%).

1.7.2  Net financial indebtedness

As at 31 December 2003 the level of long-term and short-term loans, borrowings and debt securities issued in
PKN ORLEN amounted to PLN 2,254,226 thousand and was 17.6% higher in comparison to the end of 2002. Level
of net financial indebtedness (calculated as financial indebtedness less cash and cash equivalents) in the Company
for the year 2003, comparing to corresponding period of previous year is higher by 18.2% thousand and reached
PLN 2,191,457 thousand. Significant increase in net financial indebtedness corresponding with rise in equity led to
insignificant growth of financial debt to equity ratio (loans, borrowings and debt securities less cash and cash

equivalents to equity) from the level of 25.5% as at 31 December 2002 to 26.2% as at 31 December 2003.

1.8 Cash flow statement

1.8.1  Operating activities

During year 2003 net cash flows from operating activities amounted to PLN 1,237,747 thousand and were
higher by 17.5% than cash flows from operating activities generated in 2002,

The most important factors influencing positively cash flows from operating activities during 2003 as compared
to the previous year were:

- increase in net profit by PLN 551,511 thousand,

- increase in inventories by 124,981 thousand, comparing to PLN 638,599 thousand growth in 2002 (mainly

increase in crude oil inventory).
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As at 31 December 2003 net working capital (current assets less short term payables) amounted to PLN
1,663,978 thousand, compared to the negative net working capital as at 31 December 2002 in the amount of PLN (-)
16,713 thousand. That is mainly due to decrease in long-term liabilities by PLN 1,102,163 thousand resulting from

change in loans structure from short-term to long-term.
1.8.2 Investing activities

During 2003, net cash flows used in investing activities amounted to PLN(-) 1,289,776 thousand, and during
2002 amounted to PLN (-) 668,605 thousand. This level of cash flow used in investing activities results from higher

expenditures on fixed assets and mainly on financial assets (acquisition of 494 petrol stations in Germany).
1.8.3  Financing activities

During year 2003 net cash flows used in financing activities amounted to PLN 53,229 thousand whereas in

previous year - PLN (-) 404,803 thousand. That results from increase in net level of loans and borrowings by PLN
616,318 thousand. ‘

Increased cash flow in financing activities corresponding with 17,5% rise in cash flow in operating activities

enabled the Company to finance expenditures on fixed assets investments and on expansion in Germany
1.9 Employment

Employment in PKN ORLEN as at 31 December 2003 amounted to 6,287 employees, which represents a
decrease of 1,011 people as compared to the previous year. The decline results mainly from restructuring programme
and natural staff movements.

1.10 Description of significant off-balance positions

As at 31 December 2003 total value of guaranties and sureties granted to related parties amounted fo
PLN 961,156 thousarid compared to PLN 94,548 thousand in 2002.

1.11 Projected financial position

The following factors should be considered while assessing future financial position of the Company:

— fluctuations of crude oil prices which affect the costs incurred by Company and margins realised on products,

~  fluctuations of finished products prices on worldwide markets, what causes fluctuation of margins and affects
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results of the Company,
trends in consumers’ demand resulting from among others, unemployment rate and pace of economic growth,

fluctuations of exchange rates causing changes in costs of debt, purchase cost of crude oil and other raw

materials denominated in foreign currencies and changes in value of prices and margins,

economic effects reached as a result of continued and newly commenced optimising programmes and benefits
from implemented savings and effectiveness programmes (Comprehensive Program of Operating Costs

Reduction, Risk Management System and Value Based Management System),
effectiveness of fuel retail business in Germany,
strategy of searching for potential partners for Central European oil industry consolidation,

activity of a joint-venture company with Basell Europe Holdings BV - which produces petrochemicals based on

existing installation and from year 2005 production of petrochemicals will be based on new installations,

change of fiscal policy related to Corporate Income Tax and excise tax (especially on LPG and Ekoterm) in the

light of Poland accession into the European Union,

necessity of adjusting produced fuels’ standards to European Union norms (content of sulphur on level of 50

ppm in year 2005 and 10 ppm in year 2009) and increase in corresponding capital expenditures,

preparation and implementation from 1 January 2003 of Reporting Directors Parametric Bonus Program, which

enables making salaries dependent on economic and financial results,

changes in reporting due to improvement in financial and accounting system enabling to obtain more accurate

segment data (including retail data).
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II. MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS IN THE AREA OF TECHNICAL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

High quality of products and client service while fully respecting environment protection requirements is and
was the Company’s target in its production, distribution and trade activity.

That aim is one of the components of the integrated system of environment pollution prevention implemented in
2003. During the year ended 31 December 2003 works concerning preparation of application for integrated
permission for Production Plant in Plock, which is considered to be “ecological passport” indispensable for the
Company’s activities were carried out. The conclusion of works and application is planned for the second half of the
year 2004.

Correctness of the Company’s activity, as far as impact on environment is concerned, was subject to control by
the Mazovian Inspectorate of Environment Protection, which during 2003 performed 17 controls (controlling, basic,
investing-controlling and complex) and issued 9 after-control instructions, which were executed on current basis. As
aresult of above controls it was stated that Company did not exceed any air pollution and water contamination
limits.

Our efforts in the area of environment protection were appreciated by the Jury of the 4" edition of Environment
Friendly Ecologic held under the honour patronage of the President of the Republic of Poland during which the
Company was awarded the title of Environmen Friendly Company in 2003.
~ Year 2003 was the last year of Ecological Adaptation Program (“EAP”) execution, which resulted in the
decrease of the range and impact of Production Plant in Plock on all environmental components. The program
comprise of 28 tasks aimed at further decrease of the negative impact Production Plant in Plock on all environmental
components. Expected benefits of the program are compared to the 1996 conditions.

The program included 5 areas:

— air protection — 11 tasks,

—~ noise emission — 6 tasks

— water and soil environment — 2 tasks,

— waste management — 3 tasks,

— water and sewage management— 6 tasks.

Innovative character of the enterprise as well as specific period of its fulfilment — period when changes in law
regulating environment protection were implemented, resulted in changes in approved regulations defining the
course of negotiations and conditions of realization of EAP.

The most important and measurable effects, as environment protection is concerned, were achieved in the area
of air protection and water and sewage management. The total amount of contamination during Program execution
period i.e. from 1997 to 2003 decreased by 44% while the amount of treated sewage by 47%. The amount of

consumed water was also significantly reduced.
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In 2003 environmental charges paid by Production Plant in Plock slightly increased as compared to the previous
year. The reduction of fees for water consumption was recorded — that was caused by lower demand of power plant
for decarbonised water compared to 2002, Gas and dust emission charges had 91.5% share in total environmental
fees and these charges increased insignificantly in 2003

As PKN ORLEN S.A. do not posses its own laboratories and do not employs scientists it orders research and
development work to research and development centres and organisations, high schools and all types of companies
conducting this activity. As a result of separation of ORLEN Laboratorium Sp. z 0.0. from the Company’s structure
on 1 January 2003, consisting of 22 laboratories located in the whole country, services, which were so far performed
by PKN ORLEN laboratories, are currently provided by the newly established company (ORLEN Laboratorium Sp.
Z 0.0.).

During many years of its activity the Company set up a close cooperation with many contractors who help it in
adaptation to constantly increasing market demands, to tightening European standards and regulations. In all sectors
we in which the Company delegates tasks — it has trustworthy contractors who proved their credibility in practice.

The most important tasks realized during 2003 are:

1. Agreement with Aspen Tech. Ltd. for “Improvement of PIMS program”.

2. Contract with Shell for the ,Program of Profit Improvement through reasonable reduction of the costs of
maintenance of operations and optimisation of the timing of utilisation of production equipment”.

3. “Report on safety of the Production Plant in Plock” developed by the Department of Processing Engineering and
Environmental Protection of the Technical University of Lodz, with significant cooperation of the PKN ORLEN
S.A. specialists.

4, Agreement with Fire Engineers and Technician Association in Warsaw on preparation of “Operational-Rescue
Plan for PKN ORLEN S.A. applied on own premises in case of extraordinary threats.

5. Agreement with ORLEN Medica Sp. z 0.0. conceming healthcare of the Company’s employees.

6. Development of “Characteristics card” for products, semi-products, wastes and “Written instructions for
drivers”. The Company is obliged to set up them by the Decree of Minister for Health and Social Care dated on
21 August 1997 on dangerous substances, posing threat to life or health. Producer and provider of dangerous
chemicals is obliged to posses cards of characteristics of theses substances and make them available to their
receivers free of charge as well as inform about all implemented changes.

7. Development work “Establishment of the optimal thermo vision method for control of the furnace pipes used in
Production Plant of the Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN”, carried out by PIRS Pregowski Infrared Services in
Warsaw with cooperation of the Institute of Optoelectronics of the Military Technical Academy, Department of
Thermodynamics of the Aviation Institute, Institute of Electronics Materials in Warsaw and Military Technical
Institute of Armament in Zielonka and employees of the TMD Department. Above work enables to lower the
costs of repairs and will improve the technical safety.

8. Work: ,,Jmpact of oil components characteristics and enriching additions being used on effectiveness of filters,

pumps and injections in the fuel systems of engines with automatic ignition”, conducted by Central Oil
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10.

1.

Laboratory in Warsaw and three brochures realised by the Institute of Oil Technology in Krakow: “Estimation
of the effectiveness of the depressing packets for diesel and light heating o0il”, “Laboratory and engine valuation
of quality of Ekodiesel Plus 50” and “Research on compatibility of enrichment additions to diesel”. Above
research are connected with the improvement of the quality of our products and are the effects of our care for
customers. Above work was connected with researches on composition of enrichment additions to engine fuels
and their impact on fuels quality (compatibility of the additions used).

Marketing research conducted by IntraChem from Warsaw: ,Research on phenol market and its perspectives of
ensuring the profitable sales of PKIN ORLEN S.A. production until 2010” and ,,Research on acetone market and
its perspectives of ensuring the profitable sales of complete PKN ORLEN S.A. production until 2010” and
»Research on benzene market and its perspectives of ensuring the profitable sales of complete PKN ORLEN
S.A. production until 2010”.

Work: ,,Composition of petrol according to UE Directives 2005 with petrol components produced by PKN
ORLEN S.A usage maximization” — developed by OBR PR in Plock.

Work ,,Development of production technology of unleaded petrol LOB/LOM 95/85 including less than 10mg/kg
of sulphur with characteristics optimized for GDI engines”. The work is performed by Institute of Oil
Technology in Krakow. The need of work realization resulted from the necessity of adaptation to dynamically
developing car industry, which launches new types of engines, requiring usage of petrol with specific

characteristics.

During 2003 there was a change in attitude towards the role of information technology (“IT”) in the Company.

That technology does not create directly competitive advantage, as it was recently, but it is a common and necessary

business element, which as management methods and organisation, should be efficient and effective.

The main goal is to make information technology the means of changes in the conduct of the business, which is

used by all employees involved in the creation of value chain within the company. Information systems are peculiar

nervous system of the company, which is not able to function without effective support from the information

technology. IT secures all necessary sources within the range of systems and architecture of information environment

needed to achieve the strategic goals of PKIN ORLEN S.A.

The main works concerning the extension of IT infrastructure activated and accomplished in 2003:

Payroll module of mySAP.com was implemented with an enormous success. Design works were divided into
2 stages. Administration of human resources, functionality of organization management, time management and
salaries were activated within the first stage. That stage was very difficult as remuneration principles of
4 different collective agreements, over 700 components of salaries, 12 Social Funds, 15 loans and allowances
funds, many work schedules and systems were integrated in one common solution. The system was

implemented in PKN ORLEN S.A. and 13 companies of the Capital Group. Introduction in PKIN ORLEN S.A.
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can be surely regarded as one of the biggest implementations of that system in Poland. The introduction of the

2" stage of the system (paths of careers, trainings, staff self-service) is still to be accomplished.

2. Implementation of the business systems SAP R/3 in following companies:

— Basell ORLEN Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0,

— ORLEN Asfalty Sp. z 0.0,

— ORLEN Laboratorium Sp. z 0.0.,

- one system in Orlen Deutschland was implemented (replaicing 2 systems operated so far)

3. Value Based Management (VBM) - I stage of project was completed. As a result of that stage all IT areas where
investment expenditures should be made were identified, that in turn will bring immeasurable profits and will
enable the Company to realize its strategic business plans, simultaneously making the Company competitive on
the market. Within that stage informatics tools that will enable the implementation of many new IT solutions in
area of Business Intelligence (SEM/SAP module) were identified. Moreover, partners (Andersen Business
Consulting and SAP Polska) were chosen to implement these tools within second stage of the project.

4, System ,,Stations” (system designed for petrol stations in Poland) was implemented in German version in Orlen
Deutschland,

5. System CARMEN was introduced to manage the car fleet,

6. Comprehensive Operational Cost Cutting Program was implemented — within the savings program computer
system which enables tracing of all savings initiatives in all areas was launched,

7. In card systems:

- additional security system of protections which significantly reduces the amount of misuse was introduced in
VITAY program,

- system for Lithuanian fleet management — ,,Litava” was implemented,

—  Super-VITAY loyalty cards service was designed and activated,

— the mechanism of adding points online was activated,

—~ the process of booking of invoices was significantly advanced as a result of development of FLOTA system.

8. System of fuels deliveries management was designed and implemented, which contributed to significant
savings,

9. Homogenous and compatible with own stations standards reporting system for franchise and patronage stations
was introduced.

10. First stage of Profit Centres in SAP system was implemented.

11. POS software was updated increasing the security of date by additional components of control.

12. Infrastructure:

—  Frame agreement with Dell Poland was signed,

—  Works on upgrade of SAP R/3 and Business Warehouse infrastructure were completed,

~ Infrastructure in regional units (Szczecin, Nowa Wies Wielka, Gdansk, Lublin, Plock - and new localization of
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BOP Sp. z o0.0. Management Board in Warsaw was connected to WAN network) was developed and
modernised,

New system of collection and transmission of data from petrol stations (RSTD) was implemented, making it
more safe,

Additional system of mobile equipment protections was implemented,

Activation of the newest version of Reuters Services,

Back-up systems in warehouse databases (Ostrow Wikp., fuels terminal in Plock) were upgraded,

Accessibility to corporate databases was improved,

Real time system PI was extended with new junctions,

Wire-Free technology was implemented in many points of corporate network,

. Telecommunication:

mobile phones’ billing system was introduced, it ensures more efficient maintenance and control over GSM
phones’ costs (as a result of system implementation significant amount of GSM costs was reduced),
new telephone switchboards were installed in all regions, which enabled significant savings (maintenance cost

reduction and control over number of phone calls),

The most important projects initiated in 2003, which will be completed in 2004, are:

Information Systems Security Audit — Emst & Young was chosen in a tender.

The works will continue till half of June 2004 and their results will include:

preparation of PKN ORLEN S.A. for obtaining BS 7799 certificate

performing of deep risk analysis,

modification and rationalization of current procedures in case of danger and crisis,

development of target business continuity plan

Implementation of one www.orlen.pl platform, which is servicing internal as well as institutional and individual
customers, introducing new quality in the process of internal and external communication. New Internet
www.orlen.pl is built on the basis BroadVision Portal and was launched on 15 March 2004. Intranet will be
initiated in second quarter of 2004. SuperMedia and SterProjekt accompany the implementation of the platform.
Works on final preparations for SAP SEM implementation continue (trainings, resources planning, setting
deadlines).

Implementation of wholesale sales increase system and regional prices introduction.

Works on PKN-DKYV co-branded card continue, new card is expected to be launched in July 2004,

2" stage of payroll and accounting module of mysap.com HR.

Modernisation of system information tools in order to improve the quality of internal customer service through
introduction of professional Help Desk — HP OpenView Service Desk was chosen, system operates from

1 February 2004 and Noblestar accompanies its implementation.
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8. Implementation of “Data Mining”, which will help to initiate tasks in the area of marketing and sales, which will
bring in effect significant financial results — system is in operation since the first quarter of 2004. Statistica and
NUVIT devised by NuTech (company, which together with PKN ORLEN S.A. implements the project) - are
computing tools being in use.

9. ActiveDirectory implementation — first stage including Headquarters in Plock and 3 selected locations (Warsaw,
Wroclaw, Gdansk) will be completed in 2™ quarter of 2004, the whole project will be launched by the end of
2004. HP accompanies the implementation.

10. Implementation of ,,Safe petrol station” project, work include development and implementation of one standard
of anti-burglary, anti-robbery and industrial television systems on own petro! stations significantly increasing
safety of the employees, customers, equipment as well as of the operations and actions performed on stations.
Project will be launched in 2™ quarter of the year.

11. SAP R/3 Audit (final selection of partners and their range of responsibilities)

— in order to define business benefits implementation of upgrade from SAP 4.6B to SAP Oil&Gas system

—~ preparation of final model which support domestic and foreign operations including petrol stations (SAP
Oil&Gas and SAP Retail)

— implementation of prepared and approved model.

12. Selection of company, which will change card terminals on petrol stations and implementation of alternative

solutions for the development of VITAY programme outside network of stations.
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IIi. PREDICTED DEVELOPMENT OF THE COMPANY

The following issues should be considered while analysing predicted directions of Company’s development:

e Activities of Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z o.0.

The company Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z o.0. started its business of producing and selling polyolefins on
1 March 2003. Execution of the investment program to build new installation to produce polyolefins will set
producing capabilities at the level of 400 thousand tonnes of polypropylene, and 320 thousand tonnes of
polyethylene HPDE yearly. The production from new installations will help to cover rapidly developing markets
needs. Due to that undertaking in the first half of 2003, the only factory in Poland producing polyethylene HDPE will
be activated. The polyethylene HDPW is currently available on our market only through import.

»  Retail activity in Germany

As a result of the purchase of petrol stations in Germany, the Company administrates over 2,500 petrol stations
which, assuming future consolidation of the branch, gives an advantage over such companies as MOL or OMV. The
acquisition of petrol stations in Germany will enable a better approach to the market, in the future, as the competition
protection regulations are concerned. An excessive concentration on the Polish market, without any possibility to
intensify retail on other markets, would restrict development in this area considerably. The goal of the Company’s
Management is to achieve a stable increase of the market share in North Germany. In the future, as a result of the
development of refinery and petrochemical part of the Company, excess of produced fuels may occur. This surplus

can be placed on German market.

e Comprehensive Operational Cost Cutting Programme

In December 2002 Management of the Company made a decision to implement in the years 2003-2005
comprehensive operational cost cutting programme. As a result of taken actions cooperation with
McKinsey&Company was set. The consultancy offered realization of “Comprehensive Operational Cost Cutting
Programme of PKN ORLEN” consisting of two phases. The first phase identifies the cost reductions potential and
defines detailed concept of the plan, based on the definition of key initiatives and monitoring process. The second
phase will include initiatives implementation and results monitoring. As a result of program implementation

Company’s operating costs in all areas of activities should decrease.
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¢ Value Based Management

Leading companies in the oil & gas sector ensure their investors (owners of theirs shares) high and systematic
return on invested money while increasing economic and market value of the company. Therefore it is easier to
realize strategic targets and strengthen competitive position. Systematic and constant improvement of the
effectiveness is not only cost reduction and saving programs, but also margin improvement and capital optimisation.
Effective tool is therefore value-based management. Results of adjusting systems in PKN ORLEN to the philosophy

of creating shareholders’ value are visible already in 2003.

» Effects of optimisation programs

The contract realised with Aspen Technology Limited Sheraton House is still in progress. The contract ensures
the improvement of performance of programme PIMS used for production process optimisation.
Cooperation with Shell Global Solutions International results in optimisation of installations’ production time and
decreases maintenance costs. In the Company the programme is currently functioning on several instaliations and till
2005 it will cover gradually whole Production Plant. MERIT program is aimed at the implementation of one risk
management methodology in the whole factory. This will bring a consistency in decisions related to repairs, taking

into consideration their profitability and influence on operational safety of the installations.

¢ Investment Program
Growth in the PKN ORLEN S.A. effectiveness is to a great extent influenced by investment processes in

production and marketing. Realization of the above investments results from Investment Program. The major areas

of activities are as follows:

— technology investments (task related with production installations) undertaken to reduce production costs and
adjust products to UE requirements,

— electrical power engineering and environmental protection undertakings, to secure a safe and compatible with
environment protection requirements work of production installations,

— logistics objects, which include tasks connected with wholesale oil distribution to lower costs and adjusting to
ecological requirements and storing inventory in accordance with UE requirements.

The Company plans the following investments:

— construction and modernisation of the petrol stations,

—  construction of new containers,

— investments for patronage and franchise stations.

¢ Loyalty programs
Loyalty programmes FLOTA POLSKA and VITAY (described in details in the introduction) turned out to be

a success. One of the targets of the above mentioned programmes is a creation of strong relationship between a client
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and the Company. The FLOTA POLSKA programme started recently expansion on foreign markets. A huge contract
was concluded recently with Lithuania carriers.

Introduction of so-called prepaid cards of “W” type strengthened the position of the Company as the leader of
card programmes in Poland. The prepaid cards are characterised by high level of security, they have advantages of
“electronic purse”. In the future, the card programmes of PKIN ORLEN S.A. will be focused both on gaining new

clients and offering the current clients new services and new attractive sales methods.

¢ Consolidation of asphalt’s production and distributions

The Company together with Rafineria Trzebinia S.A. conducted asphalts production and distribution
consolidation project within PKN ORLEN Capital Group. Such activity enabled to strengthen Group’s dominant
position on the Polish asphalts market. In line with anticipated development of the road infrastructure in Poland, the

increase in demand for products produced by the new company is expected.

s External strategy of PKN ORLEN S.A.
Year 2004 is for the Company another year when projects of strategic importance will be implemented. These
projects are aimed at sector consolidation in Europe and creation of regional oil concern leaded by PKN ORLEN

S.A. Fulfilment of that target will include multilateral actions of the concern which can be divided into performed on

domestic market and on the area of the Central and Eastern Europe.

Internal activities — Poland:

- Lotos Group — PKN ORLEN S.A. observes with interest the creation of Lotos Group. However, it does not
change the opinion that there are many areas of mutual activities, which can result in the creation of added value
for the shareholders.

— Other projects — as privatisation and restructuring processes within the domestic oil sector and its related
segments continue, PKN ORLEN S.A. will analyse the possibilities of additional financial benefits generation.
The superior rule here will be a concentration on the core business and material processing — from semi-products
to finished goods. Investments in these areas will be one of the PKN ORLEN S.A activities.

External activities — abroad:

- Negotiations with MOL — creation of regional integrated operator. According to the strategy for international
markets approved by the Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. the Company will tend to merge its potential
with selected oil concerns from Central Europe. That intention will be executed through potential merge with
MOL concern, which dominates the Hungarian market. PKN ORLEN S.A. signed Cooperation Agreement.
According to the Agreement the negotiations aimed at mutual agreement are to be held this year.

—  Other projects - PKN ORLEN participation in the privatisation of other Central European concerns with smaller

scope of activity such as Romanian Petrom and Czech Unipetrol is another form of consoclidation on European

markets.
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IV. IMPORTANT EVENTS THAT WERE SUBJECT OF CURRENT REPORTS DURING THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003 AND AFTER THAT DATE UNTIL THE DAY OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS APPROVAL

1. On 14 January 2003 Mr Jozef Wozniakowski — Member of the Supervisory Board resigned. The reason for
Mr Wozniakowski’s resignation is his appointment to the position of State Undersecretary of the Ministry of
State Treasury.

2. On 28 February 2003 due to fulfilment of agreement on joint economic enterprise (agreement on joint venture
company creation) signed on 30 September 2002, between PKN Orlen S.A. and Basell Europe Holdings B.V.
(“Joint Venture Agreement”), after fulfilment of certain suspending conditions stated in Joint Venture
Agreement, several activities has been accomplished in order to set up joint venture between PKN Orlen S.A
and Basell Europe Holdings B.V. (“Join Venture Agreement”) on the basis of Poliolefiny Polska Sp. z o.0.
located in Plock (“Joint Venture Company”), whose the only partner up to then was PKN Orlen. On 28 February
2003 General Meeting of Shareholders of Joint Venture Company was held, during which PKN Orlen as the
only partner executing General Meeting of Shareholders’ rights, decided to increase share capital from
PLN 50 thousand to PLN 907,398 thousand by creating 1,814,696 new shares with par value of PLN 500 each.
PKN Orlen in exchange for its organized part of the business contributed in kind, which includes real property,
installations and facilities, as well as trading capital used to production and distribution of polyolefin, acquired
907,298 new shares. The remaining 907,398 new shares were acquired by Basell Europe Holdings B.V. in
exchange for contributed cash. Taking into consideration shares owned by PKN Orlen before the decision of
increase in share capital, after registration of the share capital increase PKN Orlen and Basell Europe Holdings
B.V. have equal amount of shares of Joint Venture Company. Under the specific agreement, on 28 February
2003, the Joint Venture Company entered to the Joint Venture Agreement described in current report
No. 85/2002 issued on 30 September 2002. Additionally, on 28 February 2003 several agreements were made
between Joint Venture company and companies from Basell capital group and between Joint Venture Company
and PKN Orlen or companies from PKN Orlen capital group. Significant amount of above agreements were
made between Joint Venture Company and PKN Orlen subsidiaries, which provide Joint Venture company with
services necessary to run the business. Character and conditions of these agreements result from current

operational activity of Joint Venture Company.
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10.

On 28 February 2003, the Company acquired 494 filling stations (323 stations under the name BP — Aral and

171 under the name Eggert — company previously acquired by ARAL) The initial price paid amounted to
EUR 100,900 thousand.

On 1 March 2003 Poliolefiny Polska Sp. z 0.0. - joint venture of PKN ORLEN S.A. and Basell Europe Holdings

B.V., located in Plock (“Polyolefin™) commenced its business operations.

On 14 March 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. announced that The Bank of New York
decreased by 2.01 % points the number of shares of PKN ORLEN S.A. As at 22 November 2002 The Bank of
New York possessed 61,779,572 shares representing 14.70% votes at General Shareholders” Meeting. As at 12
March 2003 The Bank of New York possessed 53,336,068 shares of PKN ORLEN S.A., representing
53,336,068 votes at the General Shareholders’ Meeting and 12.69% stake in share capital and in votes at the
General Shareholders’ Meeting.

On 27 March, the Management Board of the Company informed, that on 25 March, Jacek Bartkiewicz was
appointed by the State Treasury to Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. Simultaneously, Grzegorz

Mroczkowski was dismissed.

On 17 April 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. announced resolutions authorised by the PKN
ORLEN S.A. Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders on 17 April 2003. Resolutions concermed among others:
changes in the Company’s Statue, completion of the Supervisory Board, approving the sale and lease of the

property belonging to the Zaklad Asfaltow as well as sales of two Qil Production Companies in Brzeg Dolny

and Gliwice.

On 17 April 2003 Extraordinary Meeting of Shareholders of PKIN ORLEN S.A. appointed Orest Andrzej
Nazaruk to the Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN S.A.

On 30 April 2003, PKN ORLEN received a license for trading (sale and purchase) of gas fuels for the period
from 2 June 2003 to 2 June 2013. PKN ORLEN S.A. in line with its strategy expanded the scope of its activities
with natural gas trading within Poland in order to deliver common supplies of gas fuels to the Capital Group

companies.

On 16 May 2003 The Highest Court overruled President of Office for Protection of Competition and
Consumers’ (“OPCC”) cessation from the verdict of Antimonopoly Court in Warsaw from 21 February 2001. In
verdict sued by OPCC, Antimonopoly Court in Warsaw cancelled the decision of OPCC, which charged PKN

ORLEN with using monopoly practices consisting in taking advantage of dominant position on liquid fuel
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

market by establishing fuel prices that enable unjustified benefits. (current report No 66/2000 from 12 October
2000). Decision of the Highest Court is uitimate and is not subject to be sued.

On 21 May 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN informed about the initiation of bonds issuance
procedure (bearer bonds with priority subscription rights). The Management Board of the Company undertook
action to introduce this subject on the General Shareholders Meeting as well as the issues related to the
introduction of a new motivation programme. The programme (later referred to as ‘“New Motivation
Programme”) is based on bonds issuance with priority subscription rights. The intention of New Motivation
Programme introduction results from the expiration of the existing motivation programme based on A series

bonds convertible to D series shares in the end of 2003.

On 26 May 2003, the Management Board of PKN ORLEN, signed a Letter of Intent with Agrofert Holding a.s.
based in Prague (Czech Republic) in respect of possible establishment of a consortium, which could participate

in the privatisation of Unipetrol a.s.

On 17 June 2003 President of the Electricity Regulation Office with decision No OGZ/12/554/W/2/2003/AS
granted PKN ORLEN S.A. a license for trading with abroad of natural gas for the period from 20 June 2003 to
20 June 2013. PKN ORLEN S.A., in line with its strategy, expands the scope of its activities with natural gas
trading with abroad in order to deliver common supplies of gas fuels to the Capital Group companies. These
steps are aimed at optimisation of purchase costs of raw gas material, what in a couple of years should lead to a

few tens of millions of savings.

On 24 June 2003, the Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. announced a decision to develop and implement
Comprehensive Operational Cost Cutting Programme in PKN ORLEN S.A. The Programme is aimed at
efficiency improvement and increase in the value of the Company through permanent reduction of operating
costs. The targeted cost reduction has been defined as PLN 800 million per annum calculated on the 2002 cost
base. The implementation of the Comprehensive Operational Cost Cutting Programme started on 1 July 2003.
The Programme is planned to be completed by the end of 2004. The Programme's full effect should be reflected
in 2005 financial year. Out of targeted PLN 800 million 91% relates to reduction of non-labour costs and

remaining 9% to labour related costs.

On 4 July 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. was informed by Commercial Union Open
Pension Fund BPH CU WBK (“Commercial Union OFE BPH CU WBK”) based in Warsaw, that Commercial
Union OFE BPH CU WBK possessed at 1 July 2003 21,533,539 shares of PKN ORLEN S.A., representing
5.125% of share capital and 21,533,539 votes on the General Meeting of Shareholders which equals to 5.125%
of total number of votes on the General Meeting of Shareholders of PKIN ORLEN S.A.
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20.

On 10 July 2003 the Supreme Court in Warsaw considered cessation (I CKN 534/01) of President of the Office
for Protection of Competition and Consumers (“OPCC”) from the verdict of District Court in Warsaw, OPCC
from 13 August 2001 (XVII Ama 95/00), where the Court annulled decision of the President of the OPCC which
blame PKN ORLEN for applying monopolistic practice on the market of monoethylene glycol and cooling
liquid “Petrygo”. The Supreme Court annulled the verdict of the Anti-Trust Court due to administrative
deficiencies. In these circumstances the case will be conducted again by District Court in Warsaw and Court for

Protection of Competition and Consumers (formerly Anti-Trust Court).

On 14 July 2003, the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced that PKN ORLEN was informed by the
Management Board of Nafta Polska S.A. that the Nafta’s Board rejected the offer submitted by the Consortium
of Rotch Energy Limited and PKIN ORLEN dated 11 December 2002 with subsequent supplementations (an
offer to purchase from Nafta Polska S.A. 75% stake of shares in Rafineria Gdanska S.A. — presently Lotos
Group S.A.) without stating the reason. The Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. announced that on
14 July 2003 a separate letter, was received from Nafta Polska, informing that Nafta Polska S.A. decided to end
the tender for shares of Rafineria Gdanska S.A. (presently Lotos Group S.A.) without a resolution. On 14 July
2003, PKN ORLEN notified Rotch Energy Limited about the termination of the Consortium Agreement
between PKN ORLEN and Rotch Energy Limited signed on 30 October 2002 and consequently of the

termination of the Consortium,

On 29 July 2003, PKN ORLEN granted sureties in form of letters of comfort to Bayerische-Hypo und
Vereinshank AG, Dresdner Bank AG, Commerzbank AG and an insurance entity - Zurich Versicherung AG - to
secure liabilities of ORLEN Deutschland GmbH resulting from fuel trading operations and amounting to EUR

115 million. The guarantees are valid for 12 months since the date when they were granted.

On 30 July 2003, PKN ORLEN announced that it signed an agreement for a five-year syndicated loan of
EUR 500 million. The loan will be repaid within 5§ years. PKN ORLEN is entitled to utilise the loan both in
EUR and USD. Interest rate is based on adequate EURIBOR/LIBOR rate increased by credit margin ranging
from 0.40% to 0.60% annually depending on level of financial indicators. Credit repayment is not secured with
charges on PKN ORLEN assets. Obtained funds are to be used for the repayment of existing foreign currency
debts and for financing PKIN ORLEN activity.

On 6 August 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced that the number of its shares held by The
Bank of New York decreased by 2.03 % points. According to current report No 17/2003 from 14 March 2003
The Bank of New York possessed 53,336,068 shares of PKN ORLEN S.A. representing 12.69% of total number
of votes on the General Meeting of Shareholders. On 5 August 2003 the Bank of New York possessed
44,779,954 shares of PKN ORLEN S.A. representing 10.66% of share capital and votes on General Meeting of

Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spolka Akcyjna 39



Management Board Commentary on the Company’s operations for the year ended 31 December 2003

21.

22,

Shareholders.

On 19 August 2003 ORLEN POWIERNIK Sp. z 0.0. which is 100% owned by PKN ORLEN S.A., as a result of
realisation of Motivation Programme issued an offer to Members of the Management Board of PKN ORLEN
S.A. for purchase of series A bonds convertible to series D shares of PKN ORLEN. On 19 August 2003, on the
basis of this offer Members of the Management Board has been entitled to receive total of 1,640,493 bonds at
a purchase price equal to average share price at the Warsaw Stock Exchange for 30 trading days before the
appointment of each Board Member individual and increased by 10%. However, the price cannot be lower than
the bond’s issue price of PLN 20.30.

On 28 August 2003, the Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. presented to the Supervisory Board
a programme of doubling the economic value of the Company within three years period. This ambitious goal is
to be achieved thanks to Value Based Management (VBM). The main objective of the Value Based
Management programme is to direct PKN ORLEN’s strategy towards creating shareholders’ value. The
principal purposes of the project are: to establish a sound platform for the performance of strategic goals, to
increase the financial potential and operational efficiency, to enhance PKIN ORLEN’s competitiveness in Poland
and in the region, and to strengthen competence and motivation of the management throughout the Company
and its Capital Group. The essence of the programme is to base the management systems on Shareholders Value
Added (SVA), calculated as the excess of after-tax operating result over the cost of employed capital. The cost
of capital includes not only cost of debt but also the rate of return required by the shareholders who contribute
equity to the Company. The program is implemented in co-operation with Andersen Business Consulting and
includes the elements of the cost-cutting programme realized in co-operation with McKinsey. The value creation
at PKN ORLEN will focus essentially on three segments. In the retail segment, SVA is to increase by PLN
231 million thanks to reorganization and modernization, combined with a cost-cutting programme and actions
aimed at enhancing sales efficiency. The target for SVA in production, logistics and wholesale is PLN 510
million increase, to be achieved mainly through the introduction of a new sales and marketing strategy,
implementation of a margin optimisation system, enhancement of the processing efficiency, optimal utilisation
of distillation capacity and cost savings. The restructuring programme and costs savings at the Group companies
should improve SVA by PLN 48 million. The strategy of Value Based Management is inseparably connecteq
with generating Shareholders Value Added. The Management Board, tapping on the experience of the Western
corporations, intends to go on to the implementation phase of the value creation strategy through defining
specific goals for each of the directors. The whole Company’s management will be involved in the
implementation of particular elements of the strategy, by breaking down general objectives into constituent ones
using the value trees developed at the Company. Each decision relating to the Company will be assessed in the
context of the ratios, which have influence on the increase in the Company value. In order to achieve a new level

of corporate culture, value creation trainings will be conducted for PKN ORLEN employees. The Management
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Board hopes to form teams oriented towards an effective implementation of the activities comprising the
strategy. Currently work is underway to develop an incentive programme for PKN ORLEN employees, which

will support the creation of the Company value.

On 18 September 2003, Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. announced that the number of its shares held
by The Bank of New York decreased. According to current report No 62/2003 from 6 August 2003 The Bank of
New York possessed 44,779,954 shares representing 10.66% of votes at the General Shareholders' Meeting. As
at 17 September 2003 The Bank of New York possessed 41,780,674 shares representing 9.94% of share capital
and 9.94% of total of votes at the General Shareholders' Meeting.

On 19 September 2003, PKN ORLEN S.A. placed at the Romanian Ministry of Industry and Commerce a Letter
of Intent expressing PKN ORLEN’s interest in the privatization of Romanian oil leader, SNP Petrom. PKN
ORLEN also allows for the possible establishment of a consortium of investors interested in purchasing a stake
in SNP Petrom. The above step is in line with PKN ORLEN’s strategy of active participation in regional
consolidation of refinery industry. PKN ORLEN believes this to be a very interesting opportunity, especially in

terms of Romania’s fuel market potential and Petrom’s mining assets.

On 25 September 2003 Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. approved the directions presented by the
Management Board of the Company in a development strategy of PKIN ORLEN S.A. The approved Company’s
strategy assumes increase in economic value of PKN ORLEN S.A. - according to realized Value Based
Management, creation of fundamentals for starting Central Europe oil sector consolidation and development of

horizontally integrated, regional oil company, which potential will ensure its permanent position in the region.

On 3 October 2003, the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced that the number of its shares held
by The Bank of New York increased. According to current report No 68/2003 from 18 September 2003 The
Bank of New York possessed 41,780,674 shares representing 9.94% of votes at the General Shareholders’
Meeting. As at 2 October 2003 The Bank of New York possessed 42,380,674 shares representing 10.09% of

share capital and votes at the General Shareholders' Meeting.

On 3 October 2003 Mr Jacek Strzelecki, Vice-President of the Management Board for Finance and Economics,
informed the Management Board of PKN ORLEN the he acquired 254,493 series A bonds convertible to series
D shares of the Company as a result of accepting the purchase offer from ORLEN Powiernik Sp z 0.0. within the
confines of Management Option Program (please refer to current report no. 65/2003 dated 19 August 2003). One
bond entitles to receive, as a result of the conversion, one Company’s share. The last date to submit a statement
of converting bonds was due on 10 October 2003, The price of one bond purchased by Mr Jacek Strzelecki
amounts to PLN 20.91 and equals to an average share price at the Warsaw Stock Exchange for 30 (thirty)
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trading days before the appointment of each Board Member and increased by 10%. However the price cannot be
lower than the bond’s issue price i.e. PLN 20.30 (according to resolution No 11 of the General Meeting of
Shareholders dated 15 May 2000 concerning issue of convertibles bonds series A). Mr Jacek Strzelecki, Vice-
President of the Management Board for Finance and Economics is related to the Company in accordance with
§ 2 art. 1 point 30d of the Decree of the Cabinet dated 16 October 2001 concerning current and periodic

information published by issuers of securities.

On 22 October 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. applied to District Court in Warsaw for
registration of share capital increase of the Company as a result of conversion 7,531,924 bonds into
PKN ORLEN S.A. shares as a result of Management Option Program realization (please refer to current report
no. 65/2003 dated 19 August 2003). The application refers to the increase of PKIN ORLEN S.A. initial capital by
the amount of PLN 9,414,905 from the amount of PLN 525,221,421.25 to PLN 534,636,326.25. As a result of
the capital increase the total number of shares, with a par value of PLN 1.25 each, will amount to 427,709,061.
One share authorizes to one vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company. New shares account
for 1.76% in total share capital of the company and represent the same part in votes at the General Meeting of
Shareholders of PKN ORLEN S.A. The number of bonds, which were not converted into shares amounts to

3,812,860 and accounts for over 5% of initially issued bonds value.

On 22 October 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. received information about entering into an
agreement on engineering and construction works between Basell Orlen Poyolefins Sp. z 0.0. located in Plock,
Tecnimont Poland Sp. z ¢.0. located in Warsaw and Tecnimont SpA located in Milano, Italy. The subject of the
agreement signed on 21 October 2003 is to design and build new installations to produce polypropylene and
polyethylene within the joint venture between PKIN ORLEN S.A. and Basell Europe Holdings B.V. The total
cost of the joint venture’s undertakings amounts to EUR 500 million. PKN ORLEN S.A. and Basell Europe
Holdings B.V. hold 50% of shares in the share capital of Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0. located in Plock,
representing 50% votes at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

On 6 November 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. received information that the number of its
shares held by The Bank of New York decreased. According to current report No 74/2003 from 3 October 2003
The Bank of New York possessed 42,380,674 shares constituting 10.09% of votes at the General Shareholders'
Meeting. As at 4 November 2003 The Bank of New York possessed 41,974,304 shares constituting 9.99% of

share capital and votes at the General Shareholders' Meeting.

On 17 November 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. sent to WestLB in Prague — a privatisation adviser of the Czech
government - a preliminary expression of interest in participation in the tender for Unipetrol a.s. The letter was

an answer to the announcement dated 6 November 2003 concerning opening by the National Property Fund of
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the Czech Republic a privatisation process of Unipetrol a.s.

On 22 November 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. and MOL Hungarian Qil and Gas Plc. (,MOL”) signed Agreement
whereby they agreed intention to initiate the co-operation in the Central and Eastern European oil sector. The
parties believe that this co-operation would allow both MOL and ORLEN to benefit from synergies and could
create the opportunity to compete more effectively with the leading global operators in the sector. The
Agreement provides for an initial period of exclusive consultation between MOL and ORLEN in respect of
potential co-operation. The parties have also agreed to establish working groups to assess the feasibility of
further potential co-operative initiatives and to develop structure and time-schedules of such initiatives. Such
potential cooperation may include:

- intention to mutual purchase of 10 up to 15% stake in other party share capital,

- assessment whether it is possible to create the company, which at the initial stage would execute
the common economic projects, including common investments and later, under the condition of
additional analysis being performed, would manage the selected assets of both parties,

- intention to merger between MOL and ORLEN in order to achieve potential economic benefits.
Signature of the Agreement means that negotiations between MOL and ORLEN are in their initial stage. Such
negotiations will begin after the signature of the Agreement, which will result in the establishment of special
working groups, and after the selection of external advisors. Initiatives mentioned above will be implemented
after final agreements being concluded and after the approval of shareholders, corporate bodies of both parties
and administrative permissions required by the law. Despite the fact that the Agreement involves non-binding
elements, the parties believe that at the current stage it will serve as an advantageous element in relation

between them and look forward to productive discussions between the MOL and PKN ORLEN teams.

On 20 November 2003 the District Court for the Capital city of Warsaw, XXI Economic Department registered
an increase in share capital of PKN ORLEN S.A. The increase was a result of conversion of 7,531,924 series A
bonds into 7,531,924 series D shares within the Management Incentive Program execution. Capital was
increased by the amount of PLN 9,414,905 from the amount of PLN 525,221,421.25 to PLN 534,636,326.25. As
a result of the capital increase the total number of shares, with a par value of PLN 1.25 each, will amount to
427,709,061. One share entitles to one vote at the General Meeting of Shareholders of PKN ORLEN S.A.

On 21 November 2003 the Company submitted a preliminary, non-binding expression of interest to the
Romanian Ministry of Economy and Commerce in Bucharest in respect of the purchase of a 51% stake in SNP

Petrom S.A., Romania’s biggest oil company.

On 1 December 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced that based on §40, point 2 in

connection with §2 point 1 and 4 of the National Depositary of Securities’ Regulations, the National Depositary
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37.

38.

39.

of Securities Board following the PKN ORLEN S.A. application, decided on 28 November 2003 to admit
7,531,924 (seven million five hundred thirty one thousand nine hundred twenty four) PKN ORLEN series D
ordinary shares with a par value of PLN 1.25 and assign them PLPKN0000075 symbol.

On 1 December 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. applied to Warsaw Stock Exchange (“WSE”) for admission of
7,531,924 (seven million five hundred thirty one thousand nine hundred twenty four) shares for trading on the

Warsaw Stock Exchange as a result of shares assimilation in National Depository for Securities.

On 3 December 2003 the Warsaw Stock Exchange Board as a result of resolution based on §16 point 1 of
the WSE Regulations decided to admit 7,531,924 PKN ORLEN series D ordinary shares for continuous trading

system since 10 December 2003.

On 12 December 2003 Mr Jacek Strzelecki — Vice President of PKN ORLEN S.A. Management Board on the
basis of option agreement with CA IB Securities S.A. on 8 September 2003 sold 254,493 shares of PKN
ORLEN S.A. at the price of PLN 21.90 per share.

Company ORLEN Powiernik Sp. z 0.0. on:

- 16 December 2003 purchased from Citibank Handlowy 10,900 bonds issued by PKIN ORLEN with
a par value PLN 10,000, at purchasing price of PLN 9,864.11 in order to allocate available cash.

- 23 December 2003 purchased from Citibank Handlowy 1,929 bonds issued by PKIN ORLEN with
a par value PLN 10,000, at purchasing price of PLN 9,865.34 in order to allocate available cash.

- 31 December 2003 purchased from Citibank Handlowy 9,240 bonds issued by PKN ORLEN with
a par value PLN 10,000, at purchasing price of PLN 9,867.80 in order to allocate available cash.

- 1 January 2004 purchased from Citibank Handlowy 1,287 bonds issued by PKN ORLEN with
a par value PLN 10,000, at purchasing price of PLN 9,874.97 in order to allocate available cash.

ORLEN Powiernik Sp. z 0.0. is 100% owned by PKN ORLEN S.A.

40. On 17 December 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. and Zaklady Azotowe Pulawy S.A. signed a Letter of Intent

41.

regarding production of caprolactam and natural gas deliveries. The contract determines the utilization of PKN
ORLEN and Zaklady Azotowe Pulawy S.A. potential, in order to find production alliances, business and

investment relations in the area of caprolactam production and natural gas deliveries.

On 17 December 2003 Polkomtel S.A. made an earlier repayment of its loan to PKIN ORLEN S.A. The value of
repaid loan amounts to PLN 98,050,000 and PLN 2,132,832.63 worth of interest. PKIN ORLEN S.A owns
19.61% stake in share capital of Polkomtel S.A.
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On 22 December 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN announced, that The Bank of New York
increased its stake in PKIN ORLEN S.A. According to current report No 81/2003 dated 6 November 2003 The
Bank of New York possessed 41,974,304 shares constituting 9.99% of votes at the General Shareholders'
Meeting. As of 19 December 2003 The Bank of New York possessed 45,061,314 shares of PKN ORLEN,
authorizing to 45,061,314 votes at the General Shareholders Meeting constituting 10.54% of share capital and

the same number of votes at the General Shareholders' Meeting.

On 31 December 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. repurchased 3,812,860 series ‘A’ convertible bonds, which were not
converted into shares in accordance with the realization of the Management Motivation program. Resolution
No 8 of Ordinary General Shareholders Meeting dated 15 May 2000 was the legal basis for the repurchase. The

bonds were repurchased at an issue price of PLN 20.30 for one convertible bond.

On 7 January 2004 PKN ORLEN S.A. and ConocoPhillips Central and Eastern Europe Holdings B.V. with its
registered office in Rotterdam, the Netherlands (“ConocoPhillips”) signed an agreement whereby they agreed
the intention to co-operate in the privatisation process of Unipetrol a.s., a company operating in the Czech oil
sector (“Unipetrol”). The agreement defines preliminary terms of the cooperation of the parties, outlines the
proposed ultimate shareholding of the parties in some of Unipetrol companies and the potential terms of the
acquisition by the parties of some assets of Unipetrol Group, in case of the PKN ORLEN S.A. successful
participation in the Unipetrol privatisation. The agreement represents an early stage in the discussions between
ConocoPhillips and PKN ORLEN S.A. and does not constitute a legally binding obligation of any party to enter

into any future agreement.

On 9 January 2004 the PKN ORLEN S.A. announced that on 6 January 2004, Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z 0.0.
with its registered office in Plock (“JV Company™) - a joint-venture company of PKN ORLEN and Basell
Europe Holdings B.V. with its registered office in Haarlemmermeer, the Netherlands (,,BEH”) - signed an
advisory services agreement (“Advisory Services Agreement”) between PKN ORLEN S.A., the JV Company
and BEH (“Advisory services agreement”). Simultaneously, PKN ORLEN entered into the agreement on

construction and co-financing of infrastructure facilities with the JV Company (,,OSBL Agreement”)

On 27 January 2004 PKN ORLEN S.A. granted a corporate guarantee to Shell Deutschland Oil GmbH - to
secure the liabilities of ORLEN Deutschland GmbH (PKN ORLEN subsidiary in Germany) arising from
ORLEN Deutschland’s fuel trading operations amounting to EUR 40 million. The guarantee is valid till 31
January 2005. PKN ORLEN holds 100% stake in ORLEN Deutschland GmbH.

On 10 February 2004 PKN ORLEN S.A. granted a corporate guarantee to Shell Deutschland Oil GmbH - to
secure the liabilities of ORLEN Deutschland GmbH (PKN ORLEN’s fuel subsidiary in Germany) arising from
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ORLEN Deutschland’s fuel trading operations amounting to EUR 20 million. The guarantee is valid’ till 31
January 2005. PKN ORLEN S.A. holds 100% stake in ORLEN Deutschland GmbH.

48. On 19 February 2004 PKN ORLEN granted a corporate guarantee in the amount of EUR 22 million and
USD 40 million to the following companies: HGM Roland Mineralé] Handel GmbH, Holbom European
Marketing Company Ltd., Louis Dreyfus & Cie Mineraldl GmbH, Mabanaft Deutschland GmbH & Co. KG,
Deutsche BP Aktiengesellschaft. The company also granted sureties in form of letters of comfort to Bayerische-
Hypo und Vereinsbank AG, Dresdner Bank AG, Commerzbank AG totalling EUR 15 millions. These
guarantees secure the execution of trade payables of its German subsidiary ORLEN Deutschland GmbH
resulting from its activities. The issued sureties and guaranties will replace current securities provided by PKN
ORLEN on 29 July 2003 (see current report No 60/2003 dated 30 July 2003). The guarantees are valid till
31 January 2005. PKN ORLEN holds 100% stake in ORLEN Deutschland GmbH.
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V. MANAGEMENT BOARD STATEMENT CONCERNING COMPLIENCE WITH CORPORATE CODE
REGULATIONS

‘On the basis of paragraph 22a of the Warsaw Stock Exchange (“WSE”) Regulations and WSE Board
Resolution conceming the application of Corporate Code Regulations for public companies which issue shares,
convertible bonds or bonds with priority subscription rights allowed for trading, the Management Board of PKN
ORLEN S.A. on 27 June 2003 made a statement on applying of Corporate Code Regulations. In the above statement
the Management Board declares that Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN S.A., thanks to its own corporate rules,
whose range corresponds with market and its participants’ expectations and respects the Company and its
shareholders interest, applies the good and loyal internal management rules. Simultaneously, the Company will adapt
the Corporate Code Regulations in form proposed by the WSE as soon as legal doubts concerning the operations of
Corporate Council of Capital Market Court are settled. In the Company’s opinion the content of Corporate Code
Regulations includes some expressions which are general and not distinct, which results in interpretational doubts.
That may lead to disputes concerning their interpretation in the future. As a consequence the Company may be
exposed to the sanctions of the body whose functioning and the range of judgement are not yet known.

The Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. maintains its opinion expressed in its announcement dated
27 June 2003.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
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1. Information about significant agreements

1. On 14 January 2003 the Company informed that on 13 January 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. received a guarantee
signed by OJSC ,,)YUKOS OIL CORPORATION” on realization of Petroval S.A. obligations. Petroval S.A.
obligations concern future contract on delivering oil to the Company to the year 2009 with a possibility of

prolonging the period for the next 3 years.

2. On 15 January 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. and Basell Europe Holding B.V., a company established and running in
accordance with Dutch law, based in Hoofddorp in Holland, signed an annex changing the agreement on joint
venture. According to the foregoing annex, parts agreed that, an agreement of Office for Protection of
Competition and Consumers on realizing transaction regulated by the agreement should be received till
24 February 2003. In accordance to foregoing Joint Venture company, set as result of the agreement and
registered under the firm Poliolefiny Polska Sp. z 0.0. located in Plock, in which parties of the transaction will
hold 50% shares, will start a business not sooner as at the end of February 2003, and not, as it was anticipated

earlier, in January 2003.

3. On 24 February 2003 the group of international banks, including the Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi, Ltd., KBC
Finance Ireland and Société Générale, signed mandate and underwriting letter (“Mandate Letter”) confirming
conditions, under which the the above mentioned banks were ready to provide a joint venture between PKN
ORLEN S.A. and Basell Europe Holdings B.V. ("Joint Venture Company") with financial resources in form of
two credits to realize joint venture within the confines of “Joint Venture Company”. The aim of the partnership
is to build new installations to produce polyolefins. The receipt of financial resources is conditioned on
agreement on the content of loan contracts planned to be reached till 31 May 2003. Signing the Mandate Letter
was preceded by the signature of the agreement on new installation construction works, which was finalised on
24 February 2003.

4. On 27 February 2003 a bridge guarantee agreement to the amount of EUR 90.000 thousand and a bridge loan
agreement to the level of EUR 25.000 thousand were concluded. The Company as a guarantor, the German
company related to PKN ORLEN under firm Einhundertzweiundreissigste Vermoegensverwaltungsgesellschaft
mbH (EV mbH) as borrower, and Bank Austria Creditanstalt AG as creditor are the parties of the agreement.
According to the agreement the bank is obliged, with reservation of meeting specified suspending conditions, to
grant EV mbH bridge financing in form of guarantees and a revolving loan. The loan will be used to finance
borrower’s working capital. Bank receivables will be secured by guarantees granted by PKN ORLEN S.A..
Responsibility of the Company to the Bank is limited to EUR 57,500 thousand. The agreement provides setting

up other forms of guarantees on stakes, shares or assets of selected companies with headquarters in Germany.
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On 28 February 2003 PKN ORLEN and Joint Venture Company concluded an agreement on delivery of
propylene. Under this agreement PKN ORLEN should deliver in favour of Joint Venture company propylene
produced by current and future installations producing monomers in Plock. The amount of propylene delivered
by PKN ORLEN will be set yearly by Joint Venture company according to procedure provided for in the
agreement. The yearly amount of propylene, starting from third year after final end of construction of Joint
Ventures new plants, should not be lower then 300 thousand tonnes. PKN ORLEN S.A. guaranteed Joint
Venture the delivery of propylene in the amount of 380 thousand tonnes. The agreement came into effect on
28 February 2003 and will be valid as long as PKN ORLEN S.A. or any its related entity will hold shares in
Joint Venture and next through the following five years, however not shorter then 15 years after final end of

construction of Joint Venture new plants.

On 28 February 2003 PKN ORLEN and Joint Venture company concluded an agreement on delivery of ethylene
produced by current and future installations producing monomers in Plock. The amount of ethylene delivered by
PKN ORLEN S.A. will be set yearly by Joint Venture company according to procedure provided for in the
agreement. The yearly amount of ethylene, starting from third year after final end of construction of Joint
Ventures new plants, should not be lower than 340 thousand tonnes. PKN ORLEN S.A. guaranteed Joint
Venture company the delivery of ethylene in the amount of 430 thousand tonnes. The agreement came into
effect on 28 February 2003 and will be valid as long as PKN ORLEN S.A. or any of its related entities will héld
shares in Joint Venture and next through the following five years, however not shorter then 15 years after f'mai

end of construction of Joint Venture new plants.

On 28 February 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. and Joint Venture company concluded an agreement on delivery
services of media, material and equipments by PKN ORLEN in favour of Joint Venture. Under this agreement
PKN ORLEN will deliver services, media, materials and equipments in the amount essential to conduct
production by Joint Ventures in its plants. With reference to services, media, materials and equipments PKN
ORLEN S.A. is obliged to treat partnership Joint Venture not less preferably then other buyers. The agreement
came into effect on 28 February 2003 and will be valid as long as PKN ORLEN or any its related entity will
held stakes in Joint Venture and next through the following five years, however not shorter than 15 years after
final end of Joint Venture new plants construction. Conclusion of above-mentioned agreements dated 28

February 2003 enabled the Company to initiate its production activity on 1 March 2003.

On 20 May 2003 the Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN took a resolution concerning agreement on sale of all
shares of Niezalezny Operator Miedzystrefowy Sp.z 0.0. in Warsaw {,NOM”) held by PKN ORLEN S.A.
Simultaneously, on 20 May 2003 the Management Board accepted the offer. As a result, an agreement on sale of
all shares held by the Company in NOM was concluded and in the opinion of the Management Board the shares

were sold to PSE, for the price of PLN 111,511 thousands, which is the sum of nominal value of sold shares and
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11.

12.

13.

14.

cumulative investment premium, calculated in accordance with rules specified in the Agreement. Shares held by
PKN ORLEN accounts for 35% of NOM share capital.

On 26 May 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. signed the Letter of Intent with the company Agrofert Holding a.s. located
in Prague, concerning possibility to create joint consortium, which would take part in privatisation of Unipetrol

a.s.

On 23 June 2003 following the shares sale agreements, the Company sold:

— 2,142 shares in ORLEN Eltech Sp. z o.0., with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 51.00% of its
initial capital and 51.00% voting rights on General Meeting of Shareholders, for the total value of
PLN 3,679,956,

— 2,459 shares in ORLEN Remont Sp. z 0.0., with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 51.23% of its
initial capital and 51.23% voting rights on General Meeting of Shareholders, for the total value of
PLN 4,866,361,

— 30,210 shares in ORLEN Mechanika Sp. z 0.0., with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 68.16% of
its initial capital and 68.16% voting rights on General Meeting of Shareholders, for the total value of PLN
5,316,960.

On 27 June 2003, based on an agreement of shares sale, PKIN ORLEN S.A. sold 1,836 shares in the company
ORLEN EnergoRem Sp. z o.0., with a par value PLN 500 each, representing 51.00% of its share capital and
51.00% voting rights on General Meeting of Shareholders, for the total value of PLN 1,906,128.

On 29 July 2003 PKN ORLEN granted guarantees in form of letters of comfort to Bayerische- Hypo und
Vereinsbank AG, Dresdner Bank AG, Commerzbank AG and insurance company Zurich Versicherung AG in
order to secure execution of liabilities resulting from oil trading of its German subsidiary ORLEN Deutschland

GmBH on total amount of EUR 115 million. Sureties are valid 12 months from the date when they were granted.

On 29 July 2003 an agreement on dual currency loan in the amount of EUR 500 million was conducted. The

loan will be repaid within 5 years. The loan might be used both in EUR and in USD.

On 29 August 2003 following the shares sale agreements PKN ORLEN sold to Zaklad Urzadzen

Dystrybucyjnych Sp. z 0.0.:

e 935 shares in Serwis Katowice Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 55% of the share
capital of Serwis Katowice and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders,

e 3,215 shares in CPN Serwis Kielce Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 100% of the

share capital of CPN Serwis Kielce and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders,
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e 2,000 shares in Serwis Kedzierzyn Kozle Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 80% of
the share capital of Serwis Kedzierzyn Kozle and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of
Shareholders,

e 675 shares in Serwis Rzeszow Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 97.26% of the

share capital of Serwis Rzeszow and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders.

After the transaction the Company does not hold any stake in share capital in above mentioned companies.
Simultaneously PKN ORLEN owns 99.94% stake in share capital of Zaklad Urzadzen Dystrybucyjnych Sp.

Z 0.0.

On 30 October 2003 on the basis of shares sale transactions PKN ORLEN S.A. disposed to ORLEN Transport
Plock Sp. z 0.0. 59,447 shares in ORLEN Transport Warszawa Sp. z 0.0. (with a par value of PLN 100 each)
representing 94.49% of the share capital and the same number of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting, for
the total value of PLN 6,000,000. The remaining 5.51% stake in ORLEN Transport Warszawa Sp. z 0.0. shares
is owned by its employees. Simultaneously, PKN ORLEN S.A owns 97.58% stake in share capital of O.RLEN
Transport Plock Sp. z o.0.

On 31 October 2002 PKN ORLEN S.A. and J&S Service & Investments Ltd, a Cyprus legal entity located in
Larnaca concluded Annex no. | (“the Annex”) to the terms of oil supply contract signed on 20 December 2002
(“the Agreement”). On the basis of the Agreement changed by the Annex, J&S Service & Investments Ltd is
obliged to supply the Company with crude oil until the year 2009 (inclusive) in the average quantity of
5,400,000 tonnes per year what exceeds the primary period stated in the Agreement over 2 years (please refer to
Current report no. 110 dated 21 December 2002). Moreover, on the basis of the Annex the formula referring to
the quotations of URAL crude oil prevailing on the international markets was changed. The changes in the
Agreement caused by the Annex reflect the current international standards applied in contracts regarding supply

of crude oil and do not influence estimated value of the Agreement.

On 19 November 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. signed a co-operation agreement with Agrofert Holding a.s in Prague
(Czech Republic) over the privatisation of Unipetrol a.s. This agreement follows the letter of intent signed on 26
May 2003 (see current report No 40/2003 dated 26 May 2003). The agreement covers initial arrangements
regarding co-operation of the parties in the privatisation process and defines the preliminary division of

Unipetrol’s assets between the parties should their bid be successful.

On 19 December 2003 a number of legal transactions were concluded, particularly agreements in connection
with provision of financing (the “Financing Transaction™) by the banking consortium led by Bank of Tokyo

Mitsubishi, KBC, Societe Generale and European Bank for Reconstruction and Development (the “Arranging
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Banks”) to Basell Orlen Polyolefins Sp. z o.0. (the “Joint-Venture Company™), a joint-venture company of PKN
ORLEN S.A. and Basell Europe Holdings B.V. (“BEH”). As a result of the financing transaction the arranging
banks guaranteed that Joint Venture Company will be granted funds amounting to EUR 350 million in form of:
(I) investing loan amounting to EUR 320 million for construction of new polypropylene and polyethylene
production plant and (ii) revolving operational loan of maximum EUR 30 million for Joint Venture Company

working capital financing.

19. On 29 December 2003 following shares sale transactions the Company disposed 3,620 shares in ORLEN

WodKan Sp. z 0.0. (with a par value of PLN 500 each) representing 82.27% of the share capital and the same
number of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting, for the total value of PLN 2,354,159.50.

Above transaction is the next step in the process of selling non-core subsidiaries. Activities of the sold company
include repair and maintenance services. At the transaction date, sold company employed 160 people. After the

transaction PKN ORLEN does not possess any stake in the above-mentioned company.

20. On 30 December 2003 on the basis of shares sale transactions the Company sold to ORLEN Transport

Plock Sp. z 0.0. 108,659 shares in ORLEN Transport Poznan Sp. z o.0., with a par value of PLN 100 each
representing 96.39% of the share capital and the same number of votes at the General Shareholders Meeting, for
the total value of PLN 10,900,000. The remaining 3.61% stake of ORLEN Transport Poznan Sp. z o0.0. shares is
owned by its former and current employees. PKN ORLEN S.A owns 97.58% stake in share capital of ORLEN
Transport Plock Sp. z 0.0.

21. On 31 December 2003 on the basis of shares sale agreements PKN ORLEN disposed its shares in 7 service
companies including:

o 7,945 shares in Serwis Slupsk Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 99,76% of the share
capital of Serwis Slupsk and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders for the total
value of PLN 1,324,999.15.

e 360 shares in Serwis Wroclaw Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 88,33% of the
share capital of Serwis Wroclaw and 83.33% of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders for the total
value of PLN 745,000.

e 431 shares in Serwis Krakow Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 83,20% of the share
capital of Serwis Krakow and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders for the total
value of PLN 230,000.

e 2387 shares in Serwis Podlasie Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 89,67% of the
share capital of Serwis Podlasie and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders for
the total value of PLN 298,375.
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e 6,495 shares in Serwis Zachod Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 74,31% of the
share capital of Serwis Zachod and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders for the
total value of PLN 754,978.80.

e [,581 shares in Serwis Poznan Sp. z o0.0. with a par value of PLN 100 each, representing 51,00% of the
share capital of Serwis Poznan and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders for the
total value of PLN 190,004.24.

e 206 shares in Serwis Szczecin Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 500 each, representing 49,05% of the
share capital of Serwis Szczecin and the same number of votes at its General Meeting of Shareholders for
the total value of PLN 182,134.90.

Execution of above transactions is the next step in the process of selling non-core subsidiaries. Activities of the
sold companies include repair and maintenance services. At the transaction date, sold companies employed 245

people.

22. On 31 December 2003 PKN ORLEN S.A. signed yearly contracts:
- with BP Polska Spolka z 0.0. The subject of the agreement is sales of petrol and diesel fuel to the company BP
Polska Sp. z 0.0. in 2004. The estimated value of the contract amounts to PLN 3,342,000 thousand (gross).
- with SHELL Polska Spolka z o.0. The subject of the agreement is sales of petrol and diesel fuel to the
company SHELL Polska Sp. z o0.0. in 2004. The estimated value of the confract amounts to
PLN 1,920,000 thousand (gross).
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2. Production

Processing of crude oil in years 2002-2003

No. Raw material Processing /tonnes/ Dynamics
2002 2003 2003/2002
1. REBCO 12,094,417 11,606,562 95.97%
2. |Low-sulphur ¢rude-oil 379,449 117,440 30.95%
Total 12,473,866 11,724,002 93.99%
Production of fuels in years 2002-2003
No. Product Production /tonnes/ Dynamics
2002 2003 2003/2002
1. |Total petrol 2,978,729 2,766,691 92.88%
2. |Total diesel 3,019,887 3,070,725 101.68%
Total fuels 5,998,616 5,837,416 97.31%
3. JETA-1 262,938 300,622 114.33%
4. |Ekoterm 1,704,638 1,531,261 89.83%
Total 7,966,192 7,669,299 96.27%
Production of oil derivatives in years 2002-2003
No. Product Production /tonnes/ Dynamics
2002 2003 2003/2002
1. |Liquid gas 207,395 215,710 104.01%
2. |Asphalts 487,025 567,687 116.56%
3. |Heating oil "3" 949,516 717,437 75.56%
4. |Basic oils 122,335 109,891 89.83%
5. |Slack (wax) 27,210 19,464 71.53%
6. |Solvents 73,271 42,786 58.39%
Total 1,866,752 1,672,975 89.62%
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Petrochemicals’ production in years 2002-2003

No. Product Production /tonnes/ Dynamics

2002 2003 2003/2002
1. [Ethylene 116,111 246,889 212.63%
2. |Propylene 81,551 201,000 246.47%
3. |Butadiene 51,377 44,055 85.75%
4. |Benzene 75,562 75,289 99.64%
5. {Toluene 58,493 58,814 100.55%
6. [Ortoxylene 21,585 23,329 108.08%
7. |[Paraxylene 32,238 36,398 112.90%
Total aromatics (pos. 4-7) 187,878 193,830 103.17%
8. [Phenol 50,726 52,577 103.65%
9. |Acetone 31,430 33,377 106.19%
10.MEG 103,786 86,679 83.52%
11.]DEG 11,730 9,676 82.49%
12.[TEG 354 310 87.57%
13.Petrygo 15,828 16,288 102.91%
14.|Paraflu 835 431 51.62%
15.Qal fluid 75 70 93.33%
Total glycols + radiator liquids (pos. 10-15) 132,608 113,454 85.56%
17. |Polyethylene 157,663 27,165 17.23%
18.|Polypropylene 142 818 25,104 17.58%
19, |Sulphur 111,032 104,331 93.96%
2(0.|Ethylene oxide 18,942 18,894 99.75%
Total 1,082,136 1,060,676 98.02%
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3. Sale

Quantity structure of sold products and goods for resale

Group of products and goods for | Sales (in thousand tonnes) Structure % Dynamics %
resale 2002 2003 2002 2003 2003/2002
Petrol 3,117 2,867 27.92 26.37 92.0
Eurosuper 95 2,422 2,322 21.69 21.36 95.9
Super Plus 98 195 175 1.75 1.61 89.5
Universal 95 499 370 4.47 3.40 74.0
Diesel 3,030 3,249 27.13 29.89 107.2
Heating oil (light) 1,585 1,539 14.19 14.16 97.1
JET A-1 (aircraft fuel) 266 294 2.38 2.70 110.5
Light products 7,998 7,949 71.62 73.12 99.4
Liquid gas (LPG) 273 303 245 2.79 111.0
Heating oil III 1,047 694 9.38 6.39 66.3
Sulphur 110 105 0.98 0.97 95.8
Other refinery products 652, 753 5.83 6.92 115.5
Total refinery products 10,079 9,804 90.26 90.19, 97.3
Polyethylene 161 27 1.44 0.25 16.9
Polypropylene 143 28 1.28 0.25 19.2
Phenol 50 53 0.45 0.49 104.7
Acetone 32 33 0.28 0.31 105.2]
Ethylene 116 247, 1.04 2.27 212.5
Propylene 83 201 0.75 1.85 241.6
Glycol 117 99 1.05 0.91 84.6
Ethylene oxide 19 19 0.17 0.18 100.4
Butadiene 52 45 0.47 0.41 85.7
Benzene 75 76 0.68 0.70 101.3
Ortoxylene 20 25 0.18 0.23 1214
Paraxylene 32 37 0.29 0.34 114.5
Other petrochemical products 185 176 1.66] 1.62 95.2
Total petrochemical products 1,087 1,066 9.74 9.81 98.1
Total 11,167 10,870 100, 100 97.3
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Structure of sales of products by main customers

. % share in net revenues
Main customers
2002 2003

BP (POLAND) 5.7 6.8
SHELL (POLAND) 5.6 5.2
ORLEN PETRO-TANK 4.8 5.1
ORLEN PETROCENTRUM 0.4 2.4
IBASELL ORLEN POLYOLEFINS - 2.1
IPETROLOT 1.9 2.0
LOTOS GROUP 1.2 1.3
IANWIL 1.0 1.0
ORLEN GAZ 0.8 1.0
ORLEN ASFALT - 0.8
ORLEN OIL 0.5 0.7
ORLEN PETROPROFIT 0.5 0.7
ORLEN PETROZACHOD 0.7 0.6
IELANA 0.5 0.6
ZA KEDZIERZYN 0.4 0.5
RAFINERIA TRZEBINIA 0.8 0.5

Share of remaining customers did not exceed 0,5% of total sales revenues.
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4. Suppliers

Crude oil suppliers’ structure in 2003:

Company Quantity (in tonnes) Share %
U&S 6,559,932.2 53.70
IPetroval 2,863,701.0 23.44
[BMP 1,883,700.2 15.42
'Wincor 735,209.4 6.02
Total International 173,958.8 1.42

otal 12,216,501.6 100.00
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5. Transactions with related parties

Transactions with related entities, where value of single transaction or total value of transactions during 2003
exceeds a PLN equivalent of EUR 500 thousand:

No. Name of business partners Sales in PLN Purchases in PLN
thousand thousand
1. {ORLEN Gaz Sp. z o.0. 258,383.4 129,991.0
2. |ORLEN PetroProfit Sp. z 0.0. 165,041.3 12,804.0
3. |ORLEN PetroTank Sp. z o0.0. 1,261,047.2 20,794.0
4. |Inowroclawskie Kopalnie Soli "SOLINO" S.A. 621.3 24,799.1
5. |ORLEN PetroCentrum Sp. z 0.0. 594,778.8 5,729.2
6. [PETROLOT Sp. z 0.0. 485,245.9 1,309.9
7. |Petrotel Sp. z 0.0. 1,752.5 11,226.4
8. |Wisla Plock Sportowa S.A. 379.3 16,445.4
9. |Rafineria Trzebinia S.A. Capital Group (without ORLEN Oil) 142,076.2 31,309.2
10. |ORLEN Medica Sp. z 0.0 135.6 5,395.5
11. |ORLEN PetroZachod Sp. z 0.0, 138,023.3 6,807.3
12. |ORLEN Polimer Sp. z o0.0. 12,348.9 12.0
13. |ORLEN Projekt S.A. 367.2 9,116.7
14, |ORLEN Ochrona Sp. z 0.0. 1,148.0 26,476.2
15. |Zaklad Budowy Aparatury S.A. 3,067.6 6,062.0
16. |ORLEN Transport Plock Sp. z 0.0. 55,001.9 17,214.8
17. |Rafineria Nafty Jedlicze S.A. 20,011.1 772.9
18. |ORLEN Automatyka Sp. z 0.0. 576.5 19,095.1
19. |[ORLEN WodKan Sp. z 0.0. 1,322.2 14,397.0
20. |[ORLEN Wir Sp. z 0.0. 692.9 7,106.6
21. |ORLEN Budonaft Sp. z o0.0. 846.4 27,4831
22. Serwis Wroclaw Sp. z o.0. 291.3 5,761.3
23. [SHIP-SERVICE S.A. 92,449.3 109.6
24. |JANWIL S.A. 262,698.1 5,062.9
25. |ORLEN Oil Sp. z 0.0. 169,393.5 1,021.8
26. |Serwis Szczecin Sp. z 0.0. 105.0 2,286.1
27. |Serwis Krakow Sp. z 0.0. 119.0 2,666.6
28. |Serwis Mazowsze Sp. z 0.0. 4,181.0 7,697.7
29. |Serwis Poznan Sp. z 0.0. 268.2 3,375.9
30. |Serwis Slupsk Sp. z 0.0. 125.8 4,186.9
31. |Centrum Edukacji Sp. z 0.0. 389.1 5,522.0
32. |Flexpol Sp. z 0.0. 17,757.0 3.6
33. |Serwis Podlasie Sp. z 0.0. 226.4 2,278.1
34. |Serwis Zachod Sp. z 0.0. 189.0 4,664.2
35. |Serwis Nowa Wies Wielka Sp. z 0.0. 237.5 3,136.2
36. |ORLEN Transport Olsztyn Sp. z 0.0. 6,753.2 6,453.3
Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spolka Akcyjna 60




S I O I B G S GE BN B R BN B B B B EE B .S

Management Board Commentary on the Company’s operations for the year ended 31 December 2003

No. Name of business partners Sales in PLN Purchases in PLN
thousand thousand
37. |ORLEN Transport Lublin Sp. z 0.0. 2,277.3 8,797.1
38. |ORLEN Transport Szczecin Sp. z 0.0. 778.2 3,783.9
39, (ORLEN Transport Kedzierzyn-Kozle Sp. z 0.0. 4,986.0 6,644.2
40. {ORLEN Transport Poznan Sp. z 0.0. 2,099.8 8,993.8
41. |ORLEN Transport Slupsk Sp. z 0.0. 5,107.3 6,319.0
42, |ORLEN Transport Krakow Sp. z 0.0. 17,317.1 8,239.4
43. |ORLEN Transport Warszawa Sp. Z 0.0. 1,034.6 6,5294
44. |ORLEN Transport Nowa Sol Sp. z 0.0. 2,756.2 11,848.3
45. |ORLEN Asfalt Sp. z 0.0. (formerly Bitrex Sp. z 0.0.) 285,876.1 4,648.6
46. |Zaklad Urzadzen Dystrybucyjnych Sp. z 0.0. 112.1 5,089.2
47. |ORLEN KolTrans Sp. z 0.0. 3,436.7 12,2914
48. |ORLEN Morena Sp. z 0.0. 38,621.9 1,086.4
49. BASELL ORLEN POLYOLEFINS Sp. z o.0. 533,070.9 6,532.5
50. [ORLEN Laboratorium Sp. z 0.0. 4,495.1 41,138.0
51. |Przedsiebiorstwo Inwestycyjno-Remontowe RemWil Sp. z 0.0. - 2,864.0
52. |Petro-Oil Malopolskie Centrum Sprzedazy Sp. z 0.0. 4,492.7 7,262.1
53, {Petro-0il Wielkopolskie Centrum Sprzedazy Sp. z 0.0. 4,605.4 7,990.5
54. |PPHU Piast Sp. z 0.0. 40,488.2 485.7
55. |Petro - Qil Podlaskie Centrum Sprzedazy Sp. z 0.0. - 3,472.1
56. |Petro - Qil Zachodniopomorskie Centrum Sprzedazy Sp. z 0.0. - 4,276.9
57. |Petro-Oil Dolnoslaskie Centrum Sprzedazy Sp. z o.0. 69.5 10,171.5
58. |Petro-Oil Lodzkie Centrum Sprzedazy Sp. z 0.0. 0.4 4,372.8
59. |Orlen Mechanika Sp. z 0.0. 704.8 13,618.1
60. |Orlen Eltech Sp. z 0.0. 561.9 10,492.5
61. |Orlen EnergoRem Sp. z 0.0. 289.4 7,358.6
62. |Orlen Remont Sp. z 0.0. 1,551.4 15,643.9

Transactions with related entities were presented using the arithmetic average of the exchange rates published by the

National Bank of Poland for the last day of each month in the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 -

equal -

4.4474 PLN/EUR.
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6. Changes in the Management Board and Supervisory Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. during 2003

In the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003 the Management Board of PKN ORLEN S.A. consisted of
the following members:

| {President of the Management Board

‘ Zbigniew Wrobel \
‘General Director since 8 February 2002
S \Vlce - President of the Management Board since 8 3 February 21 002
* Slawomir Golonka , tVlce President of the Management Board responsible for Sales since 12

| March 2002

} Member of the Board since 8 February 2002

|
3]

1V1ce President of the Management Board since 7 March 2002

| Andrzej Macenowicz
\Vlce -President of the Management Board responsible for Human

Resources and Management Systems since 12 March 2002

e — it

V1ce President of the Management Board since 7 March 2002

Janusz Wisniewski Vlce President of the Management Board responsible for Development |

J and Production since 12 March 2002

Vlce Pres1dent of the Management Board respons1ble for Finance and

Jacek Strzelecki ‘
\ J,Economlcs since 11 July 2002

SRV S ¥ VUSSR I S

In the reporting period the Supervisory Board, constituting of the following people, performed supervision over the

activity of the Company:

HMember of the Supervisory Board from 21 February 2002 to 28 June
- Maciej Gierej 12002
Chalrman of the Supervisory Board smce 28 June 2002

‘ Edward Grzywa “'Member of the Supervisory Board since 21 February 2002
,"'___ R ﬁ___.‘{r S L T T I TTIm L
Krzysztof Kluzek Lernber of the Supervisory Board since 21 February 2002
: Andrzej Kratiuk ’Member of the Supervrsory Board since 21 F ebruary 2002
UL T T o T ': —— L T oI I T T T T T I I T T T T T T T 1:
- Ryszard Lawniczak i Member of the Supervrsory Board since 21 February 2002
. S U U L}m et e S P
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—
‘
|

} "Member of the Supervisory Board since 21 February 2002
| Grzegorz Mroczkowski [

ecretary of the Supervisory Board from 7 March 2002 to 25 March
003

Krzysztof Szlubowski |Member of the Supervisory Board since 21 February 2002
i \

Jl —
f e
L

Member of the Superv1sory Board since 21 February 2002

» Jvaﬁr{wagé S etz e che Chatrman of the Sup?r\jlgop_'_@oggd Sm_ce,,7, March 2002

Jozet WozniakOWSI;i. ] -12\-40%-1;15& of the Supervisory Board from 28 June 2002 tol4 February
T
r(_)fés't z;r;drz;j NazamkA~:1~ " [Member of he S SupervlsOry Board since 1;;\;);1'1;06’3‘— e

' Secretary of the Superv1sory Board smce 14 May 2003
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7. Total number of shares of the Company and of other Capital Group entities being held by Management

Board and Supervisory Board members

As at 31 December 2003 Management and Supervisory Board members did not possess any shares and stakes in

PKN ORLEN S.A. and other companies of the Capital Group.

Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spolka Akcyjna

64




Management Board Commentary on the Company’s operations for the year ended 31 December 2003

8. PKN ORLEN S.A. shareholders

The structure of shareholders of PKIN ORLEN S.A. as at 31 December 2003:

Nominal value of

% of the share

Shareholder Number of shares | Number of votes .
shares capital
Nafta Polska S.A 74,076,299 74,076,299 92,595,374 17.32%
State Treasury 43,633,897 43,633,897 54,542,371 10.20%
The Bank of New York 44,464,114 44,464,114 55,580,142 10.40%
Others * 265,534,751 265,534,751 331,918,439 62.08%
Total 427,709,061 427,709,061 534,636,326 100.00%

*) According to the current report no 56/2002 issued on 20 June 2002, Warsaw based Kulczyk Holding S.A. and its
affiliates, possessed 23,911,206 shares of PKN ORLEN S.A., constituting 5.591% (taking into consideration increase in

the share capital on 20 November 2003) of total number of votes on the General Meeting of Shareholders.

*) According to the current report no 54/2003 issued on 4 July 2003, Commercial Union OFE BPH CU WBK possessed
at 1 July 2003 21,533,539 shares of PKN ORLEN S.A., constituting 5.035% of share capital and 21,533,539 votes on
the General Meeting of Shareholders which equals to 5.035% (taking into consideration increase in the share capital on

20 November 2003) of total number of votes on the General Meeting of Shareholders.

No contracts are known, as a result of which changes in the stake of shareholders might occur in the future.
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Management Board Commentary on Business Operations
of Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spolka Akcyjna
for the year ended 31 December 2003

submitted by the Management Board composed of:

President of the Management
Board - Zbigniew Wrobel

Board - Jacek Strzelecki

ooooooo

Vice - President of the Management
Board - Janusz Wisniewski

Plock, 29 March 2004

----------------

Board - Slawomir Golonka

Board - Andrzej Macenowicz
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